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During this financial year, City Power has:
• Installed 2,697 public lights;
• Electrified 3,688 households, mainly in
informal settlements;
• Upgraded/developed two substations
while ten are under construction; and
• Installed 132.56 km of cable.
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Key Features of this Report

ABOUT THE INTEGRATED REPORT

Key Features of this Report

Statutory Annual Reporting Process
Illustrating how City Power
derives “material issues” and
how they inform Entity strategy

In terms of section 121 of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) (56 of 2003), City Power as a municipal entity of
the City of Johannesburg is required to prepare an annual report for each financial year. This Integrated Annual Report is a
complete reporting version as required by the Acts, National Treasury Guidelines, and City of Johannesburg internal guidelines
and integrated reporting best practice. This report presents Johannesburg City Power’s 2019/20 Integrated Annual Report for the
period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020.

The City Power’s 2019/20 Integrated Annual Report will be available on the City Power website as a downloadable document on
www.citypower.co.za and on the parent Municipality site www.joburg.org.za after approval and the Annual General Meeting of the
company.

Scope and Boundary of the Integrated Report
The City Power Integrated Annual Report as at 30 June 2020 provides a review of the financial, social, environmental and
governance performance of City Power. Through the use of an integrated reporting format, and application of globally recognised
governance and sustainability reporting frameworks, this report aims to offer stakeholders a clear view of how City Power strategy,
governance, performance and prospects – in the context of its external environment – lead to the creation of value over the short,
medium and long term
.
The boundary of this report is limited to financial and non-financial performance reporting as it relates to City Power during the
2019/20 financial year. The integrity of the integrated annual report was overseen by the Board of Directors in conjunction with its
Committees. This was achieved by setting up appropriate teams, structures and processes to undertake the integrated reporting
process and then performing a thorough review of the resulting document.

Key features o
f th
is

Referencing Content Online

t include:
epor
r
’s
ar
e
y

Introducing a diagrammatic representation
of the Entity's sustainability-driven
business between strategy and
sustainability priorities

Harnessing the principle of
“materiality” to inform report
content

Linking, as far as possible, City
Power’s material risks to strategy
and material issues, as well as
providing risk treatment plans to
manage risk exposure

Reporting Philosophy

Presenting a high-level diagrammatical representation
of the linkages between the Entity’s business model,
operational structure, strategic objectives, capital inputs and
business outcome to demonstrate the connectivity between
strategy, operations and performance

Integrated Approach to Reporting: City Power subscribes to Integrated Annual Reporting. As such, the report aims to reflect
its commitment to a measured and integrated approach to its strategy and operational practices, as well as the reporting of its
economic, social and environmental impacts.

Aligning with Leading Practice Frameworks

Assurance

City Power compiled this report using stakeholder feedback, input of reporting professionals and its own internal review process.
The reporting structure allows the Entity to meet the requirements of the Municipal Finance Management Act, Circular 63 of the
MFMA, National Treasury and City of Johannesburg Guidelines and as far as possible, the guidelines provided by the International
Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) and the reporting priorities outlined in the King Code of Governance for South Africa.

Assurance on the Integrated Annual Report was facilitated through engagements with City Power’s Audit Committee and the
City Power Board. The City, through the Municipal Public Accounts Committee, will consider this report as part of Council’s
oversight process. City Power Integrated Annual Report will be subjected to the City’s annual reporting oversight and monitoring
framework. The Auditor-General (South Africa) has also audited the Entity’s performance. City Power will continue to refine its
approach to integrated reporting in future annual reports to further align with international reporting standards and to promote
consistency, accessibility and accountability with respect to its multi-faceted role in creating and sustaining value for all citizens
of Johannesburg.

CITY POWER
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Summary of the Significant Frameworks and Legislation Used to Prepare the Report

Our Approach to Materiality

•
•
•
•
•

City Power’s purpose as a business is to contribute positively to the GDS 2040 objective of creating a liveable, resilient, and
sustainable Johannesburg. The GDS 2040 is the blueprint for achieving the Entity’s vision of growing the business whilst
decoupling the environmental impact from the business’ growth and increasing its positive social impact.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA)
General Recognised Accounting Principles (GRAP)
Municipal Systems Act (32 of 2000) (MSA)
King IV code on Corporate Governance (KING IV)
Discussion papers issued by the South African Integrated Reporting Committee and the International Integrated Reporting
Council (IIRC)
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
Joburg 2040 Growth and Development Strategy (GDS)
Integrated Development Plan (IDP)
National Treasury Circular 63
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act
Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act
The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa
Promotion of Access to Information Act
Protected Disclosure Act
Companies Act (71 of 2008)
Labour Relations Act
Basic Conditions of Employment Act
Employment Equity Act
Skills Development Levy Act
Occupational Health and Safety Act
National Health Act
Income Tax Act
Value Added Tax Act

Defining Material Issues

Defining Material Issues

City Power periodically reviews its material issues against the changing context of the operating environment, and their relative
significance to its business and to the Entity’s stakeholders. The Entity has therefore determined the relevance of issues to
address and report on, mindful of their significance to both the business and its stakeholders.

City Power has undertaken an in-depth materiality assessment to determine the issues to include set targets for and report on.
City Power Business Plan is the central focus of the Entity’s sustainability strategy and reporting. However, the Entity also reports
on issues that are not contained in its Business Plan but are of interest to its stakeholders. City Power keeps these under regular
review and aims to be as responsive as possible to stakeholder needs.

Assessing City Power Material Issues
City Power periodically reviews its material issues against the changing context of the business, stakeholder feedback, and
emerging trends. The Entity also ensures that its reporting continues to reflect the critical issues for stakeholders as they arise.
The following are City Power’s top material issues:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Vandalism and theft
Improved communication with councillors and community-based planning
External revenue generation opportunities
Inclusive business models – Improved support for small- to medium-scale businesses
Clean governance
Customer centricity
Leverage reputation to attract investments

Approval of the Integrated Report
The City Power Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the integrity of the 2019/20 Integrated Annual Report. The Board
confirms having collectively reviewed the content of the Report and are in agreement that it addresses issues that are material
and that it provides a fair representation of the integrated performance of City Power for the period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020.

Understanding and prioritising the issues that matter to the business and its stakeholders enable the Entity to address the right
issues and report on them effectively. This allows the Entity to evolve its strategy and tailor its reporting, so it is aligned with the
interests and needs of the Entity’s stakeholders, as well as those of the Entity. City Power defines issues to be material to its
business in terms of:

The degree to which an
issue is aligned with the
Entity’s vision and purpose,
brand portfolio and
geographic location

The extent of City
Power’s influence
on the issue

City Power
defines issues to
be material to its
business in terms
of:

The potential impact of the
issue on the Entity’s
operations, or on its
consumers

The importance of
an issue to the
Entity’s key
stakeholders

CITY POWER

14

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

CITY POWER

15

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

1.

LEADERSHIP AND CORPORATE PROFILE

1.1 Foreword: Member of the Mayoral Committee for Environment and 			
		 Infrastructure Services Department, Councillor Mpho Moerane
In December 2019 the Government of Local Unity (GLU) took over the political leadership of Johannesburg. The GDS and the
IDP were reviewed, including the vision, objectives and outcomes of the City to improve the services to the citizens of the City.
I was appointed as the Mayoral Committee for Environment and Infrastructure Services Department (EISD). The department
oversees three municipal Services Entities’ performance, which are City Power, Johannesburg Water and Pikitup.
Upon taking over, we had concerns regarding City Power’s overall performance of 57.69% at the end of the second quarter. In
January, we ensured that the organisation develops a turnaround plan. At the Annual General Meeting held in March 2020, we
appointed a new Board to lead the organisation and ensure that company performance improves. By the end of the year, City
Power had improved the performance to 66.67%. During this financial year, to enhance service delivery the Entity has:
•
•
•
•

installed 2,697 public lights;
electrified 3,688 households mainly in informal settlements;
upgraded/developed 2 substations while 10 are under construction; and
installed 132.56 km of cable.

On behalf of council, we remain concerned about the financial sustainability of City Power. For this reason, we held biweekly
meetings with the company to steer performance improvement. Management and the Board are expected to improve performance
while giving special consideration to the impact of Covid-19 on the business, the country and the world. It has been shown that
energy and electricity play an essential role in improving economic development. The City of Johannesburg is the hub of economic
development in Southern Africa and in Africa —A world-class African City that requires City Power to fast track the implementation
of the energy mix in order to curb the adverse impacts of load-shedding as well as transform the utility into an energy retailer in
order to position the City for further economic development.

1.2 Foreword: Chairperson, Adv. Lindiwe Maseko
The strategic priorities of the City of Johannesburg, as the sole Shareholder of City Power, drives strategic plans of the Entity and
significant attention is given to ensure that these priorities are implemented in the form of measurable targets and deliverables.
The strategic priorities of the City of Johannesburg are contained in the Growth and Development Strategy (GDS) and in the
Integrated Development Plan (IDP) of the City of Johannesburg and have also been reduced to a signed Shareholder’s Compact.
City Power has incorporated these performance measurements into this report.
The City Power FY2019/20 annual performance closed at 66.67% which is a decrease compared to FY 2018/19 performance
of 74.19%. This underperformance can be attributed to service delivery and financial indicators. The Board is very concerned
about the financial position of City Power a concern which is driven by a deteriorating liquidity ratio that is below the norm and
cash flow challenges associated with delayed collections. City Power has enacted various turnaround initiatives to demonstrate
its commitment to improve financial performance as we advance.
Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the municipalities were directed by the Minister of Finance to consider a special adjustment
budget to respond and manage Covid-19 in line with government directives issued from time to time. To this effect, the City
of Johannesburg issued budgeting guidelines to respond to the impact of Covid-19. City Power revised its budget to take into
consideration the impact of Covid-19 and the provisions that had to be put in place in response to the pandemic.
The City Power proposed Covid-19 special budget was disregarded and therefore the Audit and Risk Committee of City Power
supported by its Board, requested that management submit a memo to appraise the shareholder on the risks associated with
the special adjustment budget communicated by the budget office of the City of Johannesburg on 18 May 2020. The committee
expressed grave concerns that the requested budget adjustments were unachievable and unrealistic and asked that City
Power articulate their concerns and highlight to the shareholder the risk and request the shareholder to reconsider the budget.
Unfortunately, the submissions and associated risks were ignored by the shareholder.
The bullets below were prominent areas of concern based on the recommendations by the shareholder with regard to the City
Power budget:
•
•
•
•

Mr. Mpho Moerane
Member of the Mayoral Committee
Environment and Infrastructure Services Department

•

•

•

The revenue (R16.1 billion) has been left unchanged by the shareholder as per the original mid-year budget. However, the
April 2020 performance of City Power saw a decrease directly associated with Covid-19.
Although the shareholder expected the increase in revenue, the input costs associated with the bulk purchases were reduced
and therefore it was a challenge to attain the required level of sales without increasing the bulk purchase expenditure.
It was highlighted that the City Power business is highly dependent on sales volumes or high demand — in particular those
Large Power Users (LPUs) — to realise an increase in sales.
Therefore, it would seem impractical to achieve this level of revenue without increasing the bulk purchase units for sale to the
right category of customers.
The repairs and maintenance budget was also reduced by R137 million. This reduction made it difficult for City Power to
sustain operations and maintenance of infrastructure. The organisation had to weather the storm to reach year-end, risking
the attainment of the service level standards. It was asserted that City Power was just at the beginning of a Winter Season
where there could be demand spikes and, as such, it was important to ensure that unplanned outages do not increase.
The electricity is highly regulated and such a failure to maintain service plants to the required level would compromise the
quality of supply and lead City Power to run its equipment to failure which has adverse impacts on the investment attraction
and compromises license conditions of City Power.
The projected loss position for City Power was expected to unwind from -R297.1 million to a profit of R363.1 million.

It is understood that the shareholder considered the consolidated financial position of the City and thus recommended an adjusted
budget affordable to the City. However, regardless of the approved special budget, it was important to highlight to the shareholder
that their desires were in all likelihood at risk of not being met as they failed to account for the effects of Covid-19 already
noticeable on City Power’s performance during April 2020.
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As the new Board that was appointed at the Special Annual General Meeting (AGM) of 10 February 2021, we would like to thank
and acknowledge the outgoing Board that was led by Mr. Mathamela for all the work done in FY2019/20. The new Board is
determined to work with Management to realise an improvement in achieving strong financial and operational results. The Board
is also resolute in utilising the shareholder’s strategic priorities to drive our plans and achieve the Entity’s vision.
The Board’s governance processes are designed to ensure that the Board and its sub-committees carry out their responsibilities
effectively. The Board and Management are committed to providing good corporate governance, sound business practices, and
transparent compliance to legislation while delivering and improving sustainable and reliable service.

1.3 Foreword: Acting Chief Executive Officer, Ms. Nancy Maluleke
For the Financial year under review, the Entity has not been able to meet the shareholder’s financial expectations as stipulated
in the company objectives and scorecard.
City Power’s most important role is to provide quality energy supply to support the City of Johannesburg’s economic
growth aspirations and improve its citizens’ quality of life. We seek to do so in a way that is financially, operationally, and
environmentally sustainable. The foundational elements of the journey were mainly around people, effective governance and
system stabilisation.
The organisation has been experiencing challenges associated with the decline in revenue figures characterised by illegal
connections, billing errors, and the fluctuation of customer numbers. Theft has also regrettably broadened and this cuts across
the industry, pointing to the need for a countrywide, comprehensive security initiative to reverse the current trends.
City Power’s FY2019/20 performance closed at 66.67% as at 30 June 2020 — a decrease compared to FY 2018/19
performance of 74.19%. On a positive note, for the financial year under review:

Adv. Lindiwe Maseko
Chairperson of the Board
City Power Johannesburg (SOC) Ltd

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

96.90% has been achieved against the target of 95% compliance to NRS048;
2,697 against a target of 1,200 public lights installed within budget;
3,688 households have access to electricity against a target of 2,000;
upgraded/developed two substations while ten are under construction;
installed 132.56 km of cable;
97.09% revenue collected against a target of 88%;
33,163.40 tons of CO2 offset in greenhouse gas emissions for the year; and
6,838 smart meters were rolled out.

Management remains committed to continuously improving our business performance and has put in place turnaround
initiatives to demonstrate its commitment to improving the financial and operational performance going forward. This will also
ensure that the Entity’s vision and mission are realised for ourselves, our shareholder and the communities we serve. We are
committed to ensuring that the shareholder’s strategic priorities, which are influenced by the people of this gallant city, drive
our tactical plans and operations.
In the next financial year, the management team and I will continue to focus on improving this organisation’s finances. However,
management has been mandated to ensure that all their teams understand their collective and individual contributions to the
seven strategic objectives. Revenue collection impacts heavily on our business’ sustainability and it has become one of my
major concerns and focus areas going forward. We have developed plans to turn the situation around and are now at the
implementation stage and starting to see our efforts bear fruit.
A close cooperation with the shareholder in implementing a stand-to-stand audit is commendable and led to the revenue
improvements in the current financial year. The initiatives are being institutionalised going forward to maintain accurate and
complete revenue figures. In the next financial year, the organisation will focus on organisational development and turnaround
initiatives that will see the utility transform into an energy retailer. In this manner it will help negate the impacts of load shedding
while also attaining alternative income streams.

Ms. Nancy Maluleke
Acting Chief Executive Officer
City Power Johannesburg (SOC) Ltd
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1% 3%
6%
Operating Expenditure

1.4 Foreword: Chief Financial Officer, Ms. Mfuni Xolo

3%
The following graph indicates the main categories of expenditure for the year under review. The proactive management and

Overview of Entity Results

containment of costs remains a key priority for the Entity into the new financial year.

Over the past year, total revenue increased by 10.66% to R16.72 billion, while operating expenses increased by 6.89% to R16.75
billion. Overall, the entity reported a surplus of R69.7 million (2019 Restated: Loss R501 million) against the budgeted surplus of
R340 million approved by the shareholder in the Covid-19 special adjustment budget.
The Entity’s economic resilience has been managed through growth strategies and plans to increase revenue. In this regard,
the revenue war room led by the CEO was introduced to institutionalise controls to protect, predict and secure revenue, and to
improve the associated collections from customers. Cost containment initiatives complemented these initiatives.

6%

4%

1% 3%

3%

8%

3%

Operating Revenue

Bulk purchases

3%

The primary revenue streams that supported the Entity’s programmes and activities are made up of:
•
•
•
•
•
•

8%

Bad debts

4%

General expenses

3%

Service charges,
New connections,
Other income,
Rental Income,
Government grants & subsidies, and
Interest revenue.

3%

Lease
rentals
Bulk
purchases

69%

operating
Bad
debts

on
lease

General
expensesrelated
Employee

cost

Lease rentals on
operating lease

69%

Finance costs

Employee related cost

Repairs
Finance
costs &

maintenance

Administration

Repairs & maintenance

1.58%

Administration

0.25%

Depreciation
& amortization
Depreciation
& amortization

0.14%

2.17%

0.004%

Service charges
Other income

0.09%

Government grants
Interest revenue
Fees earned
Rental income
Re-connection fees

Graph 2: Operating Expenditure

As shown in the graph above, the Bulk Purchases that include purchases from Eskom and Kelvin comprise 69% of the total
expenditure followed by employee costs at 8%.

Capital Expenditure
The capital expenditure for the financial year under review amounted to R885 million. Capital commitments (Authorised and
contracted for) as at 30 June 2020 amounted to R2.6 billion (2019: R3.9 billion).

Key Financial Indicators
2019/20
R’000

2018/19
(Restated)
R’000

2017/18
(Restated)
R’000

2016/17
(Restated)
R’000

(19,220,989)

(18,277,405)

(17,220,488)

(16,657,294)

Service charges
Other income

Details

Government grants
Interest revenue

95.77%

Fees earned

Total assets

Rental income

Total equity

Re-connection fees

Total equity and liabilities

5,405,902

5,336,107

5,992,618

6,316,411

(19,220,989)

(18,277,405)

(17,220,488)

(16,657,294)

Short-term loan to shareholder
Bank balances

Graph 1: Operating Revenue

Capital expenditure

The graph above reflects that service charges represent just under 96% of the revenue, with the remaining percentage being
attributable to other sources of income.

Revenue
Grant and subsidies
Direct cost
Employee costs
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-

-

117,720

265,237

18,966

16,935

15,655

(884 842)

(1,127,090)

(882,921)

(1,813,872)

16,412,644

14,809,766

14,043,785

15,046,496

264,298

224,165

319,101

275,288

(11,512,422)

(10,718,639)

(10,297,590)

(10,588,851)

(1,265,014)

(1,121,511)

(1,087,605)

(962,662)

21

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

Details
Finance income
Finance costs
Loss before tax
Income tax expense – deferred
Profit/(loss) for the year
Net cash from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash from financing activities

2019/20
R’000

2018/19
(Restated)
R’000

2017/18
(Restated)
R’000

2016/17
(Restated)
R’000

41,939

74,797

73,078

76,637

(574,478)

(541,719)

(453,465)

(431 575)

(27,337)

(558,126)

(378,391)

(374,434)

97,131

57,041

5,830

187,718

69,794

(501,085)

(384,221)

(186,716)

552,741

232,162

569,945

316 256

(907, 551)

(1,220,602)

(1,426,811)

(1,377,462)

601,081

990,471

858,146

1,073,372

Table 1: Key Financial Indicators

Conclusion
I want to take this time to thank the guidance of my CEO, the support of the executive colleagues, and the employees of City
Power for their hard work and sacrifices as well as their concerted effort throughout the year. With regard to this report, I would
like to recognise the contribution of all involved in the finalisation thereof as well as the financial statements. I wish to express my
gratitude to the Auditor-General for conducting the external audit and their assistance, support and cooperation during the year.
Finally, I would like to thank the Board of City Power and the management team at the City of Johannesburg for their support.

Ms. Nomfuneko “Mfuni” Xolo
Chief Financial Officer
City Power Johannesburg (SOC) Ltd

The reduction in net cash impacts the ability of City Power to stabilise the network.

Financial Ratios
Benchmark

2019/20

2018/19

2017/18

Liquidity - (Current Assets : Current Liabilities)

1:1

0.39:1

0.37:1

0.40:1

0.53:1

Solvency - (Non-Current Assets : Non-Current
Liabilities)

2:1

3.37:1

3.09:1

2.98:1

2.75:1

27.87%

29.17 %

28.15%

33.7%

-

-

-

117,720

Details

Total Operating Expenditure/Revenue
Short-term loan to shareholder

2016/17

(Restated)

Table 2: Financial Ratios

Liquidity is below the norm which means that the Entity would be unable to pay all its current or short-term obligations as and
when they fall due. The poor liquidity position highlights serious financial challenges that require immediate attention to introduce
financial recovery and debt restructure envisaged in section 109 of the MFMA.
Solvency ratio exceeds the norm and the entity will be able to meet the long-term debt.

The Financial Outlook
From an economic perspective, we expect the 2021 financial year to be particularly challenging as the country continues to
grapple with slow economic growth, rising unemployment and the economic impact of Covid-19. Eskom’s unbundling and the
advent of load shedding present opportunities for City Power to play an active role in the energy generation.
The management team is excited about the data initiatives in line with the Fourth Industrial Revolution (4IR) which will assist the
Entity to best manage our inputs based on real-time data. This exercise will play a major role in addressing the fragmented manner
in which the meter-to-cash value chain is managed.
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1.5 Company Secretary’s Certification

1.6 Statement of Responsibility

In terms of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, as amended, I certify that the Entity has lodged with the Commissioner
all such returns as are required of a public company in terms of the Companies Act and that all such returns appear to be true,
correct and up to date.

The Directors of the Entity are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and the preparation of the annual
financial statements and other performance information with integrity and fair presentation of the entity’s state of affairs. The
annual financial statements have been prepared under the Chief Financial Officer’s supervision, Ms. Mfuni Xolo. The financial
statements presented in Chapter five have been prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP).
They include amounts based on prudent judgments and estimates made by the management.
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information in the Annual Report and are responsible for both its
accuracy and its consistency with the financial statements.
The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements, and the Directors have no reason to believe that
the Entity will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future based on the forecast and available cash resources. Refer to the
Director’s report on the AFS concerning the appropriateness of the going concern assumption for the preparation of the financial
statements.

Mr. MJ Smith
Company Secretary

The Auditor-General, who was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all meetings
of shareholders, the Board of Directors and Committees of the Board, has audited the financial statements and other performance
information. The Directors believe that all representations made to the Auditor-General during their audit are valid and appropriate.
The Auditor-General’s report is presented in Chapter six.
The financial statements were approved for submission to the Auditor-General for the purpose of auditing by the Board of Directors
on 31 October 2020 and signed on its behalf by the Chairperson, Mr. William Mathamela.
The final set of financial statements, annual performance information, and Integrated Annual Report will be recommended for
approval by the Audit Committee of City Power and approved by the Board after auditing by AGSA.

1.7 Corporate Profile
1.7.1 Overview of the Entity
City Power was established in 2000 as an independent municipal entity, wholly owned by the City of Johannesburg. The National
Energy Regulator of South Africa (NERSA) granted City Power a license to trade on 19 December 2001. Today, City Power has
approximately 377,796 customers, ranging from domestic to commercial and industrial properties.
City Power Johannesburg (SOC) Ltd (City Power) is accountable for providing electricity services to all its customers. As the City
of Johannesburg’s electricity distribution service provider, City Power’s core competency is purchasing, distributing and selling
electricity within its geographical footprint. City Power is not the sole provider of electricity services for the City.
The areas not covered by City Power (predominantly Soweto and Sandton), are serviced by Eskom. The COJ map indicates that
the blue areas are supplied by City Power while Eskom supplies the yellow shaded areas.
The City of Johannesburg, through a Service Delivery Agreement, regulates the service provided by City Power in respect of
financial issues (such as tariffs and capital expenditure), human resource issues (such as skills development), delivery targets
(maintenance of assets and addressing assets) and standards of customer care.
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Figure 1: City Power Overview

City Power is accountable to provide network services to all its customers, which include:

1.8 Our Strategy

•
•
•
•
•

1.8.1 High Level Organisational Statistics

The purchasing and distribution and sale of electricity,
Constructing networks,
Connecting customers,
Repair and maintenance of networks, and
Installation and maintenance of public lighting.

The figure below provides a snapshot of City Power’s statistics. It highlights the Entity’s key information at a glance.

The energy industry and landscape has been
experiencing rapid change in the past 10 years
impacting the City Power business. With this in
mind, City Power has found it necessary to review its
business model and service offering; and this has led
to the strategic shift towards establishing City Power
as an energy company, as opposed to the old and
traditional function of being an electricity distributor.
City Power has commenced with plans to transition its
business model towards being an energy company.
The drive for the change is:
•
•
•
•

REVENUE
Over

R15 billion

•

prepaid

118,937

CAPITAL
INVESTMENT IN
THE LAST 10
YEARS

ASSET VALUE

Over

R49 billion
[Insured]

R15 billion

R13.5 billion

[Net Value]

conventional
domestic

INFRASTRUCTURE
Over

18,000kms

of underground
cable and overhead
lines

EMPLOYEES
Over

1,700

Over 18,000
load centres

268

9,437 business

Increasing and securing the supply of energy,
Acquiring electricity from renewable and
alternative sources,
Reducing greenhouse gas emissions, and
The strategic use of a mixture of technologies
and energy sources to achieve goals.

substations

3,964 large

Over 276,000
public lights

power users

Figure 1: City Power Overview

It can be deduced from the figure above that City Power’s revenues would place it in the top 300 companies on the Johannesburg
Stock Exchange if the Entity was listed. The customer profile indicates that the Entity has to provide specialised services to each
category of customers. The nature of the network and the workforce numbers highlight the importance of resources in the delivery
of services.

Reducing the burden of cost on the consumer,
Balancing the financial sustainability of the
business, delivery of services and shareholder
requirements and expectations, and
Adopting and implementing “Smart City”
initiatives as part of the City Power Smart Utility
intervention while ensuring integration With other
City departments and entities.

1.8.2 Organisational Mandate
1.8.2 Organisational Mandate

The mandate of City Power is to provide a reliable supply of energy to the City of Johannesburg through the implementation of the
VUCA 2022 Strategy. This is done through the strategic use of a mixture of technologies and energy sources whilst maintaining
the business’ financial and non-financial sustainability.

City Power is committed to the City’s long-term
aspirations of a resilient, sustainable and livable
Johannesburg by 2040. The Entity contributes to this
aspiration through quality service delivery provision of an electricity network that guarantees sustainable living and provides
enabling support that drives economic growth. City Power promotes optimal management of the City’s electricity network
and encourages careful consideration for the environment. The Entity bases this on a strong commitment to sound financial
management and governance.
City Power is well-positioned to achieve sound financial management, efficient systems, and processes as well as the pursuit
of sustainable additional revenue streams and capital efficiency. City Power does this by engaging all relevant stakeholders and
responding to stakeholder needs with a productive workforce. City Power achieves this while maintaining a functioning electricity
network within the City.

CITY POWER

Over 377,000:

245,433

The above has to be done while:
•
•

CUSTOMERS
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To provide quality of
energy supply to citizens
of Johannesburg

• Operate, maintain and restore
• Network strengthening

To manage our assets in a
cost-effective and
sustainable manner

• Revenue management
• Metering and accurate billing

CITY POWER
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• Exploring additional revenue streams
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City Power aims to assist the City of Johannesburg to address the South African challenge of security and quality of electricity supply
in the short term, and energy supply in the medium to long term. It enables consumers, who reside in the City of Johannesburg
jurisdiction, to have continuous access to electricity and other energy sources, with the acceptable quality and reliability standards,
yet at affordable, transparent rates.
In parallel to this objective, City Power will also be required to ensure the sustainability of the business through the achievement
of certain agreed to financial, social and environmental goals.

1.8.3 City Power Value Proposition

1.8.4 VUCA Strategy Implementation and Progress Feedback
1.8.4.1 Background
City Power finds itself in a Volatile, Uncertain, Complex, Ambiguous environment. To deal with this, City Power has a five-year
VUCA strategy, which is constituted by the shareholder Vision, Understanding the sustainability game plan, regaining Customer
Confidence and making our people more Agile. City Power’s VUCA Strategy aims to ensure that the Entity becomes financially
sustainable, a smart utility, a business that is customer centric with engaged and skilled employees. We began FY 2018/19 by
defining the City Power Way and implementing Lights On! We evaluated our “as is” and “to be” positions, which resulted in each
division developing journey maps with a clear line of sight to our strategic objectives.
The VUCA 2022 high-level journey map, with clear milestones and timelines, is presented below:

How do we
do it?
What we do?
Who are we?
We are a
customer-centric
energy service
company, wholly
owned by
the City of
Johannesburg
and operating
in a regulated
environment

We distribute
electricity to the
residents of one of
the biggest metros on
the continent

We build, operate
and maintain the
electricity network in
a sustainable and
environmentally
responsible manner

What are our
products/
services?
We provide
electricity, and are
aiming to diversify
the energy mix

What value do
we add and
why we do it?
We improve the
safety and quality
of life of citizens.
We contribute to the
South African
economy.
We promote
socio-economic
transformation

2018
Foundation-Driven
through people,
process and system
stabilisation
• Empowered
leadership lead the
change agenda
• Competent staff
driving results
• Staff engaged and
aligned to the City
Power Way
• Processes are
standardised and
optimal
• Effective
governance

2019

2020

2021

Revenue
completness and
assurance

Security of supply
and network
stability

Business and
financial
sustainability

• Smart Meter
installations done

• Preventative
maintenance “as the
norm”

• Refurbished plant

• Visible public
lighting
• Adherence to NRS
Service Standards
• Metering Collection
Targets achieved
• ICT strategy
• Prepaid conversion
done

• Access to service in
informal settlements
• Revised funding
model
• Cost reflective tariff

• Guaranteed plant
capacity

2022
Smart utility
• Business and
financially
sustainable City
Power
• Smart grid enabled

• Smart City Power

• Customer centricity

• Meaningful
economic
transformation
achieved

• Engaged and skilled
employees
• Ethical organisation

• Minimal technical
losses and
non-technical losses
• Visible public
lighting
• Stable network

• Risk and
Business Intelligent
Organisation

• Alternative energy
player

Figure 2: City Power Value Proposition

Figure 3: City Power’s VUCA Strategy Journey Map

The implementation of the VUCA 2022 Strategy commenced in the 2017/18 financial year. The key focus was to ensure the
sustainability of today’s business while preparing and laying the foundation for tomorrow’s business.
The 2017/18 financial year’s key focus was on creating the right culture and leadership for our people, strengthening governance
and delivering on our core business agenda to keep the lights on. These initiatives were aimed at re-energising, refocusing, and
building an ethical and high-performing organisation. The gains from these initiatives are meant to be sustained across future
financial years.
City Power continues to invest in initiatives that bring us closer to our aspirations of becoming an energy distribution company,
with a diversified energy mix which includes renewable energy sources. The Entity continues to identify and explore new revenue
streams within the energy landscape, while providing a customer-centric approach to service delivery across all customer
categories. Our energy sustainability continues to be aimed at reducing greenhouse gas emissions.
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There have been areas of concern on some of the restoration times, however the Entity has been implementing interventions to
improve plant reliability in an effort to reduce outages. The financial year’s final quarter was under Covid-19 National Lockdown
conditions, which has had a negative impact on the Entity’s overall performance. Notwithstanding the Covid-19-related constraints
and challenges, the Entity could still spend 98% of its Capex allocation for the financial year. In addition, City Power still managed
to electrify 3,688 households in Informal Settlements and rolled out 2,697 new public lights, in line with the targets set for service
delivery in the financial year. City Power has continued to exceed compliance with NRS048. The Entity has continued to implement
preventative and proactive maintenance initiatives even amid financial and human resource-related constraints.
The implementation of a data risk-driven organisation has received increased focus. This is reflected in the adoption and use
of business intelligence tools such as dashboards to achieve real-time reporting and improve integration and performance. The
investments made in the ICT environment have yielded fruit and this was demonstrated in how the Entity was able to swiftly switch
to a work-from-home approach when the Covid-19 lockdown was implemented. Efforts to strengthen and improve our business
sustainability include strengthening and tightening governance measures, instituting internal controls to mitigate fraud, corruption
and maladministration while also improving customer information accuracy.

1.8.4.2 Revenue Enhancement Initiatives
City Power has been experiencing financial pressures around the gross margin, liquidity and total losses, and the Entity continues
to grapple with these challenges. City Power recorded R15.89 billion revenue against a budget of R16.17 billion (excluding
new service connections). This financial performance reflects a positive variance of 11.35% in revenue when compared to that
of the previous financial year. The business has been experiencing challenges associated with the decline in revenue figures
characterised by illegal connections, billing errors, and fluctuation in customer numbers. We continue to experience difficulties
in revenue collection, data accuracy, and completeness, correct application of tariffs, billing and revenue collection. City Power
will continue to implement revenue enhancement initiatives and cost-cutting measures in the new financial year to improve the
Entity’s financial position. Particular focus will be placed on revenue performance and reducing total losses to ensure the Entity’s
financial sustainability.

1.8.4.4 Energy Mix
The focus on the Energy Mix for the financial year was on exploring areas of potential opportunities that could be leveraged
to diversify our energy mix. To this end we undertook a feasibility study to identify potential solutions to reduce our reliance on
Eskom and secure our current and future revenues. The feasibility study is nearing completion, and its outcomes are expected
in the first quarter of the 2020/21 financial year. Although it is yet to be finalised, the feasibility study has already yielded results
in that City Power has identified the feasibility of implementing a rooftop Solar Photovoltaic (PV) solution for City Power and City
of Joburg buildings. Phase 1 of this project — implementation on the City Power buildings — is set for the 2020/21 financial year,
and eventual completion for both City Power and City of Joburg will continue in future years. To bridge the financing predicament
associated with energy mix, City Power will consider off-balance-sheet financing that will involve private sector.

1.8.4.5 Smart Workforce and Digital Optimisation
City Power operates in an environment that is highly dependent on technology, including Information and Communication
Technology. The Entity has aspirations to be a Smart Utility of the future and this is aligned with the Smart City vision of the City
of Joburg. To ensure a streamlined and long-term investment in ICT infrastructure, City Power has finalised the ICT Strategy. This
will guide all ICT initiatives and plans, and this will ensure that the correct solutions are prioritised and implemented optimally.
There are a number of initiatives within the technology space that City Power continues to explore in order to advance the Entity
to Smart Utility status, and these include investments in smart metering and the smart grid technologies, digital productivity tools
for employees, and automation of back-office processes:

Smart grids:
more efficient and less capital intense, allowing for predictive maintenance and better asset health. A smarter grid offers
utilities operational benefits (outage managment, improved processes, workforce efficiency, reduced losses, etc.) as well as
benefits associated with improved asset management (system planning, better capital asset utilisation, etc).

In the early part of the financial year, City Power used the Revenue War Room Initiative to streamline revenue-related initiatives
and ensure that these receive the necessary oversight and support from management and the Executive. The War Room is made
up of a task team of cross-functional teams from City Power, COJ representatives and subject matter experts.

Smart meters:
supplying the massive volumes of data, right analytics capabilities that enable
data-based analyses, planning, and diagnostics. Advanced smart meters also have
credit and collections algorithims that can identify which customers will need help to
avoid default.

The War Room initiative focuses on all revenue-related issues of the business to ensure that leakages are identified and stemmed
through various interventions.
The War Room initiative resulted in City Power establishing a Revenue Enhancement programme, which sought to improve
our revenues through a targeted, coordinated and focused manner. This programme was able to contribute an amount of R476
million against an initial target of R435 million. The progress made through the War Room initiative, and other revenue-related
interventions has been encouraging. However, more can still be achieved in the forthcoming financial year from such a targeted
and collaborative approach to revenue generation.

SMART
TECHNOLOGY
INITIATIVES

Productivity tools for employees:
mobile enablement for employees is quickly becoming a powerful
productivity-boosting capability. This means better asset management,
engineering, planning, scheduling and dispatch, as well as execution, root
causes and job closeout.

1.8.4.3 Maintenance Plan
In this financial year, City Power increased its focus on a new culture of preventative maintenance. A total expenditure of R978
million on repairs and maintenance (R&M), which includes preventative maintenance is a clear demonstration of the importance
of maintenance as an intervention to improve the health of our network and to reduce outages. Investment into this initiative
continues to yield positive results in terms of the network’s overall performance as well as a 7.82% reduction of outages. Special
attention has been paid to ensure that we bring the plant back to service faster in order to be able to mitigate some of the outages
and improve restoration times. In the 2020/21 financial year, we will increase the spending on preventative maintenance as a
component of the overall R&M spent.

Automation of back-office processes:
automation of processes in customer management, billing and collection.

Figure 4: Smart Technology Initiatives

We are continuing to train and upskill our employees in preventative maintenance to reduce reliance on external contractors. The
program for group luminaire replacement for public lighting is continuing. This will help reduce public light faults and reduce energy
consumed by public lights as the new LED lights are more energy efficient. The luminaire replacement program is set to continue
in the 2020/21 financial year.
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The following milestones were achieved in the ICT environment to enable digitisation and automation in the 2019/20 financial year:
Smart Infrastructure (Smart Grid)
• Completed the Geo GIS upgrade project including Customer to Network Link
• SCADA System Upgrade
• Outage Management System (OWMS) (Forcelink) Upgrade
• 60% Cybersecurity Implementation (This allowed for minimal interruption after the cyberattack incident of 24 April 			
		2020)
Digital Workforce (Smart Employee)
• Virtual Office – Work from Home
• Virtual Private Network – FortiClient VPN rollout for 1,200 employees
• Skype for Business and Microsoft Teams for 1,200 employees
• Laptop replacement programme — 356 laptops replaced for essential users
• APN with data SIM cards for 660 essential users.
Smart Data
Implementation of data dashboards has commenced, which will improve data availability, improve accuracy of 			
information, improve performance and reporting across the business.
City Power will continue to invest in ICT infrastructure and complementary solutions to ensure that the Entity 			
leverages these to improve performance, increase revenue and attain sustainability imperatives in the transition to 			
the future business.

1.8.4.6 Strategy Execution Through Journey Maps
The achievement of the strategic objectives requires deliberate monitoring of the strategy delivery approach. As a result, we have
developed key performance areas (KPA) with associated key performance indicators (KPIs) aligned to the strategic objectives.
The KPIs provide evidence on the degree to which strategic objectives have been achieved. In this way, KPIs serve as an earlywarning system for strategic problems. The continuous monitoring and evaluation of performance across the KPI universe allows
City Power to make timely interventions to address non-performance or performance risk areas. The goal is to proactively identify
problems and address these before they have an overall negative impact on strategy’s delivery.
Each KPA has been broken down into several key performance indicators owned by Executives, General Managers and Managers.
The individual performance compacts will be aligned with the organisational KPAs and KPIs, especially for Management and
Executives. This will enable the team to establish a clear line of sight from daily operations to strategic outcomes and engage all
employees in delivering the strategy.
The use of the performance dashboard will provide a visual illustration of which KPAs are on target and which ones require
leadership attention and support.

1.8.5 City Power Strategic Objectives
City Power’s VUCA Strategic objectives (Short-, Medium- and Long-Term) is outlined in the table below:

Short-Term Objectives

Security of Supply and Network
Stability
• Preventative maintenance ‘as the
norm’
• Access to services in informal
settlements
• Revised funding model
• Cost reflective tariff
• Minimal technical and non-technical
losses
• Visible public lighting
• Stable networkasse
• Alternative energy player

Revenue Completeness and
Assurance
• Smart Meter installations done
• Visible public lighting
• Adherence to NRS Service Standards
• Metering collection targets achieved
• ICT strategy
• Prepaid conversion done

Business and Financial Sustainability
• Refurbished plant
• Guaranteed plant capacity
• Smart City Power
• Meaningful economic transformation
achieved
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Long-Term Objectives
Smart Utility
• Smart renewable energy trading
• Smart grid
• Smart plant
• Smart meter vending and billing
• Happy customers

Table 3: VUCA Strategy Objectives

The VUCA milestones are spread over a five-year period commencing in 2017/18 and ending in the 2021/22 financial year. The
VUCA strategic objectives performance is progressive and incremental with milestones set for the short-, medium- and long-term.
The figure below provides the progress achieved on the VUCA 2022 journey thus far:

FY
18/19

Each Group within City Power documented their individual journey maps. Each Group’s journey map documented the group
objectives, description of success, key performance indicators and programmes per quarter. These are used to ensure alignment
and successful delivery of the VUCA 2022 strategy with a particular focus on the intended milestones that were planned for the
financial year 2019/20. To ensure integration, journey maps were documented as cross- functional teams. All the Groups perform
in line with and in support of the strategic objective and this ensures that there is a shared responsibility on the successful delivery
of the strategy.

CITY POWER

Medium-Term Objectives

Foundation - Driven Through People,
Process and System Stabilisation
• Empowered leadership driving the
change agenda
• Competent staff driving results
• Staff engaged and aligned to the City
Power Way
• Processes are standardised and
optimal
• Effective governance
• Risk and business intelligent
organisation

FY
19/20

Empowered leadership lead the change agenda
• Formalised a customised leadership development programme
• Commenced with coaching for performance with the leadership bench
Competent staff driving results
• Finalisation of Job Architecture process
• Launched the career and succession planning programme
• Developed a competency framework
• Automated the IPM process
Staff engaged and aligned to the City Power Way
• Defined the productivity framework for City Power
• Activated change agent network
• Facilitated an employee satisfaction survey across City Power
Processes (Data analytics for Metering)
Governance
• Establishment of a Sustainability Committee
Risk Intelligent Organisation
• Insurance turnaround strategy implemented (backlog of outstanding claims reduced to 12% by year end)
• BCM programme rollout (City Power responded well to most major incidents)

•
•
•
•
•

Exceeded Public Lighting Targets
ICT Strategy
Exceeded target for informal settlements
CITY POWER
Exceeded adherence to NRS048
Revenue collection
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• Defined the productivity framework for City Power
• Activated change agent network
• Facilitated an employee satisfaction survey across City Power
Processes (Data analytics for Metering)
Governance
• Establishment of a Sustainability Committee
Risk Intelligent Organisation
• Insurance turnaround strategy implemented (backlog of outstanding claims reduced to 12% by year end)
• BCM programme rollout (City Power responded well to most major incidents)

FY
19/20

• Exceeded Public Lighting Targets

KPI

• ICT Strategy
• Exceeded target for informal settlements

Procurement Spend from Suppliers That Are
30% Black-Woman-Owned

• Exceeded adherence to NRS048
• Revenue collection

Unit

Actual

Actual
2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2019/20

18.36

16.17

29.05

12

40.63

2016/17

%

Actual

Plan

Actual

Table 4: Non-Financial Achievements for 2019/20

• Prepaid conversion
• Total losses

1.8.6 Customer Base
The table below shows City Power customer base for the past five years:

FY
20/21

• Revised funding model (proposal and discussion document submitted)

Type

• Preventative maintenance
• Approval of the energy mix stratergy

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

23

25

27

25

25

3,997

3,911

3,803

4,008

3,964

Agriculture

• Technical Feasibility study

FY
21/22

2015/16

LPU

• Refurbished plant
• Guaranteed plant capacity

Business

10,028

9,588

11,699

9,371

9,437

Domestic

132,537

139,311

134,874

118,647

118,937

Prepaid

249,719

261,042

235,164

243,660

245,433

Total

396,304

413,877

385,567

375,711

377,796

• Smart Grid Enabled
• Meaningful economic transformation achieved

Table 5: Customer Base

• Business and financially sustainable
• Customer Centricity

1.9 Significant External Environmental Factors and City Power Response

• Engaged and skilled employees
• Ethical organisation
Completed

In progress

Not achieved

Figure 5: Performance Against the VUCA Strategy

Salient Features

Below are the organisation’s achievements for the 2019/20 financial year.
Financial: Refer to the Annual Financial Statements on Annexure C.
Non-Financial:

Actual

Actual
2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2019/20

%

99.33

96

98.33

95

96.9

Number of New Houses Electrified

No.

4,850

2,167

3,191

2,000

3,688

Number of Public Lights Installed

No.

2,961

1,374

2,198

1,200

2,697

Kwh

13,200

41,355.5

28,334.7

24,205

33,244.60

Overall Percentage of Collection Levels

%

95.05

95.66

90.5

88

97.09

Overall Percentage Meter Reading Performance

%

79.91

83.04

90.97

90

87.33

95% Controllable Capex Spend

%

93

96.3

89

95

98

No.

4,504

1,736

1,243

800

802

%

51.22

39.24

51.52

40

51.52

KPI

Unit

Compliance with NRS048

24205,7 Tons CO2 Offset in Greenhouse Gas
Emission

Number of Jobs Created Through EPWP
Procurement Spend from Suppliers That Are
51% Black-Owned

CITY POWER

2016/17
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Plan

Actual

The Department of Mineral Resources and Energy has released the updated Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) 2019 for the country.
The IRP 2019 recognises that the historical reliance on fossil fuels such as coal is not sustainable, mostly due to environmental
considerations around carbon emissions. The IRP 2019 envisages an energy mix that includes the following:
• Coal – with a preference for low carbon-emitting technologies;
• Nuclear – with an extension of capacity and lifespan of Koeberg Power Station and investment in new nuclear 			
		 stations (funding dependent);
• Gas – with focus on clean and sustainable use of gas across various areas of the energy supply chain; and
• Renewable Energy – this focuses on long-term energy sustainability through environmentally friendly energy sources
		 such as Solar, Wind, Hydro, energy storage and other renewable technologies.
The IRP has also provided new opportunities for municipalities to generate their own electricity within the set guidelines. City
Power is including exploring energy generation opportunities as part of the Entity’s plan in line with its sustainability imperatives
and its transition to an energy utility. The City Power approach is tailored towards renewable energy solutions so as to align with
the IRP 2019 plan that has earmarked about 41% of electricity generated in South Africa to come from renewable resources by
the year 2030.
Approval of the regulations allowing municipalities in good standing to participate in new generation capacity is expected in the
new financial year following draft amendments to which City Power commented in May 2020.

1.9.1 Market Opportunities
The City of Johannesburg embarked on a journey to become a sustainable and Smart City of the future in line with principles of
the Growth and Development Strategy 2040. Energy will be a critical component in realising this aspiration. While energy is key
to unlocking the economic and socio-economic development objectives, unchecked coal-based consumption will increase carbon
and energy intensity, thus threatening economic and environmental sustainability as well as quality of life within the City.

CITY POWER
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Re-energised,
refocused and
ethical organisation

Safe, secured smart
grid

Strategy-driven, risk
intelligent and
innovative
organisation

Energy
sustainability

customer-centric
organisation

Plan reliability

Financial stability

1.9.2 The Top Opportunities
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Rising emerging markets’ energy demands (including poverty reduction and access to power);
Acquisitions or alliances to gain new capabilities (including growing skillsets of employees);
Growth in energy and ancillary services markets (including sustainable jobs);
Enhancing relationships with external regulatory and compliance bodies;
Improving public perceptions (including customer control);
Increased focus on investor relations programs and communications (including security of supply to drive investor appetite);
Integration of distributed energy resources (including necessity to innovate);
Increased investment in generation capacity and delivery infrastructure in emerging markets (including security of supply
and network investment);
Rising energy innovation in emerging markets, and leveraging on the IRP 2019 plan on renewable energy sources; and
Eskom’s unbundling and possible increasing role of municipalities in the electricity value chain.

Priorities
√ Promote economic development and attract investment towards achieving 5% economic growth that reduces unemployment by 2021
√ Ensure pro-poor development that addresses inequality and poverty while providing meaningful redress
√ Create a culture of enhanced service delivery with pride
√ Create a sense of security through improved public safety
√ Create an honest and transparent City that fights corruption
√ Create a City that responds to the needs of citizens, customers, stakeholders and businesses

1.9.3 Shareholder Alignment to GDS 2040 and IDP

√ Enhance the organisation’s financial sustainability

City Power operates within the local government environment, and the entity needs to continually align with the imperatives of
the City of Joburg as the shareholder, especially in terms of service delivery, customer service and stakeholder expectations.
The section below explores the alignment between the entity and its shareholder, the legislative mandate and its organisational
structure.

√ Encourage innovation and efficiency through the Smart City Programme
√ Preserve our resources for future generations

The high-level alignment of City Power to its shareholder the City of Johannesburg:

Outcomes
Re-energised,
refocused and
ethical organisation

Revenue-driven,
customer-centric
organisation

Safe, secured smart
grid

Strategy-driven, risk
intelligent and
innovative
organisation

Financial stability

Energy
sustainability

Plan reliability

A growing, diverse
and competitive
economy that
creates jobs

Caring, safe
and secure
communities

Enhanced, quality
services and
sustainable
environmental
practices

An equitable and
inclusive society
with high quality of
life

An honest,
transparent and
responsive local
government that
prides itself on
service excellence

Priorities
√ Promote economic development and attract investment towards achieving 5% economic growth that reduces unemployment by 2021
√ Ensure pro-poor development that addresses inequality and poverty while providing meaningful redress

Figure 6: Strategic Objective Alignment to GDS 2040

Not achieved

The City of Johannesburg had a government change in Council with the election of the new Government of National Unity
(GLU). The GLU has crafted a new set of priorities and programmes, and City Power has aligned its 2019/20 initiatives; further,
programmes and projects have been reviewed and realigned with the new political direction.

√ Create a culture of enhanced service delivery with pride
√ Create a sense of security through improved public safety
√ Create an honest and transparent City that fights corruption
√ Create a City that responds to the needs of citizens, customers, stakeholders and businesses
√ Enhance the organisation’s financial sustainability
√ Encourage innovation and efficiency through the Smart City Programme
√ Preserve our resources for future generations
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Alignment of the GDS 2040, COJ Government of Local Unity Priorities and City Power Strategic objectives.

Government of Local
Unity Priorities

GDS 2040 Outcomes

IDP Priorities

• Improved quality of
life and developmentdriven resilience for
all

• Employment creation,
investment attraction
and retention

•Good governance

• Informal Economy,
SMME and
Entrepreneurial
support

•Integrated human
settlements

• Provide a resilient,
liveable, sustainable
urban environment
– underpinned by
smart infrastructure
supportive of a low
carbon economy
• An inclusive, jobintensive, resilient,
competitive and
smart economy
that harnesses the
potential of citizens
• A high-performing
metropolitan
government
that proactively
contributes to and
builds a sustainable,
socially inclusive,
locally integrated and
globally competitive
Gauteng City Region.

• Green and Blue
economy
• Transforming
sustainable human
settlements
•Smart City and
Innovation
• Financial
Sustainability
• Climate Change and
resource resilience
•Building safer
communities
• Active and engaged
citizenry

•Financial sustainability

•Sustainable service
delivery

City Power VUCA
2022 Indices

City Power Strategic
Objectives

• Financial
Sustainability Index

• Improve, stabilise
and sustain a positive
financial position

• Revenue and
Collection Index
• Reputation Index
• Sustainability Index

•Job opportunity and
creation

•Security of Supply
Index

•Safer city

• Governance Index

•Active and engaged
citizenry

• Network Reliability
Index

•Economic
Development and
Growth

• Smart City Power
Index
• Human Capital Index

•Sustainable
environmental
development

• Transformation Index

•Smart city
•Covid-19 Response

• Agriculture and food
security
• Repositioning Joburg
in the global arena
• Good governance

• Establish City
Power’s own energy
generation capability
and capacity to
reduce over-reliance
on Eskom and Kelvin

1.10 City Power Alignment to Batho Pele Principles
The Batho Pele (“People First”) principles are aligned to the Constitution – know the service you’re entitled to. The Batho Pele
principles are a South African political initiative that stands for the better delivery of goods and services to the public. The Batho
Pele initiative aims to enhance government services’ quality and accessibility by improving efficiency and accountability to the
recipients of public goods and services. Government officials must follow the “Batho Pele” principles that require public servants
to be polite, open and transparent while also delivering good service to the public. The COJ has developed the GDS2040 in line
with the Batho Pele principles.
The table below outlines City Power’s response to the eight service delivery principles be implemented:
Batho Pele Principles

Definition of the Batho Pele Principles

City Power Response

1.

Consultation

Citizens should be consulted about the
level and quality of the public services they
receive and, wherever possible, should be
given a choice about the services that are
offered.

2.

Service Standards

Citizens should be told what level and quality COJ through City Power ensures citizens of
of public service they will receive so that
the City have access to electricity and public
they are aware of what to expect.
lighting.

3.

Access

All citizens should have equal access to the
services to which they are entitled.

• A technology and
innovation-driven
organisation

COJ through City Power ensures citizens of
the City has access to electricity and public
lighting

4.

Courtesy

Citizens should be treated with courtesy and
consideration.

City Power customers are able to raise any
queries through the call centre, the walk-in
centre and on the website.

• Sustainability of the
business

5.

Information

Citizens should be given full, accurate
information about the public services they
are entitled to receive.

Community Engagement is done through
different forums including IDP Outreach
Programmes. The organisation also
publishes reports on its website and social
media.

6.

Openness and
Transparency

Citizens should be told how national and
provincial departments are run, how much
they cost and who is in charge.

Community Engagement is done through
different forums including IDP Outreach
programmes. The organisation also
publishes reports on its website and social
media

7.

Redress

If the promised standard of service is not
delivered, citizens should be offered an
apology, a full explanation and a speedy and
effective remedy; and when complaints are
made, citizens should receive a sympathetic,
positive response.

Communities are kept abreast of what City
Power and COJ are doing through IDP
Outreach Programmes and community
forums. The organisation also publishes
reports on its website and social media.

8.

Value for Money

Public services should be provided
economically and efficiently in order to give
citizens the best possible value for money.

The organisation implements NERSAand shareholder-approved tariffs that are
affordable.

• Strategic
collaborations for
funding and energy
delivery
• Develop and maintain
a reliable network
infrastructure asset

• A high-performing
organisation through
its people

Table 6:Strategy Alignment to Various Stakeholder Expectations

City Power is accountable to the community
members of the City of Johannesburg, and
the Entity’s employees should render the
services that are due to them without favour
or doubt.

Table 7: City Power Response to Batho Pele

1.11 Executive Management and Company Structure
The organisation structure serves as an important foundation for organisational effectiveness, efficiency, uniformity and controls.
As a result of the changing business operating environment, City Power reviewed its organisational structure during 2017/18.
The Board approved the high-level organisational structure (direct reports to the CEO) on 26 October 2017. The lower level
organisation structure (General Manager Level and below) was approved by the Board on 9 March 2018. The diagram hereafter
depicts the Board-approved organisational structure:
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current City
Power organisation structure (as detailed above) pre-dates the VUCA 2022 Strategy and as such City Power will
Defining The
Material
Issues

Business Support Groups

be embarking on a structure review exercise in FY2020/21. The following dimensions will inform the structure review, approach
and plan:

Insourcing of
Security
Impacts

Change in Strategic
Direction

Deployment
Strategy
Requirements

Sustainability
Requirements

Office of the CEO

Technology or System
Requirements

Performance
Effectiveness

Value Chain
Requirements

Regulatory or
Compliance
Requirements

Delegation of Authority
Adjustments

Figure 7: Organisational Structure (Functional)

Business Core Groups

Chief Executive Officer

Change in
Business Model
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2.

GOVERNANCE

2.1.2 Corporate Citizenship

2.1 Corporate Governance Statement
To ensure accountability and governance arrangements are in place, Section 121(2)(c) of the MFMA supports the requirements
of Section 18(1)(d) of the MSA: information on matters of governance should be communicated to communities. This should,
according to Sections 65(1)(a) of the MFMA and Section 46 of the MSA be undertaken through the compilation and publication of
the Annual Report. The purpose of such an annual report is to promote accountability to communities for decisions taken by the
Council and matters relating to administrative structures, throughout a financial year.

The Board and Management recognise that the Entity is formed under a political structure. As such, it has a social and moral
standing in society with all the attendant responsibilities. The Board is therefore responsible for ensuring that the Entity protects,
enhances and invests in the well-being of the economy, society and natural environment, and pursues its activities within the
limits of social, political and environmental responsibilities outlined in international conventions on human rights. The Board has
a Social, Ethics & Human Resources Committee which is tasked with the responsibility of ensuring that the organisation strives
to be a good corporate citizen.

2.1.3 Compliance With Laws, Rules, Codes and Standards

City Power has comprehensive governance structures, systems, policies, and procedures in place – underpinned by a sound set
of values and ethics to support the Entity’s operations. These structures enable a clear separation of policy- making, regulation
and implementation. City Power is part of the City’s objective to create focused, specialised and non-bureaucratic processes for
efficient service delivery.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Entity complies with applicable laws and considers adhering to non-binding rules,
codes and standards. The Mayoral Committee approved a revised COJ Policy on the Governance of Interim Boards of Directors
and of Independent Audit Committees (Board Governance Policy), which became effective on 11 March 2020. The Board
Governance Policy makes provision for entities to have two statutory board sub-committees: Audit & Risk Committee and the
Social, Ethics and Human Resources Committee.

The Board of City Power ensures that high standards of Corporate Governance throughout City Power are upheld for the delivery
of the Entity’s strategic objectives, shareholder value and the long-term protection of stakeholder interests.

2.1.4 By-laws

City Power is committed to the highest standards of business integrity, ethics and professionalism. Good corporate governance
is an integral part of the Entity’s operations. Accordingly, the Board and Management of City Power are committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance. The Entity’s governance processes and practices are reviewed on a regular basis to
ensure these are in line with best practices. The Entity works closely with the Shareholder’s Group Governance Division to ensure
compliance with all material aspects of corporate governance. Therefore, the Entity is committed to fulfilling its mandate in a
manner that is in keeping with governance best practices and in particular with regard to accountability, transparency, fairness
and integrity as advocated by the King Report on Corporate Governance (King IV). The principles, as enunciated in King IV are
entrenched in the internal controls, policies and procedures governing corporate conduct. The Board is satisfied that every effort
has been made by Management to comply with all material aspects of King IV.

2.1.1 Corporate Governance
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Entity complies with applicable laws and considers adhering to non-binding rules,
codes and standards. The Mayoral Committee approved a revised COJ Policy on the Governance of Interim Boards of Directors
and of Independent Audit Committees (Board Governance Policy), which became effective on 11 March 2020. The reviewed
Board Governance Policy makes provision for entities to have two statutory board sub-committees: an Audit & Risk Committee
and the Social, Ethics and Human Resources Committee. The Shareholder gave permission in June 2019 for the Board to have
a Sustainability Committee. The Sustainability Committee had its first meeting in July 2019.
The Board of Directors has adopted a Board Charter, which includes matters of ethics, procedure and conduct of Members.
The Charter is aligned with the COJ Charter. Registers are kept and updated on the disclosure and declaration of interests of
Directors and Senior Management. The Board and Senior Management ensure there is full material compliance to all relevant
legislation. The Company Secretary has certified in terms of section 268(d) of the Companies Act that all statutory returns have
been submitted to the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission (CIPC). The Board of Directors subscribes to the COJ’s
Governance of Interim Boards of Directors and of Independent Audit Committees which, inter alia, regulates its relationship with
COJ as its sole shareholder and parent municipality in the interest of good corporate governance and good ethics.
In most material instances City Power’s practices are in line with the principles set out in King IV. The Board continually reviews
the Entity’s progress to ensure improvements in corporate governance. During the review period, the Entity entrenched its risk
management reviews and reporting, and compliance assessments were conducted in terms of the Companies Act and the
Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA).
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A by-law is a law that is passed by the Council of a municipality to regulate the affairs and the services it provides within its area of
jurisdiction. A municipality derives the powers to pass a by-law from the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, which gives
certain specified powers and competencies to local government or the Entity as set out in Part B of Schedules 4 and Part B of 5
of the Constitution. In the year under review, no new by-laws that affect the Entity were implemented.

2.1.5 Public Accountability, Participation
Different methods were used to improve public participation and accountability, like the customer query resolution; and educational
campaigns to inform customers about pre-paid meters, illegal connections, energy efficiency, electricity safety, planned and
unplanned outages as well as theft and vandalism. Another stakeholder engagement is done with and through Councilors in the
different wards.
Media coverage also plays an integral part of engagement with the community. Social media is also utilised by City Power to
engage and inform these communities.

2.1.6 Public Satisfaction On Municipal Services
COJ is responsible for the public satisfaction surveys. This survey has been impacted by Covid-19 during this financial year. City
Power is using the reputation index conduct sentiment analysis across traditional media (Print, Online, Broadcast) and social
media.

2.2 Board of Directors
City Power has a unitary Board which consists of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. All the Non-Executive Board Members
are independent. The Non-Executive Board members are appointed and retired by the shareholder at an Annual General Meeting
(AGM).
The AGM was held on 11 March 2020, at which:
Seven Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) were retired
• Dr. H Chewane,
• Mr. D Gibson,
• Mr. D Hunt,
• Mr. N Kganakga,
• Ms. B Mathebula,
• Mr. T Mofokeng,
• Mr. L Nage, and
CITY POWER
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
Lindiwe Maseko (Chairperson)
Nomvuyiso Batyi
Mandla Eugene Hector Seopela
Pumzile Kedama
Naledi Kgope
Errol Vincent Magerman
Patricia Noluthando Marah
Lerato Mathabatha
Pulane Mogotsi
Khehla Mthembu
Bonolo Ramokhele
Kenny Setzin
Bheki Twala

The Shareholder appointed Mfuni Xolo (Financial Director and Executive Director). It was also noted that Nancy Maluleke is the
current Acting Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director.
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(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(retired –11 Mar 2020)

Mr. D Hunt

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(retired –11 Mar 2020)

Mr. D Gibson

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(retired – 11 Mar 2020

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

79

77

38

2.2.1 Subsequent Event

Dr. H Chewane

The Board consisted of the following Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors as per table 9 below. The Board meets at
least quarterly and retains full control over the Entity. The composition of the Board reflects a diversity of skills, experience and
qualifications.
Bsc Eng Electrical
Graduate Diploma in Engineering
Advanced Executive Programme
(SBL)

BA (Law) SA Attorneys’ Admission
Diploma
Conveyancer Hons BA (Political
Science) – (Cum Laude)

MBchB
Diploma – Occupational Medicine
& Health
Certificate
in Evaluation of Permanent
Impairments (ACIME – American
College of Independent Medical
Examiners)
(LLB in
Progress)

Masters in Finance and
Investment
BCompt Accounting
Chartered Management
Accountant (ACMA)
Chartered Global Management
Accountant (CGMA)

Jet Educations Services
Moya Telecoms
KEA Capital

Other Directorships

Engineering
Science & Technology
Business Administration

Law (Managed law practice for
25 years and practiced as an
attorney for 45 years)
Risk Management
Human Resources
Finance
Social & Ethics
Accounting

National Science & Technology
Forum (NGO)

Face Clues for Speech and
Literacy (NPC)

Medical Doctor (GP)
Hlayisekani Medicare 24
Occupational Health & Safety
Fumile Investments
Medical Practitioners
The Goodwill Foundation
Former Member of IYA
(Parliament)
Assessor and evaluation of medial
impairments
Health Portfolio Committee of
Parliament
Health & Wellness Specialist

Financial Management
Corporate Governance
Auditing and Compliance
Risk Management Building
Departments and Restructuring
Business & Finance
Transformation
Complex & Large Project
Management
Cash Flow Modeling & Treasury
Management
Business Operations
Management
Organisational Redesign
Knowledge Management and
Research
Investment Management
Scenario Planning

One new Independent Audit Committee Member (IAC) was appointed
• Mr. C Lithole.

39

Skills

Two Independent Audit Committee Members (IACs) were retained
• Mr. V Mokwena, and
• Mr. H Moolla.

(appointed NED – 16 Mar 2017)
(appointed Chair –17 Apr 2019)
(retired – 11 Mar 2020)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. L Nage
Chairperson of the Board

Qualifications

At a Special General Meeting held on 10 February 2021 the Shareholder retired Kabelo Lehloenya, Magatho Mello as NonExecutive Directors and William Mathamela as a Non-Executive Director and as Chairperson of the Board.
The Shareholder appointed the following as Non-Executive Directors of the Company:

Age

Mr. Lerato Nage who served as Chairperson of the Board and a Non-Executive Director was retired at the AGM held on 11 March
2020, Mr. William Mathamela was subsequently appointed in that position.

Portfolio

Nine new NEDs were appointed
• Mr. W Mathamela,
• Mr. N Kgope,
• Ms. K Lehloenya,
• Mr. K Mthembu,
• Mr. M Mello,
• Ms. P Thobejane,
• Mr. K Setzin,
• Mr. B Ramokhele, and
• Prof. B Twala.

Name

City Power Board & Audit Committee’s Qualification & Skills Matrix

One Non-Executive Director (NED) was retained
• Mr. M Seopela.
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(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

Mr. K Mthembu

(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

Ms. K Lehloenya

(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

Mr. N Kgope

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Mr. W Mathamela
Chairperson of the Board
(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

Portfolio

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Name

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017

Mr. M Seopela

(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)
(retired –11 Mar 2020

Mr. B Tjia

(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)
(retired – 11 Mar 2020)

Mr. T Mofokeng

(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)
(retired – 11 Mar 2020)

Ms. B Mathebula
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Mr. N Kganakga
(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)
(retired –11 Mar 2020

Portfolio

Name

66

40

51

52

Age

42

41

51

43

56

Age

Diploma in General Management,
Leadership and Strategy
Development
MAP
Matric

CA(SA)
Public Practice Examination
(IRBA)
Auditing Specialist Course (UCT
& UJ)
Credit Management Certificate P3
(Institute of Credit Management)
(distinction)
Part 1 Qualifying Exams (SAICA)
Postgraduate Diploma
in Accounting
Sciences
B.Com Honours
in Accounting
B.Com
Honours General B.Com
Accounting
Diploma in
General Management (1st Year)

Masters in Business
Administration (Not completed)
B.Sc Honours in Metallurgy
M.Sc COSI
B.Tech in Metallurgical
Engineering
National Higher Diploma in
Metallurgical Engineering

B.Com Business Management
and Industrial Psychology

Qualifications

LLB
Post Grad Diploma in Corporate
Law
LLM in Development &
Management
LLM in Contract Law
LLM in International Law

Master of Business Leadership
(MBL)
B Tech – Electrical Engineering
(HC)
Management Development
Program (MDP)
Higher Diploma in Business
Management

BSc (Electrical Engineering)
Diploma in Project Management
ECSA Registered Professional
Engineer
Senior Member of IEEE
Member IoDSA

BProc
LLM
Advanced Commercial Law
Admitted Attorney
Admitted Conveyance

Bsc Eng (Metallurgy & Material
Science)
Post Graduate Diploma in
Marketing Management

Qualifications

Strategy Development
Business Development &
Transformation
Implementation of Programmes
Leadership and Capacity Building
Budget Management
Planning

Finance Management
Treasury
Budgeting
Strategy
Operations
Risk Management

Business Management
Business Development
Strategy Formulation and
Implementation
Project Management
Technical Asset Management and
Condition Assessment
Plant Inspections
Financial Management
Manufacturing and Fabrication
Risk Assessment and
Management

Organisation & Structuring
Documentation & Execution
International Debt Capital Markets
Exposure
African Debt Capital Market
Experience & Contacts
Verbal Communication
Technical Analysis

Skills

Financial Planning and
Management
Project Management
Statutory Compliance
Contract Management
Human Capital Managements
Corporate Governance
Planning & Restructuring
Project Management

Engineering Management
Maintenance and Asset
Management
Project Management
Strategy Development and
Implementation
Business Administration and
Leadership

Program & Project Management
Professional Engineering
Management Services
Electricity Transmission &
Distribution
Broadband ICT Network
Operations & Services
Asset & Facilities Development
Project Planning, Development &
Funding
Contract Management, Control &
Implementation

Corporate Governance
Legal & Compliance
Financial Planning
Project Management
Procurements
Property Law

Engineering Management
Project Management
Development Finance
General Management
Science & Research
Business Management
Financial Planning
Human Capital Development
Entrepreneurship

Skills

Gauteng Economic Propeller
Manoja Group
Thyme Capital

Masupatsela Advisory Services
Northern Energy Solutions
K2016230778
Denel SOC Ltd

The Sunninghill Group
Cove Gold Investments
Double Side Investments
Mondo Construction and Civils
Inenco
Transnuclear SA
Mazoni Air-Conditioning
Mazoni Mining & Mineral
Processing
Mazoni Investments

Arkein Group of Companies
Nyanza Light Metals
ProGrace Investments

Other Directorships

AfriBokoni (Pty) Ltd
UNIN Facilities (Pty) Ltd

None

Media, Information &
Communication Technologies
(MICT) SETA
Information Technology
Association of SA
Solario Technologies
Octet Technologies
Fuma Engineering Services

GTEDA

Homesoil Engineering (Pty) Ltd

Other Directorships
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Ms. N Maluleke
Acting CEO

(appointed – 01 Oct 2017)

Mr. L Setshedi
CEO

Executive Director

Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Prof. B Twala
(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

Portfolio

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Name

(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

Ms. P Thobejane

(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

Mr. K Setzin

(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

Mr. B Ramokhele
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Mr. M Mello
(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

Portfolio

Name

43

47

51

Age

48

58

33

52

Age

Masters in Industrial Engineering
Management Senior Managers
Programme
GDE Project and
Construction Management
B-Tech Electrical Engineering
ND Electrical Engineering
Certificate in Commercial
Accounting

Masters COSI
B.Sc. Engineering
Executive Development
Programme

PhD in Machine Learning
M.Sc Statistics
PGc Statistics
BA Economics and Statistics

Qualifications

Certificate in Business
Management: Labour Relations
Management and Human
Resources Management
Matric

MBA
BA – Journalism & Advertising
Small Business Certificate

BAcc Sci (Wits)
HDip Acc (Wits)
Board 1
Board 2
Articles – Deloitte and Touche
CA (SA)

B.Sc Electrical Engineering
M.Sc Electrical Engineering
Certificate Financial Management
National Higher Diploma –
Electrical Engineering

Qualifications

Other Directorships

Twinkle Foundation

Lanxess Chrome Mining (Pty)Ltd
Direng Investment Holdings (Pty)
Ltd
PE Corporate Services (Pty) Ltd
YOU FM (Pty) Ltd
Delta Blue Trading 73 CC
Sasol Khanyisa Public (RF) Ltd
G and C Shelf 138 CC
Fish and Chips City (Pty) Ltd
Dirlem (RF) (Pty) Ltd
J Walter Thompson SA (Pty) Ltd
North West FM (Pty) Ltd

Gauteng CET College
Matthew Goniwe School of
Governance and Leadership
South Africa Institute of Chartered
Accountants
South African National AIDS
Council

Sentech (SOC) Ltd
PLC Systems SA
Ubuntel (Pty) Ltd

Other Directorships

Energy Management
Capital Infrastructure Planning
Project Management
Strategic Thinking
Change Leadership
Emotional Leadership
Critical Thinking

Transformational Leadership
Strategic Planning
Capital Planning
Engineering Management
Project Management
Organisational and Performance
Management
Financial Management

Anglo American Platinum
Twickenham Mine – Bohwa Bja
Rena Independent Trustee
June and Andrew Mlangeni
Associate Trustee

None

A visionary and collaborative
None
leader who excels at building
relationships and has a
commitment to transparency and
accountability.
A strong track record of scholarly
eminence, history of global
engagement and a demonstrable
commitment to research and
teaching excellence.
Experience leading and managing
change in a university, in
recruiting and mentoring
excellent faculty, and a
commitment to collegiality and to
equity, diversity and inclusion.
Experience in engaging
stakeholders inside and beyond
academia, as well as fundraising
Strong commitment to Indigenous
engagement

Skills

Human Capital Management
Labour Relation Monitoring
Evaluation Change Management
Processes
Budget Allocation
Corporate Governance
Organisational Development

Proven Leadership Skills and
Ability to Build a Strong Team
Strategic Thinking Capabilities
Business Acumen and Ability to
Handle Complex Situations
Good Communication Skills
Skilled Negotiator and Deal Maker
Mergers and Acquisition
Analytical Skills and Interpretative
Abilities
Financial Management Skills
Entrepreneurial Fair
Project Management Skills
Strong Networking and
Relationship Building Skills
In-depth Knowledge of Corporate
Governance Practices

Corporate Finance and Deal
Advisory
Financial
Modelling
Due Diligence
Strategy Drafting and
Implementation
Investment Appraisals
External Auditing
Internal Auditing
Financial Statement Preparation
Risk Management
Accounting

Business Management
Strategic Planning
Business Development
Entrepreneurship
Telecommunications
Renewable Energy

Skills
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Executive Director

Ms. N Xolo
CFO
42

Age
Post Graduate Diploma
Development Finance;
(University of Stellenbosch
Business School) – 2019
International Executive
Development (Gordon Institute
of Business Science, University
of Pretoria) - 2016
Board I Exam; South African
Institute of Chartered
Accountants (SAICA) - 2012
Board II Exam; Independent
Regulatory Board of Auditors
(IRBA) - 2012
Bachelor of Accounting Science
Honours (University of SA) 2011
Bachelor of Accounting Science
(University of South Africa)
- 2007
National Diploma in Internal
Auditing Cum Laude (Durban
University of Technology) - 1998

Qualifications

Other Directorships

Strategic Business Planning
Soul City Institute
Organisational Leadership
Soul City Broad-Based
Short-, Medium- & Long-Term
Empowerment Company
Forecasting & Budget Control
Athari Development Holdings
Profitability & Cost Analysis
Design & Execution of Strategic &
Operational Financial Policies
Process Design & Improvement
Preparation of Financial
Statements
Audit Planning, Report Writing &
Recommendations
Corporate Finance, IT, Risk &
Compliance Management
Local & Global Legislative &
Statutory Compliance
Team Building, Coaching &
Performance Improvement.
Technology Utilisation
C-Suite Financial Advisory & Best
Practice Counsel
Board & Key External Stakeholder
Reporting & Relationship
Management

Skills

Independent Audit
Committee Member

Independent Audit
Committee Member

Table 9: City Power Independent Audit Committee Members

(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

Mr. C Lithole

(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)

Mr. H Moolla

(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)
(passed away – Aug 2019)

Mr. R Moodley

Independent Audit
Committee Member

Independent Audit
Committee Member

Mr. V Mokwena
(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)

Portfolio

Name

54

61

57

50

Age

B.Sc Biochemistry
B.Sc Hons. (Business Sciences)
B.Sc Hons. (Energy Studies)
Masters in Engineering Business
Management
Masters in Applied Science:
Energy Studies
Diploma in Programme
Management

B Com (Accounting and Business
Economics)
Post Graduate Diploma in
Accounting
Chartered Accountant

BA (Law)
LLB

Bachelor of Commerce (University
of KwaZulu-Natal) – 1994
Bachelor Accounting Science
(University of South Africa) –
1996
Chartered Accountant (SA) –
1999
Registered Auditor – 1999

Qualifications

Project Management
Financial Management
Business Management
Strategic Planning
Business Development
Renewable Energy

Finance

Admitted and Practicing Attorney/
Trial Lawyer
Contract Management/
Administration
Risk Management, Occupational,
Health and Safety
Strategic Planning/Oversight
Project Management
Statutory and Regulatory
Compliance

Financial Management
Corporate Governance
External Auditing
Risk Management

Skills

Trading

Dandoforce (Pty) Ltd
All About Projects (Pty) Ltd

None

Mokwena Chartered Accountants
(SA) Inc
Hale Qangule Associations Inc

Other Directorships

During the year under review, the Audit & Risk Committee of the Board had Independent Audit Committee Members that served on it. The table below shows the Independent Audit
Committee Members’ profiles:

Table 8: City Power Board Members

(appointed CFO – 01 Feb 2019)
(appointed to Board – 17 Apr
2019)

Portfolio

Name

The Board remains accountable to the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality (the Entity’s sole shareholder) and its
stakeholders, the citizens of Johannesburg. The SDA concluded in accordance with the provisions of the MSA governs the
Entity’s relationship with the City of Johannesburg. The Board provides monthly, quarterly, bi-annual and annual reports on its
performance and service delivery to its parent municipality as prescribed in the SDA, the MFMA and the MSA. Such reports are
submitted within the stipulated timeframes.
Non-Executive Directors contribute an independent view on matters under consideration and add to the depth of experience of
the Board. The roles of Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer of the Entity are separated. The Chairperson has no executive
functions. Members of the Board have unlimited access to the Company Secretary, who acts as an advisor to the Board and
its committees on matters including compliance with company rules and procedures, statutory regulations and best corporate
practices.
The Board or any of its Members may, in appropriate circumstances and at the expense of the Entity, obtain the advice of
independent professionals, subject to MFMA and SCM Regulations being followed. A director and peer review as well as a Board
evaluation are undertaken on an annual basis.
The Board Committee did an evaluation and the Board Members are satisfied that good governance is generally practiced and
that the Board is functioning well in its oversight and support role. The Memorandum of Incorporation provides that the Directors
of the Entity will be elected by the Shareholder and appointed by the Board of Directors. The Chief Executive Officer is appointed
by the Board in consultation with the Shareholder.

Attendance of meetings held during the year in terms of a ratio of attendance per meeting convened, was as follows:

Audit & Risk

Sustainability

Other
Mandatory Meetings
(AGM/Inductions/
Workshops)

Directors

Board

Social,
Ethics & HR

Number of Meetings Held
During 2019/20 Financial Year

8

6

6

3

6

6 of 6

-

4 of 4

2 of 2

2 of 2

5 of 6

4 of 4

-

-

1 of 2

6 of 6

1 of 1

5 of 5

-

1 of 2

6 of 6

-

-

2 of 2

1 of 2

6 of 6

-

5 of 5

-

1 of 2

5 of 6

-

-

1 of 2

0 of 2

6 of 6

4 of 4

-

-

2 of 2

5 of 6

-

4 of 5

-

1 of 2

7 of 8

6 of 6

-

-

5 of 6

2 of 2

-

-

-

5 of 5

2 of 2

-

1 of 1

1 of 1

5 of 5

1 of 2

-

0 of 1

-

1 of 2

Mr. L Nage
(Chairperson of the Board)
(app NED – 16 Mar 2017)
(app Chair –17 Apr 2019)
(retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Dr. H Chewane
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(retired – 11 Mar 2020
Mr. D Gibson

2.3 Board Focus Areas for FY2020/21
In FY2020/21 the Board will continue exercising oversight of the organisation and ensuring implementation of the VUCA strategy
in order achieve the Shareholder’s vision. For FY2020/21 the City Power Board will be ensuring Business and Financial
Sustainability as well as the Business-of-Tomorrow as encapsulated in the VUCA Strategy. The following are some of the key
focus areas for the financial year:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

2.4 Schedule Of Attendance of Meetings

Improvement of the control environment;
Improvement of compliance;
Integrated assurance;
Focus on addressing Internal Audit and AG audit findings in comprehensive manner;
Refurbished plant and improved plant capacity;
Smart City Power; and
Achievement of meaningful economic transformation.

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Mr. D Hunt
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Mr. N Kganakga
(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)
(retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Ms. B Mathebula
(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)
(retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Mr. T Mofokeng
(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)
(retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Mr. B Tjia
(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)
(retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Mr. M Seopela
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Mr. W Mathamela
(Chairperson of the Board)
(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)
Mr. N Kgope
(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)
Ms. K Lehloenya
(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)
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Directors

Board

Social,
Ethics & HR

Audit & Risk

Sustainability

Other
Mandatory Meetings
(AGM/Inductions/
Workshops)

Number of Meetings Held
During 2019/20 Financial Year

8

6

6

3

6

2 of 2

2 of 2

-

1 of 1

5 of 5

2 of 2

0 of 2

-

0 of 1

0 of 2

Mr. K Mthembu
(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)
Mr. M Mello
(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)
Mr. B Ramokhele
(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)
Mr. K Setzin
(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)
Ms. P Thobejane
(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)
Prof. B Twala
(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)
Mr. L Setshedi
(CEO)

2 of 2

-

1 of 1

1 of 1

4 of 5

2 of 2

2 of 2

-

1 of 1

2 of 2

1 of 2

1 of 2

-

-

2 of 2

2 of 2

-

-

1 of 1

1 of 2

6 of 6

5 of 5

6 of 6

2 of 3

3 of 3

(appointed – 01 Oct 2017)
Ms. N Xolo
(CFO)
(app CFO – 01 Feb 2019)
(app to Board – 17 Apr 2019)
Mr. V Mokwena
(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)

Mr. H Moolla
(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)
Mr. C Lithole
(appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

8 of 8

6 of 6

6 of 6

3 of 3

City Power’s Social, Ethics and Human Resources Committee is constituted as a statutory Committee and is mandated in terms
of its statutory duties set out in Section 72(4) of the Companies Act of 2008 and related regulations. Having due regard of the
legislative role of the Social & Ethics Committee, the Board resolved to combine the Committee functions with matters related to
Remuneration, Human Resources and Transformation. The Committee is governed by Terms of Reference which details its duties
in terms of the Companies Act, King IV and the responsibilities mandated to it by the Board. The Committee has conducted its
work in compliance with these Terms of Reference and has discharged its responsibilities as set out therein.
This report is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act and should be read in conjunction with the
Integrated Annual Report. The Chairperson of the Committee represents the Committee at the annual general meeting of the
Entity each year in order to address any enquiries that may be raised and reports to the Shareholder as required in terms of the
Companies Act.
The Committee’s Key Focus Areas for FY2019/20 are as per their terms of reference. The Committee exercises oversight and
monitors activities, functions and progress of performance against strategic targets and advised the Board on:
•
•
•
•

2 of 3

•

•
-

-

5 of 6

-

1 of 2
•

-

-

1 of 1

-

-

-

-

5 of 6

-

2 of 2

-

-

1 of 1

-

2 of 2

Table 10: Board Meeting Attendance

•
•
•
•

Social, Ethics and Human Resources Committee
Audit and Risk Committee
Sustainability Sommittee
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Responsible, good corporate citizenship;
Organisational ethics, ensuring integrity and the institutionalisation of ethics in the internal structures, systems and processes
of the Entity;
Remuneration policies, packages and other terms of employment for Senior Management;
Creation and enhancement of an ethical corporate culture, change management, employment policies, remuneration policies,
performance bonus policy, performance management, compliance with relevant legislation and strategic alignment with the
objectives of the Entity;
Social and Economic Transformation including promoting BBBEE, an employment equity plan and a supplier development
framework to ensure sustainable development, empowerment and transformation within society;
Corporate social investment policy and programmes including: the internship and graduate-in-training programme, bursary
programme, employee learning and development, supplier development programmes and local community development
programmes;
Stakeholder engagement framework, incorporating all stakeholders including the shareholder, employees, customers and
the communities in which the Entity operates. There is a strong emphasis on the responsibility of the Entity towards the
environment, customers, communities and other stakeholders we serve;
Compliance with the 10 principles of the United Nation’s Global Compact as they relate to human rights, labour, anti-corruption
and the environment;
Leadership development focusing on mentoring and training;
Provision of free basic electricity as part of the City of Johannesburg’s Indigent Household programme;
The protection of the safety, health and dignity of employees and the public; and
Reviewing results of the Employee Satisfaction Survey and the Customer Satisfaction Survey and managements response
in dealing with the areas of concerns raised.

The Social, Ethics & Human Resources Committee Members are appointed by the Board and consisted of the following NonExecutive and Executive Directors:
•

For the period 01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020, the Board had the following Committees:
•
•
•

2.5.1 Social, Ethics and Human Resources Committee

•

Mr. R Moodley
(appointed – 17 Apr 2019)
(passed away – Aug 2019)

2.5 Board Committees

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Mandla Seopela (Chairperson – appointed 03 May 2019) (retired as Chair – 11 Mar 2020) (appointed as ordinary Member of
the Committee – 05 May 2020)
Hlayiseka Chewane (appointed – 16 Mar 2017) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Bongani Mathebula (appointed – 03 May 2019) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Thabo Mofokeng (appointed – 03 May 2019) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Khehla Mthembu (Chairperson of the Committee – appointed 05 May 2020)
Magatho Mello (appointed as Member of the Committee – 05 May 2020)
Pulani Thobejane (appointed as Member of the Committee – 05 May 2020)
Kenny Setzin (appointed as Member of the Committee – 05 May 2020)
Lerato Setshedi (CEO) (in attendance as an invitee)
Mfuni Xolo (CFO) (in attendance as an invitee)
CITY POWER
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The Committee met eight times during the year under review. The Committee Members’ attendance and remuneration is dealt
with in Sections 2.5 and 2.8 of the Integrated Annual Report. All resolutions taken by the sub-committee for the FY 2019/20 were
noted/approved by the Board.
The Committee assessed its effectiveness as part of the annual Board self-assessment. The Committee is of the view that it is
properly constituted, has the required skills and has reviewed its Terms of Reference including its authority and responsibilities.
The Committee has effectively discharged all its responsibilities and has performed its statutory duties, as set out in the Companies
Act.

2.5.2 Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee of City Power Johannesburg (SOC) is constituted as a statutory Committee and is mandated
in terms of its statutory duties in terms of section 94 (7) of the Companies Act 2008, and Section 166 of the Municipal Finance
Management Act, 2003. The Committee operates in accordance with its Terms of Reference which is aligned with the above. The
Committee is an independent advisory body with accountability to both the Board and Shareholder.
The Committees provides the following assistance to the Board:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Review of financial compliance with applicable legislation and the requirements of regulatory authorities;
Review matters relating to funding, financial accounting, accounting policies, reporting and disclosures;
Oversee the Internal and External audit policy and functions including the scope, adequacy and effectiveness of the audit
function and audit plans;
Review/approval of the external audit findings, audit resolutions, reports and fees;
Review of the overall performance of the Entity against predetermined objectives;
Review the integrity and quality of enterprise risk management and ensures that risk policies and strategies are effectively
managed;
Advise of technology and information, strategy, policy and investment in line with best practice; and
Review of combined assurance.

The Audit & Risk Committee consisted of the following Non-Executive Directors and Independent Audit Committee Members:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Douglas Gibson (Chairperson - appointed – 03 May 2019) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Neo Kganakga (appointed to the Committee – 03 May 2019) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Baaresa Tjia (appointed to the Committee – 03 May 2019) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Vusi Mofokeng (appointed as IAC – 17 Apr 2019)
Ruben Moodley (appointed as IAC – 17 Apr 2019) (deceased – Aug 2020)
Haroun Moolla (appointed as IAC – 17 Apr 2019)
Bonolo Ramokhele (Chairperson – appointed 11 Mar 2020)
Naledi Kgope (appointed as Member of the Committee – 05 May 2020)
Kabelo Lehloenya (appointed as Member of the Committee – 05 May 2020)
Chris Lithole (appointed as IAC – 11 Mar 2020)
Lerato Setshedi (in attendance as an invitee)
Mfuni Xolo (in attendance as an invitee)

The Committee met six times during the year under review. The attendance and remuneration of the Committee Members is
dealt with in Sections 2.5 and 2.8 of the Integrated Annual Report. All resolutions taken by the subcommittee can be found in
annexure A.

The Committee has taken note of the Auditor-General’s findings, opinions and conclusions as set out in his report. The Committee
will focus on root cause analyses of the control deficiencies identified by the Auditor-General and will hold Management
accountable for improvement of the overall control environment. The Committee will exercise close oversight over Management’s
implementation thereof to further enhance its effectiveness. The Committee will pay special attention to the Chief Executive
Officer’s action plans to effect improved control in the Supply Chain Management and Financial Reporting environments. The
Committee will further ensure that it is satisfied that the key control risks are being adequately addressed by Management.
The Committee will require that significant effort be made by Management to ensure that adequate systems are put in place to
correct the basis for the Auditor-General’s findings. The Committee will monitor the steps being taken by Management to address
the issues raised and that the Committee is provided adequate assurance that the system of internal financial controls is effective
and forms a reasonable basis for preparing reliable financial statements.
The Committee assessed its effectiveness as part of the annual Board self-assessment. The Committee is of the view that it is
properly constituted, has the required skills and has reviewed its Terms of Reference including its authority and responsibilities.
The Committee has effectively discharged all its responsibilities and has performed its statutory duties, as set out in the Companies
Act.

2.5.3 Sustainability Committee
In response to a request from the Board, the Shareholder approved the establishment of a third Board sub-committee in June
2019. The Committee met for the first time on 16 July 2019.
The Sustainability Committee will oversee the development of a New City Power Business Journey, which would encompass the
main drivers of shareholder value creation while effectively addressing the long-term sustainability of the Entity. The Committee
will ensure effective implementation of this strategic journey. It will be a powerful means of coping with today’s more volatile
environment by increasing the time the Board spends on strategy development. The Committee will allow a more involved
strategic dialogue at Board level and will make it easier to stay ahead of emerging opportunities, respond quickly to unexpected
threats, and make timely strategic decisions.
The primary role and purpose of the Sustainability Committee will be to ensure that the Entity has a Sustainable Strategy that
ensures that the Entity is correctly positioned to take advantage of growth opportunities and, equally important, can maintain the
Entity’s existing footprint.
The main areas that the Committee would focus on is providing strategic direction, exercising oversight over and monitoring
performance with regard to:

2.5.3 Sustainability Committee

Financial
Sustainability

Responsible
Investment

Industry
Innovation

Sustainable
Energy Sourcing

The General Manager: Internal Audit, reports functionally to the Chairperson of the Committee and administratively to the Chief
Executive Officer. The head of Internal Audit during the year under review, was Ms. Ningi Ngubane, whose fixed-term employment
contract came to an end on 31 August 2019. Ms. Mbali Buthelezi was appointed as the General Manager: Internal Audit on 07
October 2019. The Committee will continue to ensure that the Internal Audit and the Finance Function is suitably resourced and
supported to fulfil its functions and improve the assurances it must provide the Committee and the Board.
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Effective
Technology
and Information
management
to ensure value
creation

The Sustainability Committee consisted of the following Non-Executive and Executive Directors:

2.6.3 Group Performance Audit Committee (GPAC)

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The GPAC, amongst other responsibilities, assesses and oversees the organisational performance management system and
service delivery performance of the City including the Municipal Entities. The other primary objective of the GPAC is to assist
the Mayoral Committee in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities and reviewing the performance targets as set out in the Business
Plans, Integrated Development Plan (IDP), and the Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP).

Lerato Nage (Chairperson – appointed 19 Jun 2019) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Denis Hunt (appointed as Member of the Committee – 19 Jun 2019) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Bongani Mathebula (appointed as Member of the Committee – 19 Jun 2019) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)
Naledi Kgope (Chairperson – appointed 05 May 2020)
Khehla Mthembu (appointed as Member of the Committee – 05 May 2020)
Magatho Mello (appointed as Member of the Committee – 05 May 2020)
Kenny Setzin (appointed as Member of the Committee – 05 May 2020)
Bonolo Ramokhele (appointed as Member of the Committee – 05 May 2020)
Bheki Twala (appointed as Members of the Committee – 05 May 2020)
Lerato Setshedi
Mfuni Xolo

The Committee Members’ attendance and remuneration is dealt with in Sections 2.5 and 2.8 of the Integrated Annual Report. All
resolutions taken by the subcommittee for the FY 2019/20 were noted/approved by the Board.
The Committee assessed its effectiveness as part of the annual Board self-assessment. The Committee believes that it is properly
constituted, has the required skills and has reviewed its Terms of Reference including its authority and responsibilities. The
Committee has effectively discharged all its responsibilities and has performed its statutory duties, as set out in the Companies
Act.

2.5.4 Special Ad Hoc Committee
The Special Ad Hoc Committee consist of the following Non-Executive Directors:
•
•
•
•
•

Khehla Mthembu (Chairperson – appointed 22 Apr 2020)
William Mathamela (appointed as Member of the Committee – 22 Apr 2020)
Naledi Kgope (appointed as Member of the Committee – 22 Apr 2020)
Bonolo Ramokhele (appointed as Member of the Committee – 22 Apr 2020)
Mandla Seopela (appointed as Member of the Committee – 22 Apr 2020)

The Committee met three times during the period under review.
It was agreed with Group Governance to establish a special Ad Hoc Committee to deal with any complaints and allegations made
against the CEO. The Committee’s first meeting took place on 22 April 2020 and the creation of the Committee and its composition
was ratified by the Board at its meeting held on 15 May 2020.

2.7.1 Non-Executive Directors’ Remuneration
In terms of the provisions of the Remuneration Policy adopted by the Mayoral Committee, Group Governance is required, at least
annually, to make recommendations on the fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors of the City of Johannesburg’s municipal
entities. In line with this requirement, Group Governance produces a report on the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Audit Committee Members which is in line with the of the Municipal Finance Management Act’s provisions, 2003
(MFMA) and Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (as amended).
The remuneration and incentives for Non-Executive Directors and Independent Audit Committee Members of City Power are
determined by the Shareholder.
Non-Executive Directors’ and Independent Audit Committee Members’ fees are only paid in accordance with City Power’s
approved budget.
Non-Executive Directors (NEDs): 2019/20
Name

Position

Mr. L Nage (Chairperson of the Board)
(app NED – 16 Mar 2017) (app Chair –17 Apr 2019) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)

2.6.1 Group Risk Governance Committee (GRGC)
The GRGC provides oversight advisory services to the City and entities on matters relating to Risk Governance and Compliance
as well as overseeing Enterprise Risk Management Systems. The committee also ensures that all risks that might affect the
service delivery level and attainment of a clean audit are addressed and measures are put in place to prevent future occurrences.

2.6.2 Group Audit Committee (GAC)
The Group Audit Committee’s (GAC) primary role is to provide oversight with respect to the financial control environment and
to advise the Mayoral Committee in this regard. The GAC approves and monitors the Auditor-General (AG) and Internal Audit
Strategy, the review and recommendation for adoption of the COJ Annual Financial Statements (AFS) and providing assurance
within the Combined Assurance Framework, on the adequacy and effectiveness of the COJ’s Internal Control Environment as well
as the COJ policies and procedures in this regard.
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200

NED

96

Mr. D Gibson (appointed – 16 Mar 2017) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

226

Mr. D Hunt (appointed – 16 Mar 2017) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

84

Mr. N Kganakga (appointed – 17 Apr 2019) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

102

Ms. B Mathebula (appointed – 17 Apr 2019) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

66

Mr. T Mofokeng (appointed – 17 Apr 2019) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

90

Mr. B Tjia (appointed – 17 Apr 2019) (retired – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

156

NED

96

Chairperson &
NED

58

Mr. N Kgope (appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

56

Ms. K Lehloenya (appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

12

Mr. K Mthembu (appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

70

Mr. M Mello (appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

24

Mr. B Ramokhele (appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

56

Mr. K Setzin (appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

42

Ms. P Thobejane (appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

18

Prof. B Twala (appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

NED

30

Mr. W Mathamela (Chairperson of the Board) (app – 11 Mar 2020)

City Power also reports to the following committees in the City of Johannesburg.

Chairperson &
NED

Total (R'000)

Dr. H Chewane (appointed – 16 Mar 2017) (retired – 11 Mar 2020

Mr. M Seopela (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)

2.6 City Power Oversight Committees

CITY POWER

2.7 Directors and Senior Management Remuneration

Total

1,482

Table 11: Non-Executive Directors Remuneration
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2.8 Company Secretarial Function

Independent Audit Committee (IAC) Members: 2019/20
Name

Total (R'000)

Position

Mr. V Mokwena (appointed – 17 Apr 2019)

IAC

24

Mr. R Moodley (appointed – 17 Apr 2019) (passed away – Aug 2019)

IAC

6

Mr. H Moolla (appointed – 17 Apr 2019)

IAC

42

Mr. C Lithole (appointed – 11 Mar 2020)

IAC

6

Total

78

The Company Secretary is responsible for providing guidance to the Board collectively and to the Directors individually. The
Directors have unlimited access to the Company Secretary who advises the Members, the Board and the sub-committees
regarding their duties and responsibilities.
The Company Secretary in conjunction with the Risk, Assurance and Compliance Group, is responsible for advising the Board
of applicable legislation and regulations and ensuring the Board acts in compliance therewith including with the Entity’s policies
and procedures. The Company Secretary is also responsible for the proper administration and good corporate governance of the
Board proceedings and all matters relating to the Board.

Table 12: Audit Committee Remuneration

2.9 Risk Management and Internal Control

Executive Directors: 2019/20

Name

Position

2.9.1 Background to Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)

Salary
(R’000)

Other
Allowances
(R’000)

Travel
(R’000)

Total
(R’000)

Mr. L Setshedi

Chief Executive
Officer

2,152

557

111

2,820

Ms. M Xolo

Chief Financial
Officer

1,639

383

174

2,196

3,791

940

285

5,016

Salary
(R’000)

Other
Allowances
(R’000)

Travel
(R’000)

Total
(R’000)

Total
Table 13: Executive Directors Remuneration

Senior Management: 2019/20

Name

Position

Ms. MN Maluleke

Chief Executive
Officer (Acting)

1,606

421

128

2,155

Ms. TS Mashava

GE: Human
Resources and
Transformation

1,732

395

0

2,127

Mr. SA Ntlatleng

GE: Engineering
Services

1,486

431

174

2,091

Mr. SI Rampedi

GE: Engineering
Operations

1,597

395

149

2,141

Company
Secretary

1,279

357

93

1,729

GE: Business
Sustainability
(Acting)

1,628

382

0

2,010

GE: Enterprise
Support (Acting)

1,695

536

0

2,231

11,023

2,917

544

14,484

Mr. M Smith
Mr. LR Mahumapelo

Mr. IM Ramagaga

The City Power Board is ultimately accountable to ensure that Management has designed and implemented an effective enterprise
risk management system and that risks are managed within the approved risk appetite and tolerance levels. Moreover, in terms of
section 95(c)(i) of the MFMA, the accounting officer of a municipal entity is responsible for managing the financial administration
of the entity, and must for this purpose take all reasonable steps to ensure that the entity has and maintains effective, efficient and
transparent systems of financial and risk management and internal controls.
City Power adopted a structured approach to risk management, using consistent approaches to assessing, treating, monitoring
and reporting all types of risk at different levels for activities across the business. By understanding and managing risk, we
can provide greater certainty and security for our employees, customers and stakeholders. A risk is significant if the potential
consequences could have a material impact on the achievement of any City Power business plan objectives aligned to those of
the City of Johannesburg. The City Power Board through the Audit and Risk Committee acknowledges its overall accountability
for ensuring an effective results-driven, ERM process.
Risk treatment plans were developed and implemented to ensure that strategic, business and operational (organisational)
objectives and budgets are met. Each of the strategic risks is allocated to an EXCO risk owner to ensure accountability. Monitoring
and review are done at EXCO with the Audit and Risk Committee exercising oversight as mandated by the Board. Risk reviews
are held on an ongoing basis with different Group Executives and their teams to identify any new or emerging risks that may affect
the achievement of business objectives.

2.9.2 Risk Philosophy and Governance

Total

The overall risk management philosophy of City Power is to identify and predict potential and emerging risks before they occur or
materialise and implement a risk management system and methodology that applies to all City Power operations.
To further embed sound risk management principles, City Power adopted a Combined Assurance approach to strengthening our
control environment. This is an ongoing project to ensure that risks and controls identified are managed across the three lines
of defense, and that appropriate assurance is provided, reported and monitored, this is affected through a developed Combined
Assurance governance forum.
Our Risk Appetite and Tolerance Framework sets out the levels of risk that we are willing to tolerate in pursuit of our strategic
objectives. The Risk Appetite and Tolerance Framework is aligned to our internal policies and considers principles outlined in King
IV, ISO 31000 on risk management and the COSO internal control framework.

Table 14: Senior Management Remuneration

2.9.3 KING IV

City Power did not pay any separation pay to any staff member in FY 2019/20.

To achieve best practice levels, the requirements of the guidelines of the King IV Report on Corporate Governance for South
Africa, 2016 (King IV) and ISO 31000:2018 risk management standard are considered in City Power’s ERM approach. The
strategic risk profile is based on City Power’s seven strategic goals, as expressed through the 2019/20 Business Plan.
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The Board has assumed responsibility for risk governance and, in terms of principle 4, 8, 10 and 11, the Board has:

2.9.5 ERM Approach

•

The risk management process is designed to ensure that risk management decisions are based on a robust approach, assessments
are conducted in a consistent manner, and a common language is used and understood across City Power.

•
•
•

Set the approach and strategy to risk governance within City Power where risk is an integral part to decision-making and
adherence to roles and duties;
Stipulated City Power’s Policy, which defines the risk management objectives, risk management framework, risk management
process and clarifies the concept of the organisation’s risk tolerance;
Delegated the implementation and execution of effective risk management to Management through its risk management
framework; and
Overseen the management of risk within City Power and participated in the rating and assessment of the organisation’s key
risks.

Table
Risk Management
2.9.4
Risk 15:
Management
Objectives Objectives

Shaping
• By creating an awareness and understanding of risk
• By embedding a culture of risk management accountability at all levels within the organisation
• By developing, advocating and facilitating an effective risk management framework

Identifying
• Risks completely and capture these risks in a risk register
• City Power's risk appetite and tolerance, which will allow for the achievement of strategic and business
objectives

Figure 8: ERM Strategic Process Cycle

Figure 8 depicts the strategic process cycle which is underpinned by the Risk Framework (ISO 31000) that is cascaded into
tactical risk management steps:

Commit and Mandate

Communicate and Train

• Policy Statement
• Standards
• Guidelines
• RM Plans
• Assurance Plans

• Stakeholder Analysis
• Training Needs Analysis
• Communication Strategy
• Training Strategy
• IRM Network

Communicate and Consult

Who are our stakeholders, what are their objectives and how shall we involve them?

Establish
the context

Identify
the risks

Analyse
the risks

Evaluate
the risks

Treat the
risks

’What do we
need to take
into accomt
and what are
our objectives?

What might
happen?
How when
and why?

What this
will mean
for our
objectives?

Which risks
need treating
and our
priority for
attention?

How should
we best
deal with them?

Monitor and Review

Have the risks and controls changed?

Review and Improve

Safeguarding
• By ensuring full compliance with appropriate and approved risk management practices
• By ensuring compliance with corporate governance guidelines and relevant codes of good practice
• By ensuring effective alignment with all relevant assurance providers

Servicing
• By partnering effectively with the business to ensure effective management of risk
• By providing a centre of excellence for benchmarking and development of risk in City Power

• Contrel Assurance
• RM Plan Progress
• RM Maturity Evaluation
• RM KPIs
• Benchmarking
• Governance Reporting

Risk Management Information System

Figure 8: ERM Strategic Process Cycle

Table 15: Risk Management Objectives
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Structure and Accountability
• Board Audit and Risk Committee
• ExCo
• ERM Working Group
• Manager ERM
• IRM Champions
• Risk and Control Owners

2.9.6 City Power Risk Context

2.9.7 Key Strategic Risks

The diagram below depicts the environment and risk context under which City Power operates. Some of the issues depicted have

The Board has demonstrated its governance oversight role over the entire risk management system by monitoring the strategic
risk profile, risk management plan implementation, risk finance and Business Continuity Management performance. In fulfilling
its governance oversight responsibility, the Board approved eleven strategic risks that could threaten the achievement of City
Power’s strategic goals and performance targets for the 2019/20 financial year.

Figure
9: Environment and Risk Context
been factored into analysing both strategic and operational risks.

The risks are documented accordingly and monitored on an ongoing basis with risk treatment strategies, the relevance of existing
risks and the identification of additional and new/emerging risks.

External context

The responsible risk owners are managing strategic risks at a Group Executive level with the accounting officer assuming all
accountability of the risk profile. Progress on risk performance is reported quarterly to the Audit and Risk Committee.

• Supply and demand balance
• Electricity is indispensable to society and the economy
• Low economic growth
• Price increases and pressure on consumers
• Customers moving off the grid due to self-generation
• Industry structure and future role of City Power
• Targeted sales interventions
• Energy mix (Renewables)
• Gauteng is the economic hub of SA and depends on
electricity for growth
• Demand for copper

The following risk matrix indicates the number of priority strategic risks based on their evaluation for consequence and likelihood.

Internal context
• Ageing infrastructure (asset life cycle) and funding
requirements for this to remain sustainable
• Legal and regulatory compliance requirements exposure of
assets to severe weather incidents (climate change)
• Safety (employees, contractors and public)
• Strategic spares levels
• Opex and Capex risks
• Lead times in establishing electricity infrastructure
• Reliance on information and telecommunications technology
• Increase in security incidents
• Skills gap
• Unethical behavior
• Back up/readiness to respond to major emergencies
• Cybersecurity
• Ageing workforce

Challenges

• Plan
• Key Performance Indicators
• Risks & Controls
• Responsibility
• Management

Potential Impact/ Consequence

A total of 11 strategic risks have been approved as per below:
Severe/
Catastrophic

5

Low

Moderate

High

Very High

Very High

Major

4

Low

Moderate

High

High

Very High

Moderate

3

Low

Moderate

Moderate

High

High

Minor

2

Low

Low

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Insignificant

1

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

A

B

C

D

E

Remote

Unlikely

Possible

Likely

Almost
Certain

Likelihood of Occurrence
Figure 10: Strategic Risk Register on Risk Heat Map

• Funding for further infrastructure challenges
• Managing capital constraints
• Revenue
• Changes in technology
• Change in consumer behaviour
• Service delivery protests

Figure 9: Environment and Risk Context
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The table below provides an overview of the Strategic Risk profile and treatment plans for the 2019/20 financial year:
Risk Description
Risk Description
1.

2.

Rating

City Power may have insufficient funds
to meet its financial obligations in the
short term because of revenue decline
and cash flow which may compromise
business operations, service delivery and
financial sustainability

•
•
•
•
•
•

Key Risk Treatment Plans include:

•
•

3.

Escalation of theft and vandalism

•

Implementation of a comprehensive security
improvement plan

4.

Inability to implement refurbishment, asset
renewal and expansion due to inadequate
capital budget may lead to poor network
performance and service delivery.

•

Refurbishment of obsolete equipment or major parts
thereof. and Replacement of obsolete equipment in line
with available FY 2019/20 capital budget. Ensuring failed
equipment is recycled as a source of spares. Training and
awareness of the routable process
The percentage of Capex spent on refurbishment projects
(95% of the allocation of Capex budget assigned to
refurbishment projects)
Technology to develop specifications for Security Systems

•

6.

Increase in outages and poor technical
performance due to network unavailability
and equipment failure results in loss of
supply to City Power customers

Failure to capitalise on new market
opportunities to ensure business
sustainability

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

7.

Unethical business practices resulting in
fraud and corruption activities

•
•
•
•

8.

Non-compliance to legislation and
company policies due to lack of
enforcement on policies and SOPs

•
•
•
•
•

9.

The impact of in-sourcing security to City
Power’s operations and infrastructure

CITY POWER

•
•
•

66

Maintenance plan
Demand acquisition plan to respond to critical network
requirements
Review of the SOP for the Outage management plan
Enhancement of the Business Continuity Plan
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA)
Response Strategy
Mix energy solutions implementation
Time of use has been implemented for Large Power Users
Data collection of customers that have alternative energy
sources
Participate in the Climate Action Plan
Identify and invest in new set of skills for the business of the
future
Intensive engagement with customers to better understand
their needs and customise solutions
Development of code of ethical conduct
Training of managers on presiding and presenting
disciplinary cases
Develop a security (vetting) policy to cover employees and
contractors
Resolution of audit findings
Updating the regulatory universe on a quarterly basis
Training awareness and enforcement of compliance matters
Facilitate the development of Compliance Risk Management
Plan for high impact areas
Assist groups to develop or optimise management controls
to enforce compliance
Ethical code of conduct and ethics
Invest in electronic security systems for substations
Comprehensive cable theft and vandalism strategy
Security risk assessments of hotspot areas, substations and
security condition inspections of load centres

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

•
•
•
•

11. Cybersecurity

•

Revenue enhancement plan
Meter to cash value chain to ensure that all customers are
billed, that they are billed accurately and that collect revenue
• Disconnection of non-vending pre-paid meters

•

5.

10. Insufficient capability, capacity
and commitment to deliver on the
organisational mandate

Implementation of a revenue enhancement plan
Recovery of grant funding
Verification of Eskom purchases
Reviewing data analytics capability and customer-centricity
Operating cost efficiency drive

Reduction of non-technical losses may not
be realised, ultimately putting the financial
stability and sustainability of City Power
at risk.

Rating

•
•
•
•

Key Risk Treatment Plans include:

Operating model, structure and deployment strategy
redesign
Competency framework including capability requirements for
technical professional and leadership depth
Skills audit and enhancing identified gaps through PDP’s,
workplace skills plan and succession plans
Upgrade the network to address OT requirements and IT
requirements with new technology
Replacement of the legacy system with an up-to-date
support system
Renewal of licenses
Implementation of network access control
Replacement of all end-of-life switches

Table 16: Strategic Risk Profile and Treatment Plans

2.9.8 Key Observations Related to the City Power Strategic Risk Profile
•

We have noted both positive and negative movements in some risks throughout the year. This signifies the progress made
on risk treatment plans as well as changes in the operational environment.
Some treatment plans were funding-dependent and budget constraints impacted their progress.
Some of the controls and risk treatment plans which were unable to treat any of the aforementioned risks have been reviewed
and improved with more effective measures addressing root causes. Other controls and plans require ongoing improvement
due to the constantly changing environment and can only be tested in how we respond to the risk events.
City Power may have insufficient funds to meet its financial obligations in the short term due to revenue decline and cash flow
which may compromise planned business operations, delivery on the mandate and financial sustainability.

•
•

•

•
•
		
•
		
•
		
•
•

This risk has remained very high, although it displays some positive movement.
Efforts have been made through various revenue recovery interventions to improve revenue however, the business still
requires extensive interrogation towards identifying all of its cost drivers and factoring them as risk causes.
In the last quarter, high impact initiatives for credit control were slightly impacted negatively by Covid-19. Collection
initiatives were similarly affected by lockdown restrictions.
Overall, the revenue initiatives geared towards reducing the overdraft continue to be prioritised even though the financial
risk remains high and on the radar of both Management and Board.
Debt restructuring forming part of financial recovery has been proposed for submission to Shareholder.

Reduction of non-technical losses may not be realised, ultimately putting the financial stability and sustainability of City Power
at risk.

•
		
•
•
•
•
		
•
•
•
•

Although efforts were made to reduce the risk, some treatment plans did not positively impact the risk. The reduced/low
levels of revenue collection are also a result of Covid-19 and its impact on the organisation.
Poor economic activity resulting in loss of jobs and income, leading to customers’ inability to pay.
Increase in bypassing or meter tampering as well as increased domestic consumption.
To minimise the likelihood of this risk, additional measures need to be considered:
City Power will need to review its credit management approach and offer payment methods which will assist both domestic
and LPU customers to pay.
Resuscitate customer engagement sessions to understand customer needs/challenges through various platforms.
Increase disconnections, to drive the message of ‘paying for what you use’.
Improve network performance to ensure reliable electricity and buy-in towards paying for consumption.
Review those treatment plans which are not yielding results.
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•

Inability to implement refurbishment, asset renewal and expansion due to inadequate capital budget may lead to poor network
performance and service delivery.

•
		
		
•

The risk has not been re-evaluated and remains medium, however, the risk consequence has shiftefrom major 			
to medium during the financial year due to the upgrade of some substations. These upgrades have prevented the risk
from materialising, a positive improvement which will ultimately reduce the number of outages.
Increase in outages and poor technical performance due to network unavailability and equipment failure results in loss of
supply to City Power customers.

City Power Asset Insurance Claims and Premiums
The graph below depicts a three-year (2017/18-2019/20) comparative view of the cost of claims against the premiums paid for
the Asset Class Insurance:

150.1

160,000,000.00
140,000,000.00
120,000,000.00

•
		
		
		
		
		
•
		
•
		
		
•
•

Cybersecurity

•
		
•
		
•
		
•

This risk rating has remained moderate throughout the year and has had both positive and negative movements in 			
either the consequence or likelihood rating. The refurbishment program has assisted in the alleviation of the pressure
on the network and contributed to the positive movement however, with the re-evaluation of the risk it is anticipated 			
that the likelihood of the risk would change for the worse given the recent incidents in the last quarter that have resulted
in several outages in some areas of supply. The outcome: network unavailability due to ageing infrastructure, theft and
vandalism as well as unavailability of material which is partly due to the Covid-19 pandemic.
It is anticipated that the consequence rating will worsen as the unintended consequences of outages are revenue-			
related and impede service delivery significantly.
The Covid-19 lockdown restrictions alleviated pressure from the network, resulting in reduced consumption from the 			
large power users during the period. This lowered usagehad a negative unintended consequence on the finances of the
Entity resulting in a loss of income for the period.
The winter season also has a negative bearing on the infrastructure and is anticipated to increase the demand.

80,000,000.00

71.7

60,000,000.00

63.7

61.09

40,000,000.00
20,000,000.00
0

2017/18 Assets

2018/19 Assets

2019/20 Assets

Premiums
Cost of claims

Graph 3: Insurance Claims Assessment and Premiums

The following provides a cause and cost analysis for all Asset Claims including GPA claims during FY 2019/20 (R’m):

City Power’s drive to elevate its cybersecurity is critically important given what is happening globally with big 			
companies falling prey to cyberattacks.
The risk has thus worsened as City Power has experienced two attempts during the financial year in the first and fourth
quarters respectively.
The likelihood of the risk has moved from possible to almost certain given the number of attempts the Entity has 			
been exposed to.

Failure to capitalise on new market opportunities to ensure business sustainability

•
		
		
		
		
•
		
•
		
		

103.9

95.7

100,000,000.00

The length of time it has taken the business to conduct feasibility studies has increased the likelihood of this risk 			
materialising. The energy industry is fast approaching a total revolution with alternative sources/Independent Power 			
Producers (IPP’s) entering the market and being formalised/licensed. Since the announcement by the Minister of 			
Energy and Mineral Resources that mines and large businesses can produce their own energy, City Power is at risk of
losing some of its key LPU customers, which contribute to most of our revenue.
LPUs have already started looking at their cost drivers and are embarking on various initiatives to ensure a supply of 		
reliable electricity while saving on spend and still remaining sustainable.
The Entity is required to take decisive action, as guided by the feasibility studies on which approach to take to 			
capitalise on new markets and align its operational activities accordingly (i.e.: skilled human resources, organisational
structure, infrastructure, funding requirements and business plan alignment).

Asset Claims
350
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50
0

104,257,257.52
43,832,105.52

48,831,078.00
340,000.00

Damage to
Infrastructure

Fire
No of Claims

11,254,074.00

GPA Claims

Theft &
Vandalism

Total

Estimated loss amount (Rm)

Graph 4: Asset Claims

2.9.9 Risk Finance Performance

This section deals with Assets and Liability claims reported to the Insurance Department

The insurance unit forms part of the Enterprise-wide Risk Management department to ensure synergies with risk management and
to solicit advice from the Group Risk Assurance Services (GRAS) insurance team at the City of Johannesburg where opportunities
may exist for risk financing options to deal with some of the exposures.
Different classes of insurance programmes are available to cater for assets, liability and employees. The department’s key focus
areas include: the day-to-day management of claims and collaborating with the City to ensure a successful insurance underwriting
renewal programme.

For 2019/20 a total number of 309 asset claims were reported. The estimated value of the registered asset claims for 2019/20 is
R104.2 million. Larger losses are still under investigation and loss adjusters are compiling various reports as part of the insurance
requirements.
Group Personal Accident: Thirty-four (34) employee injuries occurred during this financial year, and these were reported to our
brokers.
The Insurance team is tracking all outstanding payments with both the City of Johannesburg’s Insurance team and our brokers.
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2.9.10

Insurance Risk Survey

Comparison of Gross Losses for the period July 2017 to June 2020:

Underwriting surveys were carried out at five of our depots to activate our Renewal Program for the 2020/21 financial year.
The objectives of the Underwriting Surveys were to:
•
		
•
•
•
•

160,000,000.00
140,000,000.00

Complete a factual report covering site operations and hazards, with emphasis on property damage and business
interruption;
Evaluate potential fire loss scenarios;
Evaluate potential machinery breakdown loss scenarios;
Provide loss scenarios based upon the site sum insured in respect of fire and perils; and
Evaluate existing fire and security protection systems.

120,000,000.00
80,000,000.00

63,715,995.28

60,000,000.00

37,340,514.26

40,000,000.00

43,999,651.17

39,115,458.71

20,000,000.00
0

Midrand Depot
Alexandra Depot
Klipspruit Depot
Hursthill Depot
Lenasia Depot

2017/18

2017/18
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Assets
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Graph 5: Gross Losses Comparison

A fundamental requirement of modern underwriting is to have a correct and specified risk profile at hand which must be easy to
understand and as objective as possible. In addition, a technically sound risk assessment is the basis for advice given by the
insurer to the insured to comply with loss control services.
A walkthrough of the premises is used to conduct the surveys and specific attention is given to:
•
•
•

103,917,259.10

100,000,000.00

The following depots were surveyed with final reports issued:
•
•
•
•
•

150,112,595.40

Business Continuity Management and Resilience

Business Continuity was identified as a major exposure in City Power and the work to establish this function began in June 2018.
An Emergency Response team was established to ensure that contingency plans are developed.
Accepting that some identified risks could materialise and that some unidentified risks could occur, there is a definite need to
establish processes, structures, systems, skills, leadership and behaviours that support resilience at all City Power levels. This is
essential to arrive at organisation-wide application elements of resilience shown.

Fixed fire-protection systems.
Building and utilities.
Housekeeping.

Various recommendations and proposed implementation dates were communicated to all Area Managers. This is to ensure
adherence to all underwriting requirements which will ensure adequate insurability for City Power.
The following provides a cause and cost analysis for all Public Liability Claims:
Category

2.9.11

Number of Claims

Estimated Cost

Fire

1

25,000.00

Injury/Death

8

38,337,468.34

Load Shedding

18

242,081.06

Other

23

725,149.78

Power Outages

57

739,368.66

Power Surges

178

3,930,583.33

Total

285

43,999,651.17

City Power’s Emergency Response Command Centre (ERCC) manages City Power’s integrated response to any significant
incident or threat to City Power’s operations or the network. A key development since the initiation of a BCM programme has been
the establishment of the ERCC.
The ERCC is designed to ensure a more rapid response to emerging risks; reduce the need for the EXCO to convene and deal
with crises; and to provide City Power with the enhanced capacity to effectively manage major emergencies, business continuity
and disasters.
The following are some of the activities and major achievements in terms of Business Continuity for the financial year
2019/20:
•

•

Table 17: Public Liability Claims

The above causal breakdown attests to problems linked to the network reliability performance and plant condition.
It must be noted that most of the claims are caused by power surges which damage customers’ appliances and other equipment.
These are mainly caused by an influx of electricity into households and businesses. During the 2019/20 financial year we
experienced an increase in power-surge-related claims, which equates to 62% of all submitted claims.

•

Reviewed Business Impact Assessments (BIA) for the different groups: The first step in the Business Continuity Management
Lifecycle is to undertake a Business Impact Analysis to identify/confirm time critical operations and processes, as well as the
urgency required to recover them in the event of a disruption. This is achieved by evaluating potential business disruption and
its effect on the business (both financial and non-financial impacts) if the mission critical activities are interrupted or rendered
unstable.
Establishment of the Tactical Command Centre (TCC). The focus of the TCC is to implement the required response strategy
at a group level or a selected site. In addition, TCCs should monitor incident communications and provide the necessary
support per assigned responsibilities by the ERCC.
Hosted a resilience expert to present to the ERCC and do a benchmark with Eskom: with the objective of the business
benchmarking and learning. The nature of the business bears some similarities and the type of business interruption episodes
we may experience from time to time call for strategic collaboration.

While the reported third-party injuries are low in number, they contribute to the highest claims values. These reported claims
mostly relate to legal notices and summonses received.
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Figure 11: City Power Covid-19: Business Continuity Plans - Summary
City Power Covid-19: Summary of Business Continuity Plans

The key objectives were as follows:
•
•
•
•

Establish clarity of roles and responsibilities in the ERCC and TCCs;
Provide guidance on establishment of Tactical Command Centres;
Understand and appreciate that the maturity of an effective business continuity management programme is an arduous
journey which requires patience; and
Understand the importance of a functional disaster recovery site to enable resilience during unanticipated disruptive events.

Operations

At the end of the workshop the biggest learning was that as an organisation we have a long way to go to reach Eskom’s maturity
level. From a resource perspective have City Power’s limited BCM capability and the lack of a Disaster Recovery site is a major
exposure. However, Eskom also acknowledged that it has been a long journey that took years and, even today, is still not an ideal
system.
•

Facilitated a robust risk analysis on the impacts of Covid-19 on business operations. Part of what the business has done is
to examine the impact of Covid-19 on various KPIs and on the turnaround plan that was initially agreed to.

As part of one of the disaster topics covered under BCM, a risk assessment was conducted to understand the impact of 			
Coronavirus as well as City Power’s preparedness to deal with such an emergency.
•
		
		
		
		
•
		
		
		
•
		
		

City Power, through the ERCC’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic, has resulted in many deliberations since the virus
first appeared.The ERCC continues to monitor progress on the activities set out as part of the business continuity 			
programme to ensure that as an essential service provider, operations continue. At the same time, the safety 			
and health of our employees at work is a priority, high up on the list along with protecting our assets, keeping the
lights on and protecting our revenue.
Covid-19 has created unprecedented circumstances and is characterised by uncertainty in a rapidly changing landscape.
City Power provides a critical and essential service by delivering electricity to the various institutions in the City of 			
Johannesburg.These institutions are primarily responsible for addressing and helping to mitigate the Covid-19 pandemic
and they are reliant on a stable electricity supply to execute their national disaster responsibilities.
City Power has, therefore, aligned its essential business operations with the national lockdown guidelines and 			
regulations. This requires existing teams to continue keeping the lights on safely and sustainably for Johannesburg 			
citizens.

In summary, Emergency Protocols were activated, and the team checked daily at the beginning of the pandemic to monitor and
implement the plan. The CE also nominated part of his EXCO to exercise oversight as well as fast track decision-making for the
duration of the crisis. This helped ensure that we implement the Business Continuity Plan in an integrated and coordinated manner
and, to date, we have achieved the following:
•
•
•
		
		
•
		
•
		
•
•
		
•
•
•
•
•
•

Developed a Covid-19 Standard Operating Procedure;
Developed a Covid-19 OHS Risk Compliance Management Plan (currently under review);
Focused efforts on clear, consistent communication, created a dedicated email address for employees’ Q&A, various
WhatsApp group chats for field-based employees, Top 200 messages, and also activated bulk SMS messages to 			
communicate with all employees for regular reminders;
Implemented flexible working and reduced the number of people working in a shift. These adapted shift patterns help to
reduce risk as a whole;
Developed guidelines, action plans and protocols to manage any confirmed cases of Covid-19 among staff or in our 			
buildings;
Identified a facility/sickbay for isolation purposes at Reuven;
Procured sufficient hand sanitisers, soap, gloves, masks, tissues, and temperature scanners for use so as to monitor
employees’ possible exposure in terms of the Covid-19 symptoms;
Issued masks to employees;
Rolled out mass screening and testing;
Implemented daily attendance registers of employees entering all City Power buildings maintained;
Introduced social distancing markers around the offices and depots where people may have to queue;
Installed screens at offices, reception areas and walk-in centres; and
Completed the first round of Senior Management walkabouts at depots.
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Restoration of
supply after forced
interruptions and
plant
out of service
Execution of critical
maintenance
Reviewed maintenance team
schedules and
developed a rotation
model
Dispatchers can be
decentralised to
depots to ensure
social distancing
Electricians and
Operators - report to
office on relevant
shifts and adhere to
strict hygiene and
sanitation measures
Detailed security
lockdown plan has
been developed to
address asset
protection and
support essential
service employees
and contractors

Support,
Services and
Logistics

People and
Wellness

Awareness
campaign at all sites
on hand hygiene,
social distancing,
sanitising and use
of PPE including
masks and gloves
Budget reprioritisation to factor in
emergency
requirements

Bulk team - working
from home and
equipped with
necessary resources to respond to
emergencies
Continue to install
new service
connections

ICT

Use of technology
for virtual meetings
(VPN installed)

Most office-based
functions to work
from home

Security risk
analysis for threat
detection, intrusion
and prevention

Customer interaction minimised to
avoid walk-ins and
promote alternative
contact channels

Training for key
users on online
systems and apps

Activated bulk SMS
to all employees

Electrification,
Secondary Plant
and Distribution
continue operating.
Teams adhere to
strict hygiene and
safety practice
measures. Ready to
assist depots with
any emergencies

Hotline number for
reporting cases as
well as EAP to offer
psychological
support

Adequate strategic
spare capacity.
Review material
demand to prioritise
emergencies

ICT service desk
reconfigured to
adapt to the new
reality and ways of
work

Developed Covid-19
management toolkit
with guidelines

Safety and hygiene
protocols heightened across fleet

Dashboard
development to
track activities that
are performed
remotely

Wellness team
trained on Covid-19
and submitted
readiness plan for
testing

Metering

Additional hardware
procured
ICT operating hours
reviewed for
standby after hours,
weekends and
public holidays

Staggering of field
resources to
reinforce social
distancing
Manual meter
reading function
suspended during
lockdown
Credit control
processes
suspended
Prepaid reports will
be available but not
executed and will be
executed after the
lockdown
Recovery plan to
deal with backlogs
is under review

Figure 11: City Power Covid-19: Business Continuity Plans - Summary

Several incidents have occurred that required the activation of the ERCC and it has been noted that the ERCC has generally
responded well on most major incidents. Improvement over time has been noticeable as learnings fom previous lessons are
factored into future incidents.
Business Continuity Management is an ongoing programme which is relatively new in the organisation and requires a step
change. One of the major shortcomings remains the insufficient resource capacity to drive this programme.
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In summary, the Business Continuity Management programme life cycle has been initiated with the primary focus being to
enable (groups/functional areas) to understand the philosophy, process and roles, as well as to adequately locate the BMC type
risks within their respective groups. The next step has been to establish Tactical Command Centres which will be followed by
implementation to manage emergencies in the business’ functional areas.
It must be noted that the organisation is in the early phase of risk maturity and to drive this requires a lot of interface and deliberate
effort to educate business on what risk is, how to identify it and, most importantly, how it integrates with business processes, plans,
targets and objectives.

2.10 Corporate Ethics and Organisational Integrity
The City Power Board is responsible for the ethical culture of the organisation with support and oversight provided by the Social,
Ethics & HR Committee (SEHRC). City Power is committed to embedding a strong ethical culture in its businesses and maintaining
good corporate governance structures. The SEHRC facilitates City Power’s approach in this regard and it offers a structured forum
for the monitoring, measuring and reporting of the ethics and certain other non-financial aspects of City Power’s business. The
SEHRC is governed by Terms of Reference which detail its duties in terms of the Companies Act and the King lV Report, as well as
responsibilities allocated to it by the Board. This Report is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act.

2.11 Compliance Report
City Power is committed to the establishment of a workplace environment that is characterised by compliance to relevant
legislation, regulations, and by-laws of the City of Johannesburg and City Power Policies. Compliance by City Power is an
imperative issue for consideration taking into cognisance section 214 of the Companies Act (No.71 of 2008), which explicitly
prohibits false statements, reckless conduct and non-compliance by companies. Consideration of compliance is further imperative
to maintain a good reputation and a high level of corporate governance practice.

2.11.1

City Power has a regulatory universe consisting of a total of 89 pieces of legislation, regulations, by-laws and policies that have
been identified as having a direct effect on the City Power business. Although some pieces of legislation may not directly affect
City Power, secondary impacts for these must still be considered. For example, service providers, subsidiaries and associates
may be required to implement certain legislation and City Power may be held ultimately accountable for compliance with such
legislation e.g. supply chain/sub-contracting and outsourcing of services.
When considering legislation, we typically categorise legislation in the following categories:

The role of the SEHRC is to act in terms of the delegated authority of the Board and assist the Non-Executive Directors in
monitoring City Power’s disclosures in terms of legislation, regulation and codes of best practices relating to:

•

•
•
•

•

Ethics, sustainable development and sustainability;
Stakeholder engagement, including employees, customers, suppliers and the communities which City Power serves; and
Strategic empowerment and transformation.

A quarterly report is submitted to the Committee which focuses on the following fourteen areas of reporting:
Social Reporting:
We believe that a social enterprise is an organisation whose
mission combines revenue growth and profit-making with the
need to respect and support its environment and stakeholder
network. This includes listening to, investing in, and actively
managing the trends that are shaping today’s world. We strive
to be an organisation that shoulders its responsibility to be
a good citizen (both inside and outside the organisation),
serving as a role model for our peers and promoting a high
degree of collaboration at every level of the organisation.

Ethics Reporting:
Our business’ reputation and value are built on City Power’s
commitment to being a responsible and ethical business.
Our business principles are the foundation for how we do
business wherever we operate. Our Ethical Conduct supports
our ability to act within these principles. We cannot anticipate
every ethical issue we may face, but our business principles
are designed to ensure that stakeholders know that City
Power will always strive to choose the responsible option.

•

Social Impact Programs

•

Sustainable Environmental Practices

•

Partnerships with Communities

•

Adherence to Safety Standards

•

Stakeholder Engagement

•

Ethical Procurement Practices

•

Procurement Spend

•

Code of Ethical Conduct

•

Enterprise & Supplier Development

•

Fair Labour Practices

•

Community Up-Skilling

•

Culture & Diversity

•

Employee Well-Being Programs

•

Governance Structures

City Power believes that good ethics and business together produce the best long-term results for all its stakeholders. The
objective of the Code of Ethical Conduct is to strive to:
Ensure that everyone involved with City Power conducts business with the highest standards of ethics, desired business
conduct and professional behaviour; and
Ensure that the integrity of both City Power and its employees is not compromised.

In summary, the Code explains the standard of behaviour at the workplace, towards fellow employees and stakeholders.

CITY POWER

•

Core regulatory requirements are deduced from relevant legislation that underpin the very nature of the specific business;
non-compliance may or can severely threaten or limit the continued viability of the business due to City Power’s operating
license being suspended or terminated by NERSA, or by resulting in a loss of revenue or a material impact on profits, or
affecting market share sustainability as a result of severe penalties and/or negative publicity.
Secondary regulatory requirements are deduced from relevant legislation that is secondary in the specific business
environment; non-compliance may or can insignificantly affect the business due to a limited impact on loss of revenue as a
result of minor penalties and/or negative publicity.
Topical and pertinent regulatory requirements are deduced from relevant legislation that is contemporary in the specific
business environment; non-compliance may or can significantly affect the business due to an impact on loss of revenue due
to penalties and/or negative publicity.

2.11.2

Priority Legislations

Out of a total of 89 pieces of legislation. City Power has prioritised the following 11 pieces of legislation:
1. Electricity Regulation Act 4 of 2006,
2. Companies Act 71 of 2008,
3. Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003,
4. Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993,
5. National Environmental Management Act 107 of 1998,
6. Basic Conditions of Employment Act 75 of 1997,
7. Labour Relations Act 66 of 1995,
8. Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000,
9. Broad-Based Back Economic Empowerment Act 53 of 2003,
10. Construction Industry Development Board (CIDB) Act 38 of 2000, and
11. Disaster Management Act 57 of 2002.
Priority Regulations, Industry Codes and Best Practice

Table 18: Social, Ethics and HR Committee Reporting Areas

•
		
•

Regulatory Universe
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

National Energy Regulator of South Africa (NERSA’s NRS 047, NRS 048, and NRS 057 Standards),
National Treasury Regulations and Circulars,
MFMA Circulars,
Supply Chain Management Regulations,
South African National Standard – Code of Practice for Electricity Metering,
South African Grid Code – The Metering Code,
South African Distribution Code – Network Code,
King IV,
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•

National Treasury MFMA Circular 100,
Directive IRO Covid-19 Occupational Health and Safety Measures in Workplaces, 2020,
General Safety Regulations published under OHSA,
Facilities Regulations issued in terms of OHSA,
The Environmental Regulations issued in terms of OHSA,
Regulations in terms of section 27(2) of the Disaster Management Act 57 of 2002, and
Regulations relating to Protection of Personal Information (POPI).

2.11.3

Engineering Services Group
NRS 047
Area of Focus

Compliance Monitoring

For the financial year 2019/20 the following compliance assessments were conducted in relation to the aforementioned priority
legislation and regulatory requirements, and the annual compliance plan for the same year.
No.

Name of Group

Period

1.

Metering Services Group

Q1

2.

Engineering Operations Group

Q1

3.

Engineering Services Group

Q1

4.

Office of the CEO/Company Secretary

Q2

5.

Enterprise Support Group

Q3

6.

Human Resource and Transformation Group

Q3

7.

Finance

Q4

Due Date for
Compliance

Risk Rating

NRS 047 Standard (that deals with
the Quotation to customers’ Minimum
Standards requirements)

High

June 2020

Status unchanged. Ongoing monitoring
follow up

NRS 047 Standard (that deals with the
Minimum Standard requirements for
Providing Supply to customers

High

June 2020

Status unchanged. Ongoing monitoring
follow up

Human Resources
Basic Conditions of Employment Act, Talent Acquisition, Reassignment and Termination Policy
Area of Focus
Section 10 – that deals with overtime
Clause 7.1.2 – that deals with acting
principles

Risk Rating

Due Date for
Compliance

Movement of the Finding

Very High

30 April 2020

Status unchanged. Ongoing monitoring
follow up

High

1 April 2020

Status unchanged. Ongoing monitoring
follow up

Table 19: Compliance Monitoring Plan per Group

Finance Group

Status of adverse findings from the compliance assessments performed as at the end of the year.

Municipal Finance Management Act and Contracts Management
Area of Focus

Metering Services Group

City Power is not compliant to the
requirement of the MFMA Circular No. 71

NRS 047
Area of Focus
NRS 047 Standard (that deals with the
frequency of meter reading.)

Risk Rating

Due Date for
Compliance

High

June 2021

Movement of the Finding
Status unchanged. Ongoing monitoring
follow up

NRS 047

NRS 047 Standard (that deals with
the restoration of supply after forced
interruptions)

Risk Rating

Due Date for
Compliance

High

Ongoing

Movement of the Finding
Status unchanged. Ongoing monitoring
follow up

Tax Compliance
All returns in respect of Income Tax, PAYE and VAT are up to date and have all been submitted timeously. With regard to Income
Tax, the following are issues that are still pending:
a) Tax Exemption – Pleadings have now closed. A new date has been set for the 5th of November at the Supreme Court of 			
Appeal to hear the Entity’s appeal for exemption from Income Tax.

Engineering Operations Group

Area of Focus

Movement of the Finding

Risk Rating

Due Date for
Compliance

High

Ongoing

Movement of the Finding
Status unchanged. Ongoing monitoring
follow up

b) Bad Debt allowance – City Power has exhausted all options in its engagement with the South African Revenue Services 			
(SARS). The matter will proceed to court if the Entity’s legal challenge for exemption fails.
c) Wear and tear allowances – The Entity is currently filing a notice to appeal against the dismissal of the objection as well 			
as applying for an alternate dispute resolution mechanism. These are the options that are available to the entity as per the
Tax Administration Act.

2.11.4

Overall Conclusion and Opinion

The matters communicated throughout this Report relate to the mandatory requirements of the applicable regulations that form
part of the City Power regulatory universe and will be addressed in order to ensure the compliance and quality of its service.
Compliance monitoring is an ongoing process as indicated by the assessments conducted for various groups within the Entity. The
assessments were based on the regulatory universe comprising applicable legislation, regulations, and the policy. The findings for
various assessments were highlighted throughout the year.
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The responsibility in ensuring compliance in the business is recognised within the governance structures of the organisation.
A written compliance policy exists that sets out the organisation’s commitment and approach to compliance as well as what is
expected of employees. It is Management’s responsibility to ensure that the compliance policy is implemented, supported and
adhered to.
Failure to comply may potentially lead to the Entity suffering risks of non-compliance which may result in the imposition of a fine
or sanction, imprisonment, potential loss of revenue, and/or reputational damage in the public domain.
City Power will continue with the compliance awareness campaigns, training and regular workshops to instill the culture of
compliance within the organisation. In addition to the recently compiled compliance manual meant for all employees and service
providers, the compliance monitoring will continue in accordance with the annual compliance plan. The interventions mentioned
above are meant to embed the compliance culture through coordinated efforts with internal stakeholders, namely the Business
Performance Managers and Group Management Committee. Further collaboration is done with external stakeholders such as the
National Treasury, National Energy Regulator of SA, and COJ Group Compliance to monitor and discuss compliance issues and
related matters.

Why 200,000?
The following reasons apply:
•
•
•

100 workers work approximately 200,000 man hours per year.
DIFR is therefore an indication of the percentage of employees injured per year.
The above is the internationally accepted formula used to calculate DIFR.

The graph below depicts a 12-month performance cycle per Group for the period July 2019 to June 2020.
2
1,8
1,6
1,4
1,2
1
0,8
0,6

Compliance Monitoring Plan for FY2020/21

0,4
0,2

No.

Name of Group

Period

0
43647

43678

43709

43739

43770

43800

43831

43862

43891

Eng Ops (Group)

1,00255195

1,00255195

1,09369304

1,09369304

1,00255195

1,00255195

1,00255195

0,82026978

0,72912869

43922
0,6379876

43952

43983

0,54684652

0,6379876
0,78046953

1.

Metering Services Group

Q1

Eng Ops (PPS)

0,78046953

0,78046953

0,78046953

0,93656344

0,78046953

0,93656344

0,93656344

0,93656344

0,93656344

0

0,93656344

Eng Ops (PPN)

0,38461538

0,57692308

0,76923077

0,96153846

1,15384615

1,15384615

1,15384615

0,96153846

0,96153846

0

0,96153846

0,76923077

2.

Engineering Operations Group

Q1

Eng Serv. (Group)

0,54945055

0,54945055

0,54945055

0,54945055

0,54945055

0,54945055

1,64835165

1,64835165

1,64835165

1,64835165

1,64835165

1,64835165

HR (Group)

1,74825175

1,74825175

1,74825175

1,74825175

1,74825175

1,74825175

1,74825175

1,74825175

1,74825175

3.

Engineering Services Group

Q1

Finance (Group)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

4

Office of the CEO/Company Secretary

Q2

ENT Sup

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Business Sustain. (Group)

4.

Enterprise Support Group

Q2

5.

Human Resource and Transformation Group

Q3

Protection

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Systems Control

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

6.

Finance

Q4

Target

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

7.

Business Sustainability

Q4

Table 20: FY2019/20 Compliance Monitoring Plan per Group

0

0

0

0

0

0

Metering (Group)

0,82891247

0,82891247

1,65782493

1,65782493

1,65782493

0,82891247

City Power

0,75606096

0,80646503

0,85686909

0,85686909

0,75606096

0,75606096

0

0

0

0

0

0,85686909

0,75606096

0
0,20200388

0

0

0
0
0,20200388
0

0
0
0,20200388
0

0,82891247

0,82891247

0,82891247

0,82891247

0,65525283

0,65525283

0,60484877

0,65525283

Graph 6: DIFR per Group

The graph below depicts a 9-year comparison for Disabling Injury Comparison for the period July 2019 to June 2020.

2.12 Occupational Health and Safety Report
2.12.1

Employee Safety

16
14

City Power adheres to the Occupational Health and Safety Act. The safety of its employees is important to the organisation
and thus it makes use of the DIFR (disabling injury frequency) to measure injuries. The DIFR at City Power has been below the
international threshold of ≤1 since 2002. For the period under review the business incurred thirteen (13) work-related incidents
which resulted to City Power’s DIFR climbing to 0.66.

12
10

The DIFR is calculated in the following way:

8

•
•
•

6

Adding the number of disabling injuries and diseases,
Multiplying the total with 200,000, and
Dividing the product (answer) by the total number of man hours worked.

4
2

The following formula is used:

0
Number of disabling frequency injuries

DIFR =

(Number of Disabling Injuries + Diagnosed Diseases) X 200,000
______________________________________________________________
Total number of man hours worked per year

Frequency rate

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
10

9

8

12

9

15

15

12

11

13

0.57

0.45

0.4

0.59

0.45

0.74

0.76

0.6

0.55

0.66

Number of disabling frequency injuries

Frequency rate

Graph 7: Comparison of Disabling Injuries
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Graph 12: Overall SLS Performance

2.12.2

Public Safety Incidents

A year-to-date statistical overview is computed in the graph below:

The ‘Public Fatalities/Incidents: Controllable’ KPI refers to the number of public fatalities/incidents due to electricity related
incidents.

Total incidents

The ‘Public Fatalities/Incidents: Non-controllable’ KPI refers to the number of public fatalities/incidents that are mainly due to
electrocution/shock/injury due to various factors such as customer negligence, tampering with electricity installations, attempted
theft and vandalism of infrastructure, etc.

3000

The risk of incidence during instances of theft and vandalism, tampering and illegal connection on the City Power network remains
a great challenge, often resulting in permanent and/or partial and temporary disability and, in certain cases, fatalities. For the
period under review, twelve (12) network-related incidents were reported; of which nine (9) were fatalities and three (3) were
injuries.

1500

2.12.3

2000

1000
500
0

Contractor Incidents

For the period under review, eleven (11) incidents were reported. Ten (10) contractor employees sustained electrical burns and
one (1) fatality incident was recorded.

2.12.4

2500

July

Aug

Sept

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

March

April

May

June

Total

Actual 14/15

237

238

207

221

217

194

204

205

213

208

218

146

2508

Actual 15/16

134

135

111

172

150

149

119

116

97

112

115

120

1530

Actual 16/17

142

125

161

120

132

118

134

131

154

135

147

110

1609

Actual 17/18

140

122

107

125

146

146

143

132

154

125

150

154

1644

Actual 18/19

140

160

143

151

152

141

129

135

193

169

200

152

1865

Actual 19/20

132

145

105

161

155

111

168

140

160

92

152

118

1639

Environmental Management

City Power is ISO 14001:2015 certified and complies with all relevant environmental management principles. There are certain
areas across City Power servitude/s whereby the City Power Network does infringe and cross the protected areas as per the
National Environmental Management Act 107 of 1998 and other relevant statutes. City Power shall request for a practicable and
pertinent solution to deal with this situation.
The SHERQ department in conjunction with the COJ’s Impact and Compliance Monitoring division, embarked on a process
of screening the CAPEX projects. This exercise assists the business in identifying projects which needed the environmental
authorisation from the Gauteng Department of Agriculture Rural Development (GDARD). City Power has developed the
Environmental Management Programs (EMP) for all its network-related projects as per the NEMA requirement.

Graph 8: Comparison of Total Security Incidents

During the same period (2019/20 FY) 85 suspects were arrested for cable theft, vandalism and other criminal activities associated
with electricity supply compared to 90 suspects arrested during the previous financial year. 27 of the suspects were arrested in
April 2020 during the level 5 national lockdown. This is attributable to vigilant law enforcement and contracted security officers as
well as limited community movements that facilitated easy detection and arrests. A year-to-date statistical overview is computed
in the graph below:

Total Suspects Arrested

2.13 Anti-Corruption and Fraud

350
300

The Board of City Power has set the ethical tone for the business. To enable this commitment, City Power has adopted a
“Zero Tolerance” stance towards fraud and corruption in line with the CoJ priorities. The anti-corruption and fraud policy and
the whistleblowing policy that have been put in place have been approved by the Board. Both policies are meant to enable and
encourage employees/contractors and members of the public to report any fraudulent and corrupt activity relating to City Power.
These policies work in conjunction with the various reporting mechanisms already in place including the independent dedicated
‘tip-off’ anonymous communication channel administered by the City of Johannesburg.

250
200
150
100
50
0

The Fraud investigations function is performed by the Group Forensic and Investigative Services (GFIS).

2.14 Security Risk Management
During the 2019/20 financial year, cable theft and vandalism incidents decreased by 12% compared to FY 2018/19. The number
of incidents during the reporting period decreased from 1,865 in 2018/19 to 1,639 in the 2019/20 Financial Year. This can be
attributed to the Covid-19 national lockdown which led to the substantial decrease in cable theft and vandalism incidents to 92
(45.5%) in April 2020 compared to 169 during the same period in 2019. The national lockdown disrupted criminal syndicates due to
law enforcement agencies being mobilised and on high alert as well as the ‘locking down’ of scrap metal dealers and the limitation
of movement which enables early detection. Notwithstanding the decrease, immediately after level 5 lockdown was lifted, cable
theft and vandalism incidents increased from 92 in April 2020 to 152 in May 2020. Accordingly, cable theft and vandalism remain
a strategic risk affecting service delivery, shareholder value and financial sustainability.

CITY POWER

80

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

July

Aug

Sept

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

March

April

May

June

Total

Actual 14/15

32

34

28

40

29

21

19

8

28

20

20

16

295

Actual 15/16

15

37

10

22

25

7

14

11

10

9

22

12

194

Actual 16/17

11

9

6

16

18

18

14

5

12

8

15

11

143

Actual 17/18

9

5

8

9

5

14

15

2

7

16

18

12

120

Actual 18/19

3

5

8

25

9

3

11

8

8

5

2

3

90

Actual 19/20

13

1

2

1

3

7

9

2

13

27

3

4

85

Graph 9: Comparison of Total Suspects Arrested

The threat environment reflects that criminal syndicates continuously adapt their modus operandi and at times collaborate with
insiders such as contractors. Notwithstanding, during the period under review, minimal security-related incidents resulting in loss
of supply occurred in highly-critical infrastructures, i.e. bulk intake substations and inner-city underground tunnels. Stabilisation of
inner-city underground tunnels has borne fruit wherein the last security incident resulting to loss of supply occurred in November
2018.
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•

City Power’s ICT vision and mission is to enable the business to achieve its strategic objectives by transforming ICT from being
an operational enabler to business value creator, enabling operational excellence, innovative business opportunities, customercentric service delivery and a platform for a world-class digital energy utility business.

•
•

2.15 Information Communication Technology (ICT)

Outward

•

(Towards Technology)

•

Inward

•

Physical security upgrade for ICT and SCADA data centres and associated infrastructures – to protect ICT and SCADA data
centres and related infrastructures against unauthorised access and cybersecurity threats.
Integrated alarms systems for bulk intake, major, transmission and switching substations – to protect electricity network
infrastructure against unauthorised access, cable theft and vandalism.
Intruder detection alarm systems for load centres (MSS, RMUs, BMKs) – to protect electricity network infrastructure against
unauthorised access, cable theft and vandalism.
NKP access control upgrade – to improve Reuven premises access control and security checkpoint to reduce risks of
unauthorised and forceful entry into premises.
Appointment of specialised armed security service providers – to protect the electricity network through static and mobile
security teams.
Appointment of intelligence service provider – to assist in sustaining illegal connection joint operations, identify criminal
syndicates and execute joint arrest operations.

(Towards Business)

2.15.1

Orientation and Focus

In the new financial year, various security programmes will be pursued and will include the following:

City Power recently undertook a strategic review of ICT and established the vision of City Power being a world-class digital energy
utility. This vision for the future requires an updated ICT strategy and governance framework which meets the requirements of four
key influences. Key to this is the City Power’s strategic mandate complementing the City of Johannesburg’s overarching strategy.
In addition, City Power’s governance of ICT needs to comply with regulatory and statutory obligations, such as the Department
of Public Services and Administration (DPSA) and the South African Local Government Association (SALGA) framework and
guidelines on ICT governance respectively. Currently, City Power does comply with regulatory and statutory obligations. Lastly,
in order to transform into the digital utility of the future, City Power ICT must keep pace with current global trends in the industry.

Business Plan Alignment

ICT Vision

Business Enabler
Strong business involvement

To be a strategic partner to business and enable City Power to be the leaders in Smart
Grid through world-class ICT infrastructure
ICT Mission

Service Provider
Extended business
involvement

To consolidate and align ICT and Engineering projects and activities into a value chain
addressing the business priorities of City Power and that of the City of Joburg and MOEs
To consolidate and align ICT and Business Support Service projects
To drive towards convergence of IT and OT towards substation automation to minimise
outages

Cost Centre
Ad-hoc business
involvement

Provide leadership in the smart grid architecture for City Power to reduce losses

ICT Leadership
and Innovation

Improve Governance for ICT

ICT Goals

Increase Revenue and Reduce Costs
Current role

Outage Reduction through Monitoring and Control and Auto-Healing

Short-term role

Management of Risk and Reporting on Compliance

Long-term role

Innovation through Automation and Community Participation

Figure 13: ICT Business Plan Alignment

2.15.2

Assessment of ICT Governance

ICT has implemented governance practice using a schedule of governance meetings including the Planning, Projects and
Operational meetings.

CITY POWER
ICT Strategy &
Governance

2.15.3

ICT Governance Performance

This section of the report provides the status of ICT Strategy, ICT Governance Framework and ICT Policies.
Policies concerning the management, operations and maintenance of the ICT infrastructure are in place and the area is very well
covered with the existing policies.
Listed below are the Board-approved policies concerning the governance and control of ICT Asset Creation, Procurement and
Support:

Figure 12: ICT Strategy and Governance Influences (Project Okhela – Target State Review ER2)
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1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Acceptable Use Policy
Change Control Policy
ICT Information Security Policy
ICT Service Continuity Policy
Information Technology Service Management (ITSM) Policy
Cloud Computing Policy
ICT Programme Governance Policy
Mobile Device: BYOD Policy
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2.15.4

ICT Demand Management
Business Request

This section of the report provides information on the performance of ICT Demand Management:

SharePoint Upgrade

Wellness Clinic
Management
Solution

Business
Intelligence:
dashboards

Acquiring of
Customer Services
Queuing System for
City Power

All Groups

HR

All Groups

Metering Services

In Process

Yes

In Process

No

In Process

N/A

Yes

No

Yes

No

No

No

N/A

Upgrade required
including maintenance
and support. Approval
In process

No

Comprehensive
Wellness and Disease
Management System
required. Budget has
been requested by ICT
on behalf of Business
area. In progress

N/A

Business Intelligence.
(A high number
of requests from
all Business Units
relating to electronic
dashboards for
Executive decisionmaking.)

No

Budget process
underway

Acquiring of IVR
(Integrated Voice
Recording) System
for City Power to
enable interaction
with customers

Metering Services

Disconnections
and Reconnections
process integrated
with COJ SAP

Metering

Pre-billing tool to
limit revenue loss

Metering Services

Yes

No

No

No

It will be catered for by
strategic partners

Metering Service

Yes

No

No

No

It will be catered for by
strategic partners

All Departments

Yes (Forms part
of virtual office
business case)

No

Tablets, mobile
phones using secure
communication
accessing approved
applications

Post-billing tool to
limit revenue loss

Securing Mobile
Device Management
Systems

Business Case
Compiled

Demand Process Next Steps
(SCM process or internal if
capacity and skillset exists)

Computers, laptops,
tablets, mobile
phones (tools of the
trade)

All Departments

Yes (Forms part
of virtual office
business case)

Whitelisting

Engineering
Operations

Yes (Forms part
of virtual office
business case)

No

Electronic document
scanning

All Departments

Yes (Forms part
of virtual office
business case)

No

All Departments

Yes (Forms part
of virtual office
business case)

Upgrade PABX
systems to latest
technology

Online declaration
form requested
(22.07.2020)

HR, Stanley
Shabangu

No (Compile
business case)

No

No

No

No

No

No

Allowing field staff to
use approved apps
when their data has
been depleted

No

No

Electronic document
scanning for remote
workers

No

Upgrade PABX
systems to latest
technology to allow for
integration with Skype
for Business

No

Requirement of online
declaration forms with
relevant workflow
automation via mail to
responsible person.
Business case to be
compiled

Yes

No

No

Legend:
Yes

No

No

No

ICT has requested
budget on behalf of
metering

Milestone reached = MR
Milestone behind target (severe impact on overall project delivery) = BT-SI

Yes

CITY POWER
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No

Yes

Yes

N/A
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Review of process
before automation
takes place

Milestone behind target (moderate impact on overall project delivery) = BT-MI
Table 21: ICT Demand Management
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Remarks

A number of laptops
have been delivered
and issued due
to working-fromhome requirements.
However, more
laptops are required
for identified users.
Budget approval
process underway

Remarks

Status

Demand Process Next Steps
(SCM process or internal if
capacity and skillset exists)
CIC

Business Case
Compiled

Budget
Available

Business Area

SCM
Process
Started

Business Request

Business Area
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ICT Project Management

2.15.5

This section of the report provides information on the performance of ICT Projects Management:

2.15.5.1 Disaster Recovery Site

Signify performance management
report and interface to SAP

Handover to
ICT Operations

Post Go-Live
Support

The plan is to address the disaster recovery site using a hybrid strategy implemented in a phased approach. The hybrid strategy
will involve the following:
•
•

Upgrade of the existing DR site for hosting of critical applications.
Hosting of less critical applications in the externally hosted DR environment.

These will be done in a phased approach as follows:
CAPEX

Urgent (emergency) engagement to
address cybersecurity threats

CAPEX

Phase 1: Replace the infrastructure and facilities at the existing DR site. The infrastructure and facilities include: Generator, UPS
& Batteries, Air Conditioning, Monitoring System, Data Centre Network Switches and Fibre Connectivity Link between Reuven
Data Centre and Roodepoort DR.
Phase 2: Implement the VXRail hardware for private cloud environment providing the required computing resources for critical
applications.

OPEX

Outage and workforce management
system

CAPEX

SCADA system upgrade (Spectrum
V3 to Spectrum V7)

CAPEX

Cybersecurity

OPEX and
CAPEX

GIS upgrade

CAPEX

Phase 3: Acquire third-party externally hosted DR services to cater for less critical applications. Linked documents stored inside
the content server environment were not available because Microsoft content server has not been replicated at the DR site.
Content server infrastructure is also not set up at DR site.

2.15.5.2 Disaster Recovery Testing

The disaster recovery test exercise was conducted for the SAP platform on the 26th May 2020 and ran for 5 hours. It is important
to note that the following issues were experienced:
•
		
		
		
		
•
		
		
•
		
•
		

Virtual Office – work from home
Infrastructure: virtual private network
– FortiClient VPN rollout

OPEX

Skype for Business and migration to
Microsoft Teams

OPEX

Laptop replacement programme

Go-Live

Final Prep

UAT

Unit/Integ.
Testing

Realisation

OPEX

MDCx upgrade

MPLS connectivity project

The existing disaster recovery (DR) site is not adequate as its capacity is not sufficient to cater to all critical applications. A DR site
with adequate data centre facilities, computing, and storage to cater for all critical applications has to be put in place in order to
ensure business continuity in the event of a disaster.

ICT Build Milestones
Current Status
Detail Design

ICT
Plan
Preparation
and Planning

ICT Projects/Initiatives

Source of
Funds

ICT Business Continuity

CAPEX

Connectivity: APN/data cards

The SAP server and database server are mirrored in the disaster recovery environment in Roodepoort. An
instance of the SAP PI server has not been deployed in the disaster recovery environment. Without SAP
PI, the SAP production server will not have access to systems such as Vendor Portal, Forcelink or any of the other
required external systems. The dependant integration systems mentioned above are not replicated at DR due to the
current infrastructure challenges at the DR site.
Initiation of SAP workflow processes could not be tested due to the scanning application not being replicated at DR
site (Microsoft server). Due to infrastructure challenges at DR site in Roodepoort, we cannot replicate scanning 			
application.
Output device for SAP utilises a Microsoft print spooler which has not been replicated at DR site and therefore no
print jobs could be tested.
Linked documents stored inside the content server environment were not available because Microsoft content server
has not been replicated at DR site. Content server infrastructure is also not setup up at DR site.

2.15.5.3 Disaster Recovery Testing
HR automation/employee self-service

Additional storage will be installed to cater for growth and increasing demand as new applications are commissioned.

OPEX

The plan for backups is to consolidate the two backup solutions into one for ease of management. ICT is currently engaging
Dell EMC to come up with a solution. The recommendation is to implement a consolidated backup solution that will cater for all
applications including the ones taken over by ICT such as SCADA, GIS and OWMS.

Legend:
		
Milestone reached = MR
Milestone behind target (severe impact on overall project delivery) = BT-SI
Milestone behind target (moderate impact on overall project delivery) = BT-MI
Milestone(s) not yet commenced with

2.15.5.4 Virtual Office Status - Working from Home

The plan is to implement the additional infrastructure and technologies still required to enable employees to be able to perform all
functions and business processes without the need to come to the office.

Table 22: ICT Project Management
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Cybersecurity

ORGANISATION
GROUP
urity for virtua
ersec
l of
b
y
fice
C
Engineering

Energy and
Metering
Management

FR

Reliable and secure VPN connection for accessing City Power critical
Applications

Skype for Business

Skype for Business is used to communicate with individuals or groups of
users: Instant messaging (IM), Voice calls, Video calls, Online meetings

Microsoft Teams

Teams has been implemented, migration from Skype to Teams underway.

Computers (tools of trade)

Tools of trade are required to ensure remote support where applicable. All
590 users who were using Desktops have to be provided with Laptops. Old
laptops to be replaced.
Deployed: +-200
Still to be deployed: 496

enc
y

m

I
W

AP

Em
PL

/
4G

C
TI
VI
TY

f

LT
E

Ra

s/
Sk
yp
ai
e
l
IC
AT
IO
NS
Governance
and Assurance

dio

N
AP
E
NN
O
C

Human
Resources

Transformation

Strategy and
Business
Performance
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Period

APN - Remote access for
essential users

APN- Remote access for Essential users

Whitelisting - Digital workforce
application (Forcelink)

Allowing field staff to use approved apps when their data has been depleted

Electronic/Digital Signature

This application will allow important City Power files to be accessed and
processed (electronic/digital signature) with workflow, taking into account
legal compliance including allowance for policy information to be added to
the digital signature.

SCM Automation

Implementation of automation for the electronic tender process, Vendor
Portal, Acquisition Management (purchase requisitions generated from ERP
system, etc.), MFMA and PFMA Compliant Electronic Procurement System,
contracts performance (performance appraisals at agreed intervals),
compliance checking including demand management (departmental
procurement plans, etc.)

SAP Finance Automation

The current finance process: perform a payment run which is a list of
payments to multiple vendors. Each single vendor payment is linked to
thousands of invoices that in some cases are uploaded via the web portal
ICT must identify a tool that can combine multiple PDF invoices into one
file which will be used as the supporting document thus ensuring simpler
reviewing. (Thousands of invoices are printed in some cases). This will
significantly reduce the reliance on leasing hundreds of printers and
spending large amounts of the budget on paper, etc. There are a number of
other SAP processes that can be looked at.

Electronic Document Scanning

Electronic document scanning for remote workers

Commercial
Services

re
qu

ce
lin
k
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Finance

FI
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r
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S

a
Te

Corporate
Affairs

Virtual Private Network (VPN)

Project
Management
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n
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e
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OFFICE

ICT

Name of Group

D
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E
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e
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ds
et

Administrative
Services

Item/System/Application

Table 23: Working from Home Systems

2.15.5.5 Major Cybersecurity Incident

Since the cyberattack incident that City Power experienced last year, decisions were made to implement systems or tools to close
the gaps identified to prevent or minimise the risk of being attacked again. Below are some of the implemented tools used to
proactively discover the threats, risks, and vulnerabilities in City Power’s cyber environment.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

McAfee ENS
McAfee ATD and TIE DXL
McAfee DLP
McAfee Database Security
MDM Lockout Tool
CrowdStrike Falcon Endpoint Protection
Tenable Nessus Vulnerability Tool
RSA SIEM Tool
FortiClient VPN
Juniper SSL VPN
Perimeter Firewall
Internal Firewall
SOC
DNS Security
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Although ICT has implemented the abovementioned tools now, there are still outstanding systems/tools to be implemented to
complement which will heighten this security further. Below are the outstanding tools still to be implemented.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Two-factor Authentication (implemented but not activated)
Privileged Account Management (Implemented but not activated)
Network Security IPS - visibility and protection against network-based exploits being run
E-mail protection
Electronic Signature
Identity Management
Data centre firewall

All the tools mentioned above, once successfully implemented, will ensure that the ICT environment is more secure. These
measures will also make it easier for City Power employees to work from home or remotely from any internet-enabled location
while still maintaining the same levels of security as in the office.

ICT Key Achievements for FY 2019/20
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

ICT Key Focus Areas for FY 2020/21
•

With the tools that are implemented already, ICT has scanned the environment and a number of threats were discovered relating
to legacy applications that still need to be upgraded or replaced so as to support the latest secured technologies vis a vis SCADA,
GIS, SAP Content Server, old unsupported network switches, OSDB-Oil Sampling Application, and most of the secondary plant
tools. City Power has invested in SCADA, GIS and 72 Switches out of 256 Switches due to limited competing resources. While the
SCADA and GIS upgrade was scheduled to be completed in June 2020, due to COVID 19 pandemic these dates might change.
Item

Details

Unencrypted traffic using
insecure services, ciphers and
protocols

FTP
HTTP
SMBv1
OpenSSL/SSL
TLS 1.0 and 1.1
Outdated Ciphers

Outdated application software,
plug-ins, and add-ons

Trial software that does not get
updated or uninstalled

WinZip

Redundant application software
that ends up not being
updated

Mozilla Firefox

Unsupported Systems and
Application software

Windows XP/Windows Server 2003, Windows 7/Server 2008 R2, Unix
Microsoft SQL Server
Adobe Reader

SCADA unsupported OS and
applications

SCADA upgrade in progress

Unsupported Network Switches

Unsupported IOS

Malicious internet traffic and
software

Ransomware and malware

CITY POWER

•
•
•
•
•
•

Oracle Java
PHP
Apache
Wireshark/Ethereal
Missing Security Updates for Microsoft Office Products
Missing Security Updates for Microsoft .NET Framework
Microsoft Silverlight
Microsoft .NET Framework
Missing Security Updates/patches for Systems Software/Operating Systems
SAP DB/MaxDB Cons Program Arbitrary Command Execution
Microsoft IIS 6.0 Unsupported Version Detection
Microsoft Exchange Server
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Completed the GIS upgrade project
SCADA System Upgrade (Spectrum V3 to Spectrum V7)
Outage Management System (OWMS) (Forcelink) Upgrade
Virtual Office – work from home
Virtual Private Network – FortiClient VPN rollout
Skype for Business and Microsoft Teams
Laptop replacement programme
APN with data SIM cards
Quick restoration of systems and applications with minimal interruption after the cyberattack on 24 April 2020

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Connectivity:
• APN/Data Cards – rollout to the business
• Whitelisting (Outage Management System)
• Explore the ability for City Power users to call each other at no cost to the users
• Deployment of new network switches and wireless APN devices
Process automation
• Electronic document (workflow and the digital signature)
Implement cybersecurity treatment plan
Intensify security awareness campaign
Increase the digital workforce from 90% to 100% on engineering operation and metering services
Disaster recovery site for critical applications (dependent on budget availability)
Development and implementation of ICCP (Inter-control Centre Communication Protocol) interface between SCADA and
Forcelink Outage Management System
Establish RTU connectivity for 134 substations
Bi-directional interface to SAPPM to facilitate equipment update/customer technical master update to COJ
COJ master data update – development in progress
Real-time SAPPM/CityWorks interface for update of NSC information
Capability for field worker to verify correct meter installation premises
Confirmation that field worker has received work instructions
Expand the scope of CityWorks to handle the execution of all new builds
Expand the scope of the GIS/SAP PM integration to include additional fields

ICT Challenges and Mitigations
Challenges

Mitigation

FortiClient VPN disconnections reported

ICT to resolve disconnection issues and stabilise FortiClient.

Cyberattack incident was experienced and Pulse VPN
was identified as the entry point

Pulse VPN has since been decommissioned and only FortiClient
VPN is used.

Users are not logging their calls with the ICT Service
Desk and therefore calls are not tracked

ICT Business Management will continue sending emails to the
business to remind them to log calls through our service desk in
order for all calls to be tracked and reported on.

Cybersecurity risks

Increase cybersecurity awareness. Some of the security solutions
have been implemented; other outstanding solutions still to be
implemented.

Insufficient funding resources to implement automation
of processes

Engaging the business to make the budget available.

Inadequate DR site as a result of insufficient funding
resources to upgrade and implement the DR Site

Engaging the business to make the budget available.
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Challenges

Mitigation

2.16.3

No redundancy for core network switch

Engaging the business to make the budget available in order to
implement two new core network switches that will provide the
required redundancy.

This section of the report provides the Framework Status Summary, as it relates to the implementation thereof:

Old and ageing network with unsupported infrastructure

Engaging the business to make the budget available in order to
upgrade the ICT network to the latest supported infrastructure.

Compliance

Level 1
Developed

Level 2
Approved

Level 3
Communicated

Data Management Strategy

The organisation resolved to incorporate KPIs and measurements of data quality into the Company Balanced Scorecard to replace
the trust and auditability of data for stakeholders and decision-makers. City Power recently undertook a strategic review of data
management and established the vision of City Power being a world-class smart energy utility. This vision for the future requires
an updated data management strategy and governance framework that meets the City Power’s strategic mandate requirements,
complementing the City of Johannesburg’s overarching strategy. In addition, City Power’s governance of data needs to comply
with regulatory and statutory obligations, such as PAJA (Protection of Administrative Justice Act) and POPI (Protection of Personal
Information Act). Lastly, in order to transform into the digital utility of the future, City Power data management strategies must keep
pace with current global trends in the industry. At present, the overall data accuracy of City Power stands at 78%.

Business Plan Alignment

City Power’s data management mission is to institute, enforce and monitor compliance with data and process governance controls
following ISO 31000 to enable the business to be able to make decisions about the quality of data, realise value from it, minimise
cost and complexity, manage risk, and ensure compliance with the ever-growing legal, regulatory and other requirements. Our
vision is to establish an organisation-wide value-chain-driven culture. Instituting and reinforcing a positive culture surrounding data
governance and stewardship which positions data as a corporate asset will help enable a smart grid.
Data has become a critical asset in any business and City Power is no exception. While it has been a buzzword, the concept of
‘big data’ has truly started to gain traction and embed itself in City Power’s consciousness over the past year or so. A number
of initiatives have been implemented to manage the capturing, processing, storage and transmission of data in a more secure,
reliable and auditable manner. This capability has been implemented in selected areas of the business, though it is still to be fully
institutionalised.
The potential of data to revolutionise the way City Power functions at a strategic level behind the scenes is integral to our
continued success. As the importance of data gains traction City Power moves closer to enabling the organisation to become
driven by its data insight.

2.16.2

Policy Name
Data Quality Framework

2.16 Data Governance

2.16.1

Data Governance Performance

Assessment of Data Governance

Enterprise Support has implemented governance practice using a schedule of governance meetings including the Planning,
Projects and Operations meetings. These engagements have sought to ensure that there are data standards developed in various
areas of the business.

Business Process Management Framework
Stakeholder Management Framework
Legend:
		Not Started
		

In Progress

		

Completed

Table 24: Data Governance Framework Status Summary

Data & Process Demand Management
This section of the report provides information on the performance of Data Analytics Demand Management:

Business Request

Improve
completeness of
data and increase
accuracy to 70%
for Warehouse,
Engineering
Operations and
Metering Services

Build an enterprisewide, analytical
data model (Data
Architecture and Data
Quality)
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Internal
Capacity
Skills
Used and
External
Where
Applicable

Yes

Partially

Business Case
Compiled

Demand
Process
Status

Remarks

Completed

Baseline for the current data accuracy and
completeness has been determined using internal
resources. The data accuracy assessments have been
completed.

No

This will incorporate the building of an analytical model
that consists of a set of rules, policies, standards
and models that govern and define the type of data
collected and how data is used, managed, stored and
integrated within an organisation and its database
systems. Improving the quality of data ensures that
it is fit for intended uses in operations, planning and
decision-making. A number of dashboards have been
created to ensure business continuity and seamless
business performance management.

CITY POWER

93

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

Business Request

Develop visualisation
dashboards for each
business group

Model an enterprisewide value chain

Improve 75% of data
alignment enterprisewide

Internal
Capacity
Skills
Used and
External
Where
Applicable

Yes

Yes

Yes

Data Management Operations Status
Business Case
Compiled

Demand
Process
Status

Remarks

This section provides information on the performance of Data Management Operations:

Programme
Resources are utilised to develop dashboards as and
when requested.
A total of 137 dashboards have been requested of
which 69 have been automated and published; 17
are at the user acceptance testing stage; 19 are at
development stage; and 37 are still on the design
stage.
Analytical dashboards are able learn and predict
behavior thus allowing business performance
simulation and visualisation of trends which will further
enable the organisation to make intelligent business
decisions based on quality data. This will enable users
to have an easily accessible view of their performance
at a strategic, tactical and operational level. The level
and frequency of the dashboards created are as
follows:
•
Operational reports for Team Leaders,
Supervisors and Managers generated every 2
hours
•
Tactical and Strategic reports (Escalation reports)
for GMs generated every 4 hours
•
Strategic reports for GEs generated every 6 hours
•
High-level reports per Group as well as
Enterprise-wide generated at half-day and daily
intervals

Dashboard
specification
standard
completed and
to be signed off

Presently, level 0 and level 1 enterprise-wide value
chain models have been developed using internal
resources.
To model an enterprise-wide value chain that is in line
with the VUCA strategy
Modelled level 0 and level 1 – these will be reviewed
to align with the current business environment. This
will be presented to EXCO within the first quarter.

Yes

Internal resources are utilised for the alignment of SAP
PM, GIS and Forcelink - Network Infrastructure (Total
number of network and non-network). The GIS system
has been upgraded, and integration between GIS,
SAP PM and Forcelink has been completed to ensure
that geographic and network data is aligned across all
systems.

Yes
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Status

This has been incorporated
into the Enterprise Data
Classification Policy. This
policy is currently under
review, and will completed
by the end of first quarter.

Data Access Standards

Document Management
Standards

Current Status

Data & Process Management
Governance

Stakeholder Management
Framework

Completed and has been
signed off.

Data Quality Framework
Business Process Methodology
Value Chain and Process
Management

Data & Process Management Role

Current Status

Value Chain and Business
Process

Completed and
communicated to the
business.

‘AS IS’ baselines
Highest Level Company Value
Chain (Level 0)

First draft completed
and is currently being
communicated

Business Process Management

A total of 160 business
processes across the
organisation have been
mapped and signed off

Business Process Reengineering

Analytics & Reporting
Summary

Data & Process Management Role

Strategic KPI Dashboards
Tactical KPI Dashboards

DPM Data Analytics

Operational KPI Dashboard

Current Status
Automated

Design Stage

13

4

4

10

69

37

Table 26: Data Management Operations Status

Table 25: Data Analytics Demand Management
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2.17 Supply Chain Management and Black Economic Empowerment

2.17.3

Since 1 October 2005, City Power Johannesburg adopted Supply Chain Management systems in compliance with the provisions
of the MFMA and the National Treasury: Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations.

During the period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020, the following emergency procurements took place:

The entity has implemented the three–stage bidding processes with separate bid specification, bid evaluation and bid adjudication
committees. All awards in excess of R40 million, are referred to an independent probity audit at the discretion of the accounting
officer, to review the entire bid process’s validity for assurance. All other awards made through Regulation 32 & 36 of the MFMA
are continuously reported to the relevant governing structures for notification.

Emergency Procurement

No.

Vendor Name

Date

Amount

1.

Emergency Procurement

22/10/2020

R47,976,865 Cyberattack

2.

Emergency Procurement

29/06/2020

Implementation of services, security
R28,057,340 technologies and solutions to resolve a
cyberattack

Reasons for Emergency

Emergency procurement of all Covid-19
consumables in line with the declaration
R3,973,300
of a national disaster and subsequent
guidelines.

No unsolicited bids were approved by the Entity during this period.

2.17.1
			

Accreditation of Black Economic Empowerment in Respect to Both the Supplier and 		
Contractor

From 1 July 2016, National Treasury is responsible for accreditation of suppliers through its Central Supplier Database where
all suppliers who want to do business with government entities can register their businesses. Suppliers and contractors are still
required to submit BEE certificates to City Power which will show their contribution levels, thus enabling reporting on BEE spend.

2.17.2

The year-to-date spend on 51% Black-Owned companies amounted to R3.5 billion which is 73.81% of the total procurement
spend and is above the set target of 40%.
Procurement spend on 30% Black-Women-Owned companies amounted to R1.9 billion which equates to 40.63% of the total
procurement spend and is above the set target of 12%.
With regard to the status of the implementation of the COJ Integrated Supply Chain Management Policy, City Power’s Supply
Chain Management Policy is aligned with this.
Below is the table that indicates the expenditure and BEE representations for the Entity during the financial year 2019/20.

Total spend
Procurement spend from
suppliers that are 51%
black-owned
% Spend
Target
Procurement spend from
suppliers that are 30%
black-women-owned
% Spend
Target

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

R1,913,136,044
R1,233,906,944

R1,117,005,064
R920,668,147

Emergency Procurement

15/04/2020

Table 28: Emergency Procurement

2.17.4

Regulation 32 and 36 awards

During the period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020, no bids were awarded in terms of regulation 32.

BEE Spend in Respect of Suppliers and Contractors

Description

3.

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

R918,392,445

R919,360,176

R718,787,288

R719,693,516

YTD - Actual

2.17.5

Contract Period Extensions and Variations

During the period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020, seven (7) contracts were extended and from the extended contracts two (2)
variations of contract amounts were approved. Most extensions related to substation contracts that were awarded in previous
years which will not be completed within the contractual periods and did not require additional funding.
No.

Procurement Type

Date

1.

Exceptional Case

30/09/2019

Upgrade of Mulbarton Substation
Contract Extension

n/a

2.

Exceptional Case

30/09/2019

Upgrade of Mondeor Substation
Contract Extension

n/a

3.

Exceptional Case

30/09/2019

Replacement of 11kV Feeder Board at Waterval switching
station
Contract Extension

n/a

4.

Exceptional Case

16/04/2020

Contract extension for Medical Aid Brokerage/Intermediary
service to employees with Medical issues.

n/a

5.

Exceptional Case

29/06/2020

Contract extension for Replacement of 11kV Feederboard
at Waterval Switching Station: variation orders, CPA and
contingencies

6.

Exceptional Case

29/06/2020

Contract extension for electrification of priority integrated
housing development (Lufhereng,South Hills & Fleurhof).

7.

Exceptional Case

29/06/2020

Contract extension for disconnection and reconnection of nonpaying customers and meter audits – 25% of initial contract.

R4,867,893,729
R3,593,055,896

64.50%

84.42%

78.27%

78.28%

73.81%

40%

40%

40%

40%

40%

R574,882,590

R521,355,142

R453,685,596

R428,009,700

R1,977,933,028

30.05%

46.67%

49.40%

46.56%

40.63%

12%

12%

12%

12%

12%

Reasons for Emergency

Table 29: Extensions and Variations

Table 27: Data Management Operations Status
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Amount

R10,879,000
n/a
R21,000,000

2.17.6

Deviations from the SCM Policy and Procedure Manual

During the period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 ten (10) deviations were approved by the Bid Adjudication Committee.
No.

Procurement Type

1.

Exceptional Case

18/08/2019

Repairs and calibration contract
Contracting directly with sub-contractors

R732,000

2.

Exceptional Case

19/08/2019

Removal of medical waste
Request to increase purchase order quantity

R676,000

3.

Exceptional Case

08/10/2019

National key point security

R2,131,000

4.

Exceptional Case

08/10/2019

Physical security services

R 39,000,000

5.

Exceptional Case

30/10/2019

External witnesses

6.

Ratification of minor
breach

20/03/2020

Suspension of public adjudication and public sessions due to
Covid-19

7.

Urgent Procurement

17/02/2020

Hiring chairs and tables for testing of electricians - labour
contract (not utilised).

8.

Exceptional case

31/03/2020

Physical security services

R19,783,000

9.

Exceptional Case

19/06/2020

Supply and delivery of LV & MV cable accessories contract.

R11 800,000

02/04/2020

Procurement of miniature substations and ring main units
(critical materials)

10.

Exceptional Case

Date

Description

No.

Supplier Name

13.

Jolenhla Consulting

Amount

R319,000

TOTAL

n/a
R116,000

14.

R145,405,000
R219,962,000

Table 30: Approved Deviations

2.17.7

Irregular Expenditure

No.

Supplier Name

Detail

1.

Various Labour Contracts
(Infinite Blue Trading CC)

Maintenance of network,
streetlights and service
connections

2.

Zeda Pty Ltd

3.

Motivation

KLZ & TTM JV R300,178.42
KUBAHKI CONTRACTORS
CC R654,419.45
D and S Construction and
Projects R592,938,.72
IMBAWULA TECHNICAL
SERVICES R233,176.20
LUFUNO KONE
ELECTRICAL R485,620.13
Leoka Investments CC
R548,291.57
Mongmabu Investments t/a
Ngwato Ele R511,387.64
Lefhumo lwa Barema
Trading Enterprises
Metering Services
R415,327.57 Sphandile
Trading Enterprise CC
R573,431.01
Mathoho Electrical &
Projects R436,273.71 Yande
Engineering and Projects
R413,101.53
Bvelela Engineering CC
R539,250.19
Tshehlane Electrical
R800,635.13 Rivisi
Electrical Contractors CC
R612,739.57

Amount

Supply and repair of ICT hardware
and accessories

R3,371,215

Removal of illegal connections and
meter audit

R7,116,771

Amount

15.

Jolenhla Consulting

Maintenance of DC systems

The court declared the contract null
and void and ordered City Power to
re-evaluate and revert back to court
within 90 days

R845,162,240

16.

Nothani Letsema JV

Supply, installation and
commissioning of optic fibre for
telecommunications between
substations and depots

R2,499,132

Fleet contract

Contract expired, subsequently
extended by COJ to end May 2020

R96,491,857

Six Sense

Sub-contractor used for
disciplinary process

Sub-contractor used to gather
evidence and brought back to
finalise the disciplinary case after
contract expired

Extension of contract periods done
after expiry date

R2,583,390

4.

Grant Thornton

Strategic partner used in
disciplinary cases

Strategic partner to be brought back
to finalise disciplinary case after
contract expired

R55,890,080

5.

Ark Tech Engineering
Solutions

Appointment of a supplier who did
not meet mandatory requirements

R18,075,738

6.

Machite Engineering

Irregular expenditure not disclosed
(2180GS)

R2,180,524

7.

Pulsemed

Appointment of a supplier who did
not meet mandatory requirements

R2,161,577

8.

MTN

Extension of current contract

R1,954,689

9.

Vodacom

Extension of current contract

R645,570

10.

Linda Integrated Security

Extension of current contract

R5,236,265

11.

Big O Trading 528

False declaration

R1,410,750

12.

Easypay, Contour
Technology & Cigicell

Worked without a contract

CITY POWER
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R193,200

R84,076

17.

Machite Engineering CC
R1,414,393.11 Mpande
Business Enterprise CC
R1,053,658.79 F & J
Electrical R115,337.89

R525,920

18.

Brunel/NJR JV

Turnkey solutions for electrification
projects

19.

Cigicell (PTY) LTD

Third-party vending (2282S)

R8,514,994

20.

Various

Covid-19

R2 527 099

21.

Linda R15,708.796.20
Nduma R20,937,538.26
Mafoko R16,177,390.24
GNG
R7,814,913.84

Contract extended

TOTAL

R60,638,639
R1,132,415,925

Table 31: Irregular Expenditure

R15,152,200
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2.17.8

Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

No.

Supplier Name

1.

SARS

2.

Various Suppliers

Detail

Motivation

Amount

Interest payable to SARS

Interest payable as a result of court
case

R14,886

Interest on late payments

Interest payable on invoices that were
received late

In the last quarter of the financial year, City Power furthermore submitted a “Special Covid-19” deviation to council. Changes
requested by City Power were due to the impact of Covid-19 and the national lockdown. 22 of the 64 measured KPIs were
submitted for deviation and 21 deviated KPIs were approved by council.
The 21 KPIs approved in the Special Covid-19 Deviation are:

3.1 Company Performance

KPIs target decrease:
1. Number of substations under construction
2. Number of smart meter rollouts completed
3. Percentage resolution of logged walk-in queries per month
4. Percentage read all meters as per COJ download file and accurately read meters for billing by COJ (98% accurate
		 automated meter reading for LPU)
5. Percentage Read all meters as per COJ download file and accurately read meters for billing by COJ (95% accurate
		 overall meter reading for domestic)
6. Percentage collection level
7. Percentage gross margin
8. Percentage compliance with relevant legislation and policy prescripts
9. Percentage of the strategic risks’ management action plans implemented
10. Percentage net surplus
11. Percentage liquidity management
12. Asset utilisation efficiency
13. Business Sustainability Index
14. Percentage reduction in outages per annum

3.1.1 Financial Year 2019/20 Background

•

In the beginning of the financial year 2019/20, City Power had 68 KPIs in the approved Business Plan. City Power submitted a
Midterm Deviation for 9 measured KPIs and only 6 of the KPIs were approved by Council and the remaining 3 KPIs which form
part of the Service Level Standard KPIs were not approved.

KPIs target increase:
15. Percentage non-technical losses

•

KPIs removed from Scorecard:
16. Percentage resolution of logged illegal connection queries per month- single properties
17. Percentage resolution of logged illegal connections queries per month- multiple properties
18. Percentage customer satisfaction index
19. Percentage compliance to SHERQ framework
20. Average number of days taken to resolve disciplinary cases (90 days)
21. Average number of days taken to fill critical vacancies

TOTAL

R600
R15,486

Table 32: Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

3.

SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE

In this section the following legend is utilised:
Achieved
Not Achieved
KPI Not Measured

•

Following the approval of the Midterm Deviation, City Power had a total of 64 measured KPIs for the financial year 2019/2020.
The following KPIs were deviated:
The 6 KPIs approved in the Midterm Deviation are:
•

KPIs removed from Scorecard:
1. Percentage of net asset value spend on repairs and maintenance
2. Percentage of technology-enabled energy systems
3. Ratio maintenance mix

•

KPIs moved to group level:
4. Leadership effectiveness index
5. Percentage of employees trained in line with the Workplace Skills Plan, organisational focus and budget

•

KPIs added to Scorecard:
6. Gross margin

3.1.2 Highlights and Achievements
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Achievement of 66.67% of performance objectives
Exceeded adherence to NRS048 (96.89% against a target of 95%)
Exceeded public lighting targets (2,697 against a target of 1,200 public lights installed within budget)
Exceeded target for electrification of informal settlements (3,688 against a target of 2,000)
Revenue collection (97.09% against a target of 88%)
Finalisation of the job architecture process
Beneficiaries of job opportunities (802 against a target of 800)
Procurement spent from companies that are 51% black-owned exceeded the target (73.81% against target of 45%)
Procurement spent from companies that are 30% black-women-owned exceeded the target (40.63% against target of 12%)

The 3 KPIs not approved in the Midterm Deviation are:

3.1.3 Key Challenges

•

Challenges with achieving the following targets:

KPIs removed from Scorecard:
1. Average days taken for prepaid conversion on smart meter
2. Reputation index

•

KPI name change:
3. Percentage read all meters as per COJ download file and accurately read meters for billing by COJ (95% accurate
		 overall meter reading for domestic)
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•
•
•
•

Non-technical losses (19.42% against a target of 17%)
Resolution of audit findings (64.34% against a target of 95%)
Overdraft of R3.7 billion
Vacancy rate (attained 14.06% against a target of 12%)

CITY POWER

101

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

3.1.4 Performance Trend Analysis

3.1.5 Company Performance

The table and graph below depict a comparison of the achieved performance between four different financial years. City Power
has moved from 30 measured KPIs in the 2016/17 financial year to a total of 58 measured KPIs in the financial year under review.
Of the 58 KPIs, 57 were measured in FY2019/20. The KPI that is not measured is Employees Satisfaction Index as, due to
Covid-19, the survey could not be conducted.

3.1.5.1

The 2018/19 financial year shows the highest achieved performance of 74.19%, with the financial year under review coming in at
second with 66.67% achieved performance, reflecting a decrease of 7.52% in performance. The 2016/17 financial year was the
lowest performing financial year, ending off with 36.67% achieved performance.
Number of KPIs Achieved: Comparison of Different Financial Years
Reporting
Term

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

Annual

FY2016/17
(30 KPIs)

17

14

13

11

11

FY2017/18
(33 KPIs)

12

13

20

22

22

FY2018/19
(31 KPIs)

23

22

19

24

24

FY2019/20
(58 KPIs)

31 (53 measured
KPIs)

31 (52 measured
KPIs)

29 (54 measured
KPIs)

35 (55 measured
KPIs)

38 (57 measured
KPIs)

Table 33: KPIs Achieved

% Performance Achieved
77.42

66.67

36.67

65.45
Quarter 4

53.70
Quarter 3
43.33

61.29
60.61

57.69
Quarter 2

39.39

70.97

0.00

FY19/20
FY18/19
FY17/18
FY16/17

(58 KPIs)
(31 KPIs)
(33 KPIs)
(30 KPIs)

36.36
10.00

20.00

30.00

Quarter 1
58.49
74.19
36.36
56.67

40.00

Quarter 2
57.69
70.97
39.39
46.67

Assessment

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

Annual

Target Achieved

31

30

29

36

38

Target Not Achieved

22

22

25

19

19

KPI Not Measured

5

6

4

3

1

Total No. of KPIs

58

58

58

58

58

Total No. of KPIs
measured

53

52

54

55

57

46.67

Table 34: Overall Company Performance

58.49
Quarter 1

Performance Status

77.42

66,67

36.67

1. Percentage spent on operating budget against approved operating budget
2. Percentage of valid invoices paid within 30 days of invoice date
3. Percentage of predetermined objectives targets achieved
4. Percentage resolution of Internal Audit findings
5. Percentage resolution of Auditor-General findings
6. Percentage spent on repairs and maintenance to property, plant and equipment
7. Average days taken for prepaid conversion on smart meter
8. Percentage read all meters (98% accurate automated meter reading for LPU)
9. Percentage read all meters (95% accurate overall meter reading for domestic)
10. Percentage restoration of power supply: 90% within 7.5 hours
11. Percentage Restoration of power supply: 98% within 24 hours
12. Percentage achievement of Service Level Standards (SLS)
13. Percentage of non-technical losses
14. Percentage gross margin
15. Percentage surplus margin
16. Asset utilisation efficiency
17. Tons CO2 offset in greenhouse gas emissions
18. Percentage vacancy rate
19. Increased revenue from sales
City Power Overall Performance FY 2019/20

66.67
Annual

Performance Against Company Scorecard

City Power achieved an overall performance of 66.67% at the end of the 2019/20 financial year. A total of 38 of the 55 measured
KPIs have been achieved with the remaining 19 considered ‘under-performing’. Of the 58 KPIs, 57 were measured in FY2019/20.
The KPI that is not measured is Employees Satisfaction Index as, due to Covid-19, the survey could not be conducted. The main
contributors to this under-performance are the Financial and Service Delivery KPIs, namely:

74.19

56.67
50.00
Quarter 3
53.70
61.29
60.61
43.33

60.00

70.00
Quarter 4
65.45
77.42
66.67
36.67

80.00

90.00
Annual
66.67
77.42
66.67
36.67

Graph
KPIPercentage
Percentage Performance
Performance Achieved
Graph
10:10:
KPI
Achieved
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The graph below shows City Power’s performance summary and trend analysis for all four quarters of the 2019/20 financial year:

The graph below shows City Power’s Service Level Standards performance summary, percentage achieved and trend analysis
for all four quarters of FY2019/20.

SLS FY2019/20 Performance

Overall FY2019/20 Performance
80.00

70.00

70.00

60.00

60.00

50.00

50.00

40.00

40.00

30.00

30.00

20.00

20.00

10.00
0.00

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

Annual

Target Achieved

58.49

57.69

53.70

65.45

66.67

Target Not Achieved

41.51

42.31

46.30

34.55

33.33

10.00
0.00

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

Annual

Target Achieved

64.71

64.71

58.82

70.59

70.59

Target Not Achieved

35.29

35.29

41.18

29.41

29.41

Graph 11: Overall Company Performance

3.1.5.2

Performance Against Service Level Standards

Graph 12: Overall SLS Performance

City Power achieved 70.59% of its Service Level Standards at the end of the financial year. 12 of the 17 measured SLS KPIs were
achieved with 5 ‘under-performing’, namely:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Average days taken for prepaid conversion on smart meter
Percentage read all meters (98% accurate automated meter reading for LPU)
Percentage read all meters (95% accurate overall meter reading for domestic)
Percentage restoration of power supply: 90% within 7.5 hours
Percentage restoration of power supply: 98% within 24 hours

The table below shows City Power’s Service Level Standards summary performance and trend analysis for all four quarters of the
2019/20 financial year:
City Power Service Level Standards Performance FY 2019/20
Performance Status

Assessment

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

Annual

Target Achieved

11

11

10

12

12

Target Not Achieved

6

6

7

5

5

KPI Not Measured

0

0

0

0

0

Total No. of KPIs

17

17

17

17

17

Total No. of KPIs
measured

17

17

17

17

17

Table 35: Overall SLS Performance
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Category

Number of substations under
construction
Kilometers of electricity cables
installed

No. 12
No. 13

Category

KPI
Number of units (structures) in
informal settlements with access
to electricity
Average days taken for prepaid
conversion on smart meter
Percentage resolution on logged
calls of damaged electricity
meters
Percentage resolution of logged
walk-in queries per month
Percentage read all meters as per
COJ download file and accurately
read meters for billing by COJ
(98% accurate automated meter
reading for LPU)
Percentage read all meters as per
COJ download file and accurately
read meters for billing by COJ
(95% accurate overall meter
reading for domestic)
Communication of service
interruption: Planned 7 days
before interruption
Communication of service
interruption: Unplanned:
Immediately
75% Reputation Index
Average hours to restore loss of
logged electricity supply to traffic
signals
Average time taken to repair
logged streetlight queries
(motorways)
Average time taken to repair
logged streetlight queries
(secondary roads, main arterials
and area lighting)
Percentage restoration of power
supply for planned interruption

KPI No.
No. 14

No. 15
No. 16

No. 17
No. 18

No. 19

No. 20

No. 21

No. 22
No. 23

No. 24

No. 25

No. 26

Reporting Period: Annual Report (Detailed Performance)

Number of substations upgraded/
developed

No. 11
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Annual

Annual

Hours

Days

Days

Hours

Annual

Annual

Index

Hours

Days

%

%

%

%

Days

No

Measure

Km

No

No

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Measure

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Period

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Percentage provision of Free Basic Annual
Electricity (FBE) as per ESP
beneficiary list)

Annual

Annual

No. 10

Percentage resolution of Internal
Audit findings

No. 6

Annual

Percentage spent on capital
budget against approved budget

Percentage of the strategic risks’
management action plans
implemented

No. 5

Annual

No. 9

Percentage of predetermined
objectives achieved

No. 4

Annual

Percentage spent on repairs and
maintenance to property, plant
and equipment

Percentage compliance with
relevant legislation and policy
prescripts

No. 3

Annual

No. 8

Percentage of valid invoices paid
within 30 days of invoice date

No. 2

Annual

Percentage resolution of AuditorGeneral findings

Percentage spent on operating
budget against approved
operating budget

No. 1

Period

No. 7

KPI

KPI No.

Reporting Period: Annual Report (Detailed Performance)

<8.00

<8.00

<5.00

<18.00

75.00

100.00

100.00

85.00

90.00

85.00

95.00

7.00

2000.00

Target

40.00

9.00

2.00

100.00

95.00

6.81

95.00

95.00

75.00

85.00

90.00

100.00

95.00

Target

The strategic objectives (short, medium and long term) viewed from the performance Scorecard are outlined as follows:

3.1.6 Detailed Company Performance

*Institutional Indicator
*National
Treasury

Service Level Standards

106
*Upgrading Informal
Settlements
Programmed
(UISP)

CITY POWER

6.70

5.20

2.30

9.20

159.00

100.00

100.00

52.00

90.00

95.45

100.00

9.00

3688.00

Actual
Performance

132.56

10.00

2.00

100.00

98.00

6.33

66.00

78.00

79.00

67.27

96.30

99.83

93.00

Actual
Performance

1.30

2.80

2.70

8.80

-84.00

0.00

0.00

33.00

0.00

-10.45

-5.00

-2.00

-1688.00

Performance
Variance

-92.56

-1.00

0.00

0.00

-3.00

0.48

29.00

17.00

-4.00

14.09

-6.30

0.17

2.00

Performance
Variance

Performance
Assessment

Performance
Assessment
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Category

90% Restoration of power supply
after forced interruption within 7.5
hours
98% Restoration of power supply
after forced interruption within 24
hours
100% Restoration of power supply
after forced interruption within 7
days
Unqualified audit
Percentage achievement of
Service Level Standards (SLS)
Percentage achievement of
Business Sustainability Index
Percentage reduction in outages
per annum
Percentage non-technical losses
Increased revenue from sales
Percentage collection level
Maturing security risk
management: enterprise support
Percentage gross margin
Percentage net surplus margin
Percentage liquidity management
Asset utilisation efficiency
Number of SMMEs supported
Percentage spent on refurbishment Annual
in line with target
Number of smart meter rollouts

No. 29

No. 30

No. 31

No. 32
No. 33
No. 34
No. 35
No. 36
No. 37
No. 38
No. 39
No. 40
No. 41
No. 42
No. 43
No. 44
No. 45
No. 46

Number of public lights installed
Percentage compliance of
monthly reporting into Capital
Management System (iRIS)
Percentage compliance to
NRS048 (MV)
Number of expanded programmed
work opportunities (EPWP work
opportunity created)
Tons CO2 offset in greenhouse gas
emissions
Employee satisfaction index
(mean)
Percentage vacancy rate
Employment equity ratios (EE)
Employment equity ratios (GE)
Employment equity ratios (PWD)
Percentage skills development
spend (learning expenditure) as a
percentage of payroll

Percentage of employees receiving Annual
performance coaching as per the
performance management policy

No. 47
No. 48

No. 49
No. 50

No. 51
No. 52
No. 53
No. 54
No. 55
No. 56
No. 57

No. 58

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

KPI

Period

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

KPI No.

Table 36: Detailed KPI Performance

Category

Reporting Period: Annual Report (Detailed Performance)

60% Restoration of power supply
after logged forced interruption
within 3.5 hours

No. 28

Annual

30% Restoration of power supply
after logged forced interruption
within 1.5 hours

No. 27

Period

KPI

KPI No.

Reporting Period: Annual Report (Detailed Performance)

*Company Scorecard

%

%

%

%

%

%

Mean

Tons

No

%

%

No

Measure

No

%

No

Ratio

%

%

%

Index

%

R'000

%

%

%

%

Audit report

%

%

%

%

%

Measure

100.00

1.00

2.00

29.00

85.00

12.00

3.38

41355.50

800.00

95.00

100.00

1200.00

Target

6800.00

18.00

100.00

0.90

-100.00

2.00

28.52

1.50

88.00

16,171,871

17.00

5.00

60.00

80.00

0.00

100.00

98.00

90.00

60.00

30.00

Target

100.00

1.20

3.34

32.02

92.84

14.06

0.00

33163.40

802.00

96.89

100.00

2697.00

Actual
Performance

6838.00

29.00

247.00

0.83

--78.00

0.42

23.56

2.52

97.09

15,890,413

19.42

7.82

75.00

70.59

0.00

100.00

96.70

85.40

65.80

33.70

Actual
Performance

0.00

-0.20

-1.34

-3.02

-7.84

-2.06

3.38

8192.10

-2.00

-1.89

0.00

-1497.00

Performance
Variance

-38.00

-11.00

-147.00

0.07

-22.00

1.58

4.96

-1.02

-9.09

-281,458

-2.42

-2.82

-15.00

9.41

0.00

0.00

1.30

4.60

-5.80

-3.70

Performance
Variance

Performance
Assessment

Performance
Assessment

3.2 Core Business: Metering Services

The below table demonstrates the improvement plan for the manual reading of domestic meters:

3.2.1 Overall Meter Reading Performance
Performance Details

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

160,995

158,238

156,173

156,173

Read

151,169

146,462

142,960

136,393

136,393

14,828

14,533

15,278

19,780

19,780

91.07%

90.97%

90.34%

87.33%

87.33%

Performance has decreased by 3.64% when comparing the current financial year (87.33%) with the previous financial year
(90.97%). Exceptions tabled below are indicating the contribution to estimations for each exception throughout the 2019/20
financial year. Three exceptions with high contributions to estimated meters are: inaccessible meters, offline meters and system
updates. The Covid-19 lockdown restrictions in level 5 and 4 also affected the performance.
Bypassed
Meters

Inaccessible
Meters

Kiosk
Locked

Faulty
Meters

Offline
Meters

YTD Total
Unread
Meters

System
Updates

Quarter 1

118

517

3,170

315

719

7,814

2,175

14,828

Quarter 2

52

504

3,265

214

531

7,612

2,355

14,533

Quarter 3

17

301

1,866

97

375

10,266

2,356

15,278

Quarter 4

17

389

3,702

219

476

13,067

1,910

19,780

0.09%

1.97%

18.72%

1.11%

2.41%

66.06%

9.66%

100%

Contribution to
Estimations

Quarter 4

YTD

13,723

13,723

13,723

13,723

156,173

8,919

10,292

11,664

12,350

136,393

65%

75%

85%

90%

19,780

Performance

Table 40: Improvement Plan for the Domestic Manual Read

The below table demonstrates the improvement plan for the Domestic AMI:

Table 37: Meter Reading Performance

Incorrect
Addresses

Quarter 3

Read

165,997

% Performance

Quarter 2

Download

YTD

Download
Not Read

Quarter 1

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

YTD

103,163

103,163

103,163

103,163

156,173

98,004

98,004

98,004

98,004

136,393

95%

95%

95%

95%

19,780

Download
Read
Performance

Table 41: Improvement Plan for the Domestic AMI

The below table demonstrates the improvement plan for the LPU AMR:
Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

YTD

Download

38,805

38,805

38,805

38,805

156,173

Read

36,088

36,864

37,640

38,028

136,393

93%

95%

97%

98%

19,780

Performance

Table 38: Estimated Meters

The smart meter rollout project continues to address the bypassed, inaccessible and faulty meters, though the main priority is
system updates. The offline meters are monitored and tracked in real-time and contractor performance is being monitored daily
as the meters are read.

Table 42: Improvement Plan for the LPU AMR

3.2.3 AG Risk
The table below shows the unread meters outside the by-law. The 2025 baseline for quarter 3 was the balance brought forward
from the previous financial year.

3.2.2 Meter Read Performance per Rate Category
Meter
Reading
per
Category

Q1
Baseline

LPU AMR

39,061

98%

92.34%

39,003

98%

94.48%

38,960

98%

95.43%

38,818

98%

90.00%

Estimates >3<12
Months

Domestic
Manual

27,995

95%

74.95%

21,379

95%

67.63%

15,535

95%

67.74%

13,960

95%

52.00%

Estimates>12 months

Domestic
AMI

98,789

95.32%

100,481

94.73%

103,620

92.21%

103,284

Target

95%

Q1
Actual

Q2
Baseline

Q2
Actual

Target

95%

Q3
Baseline

Target

95%

Q3
Actual

Q4
Baseline

Target

95%

Q4
Actual

Period Unread

Total AG Risk

FY 2017/18

FY 2018/19

FY 2019/20

Qtr. 1

Qtr. 2

Qtr. 3

Qtr. 4

Qtr. 1

Qtr. 2

Qtr. 3

Qtr. 4

8,015

6,281

11,926

10,765

N/A

N/A

8,035

5,706

2,503

3,685

2,917

3,086

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

10,518

9,966

14,843

13,851

N/A

N/A

8,035

2,024

Qtr. 1

Qtr. 2

Qtr. 3

Qtr. 4

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

2,025

1,212

N/A

N/A

2,025

1,212

91.00%
Table 43: Meter Readings Outside By-Law

Table 39: Meter Reading Performance per Category

The above table demonstrates meter reading performance per category. The baseline is a moving target throughout the financial
year. The LPU AMR and Domestic AMI target has been achieved as per the Covid-19 performance forecast.
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3.2.4 Time-of-Use (TOU) and Key Customer Performance
Metering Services has a strategy to ensure that the ToU and key customers always read 98% with a stretch target of 100%. The
table below shows that the strategy is working. All the meters that are being measured are read 100%. The 2 accounts not read
were due to the following reasons:
•
•

Park Road Trading 7 (PTY) LTD (55379236) – Vandalised Meter
Mobile Telephone Network (220066021) – Vandalised Meter

These sites will be normalised by the next billing cycle.

Service charges excluding new connections for 2019/20 are R268 million less than the annual budget of R16.17 billion. This was
due to improved revenue realised from revenue initiatives. Sadly, non-technical losses are slightly higher than the target, due to
certain of the revenue initiatives not being fully realised. As part of the implementation of these revenue initiatives, lessons were
learnt that will be used as part of day-to-day business.
Below are the lessons learnt:

Time-of-Use Customers
Total Number of
Meters

Read

Not Read

% Read

Quarter 1

82

82

0

100%

Quarter 2

80

77

3

96%

Quarter 3

84

79

5

94%

Quarter 4

91

90

1

99%

YTD - June 2020

91

90

1

99%

Month

The above table reflects the performance of the total losses. The performance is a combination of both the technical losses — due
to network configuration and heat disbursement during the transmission of electricity — and non-technical losses — due to the
inefficiencies within the revenue management value chain. Technical losses are budgeted at 9.00%, whereas the non-technical
losses are budgeted at 17.00%.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Community resistance in some of the targeted areas for the prepaid project.
Ongoing monthly reconciliation of unmatched stands will be done to improve recovery rate.
Focus and priority to be given to the installation audit initiative to ensure improved recovery.
Service connection gaps were few in number due to the delay in updating the status of the installation.
Billing exceptions were excessive billing invoices which were stopped from billing as part of the billing process.
The revenue enhancement initiatives were based on the under-billing gap. The pre- and post-billing processes are continuing.
The initiatives will continue in the new financial year so as to improve the revenue position and reduce the non-technical
losses.

Revenue Performance (R’000)
Key Account Customers
Total Number of
Meters

Read

Not Read

% Read

Quarter 1

125

124

1

99%

Quarter 2

114

112

2

98%

Quarter 3

122

115

7

94%

Quarter 4

116

115

1

99%

YTD - June 2020

116

115

1

99%

Grand Total

207

205

2

99%

Month

Table 44: Time-of-Use and Key Customers

3.2.5 Revenue Performance

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

YTD

Budget

R4,871,603

R3,984,885

R3,562,621

R3,752,762

R16,171,871

Actual

R4,220,867

R3,759,129

R3,837,073

R4,073,344

R15,890,413

-R650,736

-R225,756

R274,452

R320,582

-R281,458

Description

Variance
Table 46: Revenue Performance

The table above indicates that we are R268 million below budget. The non-technical losses remain higher than budget due to
inefficiencies in the revenue management value chain. The revenue initiatives in place continue to improve the non-technical
losses.
Collection Improvement Initiatives

Total losses - These figures will change after the accrual process is completed.
Budgeted Total Losses %

Actual Total Losses %

Variance from Budget %

Quarter 1

28.46%

32.72%

-4.26%

Quarter 2

27.53%

26.25%

1.28%

Quarter 3

27.04%

23.03%

4.01%

Quarter 4

20.97%

30.05%

-9.08%

TOTAL (YTD)

26.00%

28.42%

-2.42%

As part of collection improvement, accounts which had debt above 90 days on the age analysis of R3.85 billion were prioritised.
The total collection for this initiative during this period is R1.69bn. The collection initiative started in January 2020 and the amount
collected was for the period of 6 months.

Table 45: Total Losses
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The table below shows information regarding the different payment method:

Description

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Although other accounts had not paid by the end of June 2019, these initiatives revealed legal matters and other queries which
allowed the resolution process to be started.

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

YTD - Actual

Budget-Billing

R4,270,554

R3,889,693

R3,472,776

R2,564,837

R14,197,861

Actual-Billing

R3,740,684

R3,721,412

R3,651,616

R3,539,872

R14,653,585

Collection

R3,756,162

R3,575,004

R3,453,827

R2,999,637

R13,784,631

City Power Collection Budget Billing %

87.95%

91.91%

99.45%

116.95%

97.09%

City Power Collection Actual Billing %

100.41%

96.07%

94.58%

84.74%

94.07%

30.05%

46.67%

49.40%

46.56%

40.63%

12%

12%

12%

12%

12%

No. of
Accounts

<90 days
(R’000)

>90 days
(R’000)

Collection

Potential as
Collection
(R’000)

10,422

R221,383

R922,842

50%

R461,421

104

R16,168

R23,913

50%

R11,956

7,003

R20,936

R365,871

Legal Intention

5

R36,646

R12,592

50%

% Spend
Target

City Power continues to work together with the City of Johannesburg team to resolve these issues. A total amount of R13.1
billion has been collected year-to-date. This performance is against the budget billing of R14.5 billion which brings the overall
performance to 90.50% as at June 2019.

3.3

3.3.1 Highlights
•
•

City Power has achieved 96.90% compliance to the Quality of Supply (NRS048) compared to target of 95%.
City Power installed 2,697 against a target of 1,200 public lights installed while within budget. This achievement is a highlight
because it aligns with the sustainable human settlement priority of the shareholder. In addition to this, the LED lighting
projects — replacement with energy-saving globes — have been executed in the Northern and Southern areas. The reduced
energy consumption has resulted in energy savings of around 50% when compared to conventional streetlights. This target
has been exceeded for two main reasons:

Table 47: Overall Collection Progress

Customer Category
Business Accounts
Government Account
Inactive Meters
Key Customer
Large Power
Residential

•

487

R463,202

R1,043,623

50%

R519,925

R494,272

R1,439,382

10%

R142,697

123

R24,989

R42,377

10%

R4,183

44,807

R1,277,599

R3,850,604

Sectional Title

•
		
		
•
		

R1,146,481

Although other accounts had not paid by the end of June 2020, these initiatives revealed legal matters and other queries which
allowed the resolution process to be started.
Year-End
Total

Jan-20

Feb-20

Mar-20

Apr-20

May-20

Jun-20

Collection
Initiatives –
Actual

R356m
(Included in
Collection)

R300m
(Included in
Collection)

R439m
(Included in
Collection)

R354m
(Included in
Collection)

R299m
(Included in
Collection)

R476m
(Included in
Collection)*

R2.22bn

Collection
Initiative –
Target

R191m

R191m

R191m

R191m

R191m

R191m

R1.14bn

•
•

3.3.2 Lowlights
•

The prepaid conversion target was not met; however, a plan to address this has been developed as follows:

•
•
		

City Power continues to work together with the City of Johannesburg team to resolve these issues. A total amount of R13,79
billion has been collected year-to-date. This performance is against the budget billing of R14.2 billion which brings the overall
performance to 97.09% as at June 2020.

•
•
•
•

Fully paid customers (accounts up to date)

R2,050,380,248

AOD signed

R170,058,822

Partly paid customers

R325,621,841

Total

R2,546,060,911

Table 49: Cash Collection
CITY POWER

114

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

Community unrest often affects project timelines.
Business forums demanding local content which sometimes cannot be achieved in specialised projects like substations.
Difficulty gaining access to customer properties when installing smart meters.
Illegal connections in informal settlements that are targeted for electrification.

Core Business: Engineering Operations

3.4.1 Highlights
•
•
•
•

Cumulative Payments

Description

Re-engineering the process flow to eliminate activities that may be deemed less critical.
The walk-in centre will make sure all required information is compulsory so as to improve efficiency, e.g. customer cell
phone number and other information.

3.3.3 Challenges

3.4

Table 48: Collection Improvement Initiatives

Due to theft of most underground cables, cabling is now done overhead instead of underground. The benefit here is 			
twofold as City Power can place more lights. In Protea Glen, Kliprivier and Malibongwe, projects were done through 		the
ABC overhead system due to their proximity to cable theft hotspots.
Other public lights were done as part of the electrification programme in Lufhereng, Alex, Rabie Ridge and Kliptown — a
total of 848 lights.
Over 3,000 units were successfully electrified in Alexandra, Kliptown and Rabie Ridge. These projects have contributed to
improving residents’ living and working conditions and will also provide opportunities for the creation and development of
income-generating activities.
City Power achieved an overall Capex expenditure of 98% before accruals when compared to the target of 95%.
Data accuracy for substations, load centres and overhead lines now exceeds 98%.

R6,296

26,663

Core Business: Engineering Services

97% of repairs and maintenance budget spent in 2019/20.
Exceeded the traffic KPI by achieving 9.2 hours against 18 hours.
Overall reduction on unplanned outages of 7.8% for 2019/20 when compared to 2018/19.
Exceeded the streetlights KPI in restoring secondary and main lights in Q4 by achieving an average restoration of service of
1.5 days against a target of 8 days.

3.4.2 Lowlights
•
•
•
•

High call volume due to the weather impacting on our service delivery.
Delays in restoration times due to staff having to drive to callouts from their homes.
Insufficient material at the stores.
Equipment failures, theft and vandalism.
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3.4.3 MV/LV Network
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The majority of MV distribution — approximately 33% (2,300 km) — is over 45 years old with an estimated replacement cost
of R2 billion.
The high rate of illegal connections often results in some circuits being overloaded.
The high rate of theft and vandalism can lead to long-lasting outages.
20% of the existing transformer fleet requires refurbishment and/or replacement.
Some of the old-type power transformers have outdated specifications and cannot be refurbished.
The City Power transformer fleet consists of 250 power transformers.
17 power transformers are in critical condition when considering asset risk and condition risk. These need to be replaced.
15 power transformers are in high-risk condition when considering asset risk and condition risk. These need to be refurbished.
30 power transformers are over 50 years old and have exceeded their useful-life period. These transformers require
replacement.

3.4.4 Key Priorities for the Next Financial Year
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Implementation of maintenance programmes to improve planned vs unplanned maintenance.
Reduction of outages.
Improvement of public lighting performance.
Review and approval of 2020/21 maintenance strategy, philosophy and plans.
Digitalisation of all MV operational drawings that are on display at system control by using the Forcelink system.
The upgrading of the SCADA system to address the visibility of all major substations.
Digitalisation of unplanned work orders with the use of MDT - Forcelink.
Acquiring service providers to assist with protection, telecommunications and SCADA maintenance.
Acquiring supply, install and commissioning service providers for RTU, protection relays, DC chargers and batteries.

3.5 Assessment of Arrears on Service Charges Owed by Directors and Senior Managers to the
		Entity
Total Debt (R‘000)

Current (R‘000)

30 Days (R‘000)

60 Days (R‘000)

Above 90 days
(R‘000)

55,200.09

16,052.48

9723.19

6,864.00

22,560.42

Table 50: Service Charges Owed by Directors and Senior Managers

3.5.1 Assessment Status of Directors’ and Senior Managers’ Municipal Accounts
Designation

Municipality

Municipality
Account No.

Status of
Account

Mr. L Setshedi

CEO

City of Johannesburg

553976323

Current

Mrs. M Xolo

CFO

City of Johannesburg

556364382

Arrears

Ms. T Mashava

GE: HR & Transformation

(City of Tshwane)

n/a

-

Mr. S E Rampedi

GE: Engineering Operations

City of Johannesburg

505525761

Credit

Mr. S Ntlatleng

GE: Engineering Services

City of Johannesburg

550419028

Current

Mr. L Mahumapelo

GE: Business Sustainability (A)

City of Johannesburg

302436989

Credit

Ms. MT Maluleke

CEO (A)

City of Johannesburg

554666765

Current

Mr. M Ramagaga

GE: Enterprise Support (Acting)

City of Johannesburg

505453588

Credit

Mr. M Smith

Company Secretary

City of Johannesburg

300949880

Current

Table 51: Municipal Accounts of Executive Directors

Municipality
Account No.

Status of
Account

Mr. D Gibson

Non-Executive Director

(Retirement Facility)

n/a

-

Mr. D Hunt

Non-Executive Director

(Retirement Facility)

n/a

-

Mr. N Kganakga

GE: Engineering Services

City of Johannesburg

550419028

Current

Non-Executive Director

(City of Tshwane)

n/a

-

CEO (A)

City of Johannesburg

554666765

Current

Non-Executive Director

(City of Tshwane)

n/a

-

Mr Thabo Mofokeng

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

202630414

Arrears

Mr. M Seopela

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

553091497

Arrears

Mr. B Tjia

Non-Executive Director

(City of Tshwane)

n/a

-

Mr. W Mathamela

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

1828245611

Incorrect
Account

Mr. N Kgope

Non-Executive Director

(No property)

n/a

-

Ms. K Lehloenya

Non-Executive Director

(Rental)

n/a

-

Mr. K Mthembu

Non-Executive Director

(No property)

n/a

-

Mr. M Mello

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

440885354

Arrears

Mr. B Ramokhele

Non-Executive Director

(Rental) Ambercon Property
Management

EWR001-DB

Incorrect
Account

Mr. K Setzin

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

440826101

Current

Ms. P Thobejane

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

555345394

Arrears

Prof. B Twala

Non-Executive Director

(City of Tshwane)

n/a

-

Mr. Vusi Mokwena

Independent Audit Committee
Member

(Rental)

n/a

-

Mr. R Moodley

Independent Audit Committee
Member

(Deceased)

n/a

-

Mr. H Moolla

Independent Audit Committee
Member

(City of Tshwane)

n/a

-

Mr. C Lithole

Independent Audit Committee
Member

City of Johannesburg

901022874

Arrears

Ms. B Mathebula

3.6

Statement on Amounts Owed By Government and Public Entities

Account Number

Account Name

June 2020

220068999

Health

20,240,426.86

220078757

Health

8,949,504.40

220017137

Health

4,621,452.02

221087289

Housing

3,769,887.84

221085411

Section 21

3,677,003.74

220069777

Section 21

3,286,534.72

220028442

NPW

2,254,736.93

220003857

Section 21

2,053,318.58

220071938

Health

1,820,477.24

221087497

Finance

1,678,219.15

221211024

Transport

1,270,265.21

221283101

DID

1,152,969.71

220010501

DID

1,117,010.76

501326821

NPW

1,084,648.53

Name

Designation

Municipality

Mr. L Nage

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

440890548

Arrears

Dr. H Chewane

Non-Executive Director

(Mpumalanga)

n/a

-
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Municipality

Status of
Account

Municipality
Account No.
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Designation

Table 52: Municipal Accounts of Non-Executive Directors
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Account Number

Account Name

June 2020

Account Number

Account Name

June 2020

220055608

Section 20

1,024,284.95

220004272

Section 21

155,187.90

220061009

Housing

850,494.62

220028435

NPW

154,968.42

201001702

Section 21

792,731.03

205991546

NPW

154,014.36

220028410

NPW

748,049.87

220017433

NPW

151,426.39

900024131

Section 21

693,303.66

205772914

Section 21

147,604.64

220091003

Health

682,001.98

220008118

NPW

146,539.95

301100873

DID

630,119.80

220058550

NPW

139,947.94

221211017

DID

602,495.53

300870848

DID

135,097.53

220007153

NPW

581,824.91

220044959

Health

134,254.39

220060968

Section 21

564,835.52

551390678

NPW

129,942.67

220030804

Health

498,552.83

553541347

DID

129,480.87

220094124

Health

498,476.27

220069512

NPW

129,198.50

221093620

Section 21

496,681.03

220025089

Section 21

126,617.74

205276975

Section 21

440,636.09

220022970

NPW

122,386.42

205627875

DID

438,093.37

551356902

NPW

117,860.48

220093787

NPW

400,940.68

220078845

NPW

117,726.05

504812717

DID

385,693.17

400377072

Section 21

114,616.14

220034750

NPW

364,542.10

205991384

NPW

114,604.71

221283117

DID

364,187.17

220079197

NPW

114,328.82

401886160

NPW

353,829.98

220072547

Section 21

112,207.40

221261113

Finance

339,243.71

503344167

Section 21

111,119.72

220025882

Section 21

306,195.19

220017874

DID

109,009.51

220052357

Section 21

297,589.72

551368739

NPW

108,348.83

220025000

Section 21

293,507.85

501904293

Housing

106,398.81

221207123

DID

276,262.10

220072040

NPW

106,121.95

220004811

NPW

269,193.83

221019218

NPW

104,942.14

221276007

DID

264,086.08

505711849

DID

102,777.12

403314306

DID

258,476.67

220022360

Section 21

102,287.73

205595052

DID

248,682.15

301075112

DID

101,888.93

220057080

NPW

246,847.46

221217026

NPW

99,645.40

221387003

NPW

229,335.79

205593866

DID

98,910.35

220082200

Section 21

227,155.14

550731220

Section 21

97,950.47

900060813

Section 21

223,367.76

220015820

DID

95,395.66

220067579

Section 21

217,796.58

220080386

NPW

93,770.75

206445194

NPW

212,126.08

220093794

NPW

93,313.74

504060880

DID

208,419.09

220092430

NPW

93,207.28

220052036

Section 21

207,992.21

220027946

NPW

92,427.06

403472020

DID

204,783.73

220078806

NPW

92,398.19

221165106

DID

195,026.55

220061954

NPW

90,371.39

207068076

DID

194,072.84

553769630

DID

89,716.04

403337173

DID

189,771.28

220033682

NPW

88,658.44

220083813

Section 21

181,703.40

220000253

Section 21

87,134.79

400183327

DID

181,672.78

220091388

NPW

86,568.11

202304114

Section 21

174,176.18

220009104

NPW

85,300.96

220093145

Section 21

165,652.72

205991465

NPW

85,078.79

403314458

NPW

155,650.38

207069714

DID

81,031.82
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Account Number

Account Name

June 2020

Account Number

Account Name

June 2020

553542492

NPW

80,138.82

501941425

DID

36,438.11

206037653

NPW

79,142.94

403304403

DID

36,157.59

502124673

DID

78,457.60

221068046

NPW

36,101.57

220057274

NPW

76,038.26

207033115

DID

35,772.72

220058479

NPW

70,825.30

220055534

Section 20

34,804.38

221317084

NPW

69,817.52

551893505

DID

34,763.15

220052340

Health

69,618.63

220091356

Section 20

34,661.68

205991507

NPW

69,457.49

207615547

NPW

34,635.03

220052325

Section 21

68,451.63

551717251

Section 20

33,720.70

551356878

NPW

67,834.05

551356959

NPW

33,629.24

400574761

Housing

67,331.07

220062250

NPW

33,500.82

220072699

Section 21

65,640.78

221085669

Section 20

33,371.54

301075088

DID

62,993.98

501273898

Section 20

33,182.00

220069784

Section 21

62,973.88

220055421

Section 20

33,140.41

220079334

NPW

62,548.60

220057193

Section 20

32,872.85

300218992

DID

62,421.84

220028562

Section 20

31,921.43

220024991

Section 20

62,237.38

205335826

Section 20

31,548.86

900204430

NPW

62,235.80

220088025

Section 20

31,532.26

301101309

DID

59,980.68

220010519

Section 21

31,255.73

221087401

NPW

59,851.91

220048738

Section 21

31,149.57

220027960

Section 21

59,770.45

220055541

Section 20

30,765.89

220057034

NPW

55,988.11

301101404

DID

29,879.63

300912150

DID

53,609.65

220028957

NPW

29,415.32

220067970

Section 21

52,830.31

551356973

NPW

29,081.45

501281313

Section 20

52,473.82

400267231

DID

28,612.01

220079398

NPW

52,354.10

220050021

Section 21

27,997.69

501727439

DID

52,037.14

501416419

NPW

27,952.10

220055661

Section 20

51,248.06

501428284

Section 20

27,748.03

206098462

Section 21

50,790.96

220078676

Section 21

27,493.26

551450302

DID

45,603.94

207068799

Section 21

26,379.25

220052090

Section 21

45,297.26

552925735

NPW

25,973.68

207069778

Section 21

44,941.19

220052389

Section 21

25,539.78

221167015

DID

44,649.19

501551383

Section 21

25,248.62

400368536

NPW

43,352.13

220062531

Section 20

25,179.08

551082666

NPW

43,317.14

220061023

Section 20

25,128.41

403304361

DID

42,858.67

221086013

Section 20

25,025.61

220008816

NPW

41,581.01

551397602

DID

24,791.25

553533314

DID

40,119.10

206569312

NPW

24,525.34

400670793

Section 20

39,441.20

206693447

Section 21

24,159.02

403304386

DID

38,565.41

221086119

Section 20

23,762.86

221087673

Section 20

38,462.14

220055580

Section 20

22,970.86

501425614

Housing

37,830.44

500248970

NPW

22,297.27

220002412

NPW

37,759.40

501518851

Section 20

22,062.81

206379784

NPW

36,782.21

220088699

Section 20

21,997.15

400183366

DID

36,568.18

220055559

Section 20

21,674.73

205235451

Section 20

36,474.63

220088177

Section 21

20,698.00
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Account Number

Account Name

June 2020

Account Number

Account Name

June 2020

403304308

DID

20,092.19

206059255

Section 21

8,037.64

330244069

Section 21

19,724.93

400356499

NPW

7,147.43

201001607

Section 21

19,525.55

205766396

Section 21

6,413.36

220027079

NPW

19,402.84

220057316

Section 20

6,340.83

205336033

Section 21

19,296.70

501995519

Section 20

6,033.17

403304315

DID

19,236.53

400386172

Section 20

6,026.22

201001597

Section 21

19,075.54

501428261

Section 20

6,002.75

550619884

Section 21

19,068.47

205991666

NPW

5,949.37

504845159

DID

18,699.39

220933683

NPW

5,927.89

221442060

NPW

17,914.30

220047406

Section 20

5,842.39

206031612

Section 20

17,875.92

220025025

Section 20

5,370.14

400366521

Section 20

17,762.17

504826815

Housing

5,196.22

300227813

DID

17,586.31

220060862

Section 20

5,114.41

553607753

Section 20

17,155.24

501765145

NPW

4,901.29

403307073

DID

17,004.86

220057002

NPW

4,871.97

206564794

Section 21

16,861.49

400482221

Section 21

4,789.16

220056986

NPW

16,680.72

400482856

Section 21

4,613.19

220009827

Section 21

16,645.53

220061143

Section 20

4,605.24

206152494

Section 21

16,571.74

205991578

NPW

4,437.76

220067096

Section 21

16,527.10

800103911

Section 20

4,423.41

206516039

NPW

16,438.35

220057517

Section 20

4,409.88

220022602

Section 21

16,300.54

401713506

NPW

4,359.85

205103222

NPW

15,276.32

220057041

NPW

4,301.32

205494155

Section 21

14,853.12

400692451

DID

4,121.85

554254514

DID

14,581.63

206530918

Section 21

4,037.53

500440850

Section 20

13,665.91

400281645

Section 20

3,879.75

205991673

NPW

13,382.17

205597123

Section 21

3,646.73

403329415

NPW

12,363.98

403305774

NPW

3,628.06

205991426

NPW

12,067.52

401726664

NPW

3,376.64

220029703

Section 21

11,445.27

505717061

DID

3,288.74

220018934

Section 20

11,355.30

550374313

Section 20

3,235.37

501416401

NPW

11,339.12

201001325

Section 21

3,134.70

205226111

DID

11,208.39

503307542

Section 20

2,933.38

205758395

Section 21

11,027.96

400383647

Section 20

2,862.31

505294698

Section 20

10,957.70

201001420

Section 21

2,832.09

206954522

NPW

10,632.61

206763687

Section 20

2,750.10

301101330

DID

9,800.02

220035859

NPW

2,529.05

501379559

Section 21

9,599.33

207053016

NPW

2,390.23

330165787

Section 20

9,562.63

220057010

NPW

2,318.48

553542118

Section 21

9,468.80

502245364

Section 20

2,249.88

206949755

DID

9,435.29

504867730

Housing

2,222.34

300084594

Section 20

9,366.61

550807486

NPW

2,218.53

400710573

DID

8,677.42

206153177

Section 21

2,200.51

501428277

Section 20

8,511.30

220057066

NPW

2,042.56

220061030

Section 20

8,149.01

503307567

Section 20

1,921.93

551143044

DID

8,091.88

201001300

Section 21

1,816.90
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Account Number

Account Name

June 2020

551356885

NPW

1,745.31

400428129

Section 20

1,533.73

401902341

Section 21

1,351.04

400588524

Section 20

1,254.70

303192541

Section 21

1,050.34

205096423

NPW

1,047.12

220025106

Section 21

930.48

220078210

Section 20

544.2

502072175

Section 20

425.4

206609716

Section 21

377.96

206133276

Section 20

342.68

220032583

LEGISLATURE

255.48

504830064

Housing

172.82

554040865

Housing

128.44

403314345

DID

60.94

500143335

DID

59.41

551684565

NPW

35.96

501255225

DID

26.03

301058438

DID

15.87

551422136

NPW

0.06

440458987

NPW

0.05

500107866

Housing

0.04

•
•

Department of Education
Department of Public Works

The majority of the government-related debt challenges are with the above departments. City of Johannesburg Group Finance has
escalated the matter to CoGTA. From the first meeting in August 2020, CoGTA requested that a monthly forum be established. The
forum will report on debt-age analysis, status of queries raised and accounts which are due to be disconnected.
During this meeting, an agreement was made that all queries must be raised to COJ before any disconnections are affected and
that COJ will flag the account and report on the progress of resolution to the forum. Any account that has not been queried will be
collectable and should the department not pay, credit control process will be followed.
The Department of Education committed to settle all of its accounts by the end of September 2020. COJ has been working on
allocation and any outstanding accounts will follow normal disconnection process.
The Department of Public Works have appointed a services provider that will be managing all their building and accounts. The
department has requested City of Johannesburg to submit all outstanding accounts to the service provider for reconciliation. The
progress of this reconciliation will be reported in the next meeting with COGTA.
The Department of Health had raised multiple queries on their accounts and City of Johannesburg has been working to resolve
the matters and will report progress during the next meeting.

3.7

Recommendation and Plans for The Next Financial Year (FY2020/21)

3.7.1 City Power VUCA 2022

The Entity has started with VUCA 2022 as stated in section 1.9 on page 29, the priority for FY2019/20 is Security of Supply and
Network Stability which includes:

Preventative maintenance ‘’as the norm’’

Table 53: Amounts Owed by Government and Public Entities

3.6.1 Actions for Government Account

City of Johannesburg Group Finance has identified debt for government departments as follows:
• COJ-Related Departments
All COJ-related accounts are settled through intercompany settlements. Any queries are handled by various individual departments.
As such, this portfolio doesn’t follow the normal credit control process.

Access to services in informal settlements

Revised funding model

Cost-reflective tariff

• Other municipalities
This debt is related to services provided to areas were COJ has available infrastructure to service communities that are in the
jurisdiction of other municipalities. In such cases, the City has agreements with such municipalities as parties responsible for bulk
services.

Minimal technical losses and non-technical losses

City of Johannesburg Group Finance has account managers that are assigned to these accounts and non-payment is urgently
escalated.

Visible public lighting

• Parastatals
City of Johannesburg Group Finance has account managers appointed to manage these accounts. Most of these accounts pay
consistently and make arrangements when they have financial challenges. All non-payments follow the normal credit control
process.

Stable network and alternative energy player

The current challenge in this portfolio is an Eskom account. COJ Group Finance has briefed lawyers to issue a letter of demand
to Eskom.

•

It is important to also acknowledge that people are an important part of any business and, therefore, a key enabler in delivering
on performance in line with VUCA. To improve security of supply and ensure network stability, City Power installed 2,756 public
lights against a target of 1,200; electrified 3,688 households against a target of 2,000 in informal settlements; and maintains its
adherence to NRS048.
All of this was achieved despite the financial challenges under which the business is operating — now standing just below R3
billion. From now on, the business is determined to focus on improving revenue collection to stabilise its finances.

Government accounts (provisional and national government departments)
• Department of Health
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3.7.2 Plans for the Year Ahead

The manner in which HR and Transformation will address these pillars can be seen in the figure below.

In the year ahead, Management will focus on improving the finances of this organisation. Revenue billing and collection impacts
heavily on the sustainability of our business and as such it has become one of the major concerns and focus areas. Plans
developed to turn the situation around are now at implementation stage and, as a business, we are starting to realise the results.
We continue to focus on preventative maintenance to reduce outages and improve restoration times which, in turn, increases
customer confidence and allows us to collect the revenue we need.
The plan for FY 2020/21 as per VUCA 2022 is Business and Financial Sustainability

Refurbished plant

Guaranteed plant capacity

Smart City Power

Meaningful economic transformation achieved

Create
Capacity

Build
Capability

Empower for
Commitment

Boost
Compliance

Enable
Continuity

To create an
environment where
City Power
has the
right number of
people, working
in the
right place, at
the right
time to
enable City
Power’s VUCA
2022
strategy and
respond
to changing
realities

To ensure that
the City
Power people have
the right knowledge,
skills and
attitudes to
perform at the right
level of
competency in
their jobs,
enabling the
business of
today and
that of tomorrow

To design and
deliver a
leadership brand
and an employee
value proposition
that drives
employee
engagement
and cultural
transformation

To enable
adherence to
transformation
imperatives,
employment
regulations and
organisational
directives

To enable the
organisation to
navigate
the disruptions
happening in
both the
workforce, society
and the business.
As a result, we
see sustained
value, optimised
investments and
an ability to
drive the business
towards the future

4. HUMAN RESOURCE AND TRANSFORMATION
4.1

Introduction to Human Resource Management Approach

The current Covid-19 pandemic has abruptly reminded us how “VUCA” the future is and will inevitably continue to be. VUCA refers to
navigating a world replete with: Volatility, Uncertainty, Complexity, and Ambiguity. The coronavirus crisis has dramatically amplified
our VUCA world. As the situation continues to develop, we must adapt and respond quickly. The situation is unprecedented and
there is no blueprint for devising solutions. Solutions are, by their nature, context-dependent and this situation will require us
to stretch ourselves and become comfortable with AMBIGUITY to develop a best-fit approach for City Power. We need to think
creatively to define solutions. There is a real opportunity to think beyond the usual parameters and develop new ways of thinking
– HR and Transformation can drive that conversation.
However, as changes in the market occur, workforce skills (CAPABILITY) as well as the organisation structure (CAPACITY) must
reflect such changes. This delicate balance between stability and adaptability will therefore enable sustainability (CONTINUITY)
of the organisation. Amidst the VUCA environment the culture of the organisation creates the foundation for stability and therefore
does not change the culture (COMMITMENT). The culture is anchored by compliance to legislation and policies. As such,
COMPLIANCE is also about enabling stability.
HR and Transformation is required to enable an AGILE workforce by defining organisational levers that should be pulled to
facilitate adaptability and agility whilst maintaining a stable foundation regardless of the changes in the market. As such, the
Human Resources and Transformation Group has defined implementing its strategy and plan through the five human capital
strategic pillars: Create capacity, build capability, empower for commitment, boost compliance and enable continuity.

Figure 14: Human Resources and Transformation Levers

City Power has recognised the impact that the Covid-19 pandemic has had on its people and, for this reason, the Human
Resources and Transformation Group has revised its 2020/21 operational plan to reflect these realities. The Group’s priorities for
the next financial year include:
•
•
•
•

4.2

Employee well-being during the pandemic;
Organisation re-design to ensure effective delivery of strategic intent and optimal staff utilisation with minimal vacancies;
Migrating most of the functional, leadership and behavioural training interventions into virtual learning platforms; and
Partnering with organised labour and the change agent network to address the concerns raised in the employee satisfaction
survey.

Create Capacity

This section focusses on the Capacity pillar of the People Management Strategy which is to ensure appropriate staffing and
optimal use of the workforce in a manner in which business operations are aligned with the strategic objectives of the leadership.
This objective drives the process that provides strategic direction to talent management activities to ensure City Power has the
right people in the right place at the right time and at the right cost to execute our business strategy as captured in the individual
Group mandates.

4.2.1 Vacancy Rate and Funded Vacancies

According to the Local Government Municipal Systems Act, (32 of 2000, as amended), Chapter 2 on Staff Establishment,
paragraph 3 stipulates that: “A Municipal council must plan within the available budgeted funds”. In essence, this provision implies
that a Municipal Entity such as City Power is expected and obliged to have an organisation structure that is both affordable and
realistic. In an effort to ensure compliance to this legislation, City Power has an approved FY2019/20 recruitment plan that is being
implemented to manage the vacancy rate. Managing the vacancy rate is done as part of the Create Capacity strategic pillar which
aims to ensure appropriate staffing and optimal use of the workforce thus ensuring an alignment of the business operations with
the strategic objectives of the organisation.
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It is however important to note that due to budget constraints year-on-year that the recruitment and selection plan is not effectively
funded to enable the filling of all critical vacancies.
The FY2019/20 recruitment and selection plan was approved in Q1 for subsequent implementation in Q2 to Q4 and Q1 of
FY2020/21. The initial approved plan included 123 vacancies; however, this number was increased to 162 to cater for the
additional requirements in Enterprise Support, Metering Services, Engineering Services, Finance and Business Sustainability
Groups. These additions address serious capacity gaps, some of which were flagged in the Auditor-General’s report. After the plan
was amended and duly approved, the number of positions advertised was 68 while the number of positions filled is 53. The table
below highlights these details. Regardless of the strides made, the recruitment and selection performance for FY2019/20 Q4 and
FY2020/21 Q1 is negatively impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic.
Management Level

Below Management

New Appointments
(Internal promotions)

Graduate-In-Training
Attrition
(GIT) Intake (External)

Net Loss for the year

12

41

62

(52)

Table 55: Impact of the Recruitment Plan on the Vacancy Rate

18

4.2.2 Staff Cost vs Total OPEX

Metering Services

The total employee cost as a % of total Opex is depicted in the table below:

Manager: Meter Reading Domestic
Manager: Meter Reading LPU
Manager: BPM

None

3

Business Sustainability

Total Staff Cost

General Manager: Strategy

Total Opex

Manager: Compliance

% of Staff Cost to Opex

Manager: Performance Reporting

None

3

Office of CEO
General Manager: Internal Audit

Senior Internal Auditor x 3

Manager: Performance Audit

PA: CEO

Manager: Talent Planning

Team Leader :O/Health x 2

Manager: BPM

Administrator: O/Health

Quarter 4

YTD - Actual

R291,007,000

R299,876,000

R323,387,000

R314,370,000

R1,228,640,000

R1,006,555,000

R1,226,659,000

R1,236,766,000

R1,259,218,000

R4,729,198,000

28.91%

24.45%

26.15%

24.97%

25.98%

Table 56: Total Employee Cost as a % of Total Opex

•
•

reduce the overall amount spent on overtime; and
reduce the overtime hours in line with the BCEA.

To give effect to the above, HR and Transformation currently manages two overtime KPIs:

Senior Buyer
Committee Officer

4

Transport Operator x 6
Logical Security

7

Workforce Dispatcher x 2
System Controller x 5

7

Engineering Operations

GRAND TOTAL

Quarter 3

5

Enterprise Support

None

Quarter 2

The cost of overtime is a major contributing factor to the high employee cost. Overtime must, however, be managed to:

Finance

None

Quarter 1

6

HR & Transformation

Manager: Contracts x 2
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City Power has an ageing workforce; as at June 2020, close to 360 employees fall within the age bracket that makes them eligible
for early retirement (age 55 and above). As such, for the 2020/21 financial year, the recruitment plan will include a large graduatein-training intake.

Project Coordinators x 10
Clerk of Works x 8

New Appointments
(External)

Total

Engineering Services
None

The table below provides highlights the impact the recruitment plan has had on the vacancy rate when factoring in the attrition
numbers. The imbalance between external appointments (external appointments and graduate-in-training intake) versus attrition
in the current financial year is very significant in that the gains are exceeded by the rate of attrition and this only serves to
perpetuate the high vacancy rate:

53

•
•

Ratio of overtime cost to total employment cost;
Number of employees with overtime that amounts to over 40 hours per month without preapproval by the GE.

In an attempt to reduce overtime and improve efficiency, productivity and safety of our employees HR and Transformation has
engaged the different groups to identify their drivers of overtime. The recruitment plan was also designed to focus on areas heavily
affected by the need for overtime. There is also an intention to commence with LLF negotiations with the aim of remodeling the
current shift system which is also contributing to high overtime costs.

4.3

Build Capability

Table 54: Appointments in FY2019/20

The vacancy rate of an entity is impacted by a number of factors. City Power’s vacancy rate target is 12% which was ‘missed’
by 2,06% in June 2020. The actual vacancy rate of 14.06% is a slight improvement from the 14.9% reported in May 2020. This
vacancy rate was impacted by a number of factors:

This section focusses on the Capability pillar of the People Management Strategy which is to define, assess and build individual
and collective contribution to the delivery of the business strategy through performance management and skills development of
our people. This objective centres on competencies as the building blocks for performance and how they are integral to driving
organisational capability. They can be learned and they can be measured.

•

4.3.1 Skills Development Plans

•
•

12 of the 53 appointments made were external appointments. The remainder (41) were internal promotions and, by definition,
internal promotions do not change the vacancy rate;
City Power had an external graduate-in-training intake of 62, thus improving the vacancy rate;
However, employee attrition of 126 impacted negatively on this rate.
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To enable learning delivery, City Power has defined a competency framework with the required functional, leadership and
behavioural competencies. To enable strategy-led training and development, City Power has adopted the 70:20:10 learning
approach whereby 70% of training will be attained through on-the-job training, 20% through industry seminars and conferences
and 10% through institutions of higher learning and SETA-accredited institutions.
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The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted the FY2019/20 skills development plans and, to ensure that development and improvement
of employee’s skills are not compromised while also protecting their health and well-being, most of the skills development
programmes have been revised and will be conducted virtually. Institutions of higher learning as well as SETA-accredited training
providers have been identified to enable the addressing of the competency gaps through training and development.

2017/2018

2018/2019

2019/2020

R 4,625,222.42

R 5,791,943.37

R 5,153,401.01

Certificates

51

44

12

Higher Certificates

10

8

17

Diploma

7

5

8

National Diploma

7

3

1

Advanced Diploma

27

36

32

B-Degrees / B-Tech

26

19

31

Honours Degree

4

1

2

Master’s Degree

10

7

8

142

123

111

TOTAL

Electrical Access

59

Electrical Safety

35

ORHVS

The tables below illustrates City Power’s skills development investment:

Budget Spent

2019/2020

207

ORHVS for RP

6

11kV Simulator

25

Basic Protection

17

LV Cable Jointing

6

MV Cable Jointing

29

Operators in Training Authorised

27

Full Operators Authorised

6

Simulator Induction

8

Total

425

Table 60: Technical Training for City Power Employees

2019/2020
Budget Spent

Table 57: Further Study for the Past Three Years

2019/2020
Budget Spent

R2,600,000,00

First Aid

287

Firefighting

271

SHEQ

112

Scaff Holding

7

Stacking & Storing

11

Signage & Barricading

25

Truck-Mounted Crane

10

Counter Balance Lift Truck

66

Rigging & Swinging

20

Cherry Picker

232

Overhead Crane

9

TOTAL

1050

R 764,599.05

Tax Boot Camp

5

Annual Payroll Tax update seminar

6

Road Transport Safety Summit

6

Southern Africa Revenue Protection Association 23rd convention 2019

1

20th Annual Compliance Conference

1

GovTech Conference 2019

3

EAPA-SA Conference-21st Annual Eduweek

1

AMEU Convention 2019

7

Cigre South Africa Regional Conference

1

IRMSA Annual Conference

1

Gala Dinner: Institute of Risk Management South Africa

3

National Budgeting Workshop: MSCOA Environment

6

Smart Procurement World Indaba 19th Public section Conference

3

The 2019 Secretaries Conference

13

Total

57

Table 61: Seminars and Conferences
Table 58: Mandatory Training

2019/2020

2019/2020
Income to City Power through Training Contractors

R321,457.02

Electrical Access

111

Electrical Safety

63

ORHVS

18

ORHVS for RP

0

11kV Simulator

4

Total

196

Budget Spent

R 6,266,726.99

All Other Functional Training

288 Employees attended training

Table 62: All Other Functional Training

City Power is investing in a learning and development programme that takes an integrated approach to building capability. In
2020/21, the organisation will be rolling out learning and development resources and support interventions that focus on managing
volatility, uncertainty, complexity, and ambiguity by first leading oneself, then leading teams, and finally leading the organisation.

Table 59: Technical Training for Contractors
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4.4

Empower for Commitment

4.5

Boost Compliance

This section focusses on the Commitment pillar of the HR Strategy which is to implement measures of employee care and
advocacy as a catalyst for employee willingness to give time and energy that drives organisational success.

This section focusses on the Compliance pillar of the People Management Strategy which is to drive adherence to transformation
imperatives. This pillar also focusses on adherence to employment regulations and organisational directives.

If leaders want to know how the organisation behaves, they must understand and pay attention to culture. When an organisation’s
culture and reward systems are aligned with its strategy and customer needs, good things happen. This alignment creates an
energy that drives individual and team performance, innovation, customer confidence and value creation – which is what the
2022 VUCA vision is about. However, toxic culture can undermine an organisation’s stated values, impede change, and support
behaviours that damage financial performance, reputation, and brand. Business success depends on a strong culture which must
be nurtured by great leadership. The design of the LIGHTS ON! campaign was informed by the need to re-energise and refocus
the organisation on the City Power way of doing things.

4.5.1 Employee Relations

4.4.1 Employment Equity and Affirmative Action Plans and Programmes

In the last quarter of the 2019/20 financial year, disciplinary hearings were suspended due to Covid-19. The City of Joburg issued
a directive on 8 June 2020 to resume with the disciplinary hearings. There are only two outstanding cases in the 2019/20 financial
year that City Power is currently dealing with and it is anticipated that they will be finalised in the 2020/21 financial year.

As a designated employer, City Power is fully committed to complying with the Employment Equity Act (EEA) 55 of 1998, as
amended. The employment equity figures as at 30 June 2020 are as follows:
Staff Establishment

Filled Positions

Affirmative Action
Target

1,984

1,705

Achieved

85%

92.84%

People with
Disabilities

Gender Equity
Target
28%

Achieved
32.02%

Target
2%

Achieved
3.34%

Table 63: Employment Equity Figures as at 30 June 2020

The City Power Transformation agenda is partially driven through recruitment plans that addresses employment equity plan
targets, including recruitment of graduates. Employment equity ratios improved in the fourth quarter. More women were appointed,
especially at the professional and managerial level. Graduate onboarding had 22 females and one person with a disability.
In February 2020, there was a disability declaration drive where payslips were distributed with disability declaration forms. From
the drive, 25 new declarations were received and the number increased to 57.
There is a strategic intent to develop a pool of suitably qualified candidates from designated groups through career progression
and advancement programmes that is supported by structured on-the-job training in line with the 70:20:10 learning philosophy.
The women development programme with MANCOSA is set to resume in July 2020. Diversity and inclusion workshops will be
conducted throughout the business to promote diversity and inclusivity in the workplace.

4.4.2 Employee Induction

Employee induction is the first step towards gaining an employees’ commitment. Induction is aimed at introducing the Entity to the
employee and the employee to the Entity and involves the orientation of the employee in the Entity culture as well as introducing
the employee to the Entity’s Conditions of Service, Policies and expected Ethical Conduct.
The aim is to conduct employee induction on a quarterly basis.
Due to the high number of insourced security guards in September 2019 (a total of 285), the first round of induction took place in
October 2019 and the second in November 2019.
During February 2020, HR and Transformation also conducted induction for the graduates-in-training that had been absorbed into
permanent positions (a total of 48) as well as other newly appointed employees (a total of 3).
No induction has taken place in Q4 due to the current Covid-19 situation. HR and Transformation is, however, looking into the
possibility of conducting these sessions virtually.

In the last three years City Power recorded a total of 37 disciplinary cases. 18 of these cases are dishonesty-related misconduct;
6 relate to absenteeism; 7 relate to failure on the part of the employees to obey a lawful and reasonable instruction; 5 relate to
negligence; and 2 relate to assault. Given the above, it is imperative to intensify awareness on the Code of Ethical Conduct in
order to significantly reduce dishonesty-related misconduct. Cases of insubordination may indicate a lack of healthy and sound
relationships between line managers and their employees. The FY2020/21 culture change plan is taking all of these factors into
account.

No suspensions were recorded in the last quarter of the 2019/20 financial year.

4.6

Enable Continuity

This section focusses on the Continuity pillar of the HR Strategy which enables the organisation to navigate the disruptions
happening in the workforce, society and the business. As a result, City Power sees sustained value, optimised investments and
an ability to drive the business towards the future.

4.6.1 Employee Wellness Programme.

On the 15th of March 2020, President Cyril Ramaphosa announced a national state of disaster following the World Health
Organization declaring the Covid-19 outbreak as a pandemic. The President also announced various measures that must be
implemented in South Africa to mitigate the spread of the pandemic and these impacted and disrupted our normal business
operation and execution. These disruptions effectively shifted the focus of the Employee Wellness department onto matters
related to the Covid-19 pandemic. The tables below illustrates the performance of the employee wellness programme for the
quarter:
Number

Item

As at June 2020

1

Total Number of Employees

1,705

2

High-risk Pregnancies Declared

0

3

High-risk Employees Above the Age of 60

161

4

High-risk Employees with Other Comorbidities
Declared

112

5

Screening Conducted

825

6

Tests Conducted

53

7

Total Positive Cases

21

8

Active Cases (Isolation)

11

9

Contacts Traced (Quarantined)

55

10

Total Recoveries

10

11

Total COIDA Cases

7

12

Total Deaths

0

13

Reintegration Services

71

14

Teletherapy

101

15

Group Debriefing

12

16

Referral to a Psychologist

0

Table 64: Covid-19 Statistics
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Group

Phase 1 Screening

Phase 2 Screening

Total

Engineering Ops

364

115

479

Engineering Services

99

15

114

Metering

32

05

37

Finance

15

02

17

HR and T

40

45

85

Enterprise Support

35

49

84

5. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The report presents the actual performance of the company against the budget for the period ending 30 June 2020. Further detail
on financial performance is in the AFS in Annexure B.

5.1

Statement of Financial Performance
2020

2019

Table 65: Screening Conducted per Group

During a pandemic, employees are left with psychological trauma that hinders their productivity and threatens their well-being.
Psychological trauma can be defined as an experience of psychological wounding caused by an event outside the usual range of
human experience. The Covid-19 outbreak has a potential to increase stress and anxiety because of the fear of catching the virus
and uncertainty regarding the impact on the economic and social spheres.
The following psychosocial support and interventions were provided:
•

Counselling services for employees who tested positive, were in isolation and/or quarantined as well as their immediate
family members
Clinical psychologist referrals
Teletherapy
Covid-19 hotline services
Debriefing sessions
Guidance and psychoeducation about stress and anxiety
Reintegration services
Individual telephone consultations to employees above the age of 60 with comorbidity
Evaluation and monitoring

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Psychosocial Challenges

April 2020

May 2020

June 2020

Work Stress

7

2

0

Financial

0

2

1

Family

2

1

3

Relationship/Marital

0

1

1

Referral to Psychologist

1

2

0

Referral to External Service
Providers

1

2

0

Table 66: Non-Covid-19-related EAP Support Services Statistics

Number

Item

Q4

1

Pre-employment medical screening

19

2

Exit medical screening

13

3

Flu vaccination campaign (number of employees
vaccinated)

93

Actual
R'000

Budget
R'000

Actual/
Restated
R'000

Growth %

Revenue

16,718,881

17,030,036

15,108,728

10.66

Service charges

16,012,393

16,30,436

14,361,885

11.49

Other income

362,557

463,284

396,681

-8.60

Government grants

264,298

205,487

224,165

17.90

Interest revenue

41,939

41,673

74,797

-43.93

Fees earned

22,787

11,638

34,593

602

517

556

14,305

-

16,051

Expenses

16,746,218

16,690,283

15,666,854

Bulk purchases

Rental income
Re-connection fees
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6.89

11,512,422

10,963,812

10,718,639

7.41

Bad debts

453,655

629,082

625,474

-27.47

General expenses

578,757

657,662

535,863

8.00

Lease rentals on operating lease

689,973

657,778

609,041

13.29

Employee related cost

1,265,014

1,266,318

1,121,564

12.79

Finance costs

574,478

703,029

541,719

6.05

Repairs & maintenance

978,385

1,040,508

848,126

15.36

Administration

104,017

180,539

98,687

5.40

Depreciation & amortisation

589,517

591,557

567,741

3.84

Surplus before taxation

-27,337

339,752

-558,126

-95.10

Taxation

-97,131

-

-57,041

70.28

Surplus

69,794

339,752

-501,085

-113.93

Table 68: Statement of Financial Performance

Table 67: Medical Surveillance Program
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The following table reflects the summarised financial performance of the Entity for the period under review. Detailed analysis is
included elsewhere in the Report. The financial results reflect a profit after tax of R70 million against a budgeted R340 million
surplus.

No.

Detail of Initiative

1.a

Prepaid Project (Smart Meter Roll-out)

1.b

Prepaid Disconnections

1.c

Prepaid Normalisation
Unmatched Stands

3

Installation Audit (LPU)

45,000

93,700

New Service Connections

20,000

0,357

5

Pre and Post Billing Process Optimisation

90,000

27,100

6

Alarms

30,000

18,100

7

Other (Queries)

-

241,100

435,000

476,100

4

Revenue and Other Income

16,718,881

17,030,036

-311,154

Expenditure (incl. tax)

16,649,087

16,690,283

-41,196

69,794

339,752

-269,958

TOTAL

7,790

Table 69: Actual Financial Performance Against Budget

Table 72: Revenue Initiatives

Revenue

The above initiatives contributed 3% to the overall revenue performance.

Actual
(R’000)

Budget
(R’000)

Variance
(R’000)

16,012,393

16,307,436

-295,043

-2%

15,108,728

Other Income

362,557

463,284

-100,727

-22%

396,681

Government Grants

264,298

205,487

58,811

29%

224,165

22,787

11,638

11,149

96%

34,593

602

517

85

16%

556

Interest Income

41,939

41,673

266

1%

74,797

Reconnection fees

14,305

0

14,305

Description
Service Charges

Fees Earned
Rental Income

Previous Year
% variance
YTD (R’000)

16,051

5.1.2 Other Income

Other income for the year is R101 million less than budgeted for due to the following:
•
•

Budgeted cut-off fees are short by R33 million due to fewer cut-offs.
DSM Levy is less than budgeted for by R58 million. Capital contribution (which is the DSM Levy) fluctuates as per the units
sold. Therefore, the higher the units sold, the higher the capital contribution. Since the YTD actual units sold were less than
the budgeted units, the actual capital contribution was also less than budgeted.
Government grants for the year are R52 million more than budgeted as additional claims for grants were made.
Interest revenue for the year is less than the budget by R266 thousand. This is due to not charging interest on debtors’
outstanding amounts as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.
Fees earned for the year are R11 million more than budgeted. This is due to sundry revenue that is R11 million less than
budget due to the decrease in insurance claim refunds.

•
•
•

Table 70: Revenue

5.2

5.1.1 Service Charges

Service charges for 2019/20 are R295 million less against the revised annual budget of R16.3 billion, this was due to improvement
on revenue which was realised from revenue initiatives.

2019/20

2018/19

Variance

% Variance

7,755,121,359

8,596,999,823

-841,878,464

-9.79%

15,890,413

14,261,476

1,628,937

11.42%

2.05

1.66

0.39

23.44%

Service Charges
Units sold
Rand Value excl new connections (R’000)
Average Price
Table 71: Service Charges

Below are the lessons learned in this regard:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Community resistance was met with in some of the targeted areas for the prepaid project.
Ongoing monthly reconciliation of unmatched stands will be done to improve recovery rate.
Focus and priority to be given to the installation audit initiative to ensure improved recovery.
Service connection gaps were few in number due to the delay in updating the status of the installation.
Billing exceptions were excessive billing invoices which were stopped from billing as part of the billing process.
The revenue enhancement initiatives were based on the under-billing gap. The pre- and post-billing processes will continue.
High-impact initiatives will continue in the new financial year to improve the revenue position and reduce non-technical losses.
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0,203
-

Variance
(R’000)

879,631

41,400

-

54,100

2

884,842

150,000
-

2020 Year
to Date
Budget
(R’000)

Capital Expenditure

YTD Actual
(R’000)

100,000

2020 Year
to Date
Actual (R’000)

Surplus (Deficit)

YTD Target
(R’000)

Expenditure

A negative variance of 0.34% against the budget was realised for the current period under review.

Description
Bulk Purchases
Employee Related costs

Actual
(R’000)

Budget
(R’000)

Variance
(R’000)

% variance

Previous Year
YTD (R’000)

11,512,422

10,963,812

-548,610

-5%

10,718,639

1,265,014

1,266,318

1,304

0%

1,121,564

Administration

104,017

180,539

76,522

42%

98,687

Depreciation

589,517

591,557

2,040

0%

567,741

Finance costs

574,478

703,029

128,551

18%

541,719

Lease rentals

689,973

657,778

-32,195

-5%

609,041

Debt Impairment

453,655

629,082

175,427

28%

625,474

Repairs and
Maintenance

978,385

1,040,508

62,123

6%

848,126

General Expenses

578,757

657,662

78,905

12%

535,863

Table 73: Annual Total Expenditure
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5.2.1 Bulk Purchases Eskom and Kelvin

Bulk purchases cost Eskom is more than the budget and this is attributable to the fact that the actual bulk units purchased were
above budget. The electricity supply from Eskom is displaced to the extent that Kelvin Power Station is able to supply electricity.
Since the overall electricity demand was higher than the budget.

5.3.1 Controllable Capex

The year-end expenditure amounted to R769 million compared to the year-end target of R853 million which is R84 million below
the budget. This underspending is largely attributed to delays in the execution of projects under bulk infrastructure due to Covid-19.

Original Budget
(R’000)

YTD Actual
(R’000)

YTD Variance
(R’000)

200,000

194,558

5,442

Electrification Mega Projects

50,000

45,649

4,351

Public Lighting

80,000

77,271

2,729

272,280

297,499

(25,219)

38,602

4,126

34,476

Other Capex and Asset Purchases

(11,800)

67,148

(78,948)

Refurbish of Bulk Infrastructure

224,004

83,192

140,812

TOTAL

853,086

763,443

83,643

The Kelvin Power Station’s unfavourable variance of R81 million is attributable to the actual bulk purchase cost per unit being
higher than the budget. The favourable volume variance helped reduced the overall YTD variance.

Controllable Project Detail (by Project)

In terms of employee-related costs, basic salaries are less R27 million than budgeted for.
Depreciation is in line with budget.

5.3

Electrification

Electrical Infrastructure

Capital Expenditure Details

Power Systems

The year-end expenditure amounted to R885 Million compared to the original budget of R901 million which is R16 million below
the target, this reflects 98% expenditure as at the 30th of June 2020 after taking into account the accruals.

Original Budget
(R’000)

YTD Actual
(R’000)

YTD Variance
(R’000)

200,000

194,558

5,442

Electrification Mega Projects

50,000

45,649

4,351

Service Connections

48,145

108,528

(60,383)

171,889

215,910

(44,021)

Project Detail
Electrification

Upgrade of Electrical Network
Building Alteration / Construction

1,100

913

186

Computers

2,650

5,020

(2,370)

819

216

603

(19,600)

59,609

(79,209)

2,156

738

1,419

290

-

290

17,200

8,399

8,801

9,417

7,214

2,203

Meters

63,900

55,850

8,050

SCADA

9,874

10,126

(252)

38,602

4,126

34,476

Office Equipment
Computer Software
Tools and Loose Gear
Plant and Machinery
Telecommunication
Fire and Security

Protection
Furniture
Public Lighting
Refurbish of Bulk Infrastructure
Insurance
TOTAL

786

651
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80,000

77,572

2,428

224,004

83,192

140,812

-

6,571

6,571

901,232

884,842

16,390

Table 74: Capital Expenditure

Table 75: Controllable Capex

5.3.2 Electrical Infrastructure

Electrical infrastructure comprises upgrade of electrical networks, meters, SCADA and load management projects. The year-end
expenditure amounted to R297 million against the budget of R272 million which is R25 million above the target. This overspending
was a result of fast-tracking upgrades of the electrical network and emergencies which occurred due grid overloads driven by
increased usage during the winter season. However, this overspend was mitigated by underexpenditure on other categories.

5.3.3 Power Systems

Power systems comprises the protection project. Here, year-end expenditure amounted to R4 million compared to the year-end
budget of R38 million which is R34 million below the target. It should be noted that the amount not spent has been reserved for
emergency capital under the upgrade of electrical infrastructure.

5.3.4 Bulk Infrastructure

The bulk infrastructure projects are a catalyst for economic growth and a key driver for property development, be it residential,
business or commercial. The completion of these projects provides additional capacity that can supply new or increased customer
demand for electricity. Furthermore, these projects improve the reliability and availability of supply by reducing outages that
stem from ageing infrastructure at the substation level. The improved connectivity of high-voltage networks improves the main
transmission corridors and allows for electricity to be transferred from one corridor to another thus minimising large scale and
prolonged power outages.
The investments in bulk infrastructure projects contribute to our network’s modernisation, in line with City Power’s vision of
creating a smart grid for a smart city of the future. This infrastructure allows for remote control and monitoring of our substations
and this minimises outage duration as diagnoses can be performed faster and restoration of supply expedited more efficiently.
Most importantly, the new infrastructure provides improved safety for personnel. The new switchgear uses gas insulation instead
of oil; therefore, there are no risks of fire and/or explosion with this type of equipment. In addition, the operation of equipment is
performed in the substation control room or by the main system control at City Power head office (i.e. remotely). This will go a long
way in reducing work-related injuries and fatalities associated with operating old and potentially dangerous equipment.
The year-end expenditure amounted to R83 million compared to the year-end budget of R224 million which is R141 million below
the target. The underexpenditure was largely attributed to the reduction in the number of employees (contractors) working on
projects due to lockdown regulations during the Covid-19 pandemic. which had an effect on the work planned across all bulk
projects.
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5.3.5

Electrification

Electrification of informal settlements is aligned to sustainable human settlements priority as it has been shown that access to
electricity has a substantial positive impact on the quality of life of recipient communities. This programme is meant to improve
revenue collection; reduce electrical and non-electrical losses; shrink the carbon footprint while also improving the security of
electricity supply and reducing illegal connections in and around informal settlements.

5.4

Historic Financial Performance

The table below demonstrates the Entity’s performance from an operational perspective for the past 5 financial years, including
the performance for the current year ended 30 June 2020.

The year-end expenditure amounted to R240 million compared to the budget of R250 million, which is R10 million below the target.

5.3.6 Public Lights

The implementation and maintenance of street lighting is also aligned to the sustainable human settlement priority and provides
a number of important benefits such as promoting security in urban areas and increasing the quality of life by artificially extending
the hours in which it is light so that activity can take place. Street lighting also improves safety and security for drivers, riders, and
pedestrians. There has been positive feedback from community members with regard to the difference streetlights have made
in their lives within their neighbourhoods. For this reason, there has been an increase in demand from other communities in the
form of petitions. LED lighting projects have also been executed in the Northern and Southern areas, as these types of lights have
been proven to reduce energy consumption, resulting in energy savings. One of the major benefits of LED streetlights is that they
typically require less maintenance and last longer.

Income

Here, year-end expenditure amounted to R77 million compared to the budget of R80 million, which reflects an underexpenditure
of R3 million which was as a result of Covid-19.

Service charge revenue

The non-controllable capital projects are those which are funded by public contributions and through insurance funding. The
expenditure at year-end amounted to R115 million against the year-end budget of R48 million, which is R67 million above the
target.

Non-Controllable Project Detail (by Project)
Public Lighting
Service Connections
Insurance
TOTAL

Adjusted
Budget
(R’000)

YTD Actual
(R’000)

YTD Variance
(R’000)

-

302

(302)

48,145

108,528

(60,383)

-

6,571

(6,571)

48,145

115,400

(67,255)

Table 76: Non-Controllable Capex

Actual
Restated
2017

Actual
Restated
2018

Actual
Restated
2019

Actual
Restated
2020

12,717,091

13,157,970

14,534,870

12,519,736

13,099,192

ESKOM revenue

863,435

746,264

Pre Paid

760,260

89,624

986,203

1,125,881

1,355,543

14,143,431

14,736,080

13,703,294

14,283,851

15,890,413

9,157,513

9,548,026

9,082,906

9,189,410

10,597,870

Kelvin

621,535

1,040,824

1,214,684

1,529,229

914,552

Kelvin Lease

447,793

471,220

513,873

571,502

634,489

Total Service charges

Eskom

Total Bulk Purchases

5.3.7 Non-Controllable Capex

Actual
Restated
2016

10,226,840

11,060,070

10,811,463

11,290,141

12,146,911

Gross Margin

3,916,591

3,67,010

2,891,831

2,993,710

3,743,502

Other Income

519,222

662,341

732,670

847,253

828,119

Other income

122,937

169,257

215,521

185,989

166,700

Capital grant

108,583

275,288

319,101

217,305

264,298

Interest revenue - debtors
Capital contribution
Rental income
Interest revenue - sweeping
account
Total Income

48,341

55,555

68,275

63,532

35,978

141,577

140,908

124,496

368,604

354,580

247

251

474

556

602

97,537

21,082

4,803

11,266

5,961

4,435,813

4,338,351

3,624,501

3,840,963

4,571,621

Other Expenses
Employee-Related Cost

5.3.8 Service Connections

The service connections projects are funded by public contributions. Here, the year-end expenditure amounted to R109 million
compared to the year-end budget of R48 million which is R60 million above the target. This overspend was the result of receiving
a higher number of service connection applications than anticipated.

5.3.9 Insurance

This category of projects is funded by insurance as a result of insurable events. The year-end expenditure amounted to R7 million
from insurance claims received during the financial period.

5.3.10 Public Lighting

This category is a result of a request from the public and it is also funded by public contributions. The year-end expenditure
amounted to R302,000.

923,822

972,921

1,087,605

1,121,564

1,265,014

Other Expenditure (Incl Tax)

2,234,397

2,235,172

2,101,821

2,030,916

2,208,680

General expenses (Incl Tax)

518,241

100,912

233,875

86,308

200,014

Contracted services

446,905

656,683

464,389

222,511

177,703

Repairs & maintenance

709,143

812,177

722,587

895,593

978,385

Internal charges(ME's)

155,325

164,924

193,563

258,763

263,060

Depreciation & amortisation

404,783

500,476

487,407

567,741

589,517

Finance Cost

389,608

431,575

453,465

541,719

574,478

Interest paid - sweeping account

14,704

69,050

191,370

226,145

Interest Other

33,935

43,157

33,847

24,907

20,676

Finance costs

355,673

373,714

350,568

325,442

327,657

3,547,827

3,639,668

3,642,891

3,694,199

4,048,172

887,986

698,683

-18,390

146,764

523,449

387,706

885,398

365,831

625,474

453,655

Total Expenses

Debt Impairment

CITY POWER

140

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

CITY POWER

141

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

Surplus/Loss after tax

Actual
Restated
2016

Actual
Restated
2017

Actual
Restated
2018

Actual
Restated
2019

Actual
Restated
2020

500,280

-186,715

-384,221

-478,710

69,794

28%

25%

21%

21%

23.56%

Analysis
Gross Margin %
Net Profit margin
Cash on hand
Cash Collected (Incl Vat)

3%

-1%

-3%

-3%

0.42%

1,703,950

133,375

-1,267,270

-2,862,551

-3,738,077

15,409,587

16,252,305

15,246,855

16,331,165

15,664,621

Table 77: Historical Financial Performance

This information is drawn from financial information as reported to external parties (Audited). It should however be noted that the
financial year ended 30 June 2020 is the only year not subjected to an audit.
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Measure

%

%

%

Kwh

Kwh

Number

Number

Number

Number

Number

%

%

%

%

%

%

ZAR

ZAR

ZAR

ZAR

ZAR

ZAR

ZAR

20.35%

9%

29.35%

8,733,610,418

12,361,320,000

414,342

250,085

4,407

10,942

14,908

100%

5%

56%

9%

29%

21%

2,665,422

-10,226,840

12,892,262

703,534

7,190,452

1,219,092

3,779,184

Actual Restated
2016

14.22%

9%

23.22%

9,335,295,380

12,159,283,166

396,304

249,719

3,997

10,051

132,537

100%

5%

58%

9%

28%

22%

3,083,361

-11,060,070

14,143,431

759,446

8,169,078

1,214,495

4,000,411

Actual Restated
2016

10.84%

9%

19.84%

9,740,020,513

12,151,422,641

413,877

261,042

3,911

9,613

139,311

100%

6%

66%

7%

22%

26.63%

3,924,617

-10,811,463

14,736,080

871,228

9,666,167

999,071

3,199,614

Actual Restated
2017

14.89%

9%

23.89%

9,124,653,228

11,988,209,369

385,567

235,164

3,803

11,726

134,874

100%

7%

52%

10%

30%

17.61%

2,413,153

-11,290,141

13,703,294

986,203

7,169,473

1,392,561

4,155,057

Actual Restated
2018

14.50%

9%

23.50%

8,856,436,777

11,577,041,538

375,711

243,660

4,008

9,396

118,647

100%

8%

55%

9%

28%

21.48%

3,088,120

-11,290,141

14,378,261

1,125,881

7,843,924

1,356,991

4,051,466

Actual Restated
2019

19.42%

9%

28.42%

8,147,696,362

11,382,643,702

371,434

246,685

3,855

8,999

111,895

100%

9%

54%

9%

28%

24%

3,743,502

-12,146,911

15,890,413

1,355,543

8,604,455

1,433,222

4,497,193

Actual Restated
2020

The bulk purchases of City Power are high at approximately 76% of sales. The majority of these expenses relate to Eskom. Included in the bulk purchase price is the payment to Kelvin making
up approximately 10% of sales. Despite this, there has been no stage where City Power charged a selling price lower than the cost of purchase. From a pricing perspective there is a fair
comparison between the City Power price and the NERSA tariffs.

Table 78: Gross Margin and Losses Analysis

Non technical losses

Technical losses

% Losses

Electricity Units sold

Electricity Units purchased

Electricity Unit Analysis

Total

Prepaid

Large Power

Business

Domestic

Customer Numbers:

Total

Pre Paid

LPU

Business

Domestic

Gross Margin %

Gross Margin

Total Bulk Purchases

Total Service charges

Pre Paid

Large Power Users

Business

Domestic

Details

The table below demonstrates the Gross Margin performance for the past 5 financial years, including the performance for the current year ended 30 June 2020.

5.4.1 Gross Margin and Losses Analysis

5.4.2 Cash Balance

Acc No.
Name of Bank

198684

Sub Total

-5,000,000
2015
2016

CITY POWER

30 Jun 20

Petty Cash

2017

145

30 Jun 19

320,328
31, 612
2,213

30,000
30,000
30,000
30,000

-249

265,237,018
18,965,959
16,934,687
15,655,126

(Sweeping Account)
-4,003,313,638
-2,881,517,165
-1,284,174,317
117,719,965

Net Overdraft
-3,738,076,620
-2,862,551,206
-1,267,239,630
133,375,091

Standard Bank

2018

30 Jun 18

2019

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

30 Jun 17

4055151238
ABSA
19,217,325
1,034,171
1,531,269
1,851,185

4055418357
ABSA
244,857,647
17,004,751
15,372,599
13,730,552

4054636689
ABSA
811,718
581,425
819
41,425

4054394744
ABSA
-

4054394736
ABSA

Table 79: Cash Balances

From 30 June 2018, the City Power bank accounts are considered overdrawn, a trend which persists to date.

Cash Balance

3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000

-1,000,000

0

-2,000,000
-3,000,000
-4,000,000
2020

Net deficit after investing Activities

Opening cash balance

Closing cash balance before financing activities

Graph 13: Cash Balances

The bank overdraft of City Power is currently sitting at R3.8 billion as at 30 June 2020. The trajectory plotted above highlights the
impossibility of City Power being able to cover its operational and capital expenditure. Therefore, despite the availability of budget,
the business must always consider the availability of cash to finance any activity.

5.4.3 Cash Utilisation – Recalculated

The table below is a view of how cash has been utilised to finance the various operational and capital requirements of City Power
from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2020. This table was created with the intention of understanding how the current overdraft position
confronting City Power arose.

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

12,306,882

13,561,480

14,081,461

12,277,546

12,093,161

16,226,973

1,007,054

876,366

848,109

212,980

760,260

890,624

986,203

1,125,881

1,594,542

13,526,916

15,198,106

15,820,194

13,263,749

13,219,042

17,821,515

Grants

237,003

168,836

129,289

298,969

301,375

179,103

Other Income

102,098

47,984

212,955

77,462

462,333

115,212

Revenue
Eskom Revenue
Prepaid
Cash Received from sale of
Electricity

Interent Received

144,051

145 877

76,637

73,078

74,797

18,209

14,010,068

15,560,803

16,239,075

13,713,258

14,057,547

18,134,039

-11,582,201

-12,954,946

-14,883,521

-11,977,318

-12,523,913

-16,446,442

Bulk Purchases

-9,220,160

-10,022,325

-11,000,730

-10,642,162

-11,417,140

-13,361,455

Other

-2,362,041

-2,932,621

-3,882,791

-1,335,156

-1,106,773

-3,084,987

Employee Cost

-879,170

-923,822

-962,661

-1,077,438

-1,128,378

-1,176,160

Interest Paid

-317,159

-389,608

-431,575

-453,465

-541,719

-481,749

-12,778,530

-14,268,376

-16,277,757

-13,508,221

-14,194,010

-18,104,351

1,231,538

1,292,427

-38,682

205,037

-136,463

29,688

-443,522

-481,402

-472,130

-427,194

-403,244

-487,598

295,935

963,386

472,481

180,906

230,124

315,551

1,083,951

1,774,411

-38,331

-41,251

-309,583

-142,359

-2,195,250

-1,675,204

-1,059,977

-1,426,811

-1,215,699

-733,167

Purchases

Net Cash from Operating
Activities
Repayment of Loan
Receipt of capex loans
Net cash after financing
activities
Investment in Capex

Grants from national government during this period amounted to R1.3 billion while long-term loans received amounted to
R2.4 billion.
The balance of the expenditure was financed out of surplus cash generated as well as the overdraft. Given that these investments
were made at a time when City Power had no free cash flows is likely the reason behind the bank overdraft.
Total losses have increased from 19.84% as at 30 June 2017 to 28.42% as at 30 June 2020. A high percentage of this total loss
relates to non-technical losses and revenue billing inefficiencies. The technical losses have remained stable at 9% over years.
In the current financial year, City Power has realised a profit from December 2019 up to April 2020; however, in May and June
2020 the Entity recorded a deficit. A reduction in the bank overdraft by R7 million during the month of June 2020 was noted.

5.4.4 Financial Assistance

City Power obtains financial assistance via grants from government.

Sales Vs Invested Capital
200,000,000.00
180,000,000.00
160,000,000.00
140,000,000.00
120,000,000.00
100,000,000.00
80,000,000.00
60,000,000.00
40,000,000.00
20,000,000.00
0

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

Cash Received from sale of Electricity
Investment in Capex
Graph 14: Sales vs. Invested Capital
Over time, the ability of City Power to use its revenue to invest in capital expenditure has been diminishing.

5.4.5 Sustainability Risks

Net deficit after investing
Activities

-1,111,299

99,207

-1,098,308

-1,468,062

-1,525,282

-875,526

Opening cash balance

2,241,193

1,129,894

1,229,101

130,793

-1,337,269

-2,862,551

Closing cash balance
before financing activities

1,129,894

1,229,101

130,793

-1,337,269

-2,862,551

-3,738,077

The Board acknowledges its overall accountability for ensuring an effective results-driven, integrated risk management process.
Exco has implemented a risk control system to enable Management to respond appropriately to significant risks that could impact
negatively or positively on business objectives. Risk reviews are conducted with input from divisional and functional areas. Risks
are identified and ranked by divisions and groups. These risks are reviewed and then assessed by Exco, the Audit and Risk
Committee and the Board who will then determine the major operational, strategic and business continuity risks facing the Entity.
Risk ratings are finalised after considering the mitigation plans and executive accountability is assigned for each of the risks.

Table 80: Historical Cash Utilisation

City Power invested R8.3 billion in Capex expenditure over the five years which was financed by short-term loans (overdraft).
The Entity did not generate enough free cash to invest at this level of expenditure.
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6. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDITOR-GENERAL AUDIT FINDINGS
6.1.

Constitution of the Internal Audit Function within City Power

6.1.1 Progress on Resolution of Internal Audit Findings

The status regarding the resolution of Internal Audit findings is tabulated below:
Current Year: 2019/20

The Board is ultimately responsible to oversee the establishment of effective systems of internal control in order to provide
reasonable assurance that the Entity’s financial and non-financial objectives are achieved. Executing this responsibility includes
the establishment of an Internal Audit function in line with the provisions of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003;
recommendations of King IV and in accordance with the International Internal Audit Standards as published by the Institute of
Internal Auditors.

FY

Internal control refers to those processes aimed at achieving reasonable assurance regarding the realisation of the following
objectives:
•
•
•
•
•

The accomplishment of established objectives and goals for operations and programs
The economical and efficient use of resources
The reliability and integrity of financial and non-financial information
Compliance with relevant policies, procedures, laws and regulations
Safeguarding of assets

Internal Audit is governed by a charter that is reviewed annually by the Audit and Risk Committee. The purpose of this charter is to
define the role, organisational status, authority, responsibilities and scope of activities of the Internal Audit function as prescribed by
the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2004, section 165(1); and the guidelines of the King IV Report on Corporate Governance.
It also includes the principles underlying the realisation of the objectives of the function and the translation thereof.
The Internal Audit focus for the 2019/20 financial year provided timeous and value-adding assurance within the key business
areas; including probity audits for high-value bids.

6.2.

Progress on Internal Audit Plan

Opening Balance

Findings Raised

Resolved

% Resolved

Quarter 1

40

0

3

8%

Quarter 2

37

35

2

3%

Quarter 3

70

0

23

33%

Quarter 4

47

0

24

51%

Total

40

35

52

69%

Total Findings

Resolved

% Resolved

67

52

78%

Table 82: Resolution of Internal Audit Findings per Quarter

Current Year: 2019/20
Year-to-Date
Total Findings Adjusted by Eight (8) Findings
with Future-Dated Resolution
Table 83: Resolution of Internal Audit Findings for the Year

6.1.2 Progress on Resolution of External Audit Finding

The progress on External Audit resolution is categorised as findings affecting and not affecting the audit opinion.
Total
17

7

10

41%

73

52

21

71%

Total

90

59

31

66%

The approved plan for the 2019/20 financial year was achieved in full except for the following one planned audit tabulated below:

6.4.

The deferral of all first quarter audits to the second quarter and
lockdown resulted in bottlenecks in the last quarter of the year.

SCM – Risk of non-compliance

The audit will be finalised by the end of the first quarter of the
2020/21 financial year.

Table 81: Non-Achieved Internal Audit Processes

6.3.

Progress on Resolution of Internal Audit and External Audit Findings

The findings from both internal and external audit reports are tracked and followed up to confirm corrective action by Management
is taking place. Internal Audit is continuously following up on unresolved findings to verify that root causes are addressed by
Management thus preventing recurrence of the control deficiency. The process of following up on the resolution of both internal
and external audit findings is performed monthly but, in the last two months of the financial year, has been performed weekly.

% Resolved

Matters Not Affecting the Audit Report

Table 84: Resolution of External Audit Findings

Reason for Non-Achievement

Unresolved

Matters Affecting the Audit Report

Internal Audit prepares a three-year rolling combined assurance and Internal Audit plan. These are approved annually by the Audit
and Risk Committee.

Risk Name

Resolved

Overall State of Internal Controls

The statement on internal controls is an expression of an opinion by the Internal Audit Department on the status of the internal
control system of City Power Johannesburg after it has evaluated such. Both King IV and International Standards of Professional
Practice of Internal Auditing (ISPPIA) require Internal Audit to provide a written assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the internal controls.
The overall state of controls for the 2019/20 financial year is that controls were partially adequate and partially effective. The
overall state of controls is based on the internal audits that were performed during the year, including the follow-up of previously
raised deficiencies.
Management is working on the unresolved audit findings to ensure that the root causes are identified and addressed which will
positively impact our control environment. Internal Audit is tasked to track, monitor and report the audit findings to Exco and the
Audit and Risk Committee.

The rate of resolution of these audit findings has remained slow with only slight improvement in the second half of the year when
compared to the first half. Overall, the percentage resolution of audit findings for both the AGSA and Internal Audit findings is below
the desired 95% target.
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REPORT OF THE
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Report of the auditor-general to the Gauteng Provincial Legislature and
the council of the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality on
the City Power Johannesburg (SOC) Limited
i Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
1.

I have audited the financial statements of the City Power Johannesburg (SOC) Limited set out
on pages 170 to 249, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020,
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement
and the statement of financial position comparison: budget vs actual and statement of financial
performance comparison: budget vs actual for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

2.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the City Power Johannesburg (SOC) Limited as at 30 June 2020, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the South African
Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the
requirements of the Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003 (MFMA) and the
Companies Act 71 of 2008 (the Companies Act).

Basis for opinion
3.

I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor's report.

4.

I am independent of the municipal entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' International code of ethics for professional accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements
that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the lESBA code.

5.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Key audit matters
6.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most
significance in my audit of the financial statements for the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming my
opinion, and I do not provide a separate opinion or conclusion on these matters.
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a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
17. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included
in the annexure to this auditor's report.

I Report on the audit of the annual performance report
Introduction and scope
18. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PM) and the general notice issued in
terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information against predetermined objectives for selected objectives presented in
the annual performance report. I performed procedures to identify material findings but not to
gather evidence to express assurance.
19. My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information,
which must be based on the municipal entity's approved performance planning documents. I
have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators
included in the planning documents. My procedures do not examine whether the actions taken
by the municipal entity enabled service delivery. My procedures also do not extend to any
disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in
respect of future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance
information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.
20. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in
accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting
framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected objective presented in
the municipal entity's annual performance report for the year ended 30 June 2020:

----Pages in the annual
performance report

Objective
Objective 2 - develop and maintain a reliable network infrastructure
asset

106-109

21. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was
consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I performed further
procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and
relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine
whether it was valid, accurate and complete.
22. I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for this objective:
•
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Other matter
23. I draw attention to the matter below.
Achievement of planned targets
24. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 100 to 109 for information on the achievement
of planned targets for the year.

I Report on the audit of compliance with legislation
Introduction and scope
25. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a
responsibility to report material findings on the municipal entity's compliance with specific
matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather
evidence to express assurance.
26. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:
Annual financial statements
27. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in
accordance with the requirements of section 122(1) of the MFMA. Material misstatements of
property plant and equipment, commitments and events after reporting date identified by the
auditors in the submitted financial statement were subsequently corrected, resulting in the
financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.
Expenditure management
28. Expenditure was incurred in excess of the approved budget, in contravention of section 87(8)
of the MFMA.
29. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure of
R15 486 000 as disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements, in contravention of section
95(d) of the MFMA. The majority of the disclosed fruitless and wasteful expenditure was
caused by interest and penalties on late payments.
30. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure of R1 400 846 000, as
disclosed in note 45 to the financial statements, as required by section 95(d) of the MFMA.
The majority of the irregular expenditure was caused by contravening SCM regulation 5,
preferential procurement regulation 9(1) and SCM regulations 36(1)(a) and 32.
Revenue management
31. An adequate management, accounting and information system that accounts for revenue was
not in place, as required by section 97(h) of the MFMA.
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ANNEXURE A:

AUDIT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS – FINANCIAL YEAR 2019/20
Date of Meeting

Subject

Recommendation

01 Aug 2019

COMBINED ASSURANCE 3-YEAR PLAN
(2019/2020 TO 2021/2022)

The Committee RESOLVED that Internal Audit’s 3-Year
Combined Assurance Plan 2019/2020 until 2021/2022 be
APPROVED and submitted to Board for NOTING.

01 Aug 2019

INTERNAL AUDIT 1-YEAR PLAN (2019/2020)

The Committee RESOLVED that Internal Audit’s 1-Year
Plan 2019/2020 be APPROVED and submitted to Board
for NOTING.

01 Aug 2019

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER (2019/2020)

It was RESOLVED that, subject to the amendments as
discussed by the Members, the reviewed Internal Audit
Charter be APPROVED and submitted to Board for
NOTING.

01 Aug 2019

SCM ANNUAL PROCUREMENT REPORT
(2018/2019)

It was RESOLVED that the Round Robin Resolution
passed be RATIFIED as follows:
It was RECOMMEND that:
1. the contents of the report and the information
contained therein be NOTED.
2. the CFO, in compliance with Regulation 6(4) of
the Supply Chain Management Regulations,
publish the report in the manner prescribed in
Section 21A of the Local Government: Municipal
Systems Act No 32 of 2000, for access thereof by
the public.
3. the report be RECOMMENDED to Board for
APPROVAL for SUBMISSION to the Shareholder for
NOTING.
It was NOTED that the reporting for the 4th Quarter of
2018/19 was included in the Annual Report.
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01 Aug 2019

ALIGNMENT OF THE COUNCIL-APPROVED
BUSINESS PLAN WITH THE COUNCILAPPROVED BUDGET

The Committee RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that the
Board NOTE the alignment of the Council-approved
Business Plan with the Council-approved Budget and
NOTE that the formal

01 Aug 2019

2019/2020 CAPEX DEMAND PLAN

It was RESOLVED that the revised Capex budget
as set out in the Demand Plan for 2019/2020 be
RECOMMENDED to the Board for APPROVAL.
It was further RESOLVED that projects above
R10 million as outlined in the Demand Plan for 2019/2020
be RECOMMENDED to Board for APPROVAL.

01 Aug 2019

2019/2020 OPEX DEMAND PLAN

It was RESOLVED that the 2019/2020 Opex Demand Plan
be NOTED and submitted to Board for NOTING.

01 Aug 2019

CURRENT TAX STATUS OF THE COMPANY

It was RESOLVED that the report be NOTED and
submitted to Board for NOTING.

01 Aug 2019

AUDIT READINESS

It was RESOLVED that the audit readiness of the Entity be
NOTED and submitted to Board for NOTING.

01 Aug 2019

GOING CONCERN

It was RESOLVED that the report be NOTED and
submitted to Board for NOTING.

01 Aug 2019

OVERDRAFT BANK ACCOUNT (CIRCULAR 61)

It was RESOLVED that the report be NOTED and
submitted to Board and the Shareholder for NOTING.

01 Aug 2019

PREPAID MUNICIPAL SURCHARGE

It was RESOLVED that the report be NOTED and
submitted to Board and the Shareholder for NOTING.

01 Aug 2019

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN

It was RESOLVED that the 2019/20 Enterprise Risk
Management Plan be RECOMMENDED to Board for
APPROVAL.

01 Aug 2019

4TH QUARTERLY COMPANY PERFORMANCE
REPORT (2018/2019)

It was RESOLVED that the Report be NOTED and
submitted to Board for NOTING.
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Date of Meeting

Subject

Recommendation

Date of Meeting

Subject

Recommendation

01 Aug 2019

INSOURCING OF SECURITY SERVICES

It was RESOLVED that the progress report in respect
of the Executive Mayor’s Project: Insource of Security
Services and its potential implications to City Power
be NOTED, and it be NOTED that the detailed Action
Plan to roll out the insource of security at City Power
on 01 October 2019 was being formulated by various
functionaries.
It was RESOLVED that the report would be updated as per
the discussion and submitted to Board for NOTING.

31 Oct 2019

SCM PROCUREMENT REPORT – 1ST
QUARTER (2019/2020) (including Contract
Management)

01 Aug 2019

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE COMMITTEE It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the updated Audit
and Risk Committee Terms of Reference to the Board for
APPROVAL.

26 Aug 2019

DRAFT ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR FY 2018/2019

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND, subject to the
amendments as discussed, the Draft Annual Financial
Statements for the 2018/2019 Financial Year to the Board
for APPROVAL for submission to the Auditor-General and
the Shareholder.

26 Aug 2019

DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2018/2019

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the Draft Annual
Integrated Report for the Year ended 30 June 2019,
subject to finalisation, to Board for APPROVAL.

It was RESOLVED that a deviation of receiving less than
three quotes was reported for the Quarter under review
be NOTED. A request for quotation was advertised for 7
days and only 2 bidders responded to the request. The
value of the award amounted to R1,098.00 and went to
Motlokwana Healthcare (Pty) Ltd.
It was RESOLVED that the one instance of emergency
procurement reported for the Quarter under review
be NOTED. The emergency procurement occurred
after the cyberattack in July 2019 and amounted to
R47,976,865.00. The vendors were Dynamic Recovery
Services, Altech Card Solutions, Dalitso Business
Equipment, Ontec Systems, and Jolenhla Consulting.
It was RESOLVED that the five cases of exceptional
procurement reported for the Quarter under review be
NOTED. Three of the cases were reported as contract
extension without impacting on the initial value of the
contract and had no monetary impact. Two were for the
upgrade of the Mulbarton and Mondeor Substations and
the third was for a replacement of the 11kV Feederboard
at Waterval Switching Station. The fourth exceptional
procurement case, dated 18 July 2019, was for repairs
and calibration directly with the sub-contractors amounting
to R732 000,00 (HV Test – R107 058,77 and Silicon
Engineering – R34 786.90).
The final exceptional procurement case, dated 19 July
2019, was for the removal of medical waste, amounting to
R676,000.00.
It was RESOLVED that it be NOTED that one instance of
irregular expenditure was reported for the Quarter under
review. A labour contract for maintenance of network,
street lights and service connection, amounting to
R205,837,913.00 was declared null and void by the Court.
The tender had been declared unconstitutional and set
aside by the Court. City Power was given an opportunity
to utilise the appointed panel for a grace period of 90
days from the date of the order. During the grace period
City Power was required to re-evaluate the bids ab initio.
Irregularities were identified during the re-evaluation and
thus the Court was consulted to request another extension
to allow City Power time to embark on a new procurement
process. GFIS had been requested to investigate the
irregularities identified during the re-evaluation to guide the
corrective action that must be taken by Management.
It was further RESOLVED that the proposed control
improvements in the SCM environment, as reflected in
the Proposed Controls in the SCM Environment Report
attached to the SCM Procurement Report, be NOTED.
It was RESOLVED that the SCM Report for the 1st Quarter
of 2019/2020 be NOTED and submitted to Board for
NOTING.

31 Oct 2019

OVERDRAFT POSITION

It was RESOLVED that the report be NOTED and
submitted to Board and the Shareholder for NOTING.

31 Oct 2019

PROGRESS ON 2019/2020 ADJUSTMENT
BUDGET AND PREPARATION OF 2020/21
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET

It was RESOLVED that the report be NOTED and
submitted to Board and the Shareholder for NOTING.

31 Oct 2019

AUDIT FINDINGS ANALYSIS FOR 2018/2019

It was RESOLVED that the report be NOTED and
submitted to Board and the Shareholder for NOTING.

31 Oct 2019

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN

It was RESOLVED that the 2019/20 Enterprise Risk
Management Plan be RECOMMENDED to Board for
APPROVAL.

Cleveland substation
CITY POWER

162

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

CITY POWER

163

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

Date of Meeting

Subject

Recommendation

Date of Meeting

Subject

Recommendation

27 Nov 2019

AG’s AUDIT REPORT ON THE AUDIT
OUTCOMES FOR THE 2018/2019 FINANCIAL
YEAR

It was RESOLVED that the Auditor-General’s Unqualified
Audit Opinion with Finding on the Financial Statements
of the Entity for the audit of 2018/2019 Financial Year be
NOTED and submitted to Board for NOTING and that the
Qualification on the Audit of Performance Objectives also
be NOTED.

13 Jan 2020

SCM AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT
REPORT – 2ND QUARTER (2019/2020)

27 Nov 2019

AG’s MANAGEMENT REPORT (YEAR ENDED
30 JUN 2019)

It was RESOLVED that the Auditor-General’s Report be
NOTED and submitted to Board for NOTING.

27 Nov 2019

AUDITED AFS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUN
2019

It was RESOLVED that subject to the outcome from the
Auditor-General on the treatment of tax issue, the audited
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June
2019 be RECOMMENDED to Board for APPROVAL.

27 Nov 2019

AUDITED ANNUAL INTEGRATED REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUN 2019

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the audited
Integrated Annual Report for the Financial Year ended 30
June 2019 to Board for APPROVAL and submission to the
Shareholder and the AG

It was RESOLVED that the two deviations of receiving
less than three quotes which were reported for the Quarter
under review be NOTED. In both cases a request for
quotation was advertised for 7 days and only 2 bidders
responded to each request. The value of the one award
amounted to R57,500.00 and went to Yibaa Holdings.
The second award went to Dash Trading Enterprises
amounting to R20,100.00.
It was RESOLVED that the 3 cases of exceptional
procurement which were reported for the Quarter under
review be NOTED. The first was for National Key Point
Security on 08 Oct 2019 amounting to R2,131,000.00.
The second was for physical Security Services on
08 Oct 2019 amounting to R39,000,000.00, and the
final exceptional case of procurement was for external
witnesses amounting to R319,000.00.

27 Nov 2019

CONTRACTS MANAGEMENT POLICY

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the Contract
Management Policy to Board for APPROVAL.

13 Jan 2020

MID-YEAR ADJUSTMENT OPERATING AND
CAPITAL BUDGET (2019/2020)

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND to Board that the
Mid-Year Adjustment Operating and Capital Budget for the
2019/2020 Financial Year as contained in the report be
APPROVED.

13 Jan 2020

MID-YEAR BUSINESS PLAN DEVIATIONS
(2019/2020)

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND to Board that the
Mid-Year Business Plan Deviations for the 2019/2020
Financial Year as contained in the report be APPROVED.

13 Jan 2020

2020/2021 OPERATING AND CAPITAL
BUDGET

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND to Board that the
proposed 2020/2021 Operating and Capital Budget as
contained in the report be APPROVED.

13 Jan 2020

2020/2021 DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND to Board that, subject
to amendments as discussed, the proposed 2020/2021
Draft Business Plan be APPROVED.

13 Jan 2020

RISK APPETITE AND TOLERANCE
FRAMEWORK (2019/2020)

13 Jan 2020

MID-YEAR QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE
REPORT (2019/2020)

It was RESOLVED that the Mid-Year Quarterly
Performance Report (20192020) be APPROVED for
submission to the Shareholder.

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that Board
APPROVE the Risk Appetite and Tolerance Framework
(2019/2020).

13 Jan 2020

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT 3-YEAR PLAN
(2019/2020 TO 2021/2022)

It was RESOLVED that the revised Internal Audit 3-Year
Plan (2019/2020 to 2021/2022) was APPROVED.

13 Jan 2020

AUDIT TURNAROUND ACTION PLAN

It was RESOLVED that the Audit Turnaround Action Plan
be NOTED and submitted to Board for NOTING.

13 Jan 2020

ICT ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that Board
APPROVE the ICT Acceptable Use Policy.

13 Jan 2020

CONDONATION OF IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS
AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE (2018/2019)

It was NOTED that Management was in the process of
capacitating the Internal Audit unit.
It was further NOTED that a follow-up would be made in
regard to the amount condoned by the Board but not yet
approved by MPAC as reflected in the report.
It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND to Board the
CONDONATION of the amount of R22.2 million in irregular
expenditure, as reflected in the report, for submission to
the Shareholder.

13 Jan 2020

ICT CHANGE MANAGEMENT POLICY

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that Board
APPROVE the ICT Change Management Policy.

13 Jan 2020

ICT CLOUD COMPUTING POLICY

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that Board
APPROVE the ICT Cloud Computing Policy.

13 Jan 2020

ICT SERVICE CONTINUITY POLICY

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that Board
APPROVE the ICT Service Continuity Policy.

13 Jan 2020

ICT INFORMATION SECURITY POLICY

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that Board
APPROVE the ICT Information Security Policy.

13 Jan 2020

ICT SERVICE MANAGEMENT POLICY

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that Board
APPROVE the ICT Service Management Policy.

13 Jan 2020

ICT MOBILE DEVICE POLICY

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that Board
APPROVE the ICT Mobile Device Policy.

13 Jan 2020

ICT PROGRAMME GOVERNANCE
MANAGEMENT POLICY

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that Board
APPROVE the ICT Programme Governance Management
Policy.

21 May 2020

TARIFF INCREASE PROPOSAL FOR
2020/2021

The Committee RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the Tariff
Increase Proposal for 2020/2021 to Board for APPROVAL
for submission to the Shareholder and NERSA, subject to
the above amendments.

21 May 2020

SPECIAL ADJUSTMENT BUDGET (2019/2020)
(RATIFICATION)

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the Special
Adjustment Budget (2019/2020) to Board for APPROVAL
subject to the Memo on challenges and the effect it would
have on the Entity accompanying the report.
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It was RESOLVED that the two instances of irregular
expenditure reported for the Quarter under review
be NOTED. The first was for the Labour Contract for
maintenance of network, street lights and service
connections for which the tender was declared
unconstitutional and set aside by the Court. The amount
involved was R64,681,730.00. The second was for Zeda
Car Leasing (Pty) Ltd T/A Avis, where the contract expired
but was extended to 31 May 2020. The amount involved
was R29,804,395.00.
It was RESOLVED that the SCM Report for the 2nd
Quarter of 2019/2020 be NOTED and submitted to Board
for NOTING.
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Date of Meeting

Subject

Recommendation

Date of Meeting

Subject

Recommendation

21 May 2020

2020/2021 OPERATING AND CAPITAL
BUDGET

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the 2020/2021
Operating and Capital Budget to Board for APPROVAL
and submission to the Shareholder, subject to any
amendments required as a result of the final Tariff
approved by NERSA as well as any adjustment required
as a result of the impact of Covid-19 as agreed by the City.

21 May 2020

AUDIT TURNAROUND ACTION PLAN

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that Board ensures
that consequence management be implemented in relation
to the findings so that accountability could be enforced.

21 May 2020

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/2021

It was RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Plan 2020/2021
was APPROVED.

21 May 2020

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT –
QUARTER 3 (2019/2020)

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the 3rd Quarterly
Performance Report (2019/2020) to Board for NOTING.

21 May 2020

INVENTORY POLICY

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the Inventory Policy
to Board for APPROVAL.

21 May 2020

LITIGATION, LEGISLATION AND DECIDED
CASES REPORT

It was RESOLVED that the updated Litigation Report be
submitted to Board for NOTING.

21 May 2020

SECURITY RISK MANAGEMENT CAPABILITY
MATURITY MODEL

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the Security Risk
Management Capability Maturity Model to Board for
APPROVAL.

17 Jul 2020

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE COMMITTEE It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the Terms of
Reference of the Committee to the Board for APPROVAL.

17 Jul 2020

AG’S AUDIT STRATEGY PLAN & FEES FOR
2018/2019 AUDIT

It was RESOLVED that the Auditor-General’s Audit
Strategy for the 2019/2020 Financial Year be APPROVED
and submitted to Board for NOTING.
It was further RESOLVED that the Audit Fee for 2019/2020
of R8,495,747.00 (incl. VAT) be APPROVED and
submitted to Board for NOTING.

17 Jul 2020

UPDATE ON COUNCIL APPROVAL OF
BUDGET AND BUSINESS PLANS AND
POSSIBLE IMPACT

It was RESOLVED that the Report be NOTED and
submitted to Board for NOTING.

17 Jul 2020

LOAN RESTRUCTURING

It was RESOLVED that the Report be NOTED and
submitted to Board for NOTING.

17 Jul 2020

OVERDRAFT BANK ACCOUNT (CIRCULAR 61)

It was RESOLVED that the Report be NOTED and
submitted to Board for NOTING.

21 May 2020

2020/2021 DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN

21 May 2020
IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS &
WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE CONDONATION

21 May 2020

OVERDRAFT BANK ACCOUNT (CIRCULAR 61)

It was RESOLVED that the Overdraft Bank Account status
be NOTED and submitted to Board for NOTING.

21 May 2020

LOAN RESTRUCTURING

It was RESOLVED that the updated report, as per the
Members’ comments, be RECOMMENDED to the
Board for APPROVAL for the Entity to negotiate a loan
restructuring with the Shareholder.

21 May 2020

QUARTER 3 - SCM AND CONTRACT
MANAGEMENT REPORT

It was RESOLVED that the eight deviations of receiving
less than three quotes reported for the Quarter be NOTED.
In each case the Request for Quotations was advertised
for 7 days and only 2 bidders responded to the request.
The bids were awarded as follows:
Doble Engineering Africa (R126,004.95), Lundstar
(R34,560.00), HV Test Repair and Calibration (PO
number 4502225548) (R24,664.00), HV Test Repair and
Calibration (PO number 4501115579) (R22,114.00), HV
Test Repair and Calibration (PO number 4501115594)
(R4,557.00), Yibaa Holdings (R102,400.00), Dash Trading
(R61,750.00), Anton Paar Southern Africa (Pty) Ltd
(R8,357.00).
It was RESOLVED that it be NOTED that included in
the 3rd Quarter report was the irregular amount of R737
million, of which 92% related to the expenditure incurred
on the labour contract. Due to the fact that the spend on
the labour contract was authorised by the Court of Law,
City Power had yet to establish if the action by the Court
was tantamount to a condonation or not. In this regard, a
legal opinion would be sought regarding the competence
of the Court to condone expenditure.
It was RESOLVED that it be NOTED that the public
adjudication and public sessions were suspended due to
Covid-19 and that 2 cases of exceptional procurement
were reported for the Quarter under review. The first
exceptional procurement case was for the hiring of
chairs and tables for testing of electricians in the labour
court matter that amounted to R116,840.00. The second
exceptional case reported was for physical security
services amounting to R19,783,285.00.
Is was further RESOLVED to NOTE that the
unprecedented Covid-19 pandemic had disrupted the
implementation of procurement transactions in the 3rd
Quarter of the Financial Year. National Treasury had
issued instruction that no new bids should be issued
during the lockdown period; the validity period and closing
dates of bids under consideration should be extended.
The lockdown had resulted in delays in finalisation of the
procurement transactions.
It was RESOLVED that the Quarter 3 (2019/2020)
SCM report was NOTED and be submitted to Board for
NOTING.

21 May 2020

FINANCIAL STATUS – 3rd QUARTER
(2019/2020)

CITY POWER

It was RESOLVED that the Financial Status – 3rd Quarter
(2019/2020) be NOTED and submitted to Board for
NOTING.
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Date of Meeting

Subject

Recommendation

Date of Meeting

Subject

Recommendation

17 Jul 2020

QUARTER 4 - SCM AND CONTRACT
MANAGEMENT REPORT

It was RESOLVED to NOTE that a moratorium
was placed on the use of Regulation 32 and 36
procurement methods.

17 Jul 2020

SCM ANNUAL PROCUREMENT REPORT
2019/2020

It was RESOLVED that, subject to amendments as
discussed, that:
the contents of the report and the information contained
therein be NOTED.
the CFO, in compliance with Regulation 6(4) of the
Supply Chain Management Regulations, publish the
report in the manner prescribed in Section 21A of the
Local Government: Municipal Systems Act No 32 of
2000, for access thereof by the public.

It was RESOLVED to NOTE that the Bids extended
for the Quarter were as follows: The closing date
for Bid nr. 2352GS was extended to 19 Jun 2020,
the closing dates for Bids nr 2369GS, 2372S and
2317G were extended to 17 Jul 2020. It was further
NOTED that the Bids not concluded for the Quarter
were reported as follows: Bids nr. 2351G, 2361G,
2362GS and 23662 were reported as ‘evaluation status
completed’. Bid nr. 2360GS was report as ‘evaluation
status in progress’ and Bid nr. 2373S was reported as
‘evaluation status not commenced’.
It was RESOLVED to NOTE that there were two
deviations of receiving less than three quotes reported
for the Quarter under review. In each case the
Request for Quotations was advertised for 7 days and
only 2 bidders responded to the request. The bids
were awarded to McClain Capital (Pty) Ltd (R41,050)
and Silver Spectrum Solutions (R171,000).
					
It was RESOLVED to NOTE that four instances of
irregular expenditure were reported for the Quarter.
The irregular expenditure reported was predominantly
incurred following the approval by the Court to continue
utilising the service providers although the related
contract was deemed unconstitutional and null and
void by the Courts. The legal opinion received was
being clarified with the attorneys. At the moment, the
opinion suggested that the expenditure flowing from
the Labour Contract based on the approval by the
Courts was not irregular and, in this regard, it appeared
the expenditure would be reported as condoned by
the Court in the Financial Statements for the current
Financial Year. In terms of Circular 68, City Power
would still need to report the expenditure to Council
for certification that the expenditure was irrecoverable.
It was RESOLVED that it be NOTED that irregular
expenditure was reported as follows: R697,144,281
spent on various service providers under the labour
contract for maintenance of network, street lights and
service connections. R193,220 spent on Sixth Sense,
the sub-contractor used to gather evidence and had
to be brought back to finalise the disciplinary case.
R84,076 was reported spent on Grant Thornton, the
strategic partner used to gather evidence and had
to be brought back to finalise the disciplinary case.
R39,060,558 was spent on Zeda for the fleet contract
secured by the City and extended after the expiry date.

The report be RECOMMENDED to Board for
APPROVAL for SUBMISSION to the Shareholder for
NOTING.
17 Jul 2020

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT –
QUARTER 4 (2019/2020)

It was RESOLVED that the 4th Quarterly Company
Performance Report (2019/2020) be APPROVED and
submitted to the Board for NOTING.

17 Jul 2020

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the Enterprise
Risk Management Policy to Board for APPROVAL.

17 Jul 2020

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the ERM Plan to
Board for APPROVAL.

17 Jul 2020

FRAUD PREVENTION POLICY AND MOU

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that the Fraud
Prevention Policy to Board for APPROVAL.
It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the ADOPTION of
the Memorandum of Understanding to the Board.

17 Jul 2020

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER

It was RESOLVED that, subject to amendments, the
Internal Audit Charter be APPROVED and submitted to
Board for NOTING.

17 Jul 2020

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT – QUARTER 4
(2019/2020)

It was further RESOLVED that a 2-pager Report be
prepared for submission to the Board on the capacity
constraints in the Internal Audit Department.

It was RESOLVED that it be NOTED that there was
one instance of emergency procurement reported for
the Quarter under review. It was for implementation of
services, security technologies and solutions to resolve
a cyberattack amounting to R28,057,340.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate accounting records and are
responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is the
responsibility of the Directors to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the entity as at the end of
the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express
an independent opinion on the annual financial statements and were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The Directors have the pleasure of submitting their report, including the audited annual financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2020.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.
The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and
prudent judgements and estimates.

1.		 Incorporation
The entity was incorporated on 30 November 2000 and obtained its certificate to commence business on 1 January 2001.
The Companies Act, 2008 (Act 71 of 2008) became effective on 1 May 2011 and applies to annual financial periods beginning
after 1 May 2011 as per proclamation R.32 published in Government Gazette 34239 on 26 April 2011. The Companies Act, 2008
repealed the whole of the Companies Act, 1973 (Act 61 of 1973), except for Chapter 14 in as far as it deals with the liquidation
and winding-up of insolvent companies.

The Directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the entity and
place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Directors to meet these responsibilities, the
Directors set standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include
the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation
of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the entity and all employees are required to
maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances
is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of
risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

In terms of section 4(1)(c) of Schedule 5 (transitional arrangement) to the Companies Act, 2008, the entity is deemed to have
amended its Memorandum of Incorporation as of the general effective date to have changed its name in so far as required to
comply with section 11(3).

To address the stagnation in the internal control environment particularly relating to Supply Chain Management (SCM), contracts
management and reporting of performance information identified in the previous year’s management letter, the Directors subjected
these areas to an internal audit during the current financial year to identify the gaps and make recommendations for improvement. The
review of Annual Financial Statements and Integrated Annual Report were also subjected to an internal audit review. The contracts
management unit has been resourced and the necessary performance management is now taking place. The overhaul of the SCM
environment to include use of an electronic system is also receiving attention. To improve the accuracy and completeness of revenue
figures, a data definition exercise is being embarked on. The focus of the Directors for the coming financial year will also be extended to
streamlining organisational arrangements to allow timeous consequence management on irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

2.		 Review of Activities

The Directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, expert opinion where appropriate,
that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or deficit.
The Directors have reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2021 and, in the light of this review and the current
financial position, they are satisfied that the entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. The entity has generated positive cash flows from operations, however, the liquidity of the entity remains of concerns.
The Directors are exploring a financial recovery plan that will include a debt restructure with the shareholder. The Directors opinion on
the liquidity and going concern position of the entity is based on and dependent on the shareholder’s continued support of the entity’s
cash requirements for both operational and capital requirements through current account and long term loans to make up the shortfall
in revenue and cash collections, should this be required.
The Board of Directors are primarily responsible for the financial affairs of City Power Johannesburg Soc Ltd (herein referred to as the entity).
The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the entity’s annual financial statements. The annual
financial statements set out on pages 174 to 249, which have been prepared on the going concern basis.

Therefore, in terms of the Companies Act, 2008 (Act 71 of 2008) as from 1 May 2011, the name of the entity is City Power
Johannesburg (SOC) Ltd.
All references to the Companies Act in these annual financial statements are to the Companies Act, 2008, unless otherwise
indicated.

Main Business and Operations
The entity is a municipal-owned entity. The principal activity of the Entity is the distribution of electricity to industries, businesses
and households in Johannesburg. The entity operates principally in areas of supply in Johannesburg, South Africa.
The World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 an international health emergency on 30 January 2020 and a pandemic on
12 March 2020.
The virus, originating in Wuhan, China in December 2019, has impacted the global economic markets significantly. These events
prompted the South African government to declare a National State of Disaster on 15 March 2020, followed by a nationwide
lockdown from 27 March 2020, which has resulted in significant restrictions on movement and operations across all communities
and sectors. This pandemic has adversely affected the cash collection from consumer debtors in the current financial period.
The economic impacts have resulted in the lowering of prime interest rates by the South African Reserve Bank from 9.75% at the
financial year end to 8.75% on 20 March 2020, lowering further to 7.75% on 15 April 2020 and currently at 7.25%
from 22 May 2020.
The operating results and state of affairs of the entity are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements. Net surplus(deficit)
of the entity after tax for the year ended 30 June 2020 is R69 794 000 (2019: -R501 085 000).

3.		 Going Concern
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

Adv. L Maseko
Chairperson
CITY POWER
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4.		 Subsequent Events

11.

Directors

The entity’s application for exemption from income tax was heard in the Supreme Court on 6th November 2020. The court
delivered its judgement on 20 November 2020, which denied the entity’s exemption. An application is been submitted to the
Supreme Court to appeal its decision in the Constitutional Court.

The Directors of the entity during the year and at the date of this report are as follows:
Name

Nationality

Changes

Mr. L Nage – Chairperson

South African

Resigned Wednesday, March 11, 2020

Mr. W Mathamela – Chairperson

South African

Appointed Wednesday, March 11, 2020

Dr. H Chewane

South African

Resigned Wednesday, March 11, 2020

The Shareholder appointed the following as Non-Executive Directors of the Entity: Adv. Lindiwe Maseko (Chairperson), Nomvuyiso
Batyi, Mandla Eugene Hector Seopela, Pumzile Kedama, Naledi Kgope, Errol Vincent Magerman, Patricia Noluthando Marah,
Lerato Mathabatha, Pulane Mogotsi, Khehla Mthembu, Bonolo Ramokhele, Kenny Setzin, Bheki Twala and Mfuni Xolo (Financial
Director and Executive Director). It was also noted that Nancy Maluleke is the current Acting Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director.

Mr. D Gibson

South African

Resigned Wednesday, March 11, 2020

Mr. N Kgope

South African

Appointed Wednesday, March 11, 2020

Mr. D Hunt

South African

Resigned Wednesday, March 11, 2020

Ms. K Lehloenya

South African

Appointed Wednesday, March 11, 2020

Mr. N Kganakga

South African

Resigned Wednesday, March 11, 2020

The City of Johannesburg Council certified as irrecoverable and wrote off an amount of amount of R236 024 632 in irregular
expenditure by the entity for the 2017/18 and 2018/19 financial years on 27th October 2020.

Ms. K Mthembu

South African

Appointed Wednesday, March 11, 2020

Mr. M Mello

South African

Appointed Wednesday, March 11, 2020

Mr. B Ramokhele

South African

Appointed Wednesday, March 11, 2020

Mr. K Setzin

South African

Appointed Wednesday, March 11, 2020

Ms. B Mathebula

South African

Resigned Wednesday, March 11, 2020

Mr. T Mofokeng

South African

Resigned Wednesday, March 11, 2020

Mr. M Seopela

South African

Mr. L Setshedi – Executive

South African

Mr. B Tjia

South African

Ms. N Xolo – Executive

South African

Ms. P Thobejane

South African

Appointed Wednesday, March 11, 2020

Mr. B Twala

South African

Appointed Wednesday, March 11, 2020

At a Special General Meeting held on 10 February 2021, the Shareholder retired Kabelo Lehloenya and Magatho Mello as NonExecutive Directors, and William Mathamela as a Non-Executive Director and as Chairperson of the Board.

Mineral Resources and Energy Minister Gwede Mantashe gazetted amendments to Electricity Regulations on New Generation
Capacity on 16 October 2020. Only municipalities that are in good financial standing will be allowed to buy or generate their own
electricity.
The Directors are not aware of any other matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year, not otherwise dealt with
within the financial statements that would affect the operations or results of the entity significantly.

5.		 Directors’ Personal Financial Interest
The Directors of the entity did not have any personal interest in contracts entered into by the entity during the current financial year.

6.		 Accounting Policies

Resigned Wednesday, March 11, 2020

12. Secretary

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board as the framework prescribed by The National Treasury.

7.		 Share Capital/Contributed Capital
There were no changes in the authorised or issued share capital of the entity during the year under review. The entire shareholding
of the entity is held by the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality.
Unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality.

8.		 Borrowing Limitations
All external funding is managed under the auspices of the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality Asset and Liability
Committee and Treasury Department.

9.		 Non-Current Assets

The secretary of the entity is Mr. MJ Smith.
Business address:
40 Heronmere Road
Reuven
Johannesburg
Gauteng
2016
Postal address:
PO Box 38766
Booysens
Gauteng
2016

13. Corporate Governance

There were no major changes in the physical nature of non-current assets of the entity during the year.

10. Dividends

The entity confirms and acknowledges its responsibility to total compliance with King lV Report on Corporate Governance for
South Africa. The Directors (executive director) discuss the responsibilities of management in this respect, at Board meetings and
monitors the entity’s compliance with the code during the year.

No dividends were declared or paid to the shareholder during the year.
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The salient features of the entity’s adoption of the Code is outlined below:

13.5 Independent Audit committee

13.2 Board of Directors

The Audit committee consists of 3 non-executive Directors and 3 independent members.The committee met 6 times during the
2019/2020 financial year to review matters necessary to fulfil its role.

The Board:

•	Retains control of the plans and strategy of the entity. However due to the mechanism implemented by the Shareholder the
Board is not in control of certain aspects of the entity’s value chain including budgeting, billing and revenue collection.
•	Acknowledges its responsibilities as to strategy, compliance with internal policies, external laws and regulations, effective risk
management and performance measurement, transparency and effective communication both internally and externally by the entity;
•	Is a unitary structure comprising: Nine non-executive Directors, all of whom are independent Directors as defined in the Code
of Corporate Practices and Conduct (“the code”) laid out in the King lV Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa and
two executive Directors; Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

Chairperson and Chief Executive

The chairperson is a non-executive and independent director. Mr. W Mathamela was appointed chairperson of the Board after
Mr. L Nage retired.

In terms of Section 166 of the MFMA, the Audit committee shall consist of at least 3 (three) persons with appropriate experience,
of whom the majority may not be in the employ of the shareholder or City Power. In this regard the shareholder has appointed
3 (three) Independent Audit Committee members following the retirement of the previous members of the committee. The
Independent Audit Committee members are shown below:
•
•
•
•

Mr. R Moodley (Retired 19 August 2019)
Mr. V Mokwena (Appointed 17 April 2019)
Mr. H Moolla (Appointed 17 April 2019)
Mr. C Lithole (Appointed 11 March 2020)

The Audit Committee has fulfilled its responsibilities as provided for in section 166 of the MFMA.

The roles of chairperson and Chief Executive Officer are separate, with responsibilities divided between them, so that no individual
has unfettered powers of discretion.

INTERNAL AUDIT

13.3 Remuneration

The entity’s internal audit function is performed internally and assisted by outside service providers in areas where internal
capacity is inadequate. This is in compliance with the MFMA.

The remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer is determined by the Board of Directors within the parameters set by the City of
Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality as provided for in section 89 of the MFMA.

14. Controlling entity
The entity’s controlling entity is The City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality.

13.4 Board of Directors Meetings
The Board met on 8 (six) separate occasions during the financial year. The Board schedules to meet a minimum of 4 (four) times
per annum.
Non-executive Directors have access to all members of management of the entity.
Name

Board
Meeting

Total meetings

10

Rev. F Chikane – Chairperson

9

Mr. NE Galawe

5

Mr. Q Green

10

Risk,
Assurance
and Compliance
Committee
Meeting

5

Quarterly
Review
Committee
Meeting

Social &
Ethics
Committee
Meeting

HR & Remuneration
Committee
Meeting

AGM &
Workshops

4

4

4

4

5

6

The management of the treasury function within the municipal entity is managed under the auspices of the City of Johannesburg
Metropolitan Municipality Assets and Liabilities Committee and Treasury department.

16. Auditors

2
2

2

1

5

4

4

4

2
3

5
3

2

4

5

1

Mr. NSA Hlubi

8

2

8

4

Ms. S Makotoko

8

4

Ms. NP Mohlala

10

4

Mr. DR Mokhobo

7

2

Mr. D Naidu

10

5

Mr. TI Sithole

9

4

Mr. SG Xulu

8

4

1
6

2

4

1

5

5

2

3

2

2

1

1

6

1

3

1

4
3

2
3

1

Ms. ML Shongwe
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2

4

Ms. L Mabhena-Olagunju

CITY POWER

ABSA Limited and Standard Bank Limited.

The Auditor General of South Africa performs the audit in terms of section 92 of the MFMA.

Mr. V Lukhele

Mr. W Hattingh

Audit
Committee
Meeting

15. Bankers
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COMPANY SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Declaration by the company secretary in respect of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act

Figures in Rand thousand

In terms of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act, I certify that in respect of the year ended 30 June 2020 that the Entity has lodged with
the Commissioner all such returns as are required of a public company in terms of the Companies Act and that all such returns appear
to be true, correct and up to date.

as at 30 June 2020

Note(s)

2019
Restated*

88 826

50 999

Assets
Current Assets
Inventories

Mr. MJ Smith
Company Secretary

2020

3

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions

5

660 827

1 177 028

Trade and other receivables from non-exchange transactions

6

330 377

237 815

Consumer debtors

7

2 180 808

1 440 155

Value Added Tax

8

18 661

-

Cash and cash equivalents

9

265 237

18 966

3 544 736

2 924 963

15 301 732

14 984 545

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

10

Intangible assets

11

374 521

367 897

15 676 253

15 352 442

19 220 989

18 277 405

4

4 373 341

3 278 469

Current tax payable

12

168 706

153 820

Finance lease obligation

13

19 069

13 915

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

14

4 345 692

4 291 104

Trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions

15

9 375

3 220

Provisions

16

243 507

202 483

Value added tax

17

-

37 757

9 159 690

7 980 768

Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Loans from shareholders

Non-Current Liabilities
Loans from shareholders

4

2 275 177

2 477 555

Finance lease obligation

13

20 345

32 351

Employee benefit obligation

18

5 508

5 785

Deferred Income

19

74 962

97 554

Deferred tax

20

1 625 089

1 722 221

Consumer deposits

21

654 316

625 064

4 655 397

4 960 530

13 815 087

12 941 298

5 405 902

5 336 107

112 466

112 466

Accumulated surplus

5 293 436

5 223 641

Total Net Assets

5 405 902

5 336 107

Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Share capital / contributed capital

22

* See Note 46
CITY POWER
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note(s)

Figures in Rand thousand

for the year ended 30 June 2020
2020

2019
Restated*

Revenue

Figures in Rand thousand

Opening balance as previously reported

Revenue from exchange transactions
Service charges

25

16 012 393

14 361 885

22 787

34 593

602

556

14 305

16 051

362 557

396 681

Fees earned
Rental income
Reconnection fees
Other income

26

Interest income

27

Total revenue from exchange transactions

41 939

74 797

16 454 583

14 884 563

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies

28

Total revenue

264 298

224 165

16 718 881

15 108 728

(1 265 014)

(1 121 564)

Adjustments: Correction of errors
Restated* balance at 01 July 2018

Share capital/
contributed
capital

Accumulated
surplus

Total net
assets

112 466

5 569 297

5 681 763

-

155 429

155 429

112 466

5 724 726

5 837 192

Changes in net assets Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

-

(501 085)

(501 085)

Total changes

-

(501 085)

(501 085)

112 466

5 223 642

5 336 108

Changes in net assets Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

-

69 794

69 794

Total changes

-

69 794

69 794

112 466

5 293 436

5 405 902

Restated* balance at 01 July 2019

Balance at 30 June 2020
* See Note(s) 22 and 46

Expenditure
Employee related costs

29

Administration

30

(104 017)

(98 687)

Depreciation and amortisation

31

(589 517)

(567 741)

Finance costs

32

Lease rentals on operating lease

(574 478)

(541 719)

(689 973)

(609 041)

Debt Impairment

33

(453 655)

(625 474)

Bulk purchases

34

(11 512 422)

(10 718 639)

General expenses

35

(1 557 142)

(1 383 989)

(16 746 218)

(15 666 854)

(27 337)

(558 126)

97 131

57 041

69 794

(501 085)

Total expenditure
Deficit before taxation
Taxation

36

Surplus (deficit) for the year
* See Note 46
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Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
29 252
13 967

1 111 220
1 424 223

Net cash flows arising from financing activities
601 081
990 471

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
246 271
2 031

18 966
16 935

265 237
18 966

CITY POWER
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-376 405

(376 405)

The original budget was amended due to the anticipated reduction in electricity sales.

6 324 482

Total Net Assets

112 466
6 212 016

616 398

50 914

4 556 421
11 452 945

52 913

-

-

(5 885)

20 020

(16 134)

565 484

-

551 640

(2 820)

-

(2 680 318)

(2 634)

2 699 616

239 993

578 990

Accumulated surplus

Share capital and share premium

NET ASSETS

Total Liabilities

Consumer deposits

1 948 857

63 426
Deferred tax

15 136
Deferred income

-

1 950 012

6 896 524

43 492

325 050

Employee benefit obligation

Finance lease obligation

Loan from shareholder

Non-Current Liabilities

Provisions

Current tax payable

5 670 781

816 489
Finance lease obligation

17 777 427

-148 939

15 543 701

37 284
(186 223)

312 125

Loan from shareholder

VAT payable

Cash receipts from consumer deposits

Trade and other payables from non-exchange
transactions

74 797

Trade and other payables from exchange
transactions

41 939

Current Liabilities

Interest received

LIABILITIES

19 203

Total Assets

(541 719)

(6 852)

15 231 576

80 150

2 622 658

-

-

1 877 681

664 827

5 948 077

5 835 611

112 466

12 069 343

4 607 335

631 903

1 948 857

63 426

9 251

20 020

1 933 878

7 462 008

-

595 132

322 230

2 990 463

38 078

3 516 105

18 017 420

15 394 762

125 902

15 268 860

Cash flows arising from financing activities

Intangible assets

Funds advanced from shareholder
(10 780)

(1 220 602)

Property, plant and equipment

(574 478)

Finance lease payments
32&22
(41 413)

(907 551)

388 932

11

2 233 726

Purchase of other intangible assets

Non-Current Assets

(1 209 822)

-

(866 138)

Cash and cash equivalents

10

-

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

184 624

232 162

-

552 741

1 693 057

38

VAT receivables

(13 750 588)

Consumer receivables

(15 111 880)

-

-

(207 045)

237 815

Cash flows arising from investing activities
-

(41 533)

Trade and other receivables from non-exchange
transactions

Interest paid
88 826

5 405 902

5 293 436

112 466

13 815 087

4 655 397

654 316

1 625 089

74 962

5 508

20 345

2 275 177

9 159 690

243 507

168 706

9 375

4 345 692

19 069

4 373 341

19 220 989

15 676 253

374 521

15 301 732

3 544 736

265 237

18 661

2 180 808

330 377

660 827

-542 175

(542 175)

-

1 745 744

48 062

22 413

(323 768)

11 536

(3 743)

325

341 299

1 697 682

243 507

(426 426)

(322 230)

9 375

1 355 229

(19 009)

857 236

(1 203 569)

(281 491)

(248 619)

(32 872)

-922 078

(265 237)

(18 661)

(303 127)

(330 377)

4 000

(8 676)

(1 128 378)

(12 415 165)

(33 507)

Net cash flows arising from investing activities
(1 220 947)

(13 849 400)

113 657

Net cash flows arising from operating activities
-9%

0%

4%

-17%

18%

-40%

2%

18%

-72%

-100%

45%

-50%

24%

-197%

0%

-16%

1%

-11%

Surplus realised below budget

Increase in deposits received from customers

Prior year errors not reflected in budget

Projects undertaken not yet completed

Decrease in qualifying employees

Increase in capital expenditure loans

Budget included in Trade and other payables

Offset of VAT refunds not reflected in budget

Unpaid VAT refunds resulted in an asset

Budget included in Trade and other payables

Budget includes provisions

Decrease in quantity of vehicles leased

Lower revenue and higher capital expenditure

Purchase of additional software for ICT security

Bank balance not swept at year end

Unpaid VAT refunds

Due to poor collection levels

Grants not yet received from COJ

Delays in drawing material due to Covid-19

301 375

13 982 750

427 012

Taxes paid
149 144

15 664 621

Inventory

Cash payments to employees
462 333

Trade and other receivables from exchange
transactions

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
13 219 042

403 097

Current Assets

ASSETS

Cash receipts from grants
15 112 380

%

Cash receipts from charges for goods and services

R’000

Cash receipts from other income

R’000

Payments
Variance

Receipts
2019
Restated*

Variance

Cash flows arising from operating activities
2020

Actual

Note(s)

Revised
Budget
R’000

Figures in Rand thousand

Budget
Adjustment
R’000

for the year ended 30 June 2020

Original
Budget
R’000

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION COMPARISON:
BUDGET VS ACTUAL
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The original budget was amended due to the anticipated reduction in electricity sales.

142 357

339 752

339 752

(27 337)

574 478

547 141

16 171 740

50 641

47

2 626

6 900

47 643

449

7 771

69 794

197 395

142 357

703 029

1 042 781

15 987 255

695

10 189

11 211

43 070

2 862

9 496

3 327
67 912

Net surplus for the year

197 395

Net income before tax

285 418

427 775

1 800
45 000

87 721

978 385

3 634

97 131

417 611

(1 164 397)

-

(500)

129

(6 999)

-

20

(3 247)

-

-

82 939

1 040 508

10 212

Actual
Balance
R’000

27 047

53

8 768

689 973

66 898

36 926

1 885

374

1 265 014

2

589 517

30 292

32 884

581

46 321

79

11 512 422

25 073

1 202

453 655

6 472

14 403

826

104 017

16 718 881

264 298

442 190

16 012 393

Actual
Balance
R’000

Taxation

615 006
Finance costs

17 151 652

1 195

Operating profit

Total operating costs

Tree pruning

Travel – overseas

10 060

18 210

Training
Travel – local

43 070

Telephone and fax

2 842

12 743

Staff welfare
Subscriptions and membership fees

1 800
45 000

Software expenses

(37 474)

(177 371)

1 217 879
120 413

16

Revised
Budget
R’000
Budget
Adjustment
R’000
Original
Budget
R’000

10 196

9

56 392

375

10 300

658 104

74 700

5 953

20 603

6 324

5 794

1 266 318

561

358

591 556

36 058

370

95 081

5 907

50 415

744

10 963 812

18 884

3 094

629 082

7 390

15 714

24 837

180 538

17 030 036

205 487

517 112

16 307 436

Revised
Budget
R’000

-

(19 724)

-

481

(10 811)

-

-

(15)

-

(414)

(2 130)

-

-

(7 036)

-

-

(10 799)

473

-

-

(923 568)

-

(200)

37 971

1 300

-

-

(4 499)

(736 622)

(2 743)

(8 500)

(725 379)

Budget
Adjustment
R’000

9

76 116

375

9 819

668 915

Sundry expenses

Security (guarding of municipal property)

Repairs and maintenance

Printing and stationery

Postage and courier

Motor vehicle expenses

Magazines, books and periodicals

Levies

Lease rentals on operating lease

74 700

5 953

Hostel charges
Insurance

20 618

6 324

Eskom free electricity
Material issues

6 208

Entertainment

1 268 448

561

Disposal of fixed assets (Loss)
Employee costs

358

598 592

36 058

370

105 880

5 434

50 415

744

11 887 380

18 884

Donations

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments

Cut off fees

Consumables

Consulting and professional fees

Conferences and seminars

Commission paid

Cleaning

Bulk purchases

Meter reading and audit

Bank charges

6 090
591 111

Bad debts written off

15 714

Assessment rates & municipal charges
Auditors remuneration

24 837

185 037

Advertising

Administration and management fees

17 766 658

208 230

Government grants
Total revenue

525 612

17 032 816

Other income

Service charges

Original
Budget
R’000

%

R’000

62 123

(269 958)

97 131

(367 089)

128 551

(495 640)

(184 485)

(50 641)

648

7 563

4 311

(4 573)

2 413

1 725

(22 912)

(1 527)

(4 782)

-137%

-186%

-31%

-81%

54%

75%

24%

-11%

85%

14%

-51%

-85%

-4%

5%

65%

Variance

Variance

6 578

100%

39%

86%

16%

-5%

10%

100%

-79%

70%

87%

0%

100%

100%

0%

16%

100%

59%

98%

8%

89%

-5%

-33%

57%

30%

15%

8%

97%

41%

28%

-14%

9

29 345

322

1 532

(31 869)

7 802

5 953

(16 323)

4 439

5 420

1 304

559

358

2 039

5 766

370

62 197

5 326

4 094

665

(548 610)

(6 189)

1 892

175 427

918

1 311

24 011

76 521

(311 155)

58 811

(74 922)

-2%

%

R’000

(295 043)

Variance

Variance

Budget included in Administration fees

Cost-saving measures introduced

Cost-saving measures introduced

Cost-saving measures introduced

Due to employees working from home during Covid

Cost-saving measures introduced

Due to low number of employees requesting
educational assistance

Cyberattack necessitated additional software patches

Increase in Health campaigns due to Covid

Less maintenance due to Covid

Decrease in printing of documents. Circulated
electronically

Less usage of rented vehicles

Cost saving measures introduced

Less skills development paid due to vacancies

Increase in Kelvin lease cost

Actuals now included in salary costs

Higher consumption than expected due to Covid

Fewer applicants for assistance

Cost-saving measures introduced

No donations were made

Cut-offs and disconnections suspended during
Covid-19 hard lockdown

Reduction in line with National Treasury directive

Decrease in conferences and seminars attended

Decrease in prepaid revenue sales

Decrease in cleaning contractors utilised

Budget reduced in the Covid-19 special adjustment
budget

Increase in meter audits

Decrease in number of transactions

Budget increased in light of Covid-19

Increase in hours spent by AG

Actual expenditure centralised at the City

Tree pruning included in budget

Increase in grants received

Decrease in cut-off fees and DSM levy

Decrease in kWhs sold

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
COMPARISON: BUDGET VS ACTUAL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
COMPARISON: BUDGET VS ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Debtors with Credit Balances

1.		 Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

With regards to credit balances in consumer debtors, COJ allocates credit balances applicable to each entity using the billing
trend, allocation takes into account that credit balances are typically utilised through consumption of services to be provided by
COJ in the future. Management have applied judgement in determining the allocation basis, this is consistent with prior financial
years.

City of Johannesburg (COJ) invoices clients for the following revenue components: electricity on behalf of City Power, water
on behalf of Joburg Water, refuse on behalf of Pikitup and rates and taxes on behalf of COJ Core Administration. Revenue and
corresponding debtor is allocated to each municipal entity based on the actual consumption/billing.

for the year ended 30 June 2020

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance
Management Act (Act 56 of 2003).
These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise.

1.1

Presentation Currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity. All figures
are rounded to the nearest thousand Rand.

1.2

Significant Judgements and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of
judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be
material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Valuation of Loans and Receivables

The entity measures loans and receivables at amortised cost. The entity assesses its loans and receivables for impairment at each
reporting date. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the entity makes judgements
as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.
The allowance for impairment is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flow discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

Impairment Testing of Non-Financial Assets

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of valuein-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is
reasonably possible that the assumption may change which may then impact management’s estimations and may then require a
material adjustment to the carrying value of tangible assets.
The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of cash generating units and individual assets when events or changes in
circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which
identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment
may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows
used to determine the value-in-use of tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time. They are
significantly affected by a number of factors including economic factors.
Management used fair value less cost to sell to determine the recoverable amount of intangible assets with an indefinite useful life
and identifying assets that may have been impaired.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined estimates based on the information available. Additional disclosure of these
estimates of provisions are included in note 16 – Provisions.

Post-Retirement Benefits

The present value of the post-retirement obligation is based on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using
a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net liability include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post-retirement obligations.
The entity determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used to determine
the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In determining the
appropriate discount rate, the entity considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

Effective Interest Rate

The entity used the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality borrowing market rate as a basis for discounting financial
instruments.

Taxation

Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.The
entity recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
The entity recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable that the
deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax assets
requires the entity to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future taxable
income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws.To the extent that future cash
flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the entity to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded
at the end of the reporting period could be impacted.

1.3

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• It is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
•	The cost of the item can be measured reliably. Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date,
and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.
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Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired
item’s fair value was not determinable, its deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently
to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included in
the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation arises
as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.
The carrying amount of the work in progress is recognised in the various asset classes of property, plant and equipment.
Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of property,
plant and equipment.
Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item

Depreciation Method

Average Useful Life

Land

Straight line

Infinite

Buildings

Straight line

40 - 60 years

Leasehold property

Straight line

6 years

Plant and machinery

Straight line

• Transformers

55 years

• Transmission cables

61 - 85 Years

• Mini-substation

55 years

Furniture and fixtures

Straight line

6 - 20 years

Motor vehicles

Straight line

3 - 5 years

IT equipment

Straight line

3 - 9 years

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.
The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential are expected
to be consumed by the entity. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each reporting date and, if
there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.
The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the entity expectations about the residual value
and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the entity revises
the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
Assets which the entity holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of activities,
are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-sale. Proceeds from sales of these assets
are recognised as revenue. All cash flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in the cash flow
statement.
The entity separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the notes to the financial
statements (see note 35).
The entity discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the financial
statements (see note 10).

1.4

Intangible Assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:
•	Is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged,
either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends to
do so; or
•	Arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are transferable or
separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.
An intangible asset is recognised when:
•	It is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
entity; and
• The cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and supportable
assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset.
Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
at its fair value as at that date.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
• It is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
• There is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
• There is an ability to use or sell it.
• It will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.
• There are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.
•	The expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit
to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not provided for
these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
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Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the
asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its
useful life.

For amounts due to the entity, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and
default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.
Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit in the statement of financial performance.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as
intangible assets.
Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an intangible asset.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial asset at
the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item

Depreciation Method

Average Useful Life

Additional capacity rights

Straight line

Infinite

Computer software

Straight line

3 - 9 years

The entity discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the financial
statements (see note 11).
Intangible assets are derecognised:
• On disposal; or
• When no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use.

1.5

Financial Instruments

Classification

The entity classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:
• Financial assets at amortised cost
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained/incurred and takes place at initial
recognition.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
The entity classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or
an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Financial instruments are measured at fair value at initial recognition. The entity recognises financial assets using trade date
accounting.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets at amortised costs are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less
accumulated impairment losses.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Gains and Losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability measured at amortised cost is
recognised in surplus or deficit.

Impairment of Financial Assets

At each end of the reporting period the entity assesses all financial assets to determine whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset (or group of financial assets) has been impaired.
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Financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit within
operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially
measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition
Financial Assets
The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
• The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
•	The entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
•	The entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has transferred
control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated
third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer.
In this case, the entity:
– derecognise the asset; and
– recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.
The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred on
the basis of their amortised cost at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their amortised cost
at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in
surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received is recognised in surplus or deficit.
Financial Liabilities
The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is extinguished
– i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange transaction are
accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).
Statutory receivables are receivables that arise from legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means, and require settlement
by another entity in cash or another financial asset.
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position.
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The cost method is the method used to account for statutory receivables that requires such receivables to be measured at their
transaction amount, plus any accrued interest or other charges (where applicable) and, less any accumulated impairment losses
and any amounts derecognised.
Nominal interest rate is the interest rate and/or basis specified in legislation, supporting regulations or similar means.
The transaction amount (for purposes of this Standard) for a statutory receivable means the amount specified in, or calculated,
levied or charged in accordance with, legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means.

1.6

Tax

Current Tax Assets and Liabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect of
current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.
Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered
from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
surplus nor taxable profit (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable surplus
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is not recognised when
it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
surplus nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Finance Leases – Lessee

Finance leases are recognised in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of
financial position as a finance lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance of
the liability.
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception
date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the right to use the asset.
Finance leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

Operating Leases – Lessor

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the
amounts recognised as revenue and the contractual receipts are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.
The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
Any contingent rent is recognised separately as revenue when received or receivable and are not straight-lined over the lease term.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
surplus will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the
amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

Current tax and deferred taxes are recognised in net assets if the tax relates to items that are credited or recognised, in the same
or a different period, to net assets.

1.7

Operating Leases – Lessee

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
Any contingent rent is recognised separately as an expense when paid or payable and is not straight-lined over the lease term.

Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

1.8

Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

The entity recognises finance lease receivables as assets on the statement of financial position. Such assets are presented as a
receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or current replacement value. Inventories are
measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
• Distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
• Consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Finance revenue is recognised based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the entity’s net investment in the
finance lease.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Finance Leases – Lessor

Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.
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The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.
The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for specific
projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories
having a similar nature and use to the entity.

Discount Rate

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, represented by the current
risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

Recognition and Measurement (Individual Asset)

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or
related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the writedown or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value
or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

1.9

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in
future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic
basis over its remaining useful life.

Cash-Generating Units

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the entity determines the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset’s cash-generating unit).

Impairment of Cash-Generating Assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means that
positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is identified as
a cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. If the cash inflows generated by any asset or cashgenerating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the entity uses management’s best estimate of future price(s) that could
be achieved in arm’s length transactions in estimating:
• The future cash inflows used to determine the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value-in-use; and
•	The future cash outflows used to determine the value-in-use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are affected by
the internal transfer pricing.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is determined.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset of the unit on a pro rata basis,
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as impairment losses
on individual assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of
the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use. Useful
life is either:
• The period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or
• The number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity.

Identification

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset or cash-generating unit may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use.
When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.

Value-in-use

Value-in-use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
When estimating the value-in-use of an asset, the entity estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from continuing
use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the entity applies the appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows.

CITY POWER

196

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

In allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of:
• Its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable);
• Its value-in-use (if determinable); and
• Zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other cashgenerating assets of the unit.
Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount of that non- cashgenerating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit.

Reversal of Impairment Loss

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods
for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the
recoverable amount of that asset.
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the
asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of
an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
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A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata with the
carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment losses for individual
assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contributing service potential to a
cash-generating unit.
In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not increased above
the lower of:
• Its recoverable amount (if determinable); and
•	The carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior periods.
The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit.

Redesignation

The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash-generating asset to
a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation is appropriate.

1.10 Prior Year Errors
When the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements is amended, prior period comparative amounts are
reclassified. The nature and reason for the reclassification is disclosed.
Where accounting errors have been identified in the current financial year the correction is made retrospectively as far as it
is practical and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in
the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as it is practical and the prior year comparatives are restated
accordingly.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.
The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive
obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

Post-Employment Benefits: Defined Contribution Plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense in the financial period in which they are due.
Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans,
where the entity’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

Post-Employment Benefits: Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of providing the benefits for defined benefit plans is determined using the projected credit method. Actuarial valuations
are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan.
Consideration is given to any event that could impact the funds up to end of the reporting period where the interim valuation is
performed at an earlier date.
In measuring its defined benefit liability, the municipal entity recognises actuarial gains and losses in surplus or deficit in the
reporting period in which they occur.
In measuring its defined benefit liability, the municipal entity recognises past service cost as an expense in the reporting period in
which the plan is amended.
Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan are recognised when the entity is demonstrably committed
to curtailment or settlement.
When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other respects,
the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit plan is presented
as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

1.11 Employee Benefits

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation, and
reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

Short-Term Employee Benefits

Any asset is limited to the present value of available refunds and reduction in future contributions to the plan.

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.
Short-term employee benefits include items such as:
• Wages, salaries and social security contributions;
•	Short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the absences
is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related
employee service;
•	Bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in
which the employees render the related service; and
•	Non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars and
cellphones ) for current employees.
When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the undiscounted amount of
short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:
•	As a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted
amount of the benefits, the entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and
•	As an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.
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Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible.
Financial assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the period over which the obligations are to be settled.
The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations (both funded and unfunded) reflect the time value of money. The
currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency and
estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations.
Post-employment benefit obligations are measured on a basis that reflects:
• Estimated future salary increases;
•	The benefits set out in the terms of the plan (or resulting from any constructive obligation that goes beyond those terms) at the
reporting date; and
•	Estimated future changes in the level of any state benefits that affect the benefits payable under a defined benefit plan, if, and
only if, either:
• Those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or
•	Past history, or other reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefits will change in some predictable manner, for example,
in line with future changes in general price levels or general salary levels.
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Assumptions about medical costs take account of estimated future changes in the cost of medical services, resulting from both
inflation and specific changes in medical costs.

Other Post-Retirement Obligations

The municipality provides post-retirement health care benefits, housing subsidies and gratuities upon retirement to some retirees.
The entitlement to post-retirement health care benefits is based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and
the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.
Independent qualified actuaries carry out valuations of these obligations. The municipality also provides a gratuity and housing
subsidy on retirement to certain employees. An annual charge to income is made to cover both these liabilities.
The amount recognised as a liability for other long-term employee benefits is the net total of the following amounts:
• The present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date;
• Minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly.
The entity shall recognise the net total of the following amounts as expense or revenue, except to the extent that another Standard
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:
• Current service cost;
• Interest cost;
• The expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement right recognised as an asset;
• Actuarial gains and losses, which shall all be recognised immediately;
• Past service cost, which shall all be recognised immediately; and
• The effect of any curtailments or settlements.

1.12 Provisions and Contingencies

Capital commitments are not recognised in the Statement of financial position as a liability but are included in the disclosure note
in the following cases:
•	Approved and contracted commitments, where the expenditure has been approved and the contract has been awarded at the
reporting date, where disclosure is required by a specific standard of GRAP.
•	Approved but not yet contracted commitments, where expenditure has been approved and the contract is yet to be awarded
or is awaiting finalisation at the reporting date.
•	Contracts that are entered into before the reporting date, but goods and services have not yet been received are disclosed in
the disclosure notes to the financial statements.

1.14 Revenue from Exchange Transactions
An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at cost of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
• The entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
•	The entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;
• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of Services

Provisions are recognised when:
• The entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
•	It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation; and
• A reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement
is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation.
The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount
of the provision.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating surplus (surplus (deficit)).
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and measured
as a provision.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 40.

1.13 Capital Commitments

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the
transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a
transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:
• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• The stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
• The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of
completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the
significant act is executed.
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of completion
is determined by services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Revenue Estimation

Consumers are invoiced based on estimates of consumption where no meter reading has taken place during the billing period.
These invoices are best estimates based on historical customer’s average consumption and enable revenue to be measured
reliably. On an annual basis the actual consumption is compared to the estimated consumption in order to provide additional
assurance that significant adjustments are not required to reverse excessive estimates. In the event that significant adjustments
are identified, these adjustments are treated as changes in estimates in terms of GRAP 3 and are recognised in surplus or deficit
in the period of the change.

Interest

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of resources.
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Interest is recognised on a time proportion-basis using the effective interest.
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1.15 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

1.17 Unauthorised Expenditure

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which represents
an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Unauthorised expenditure means:
• Overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
•	Expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with the purpose
of the main division.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the
asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned
to the transferor.
Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can exclude
or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.
Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in the
year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.18 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.

Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneficiaries regardless of whether or not they pay taxes.
Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as determined by a court or other law
enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws or regulations.
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either
receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity
without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used,
but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as
specified.
Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a transferred
asset by entities external to the reporting entity.
Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that provide certain taxpayers with concessions that are not available
to others.
The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be subject to taxation.
Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance with laws and or regulations,
established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines or other penalties imposed for breaches of the law.
Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

Gifts and Donations, Including Goods In-Kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Expenditure on research is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. An asset arising from development is recognised when:
• It is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
• There is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
• There is an ability to use or sell it.
• It will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.
• There are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.
• The expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.
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1.19 Budget Information
A reconciliation between the statement of financial performance and the budget must be disclosed in the annual financial
statements as determined by National Treasury. The annual financial statements and the budget are reported on the accrual basis
of accounting.
The approved budget has been revised through an adjustment budget in line with the stipulation of section 28 of the MFMA. The
adjustment budget takes into account the change in trading conditions and the performance of the business.
The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2019/07/01 to 2020/06/30.

1.20 Related Parties
A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.
Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding arrangement, and exists only when the strategic financial
and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the ventures).
Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control over
those policies.

1.16 Research and Development Expenditure

CITY POWER

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.
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Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those
charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such
functions.
Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, management in their dealings with the entity.
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The entity is exempt from disclosure requirements in relation to related party transactions if that transaction occurs within normal
supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those which it is reasonable
to expect the entity to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same circumstances and terms and
conditions are within the normal operating parameters established by that reporting entity’s legal mandate.

1.26 Income Tax

Where the entity is exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above, the entity discloses narrative information about the
nature of the transactions and the related outstanding balances, to enable users of the entity’s financial statements to understand
the effect of related party transactions on its annual financial statements.

1.27 Expenses – Administration Expenses, Repairs and Maintenance and General Expenses

1.21 Events After Reporting Date

1.28 Accounting by Principals and Agents

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
• Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and
• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date).

Identification

The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date once
the event occurred.
The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate cannot be
made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of the financial statements.

The entity is liable for tax and is registered with SARS for income tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of
financial performance.

Expenses are measured reliably at amortised cost of the consideration payable, exclusive of value added tax.

An agent is an entity that has been directed by another entity (a principal), through a binding arrangement, to undertake transactions
with third parties on behalf of the principal and for the benefit of the principal.
A principal is an entity that directs another entity (an agent), through a binding arrangement, to undertake transactions with third
parties on its behalf and for its own benefit.
A principal-agent arrangement results from a binding arrangement in which one entity (an agent), undertakes transactions with
third parties on behalf, and for the benefit of, another entity (the principal).

Identifying Whether an Entity is a Principal or an Agent

1.22 Bulk Purchases

When the entity is party to a principal-agent arrangement, it assesses whether it is the principal or the agent in accounting for
revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilities that result from transactions with third parties undertaken in terms of the arrangement.

Bulk purchases represent the cost of electricity purchased for onwards selling to consumers and to power streetlights within the
City of Johannesburg. The expense is recognised in relation to the income earned.

The assessment of whether an entity is a principal or an agent requires the entity to assess whether the transactions it undertakes
with third parties are for the benefit of another entity or for its own benefit.

Expenses are measured reliably at the amortised cost of the consideration payable, exclusive of value added tax.

Binding Arrangement

The entity assesses whether it is an agent or a principal by assessing the rights and obligations of the various parties established
in the binding arrangement.

1.23 Share Capital
The entire shareholding of the entity is held by the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality.
Unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality.

Where the terms of a binding arrangement are modified, the parties to the arrangement re-assess whether they act as a principal
or an agent.

Assessing Which Entity Benefits from the Transactions with Third Parties

When the entity in a principal-agent arrangement concludes that it undertakes transactions with third parties for the benefit of
another entity, then it is the agent. If the entity concludes that it is not the agent, then it is the principal in the transactions.

1.24 Going Concern
The financial statement have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes
that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent
obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

1.25 Value Added Tax
VAT is an indirect tax based on the consumption in the economy. Vendors act as the agent of the government in collecting the
VAT charged on taxable transactions. SARS is a government agency which administers the VAT Act and ensures that the tax is
collected and that the tax law is properly enforced.

The entity is an agent when, in relation to transactions with third parties, all three of the following criteria are present:
• It does not have the power to determine the significant terms and conditions of the transaction.
• It does not have the ability to use all, or substantially all, of the resources that result from the transaction for its own benefit.
• It is not exposed to variability in the results of the transaction.
Where the entity has been granted specific powers in terms of legislation to direct the terms and conditions of particular transactions,
it is not required to consider the criteria of whether it does not have the power to determine the significant terms and conditions of
the transaction, to conclude that is an agent. The entity applies judgement in determining whether such powers exist and whether
they are relevant in assessing whether the entity is an agent.

VAT is currently levied at the standard rate of 15% on most supplies and importations, but there is a limited range of goods and
services which are either exempt, or which are subject to tax at the zero rate. The change in VAT rate from 14% to 15% effective
from 1 April 2018 resulted in transactions prior to 1 April 2018 been levied with 14% VAT.
The entity registered with SARS for VAT on the payment basis, in accordance with sec 15(2)(a) of the Value Added Tax Act (No.
89 of 1991).
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Recognition

The entity, as a principal, recognises revenue and expenses that arise from transactions with third parties in a principal- agent
arrangement in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.
The entity, as an agent, recognises only that portion of the revenue and expenses it receives or incurs in executing the transactions
on behalf of the principal in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.
The entity recognises assets and liabilities arising from principal-agent arrangements in accordance with the requirements of the
relevant Standards of GRAP.

1.29 Irregular Expenditure

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2020

2.		 New Standards Not Yet Effective
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
on a basis consistent with the prior year, at the date of authorisation of these annual financial statements, the following Standards
and Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective:
GRAP 104 Financial Instruments – Effective date yet to be determined

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the MFMA:
•	Expenditure incurred by an entity or municipality entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of
this Act, and which has not been condoned in terms od section 170;
•	Expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipality entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement
of the municipality System Ac, and which has not been condoned in terms of this Act;
•	Expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipality entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement
of the Public Office-Bearers Act, 1998 (Act No.20 of 1998); or
•	Expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipality entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement
of the supply chain management policy of the municipality or entity or any of the municipality’s by-law giving effect to such
policy, and which has been condoned in terms of such policy or by-law but excludes expenditure by municipality which falls
within the definition of “unauthorised expenditure”.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial period and which was condoned before year end
and/or before finalisation of financial statements must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an
instance, the note to the financial statement must be updated to reflect this.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury of the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the
irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such person is liable in law.
Immediate steps must be thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, write
off of the amount must be considered.
All expenditure relating to irregular expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in the
year that the expenditure was incurred.The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.
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The new standards have been reviewed by the entity and are unlikely to have a material impact on the financial statements when
they become effective.

3.		 Inventories
2020

2019

Consumable stores

150 720

90 884

150 720

90 884

Inventory (write-downs)

(61 894)

(39 885)

88 826

50 999

Figures in Rand thousand

Inventory pledged as security
No inventory was pledged as security during the year.

4.		 Loans to (from) Shareholders
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality – Capex loans

(2 020 411)

(2 249 714)

Sweeping account

(4 003 314)

(2 881 517)

(624 793)

(624 793)

(6 648 518)

(5 756 024)

City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality – Shareholder loans

Non-current liabilities

(2 275 177)

(2 477 555)

Current liabilities

(4 373 341)

(3 278 469)

(6 648 518)

(5 756 024)
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Interest rate

Figures in Rand thousand

2020

2019

5.		 Trade and Other Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Figures in Rand thousand

Loan liability balance
Shareholder loans

17.5%

581 814

581 814

Midrand loan

14.5%

42 979

42 979

Capex loan 2011

10.9%

-

73 156

Capex loan 2012

10.9%

47 656

90 393

Capex loan 2013

9.31%

116 296

166 804

Capex loan 2014

9.65%

23 812

30 335

Capex loan 2015

10.18%

487 525

581 379

Capex loan 2016

9.88%

414 922

475 994

Capex loan 2017

11.23%

181 369

201 391

Capex loan 2018

10.56%

195 456

213 342

Capex loan 2019

10.07%

385 726

416 920

Capex loan 2020

10.44%

167 649

-

-

2 645 204

2 874 507

Less: Current liabilities

(370 027)

(396 952)

Non-current liabilities

2 275 177

2 477 555

Total loan liabilities

2020

2019

-

333

68

68

Prepayments
Deposits
Sundry receivables

35 951

52 308

624 808

1 124 319

660 827

1 177 028

650 937

1 159 388

-

-

61 - 90 days

-

3 127

91 - 120 days

-

-

Related party receivables

Debtors age analysis
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days

121 - 365 days

9 855

-

35

14 513

660 827

1 177 028

> 365 days

Trade and Other Receivables Past Due But Not Impaired

Sweeping account
Loans at beginning of the year

(2 881 517)

(1 284 174)

Movement during the year

(1 121 796)

(1 597 343)

Balance at end of year

(4 003 313)

(2 881 517)

Trade and other receivables which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 30 June 2020,
R9 890 000 (2019: R17 640 217) were past due but not impaired.
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

Capex Loans
Loans at beginning of the year
Receipts
Repayments
Balance at end of the year

(2 249 714)

(2 232 489)

2 months past due

-

3 127

(171 649)

(420 469)

3 months past due

9 890

14 513

400 952

403 244

(2 020 411)

(2 249 714)

6.		 Trade and Other Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions		
Related party receivables

Shareholder Loans movement for the year
Loans at beginning of the year

(624 793)

(624 793)

Interest charged

(109 616)

(109 616)

109 616

109 616

(624 793)

(624 793)

Repayments
Balance at end of the year
Non-current liabilities
Capex loans

(1 650 384)

Shareholder’s loans

(1 852 762)

(624 793)

(624 793)

(2 275 177)

(2 477 555)

330 377

237 815

Debtors age analysis
243 592

151 030

31 - 60 days

Current (0 - 30 days)

-

-

61 - 90 days

-

-

91 - 120 days

-

-

121 - 365 days

-

-

86 785

86 785

330 377

237 815

>365 days

Current liabilities
Capex loans
Sweeping account
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Trade and Other Receivables From Non-Exchange Transactions Past Due But Not Impaired

Figures in Rand thousand

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired.
At 30 June 2020, R86 785 000 - (2019: R86 785 000) were past due but not impaired.

Industrial/commercial

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
2020

Figures in Rand thousand

2019

2 months past due

-

-

3 months past due

86 785

86 785

Current (0 -30 days)

Gross balances
Electricity

6 688 185

3 867 866

Less: Allowance for impairment
Electricity

(4 507 377)

(2 427 711)

Net balance

2019

1 180 379

916 030

31 - 60 days

268 986

218 689

61 - 90 days

199 037

192 910

91 - 120 days

184 125

317 875

121 - 365 days

706 082

663 585

> 365 days

1 242 906

234 245

3 781 515

2 543 334

(2 502 170)

(1 634 604)

1 279 345

908 730

828

70 193

31 - 60 days

-

12 040

61 - 90 days

-

13 815

91 - 120 days

1

20 976

121 - 365 days

6

16 167

Less: Allowance for impairment

7.		 Consumer Debtors

2020

National and provincial government
Current (0 -30 days)

> 365 days

Electricity

2 180 808

1 440 155
Less: Allowance for impairment

1 663 529

63 064

4 800

196 255

-

-

4 800

196 255

1 890 168

1 504 646

Electricity
Current (0 -30 days)

3 965

1 171 191

31 - 60 days

176 717

89 401

61 - 90 days

58 694

42 699

91 - 120 days

47 386

40 346

31 - 60 days

385 933

300 423

121 - 365 days

141 582

22 266

61 - 90 days

283 073

270 161

92 900

74 252

2 180 808

1 440 155

> 365 days

Summary of Debtors by Customer Classification

Total
Current (0 -30 days)

295 526

479 457

121 - 365 days

91 - 120 days

1 305 508

960 897

> 365 days

2 527 977

352 282

6 688 185

3 867 866

(4 507 377)

(2 427 711)

2 180 808

1 440 155

(226 639)

(333 455)

Less: Allowance for impairment

Consumers
Current (0 -30 days)

708 962

518 424

31 - 60 days

116 948

69 694

61 - 90 days

84 035

63 436

91 - 120 days

111 395

140 606

121 - 365 days

595 461

281 144

1 285 071

54 973

2 901 872

1 128 277

(2 005 209)

(793 107)

896 663

335 170

> 365 days
Less: Allowance for impairment
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Less: Allowance for impairment
Current (0 -30 days)
31 - 60 days

(209 216)

(211 022)

61 - 90 days

(224 379)

(227 462)

91 - 120 days

(248 139)

(439 111)

121 - 365 days

(1 163 926)

(938 631)

> 365 days

(2 435 078)

(278 030)

(4 507 377)

(2 427 711)
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2020

Figures in Rand thousand

2019

9.		 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment
Balance at beginning of the year
Contributions to allowance

(2 427 711)

(1 912 547)

(522 438)

(718 008)

-

202 844

(1 557 228)

-

(4 507 377)

(2 427 711)

Debt impairment written off against allowance
Reversal of allowances

Credit Quality of Consumer Debtors		

2020

Figures in Rand thousand
Cash on hand
Bank balances

2019

30

30

265 207

18 936

265 237

18 966

Cash is reflected at the carrying value which approximates fair value. There is minimal credit risk attached to the instrument.

The credit quality of consumer debtors that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates:

Consumer Debtors Past Due But Not Impaired
Consumer debtors which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 30 June 2020, R517 281 000
(2019: R268 964 000) were past due but not impaired.

The municipal entity has a sweeping arrangement with the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality whereby all cash
is swept on a daily basis to the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality’s bank account. All bank accounts have a zero
balance due to the sweeping arrangement with City of Johannesburg except some of the entity’s ABSA bank accounts which were
not swept during the financial period which resulted in balances at the end of the reporting period. Petty cash is reflected as cash
on hand. The cash owed to the entity by the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality is reflected as an amount due from
the shareholder.
The bank balances at the beginning and end of financial period are as follows:

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
1 month past due

176 717

89 401

2 months past due

58 693

42 699

3 months past due

281 871

136 864

Bank account and description
4055151238 ABSA Electricity deposits

1 034

244 858

17 005

4054636689 ABSA Sundry revenue account

812

581

Consumer Debtors Impaired		

4054394736 ABSA Main cheque

320

316

4054394744 ABSA Bank charges

-

-

As of 30 June 2020, consumer debtors of R4 507 377 000 (2019: R2 427 711 000) were impaired and provided for.

198641 Standard Bank Limited Bank charges account

-

-

198684 Standard Bank Limited Sundry account

-

-

3 to 6 months
Over 6 months

248 139

439 111

3 599 002

1 216 661

4055418357 ABSA Prepaid account

19 217

198714 Standard Bank Limited Main account

-

-

265 207

18 936

8.		 VAT Receivable

The entity has three active accounts are held with Standard Bank Ltd and five accounts with ABSA Limited.

All VAT returns were submitted timeously during the current financial year in terms of the Value Added Tax Act.

Standard Bank Accounts:
198641 Standard Bank Limited Bank charges account
198684 Standard Bank Limited Sundry account
198714 Standard Bank Limited Main account

Value Added Tax

18 661

-

ABSA Accounts:
4054394736 ABSA Main cheque
4054394744 ABSA Bank charges
4054636689 ABSA Sundry revenue account
4055151238 ABSA Electricity deposits
4055418357 ABSA Prepaid account
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment					

Borrowing Costs Capitalised

2020

Figures in Rand thousand
Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying
value

32 095

-

32 095

925 031

(210 865)

714 166

2019
Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying
value

28 947

-

28 947

884 184

(198 895)

685 289

No borrowing costs were capitalised to property, plant and equipment during the financial year by the entity.

Pledged as Security
No items of property, plant and equipment are pledged as security.

Assets Subject to Finance Lease (Net Carrying Amount)
Land
Buildings
Finance leased assets
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Total

63 913

(31 306)

32 607

86 995

(42 971)

44 024

18 173 575

(3 676 817)

14 496 758

17 396 771

(3 208 908)

14 187 863

29 570

(23 699)

5 871

28 664

(22 138)

6 526

510

(494)

16

510

(454)

56

108 985

(88 766)

20 219

104 027

(72 187)

31 840

19 333 679

(4 031 947)

15 301 732

18 530 098

(3 545 553)

14 984 545

Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment – 2020
Opening
balance

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

28 947

3 148

-

-

32 095

Buildings

685 289

40 847

-

(11 970)

714 166

Finance leased assets

44 024

6 314

-

(17 731)

32 607

Plant and machinery

14 187 863

797 530

(2)

(488 633)

14 496 758

Furniture and fixtures

6 526

919

-

(1 574)

5 871

56

-

-

(40)

16

Motor vehicles
IT equipment

31 840

4 963

-

(16 584)

20 219

14 984 545

853 721

(2)

(536 532)

15 301 732

Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment – 2019

Land
Buildings
Finance leased assets
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
IT equipment

32 607

44 024

Accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2020			
Cost

Building

7 899

-

7 899

IT equipment

2 912

-

2 912

1 289 394

-

1 289 394

254 354

-

254 354

1 554 559

-

1 554 559

Plant and machinery

The above capital work-in-progress is included in the respective asset classes.			
Other relates to stock items classified as capital work in progress due to their nature. These items are to be used in capital projects
undertaken by the entity.
The remaining work-in-progress relates to expenditure already incurred in the construction of capital assets by the entity. The
majority of the capital projects by the entity are taking a significant amount of time to be completed. The duration of each project
depends on the scope of work to be done and the availability of financial resources.

WIP Expenditure Ageing

Opening
balance

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

28 947

-

-

-

28 947

650 091

46 902

-

(11 704)

685 289

23 767

30 923

-

(10 666)

44 024

13 547 246

1 103 206

(421)

(462 168)

14 187 863

7 475

313

(5)

(1 257)

6 526

139

-

-

(83)

56

Motor vehicles

2019

Motor vehicles

Other
Land

2020

Figures in Rand thousand

46 577

4 006

-

(18 743)

31 840

14 304 242

1 185 350

(426)

(504 621)

14 984 545

1 Year

2 - 3 Years

3 Years and
above

Total

-

-

7 899

7 899

Building
IT Equipment
Plant and machinery
Other

-

-

2 912

2 912

562 992

283 252

443 150

1 289 394

254 354

-

-

254 354

817 346

283 252

453 961

1 554 559

1 Year Expenditure:				
Relates to amounts incurred on capital projects in the financial year. These projects were initiated in the current financial year.
The entity intends to complete these projects in the new financial period.
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2 - 3 Year Expenditure:

Impairment: PPE

The amounts include Capital projects which were undertaken but could not be completed due to lack of funding, it also includes
multi-year projects which are delayed due to budget constraints and projects which are in the final stages of completion.

No impairment has been realised during the financial year in respect property, plant and equipment.
A register containing the information required by section 63 of the MFMA is available for inspection at the registered office of the entity.

3 Year and Above Expenditure:
The amount is mainly made up of design fees with no funds to start construction. The amount also includes multi-year projects
which are delayed due to budget constraints and projects which are in final stages of completion.
The following projects are taking longer than anticipated to complete:
Figures in Rand thousand
Project

Expenditure

Mondeor Substation (C0479)

124 189

Mulbarton (C2105)

112 086

Eldorado Park Substation (C2833)

20 760

New Lutz (C2920)

30 154

It should be noted that the electricity utilities were regarded as essential services throughout the Covid-19 lockdown and therefore
there were no grounds to impair the property plant and equipment.

Additional Information
Property, plant and equipments amount includes assets with a cost value of R1. The carrying value also includes assets which
are fully depreciated but still in use by the entity. The value of the assets at R1 or near R0 net book value was assessed and
considered immaterial for purposes of financial statements.

11.

Intangible Assets						
2020

Figures in Rand thousand
Cost /
Valuation

287 189

Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2019				
Cost

Building
IT Equipment
Plant and machinery
Other

Accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

38 804

-

38 804

2 912

-

2 912

1 338 177

-

1 338 177

221 501

-

221 501

1 601 394

-

1 601 394

WIP Expenditure Ageing
1 Year

Buildings

2 - 3 Years

3 Years and
above

Carrying
value

30 905

60

7 839

38 804

102 751

460 901

1 338 177

Other

221 501

-

-

221 501

-

2 912

-

2 912

1 026 931

105 723

468 740

1 601 394

The entity incurred expenditure amounting to R978 385 000 (2019: R847 673 000 to repair and maintain property, plant and
equipment during the financial year.
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Carrying
value

Capacity rights

232 361

-

232 361

232 361

-

232 361

396 891

(254 731)

142 160

337 282

(201 746)

135 536

Total

629 252

(254 731)

374 521

569 643

(201 746)

367 897

Opening
balance

Additions

Amortisation

Total

Capacity rights

232 361

-

-

232 361

Computer software

135 536

59 609

(52 985)

142 160

367 897

59 609

(52 985)

374 521

Opening
balance

Additions

Amortisation

Total

Capacity rights

232 361

-

-

232 361

Computer software

187 875

10 780

(63 119)

135 536

420 236

10 780

(63 119)

367 897

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets – 2020				

Expenditure Incurred to Repair and Maintain Property, Plant and Equipment

216

Accumulated
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets – 2019				

774 525

CITY POWER

Cost /
Valuation

Computer software

Total

Plant and machinery
IT Equipment

Accumulated
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment

2019

Pledged as Security				
No items of intangible assets are pledged as security.				
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Borrowing Costs Capitalised				

12. Current Tax Payable

No borrowing costs were capitalised to intangible assets during the financial year by the entity.

The amount represent the total liability payable to South African Revenue Services (SARS) includes all penalties and interest
accrued but excludes the additional assessments raised without affording the entity wear and tear allowance for the tax years of
2014, 2015 and 2016 . The amount has been disputed with the Receiver based on the fact that the entity is of the opinion that it
qualifies for a 100% bad debts allowance compared to 25% considered by the Receiver.

Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2020
Figures in Rand thousand

Software

Cost

Accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

60 956

-

60 956

The Receiver has disallowed wear and tear allowances for plant and machinery and buildings claimed under 12C and 11D for
2014, 2015 and 2016 tax periods. The entity has been claiming these deductions inline with the directive received from SARS in
2003. No Liability has been raised for the additional assessment raised by the Receiver as the entity is entitled to claim wear and
tear allowances as per the Income Tax Act.

The majority of the capital projects initiated by the entity are taking a significant amount of time to be completed. The duration of
each project depends on the scope of work to be done and the availability of financial resources.

Figures in Rand thousand

WIP Expenditure Ageing 2020

Current tax payable

Computer Software

1 Year

2 - 3 Years

3 Years and
above

Total

41 413

10 781

8 762

60 956

1 Year Expenditure:
Relates to amounts incurred on capital projects in the current financial year. These projects were initiated in the current financial
year. The entity intends to complete these projects and capitalise in the new financial period.

2 - 3 Years Expenditure:

2020

2019

168 706

153 820

- within one year

21 892

17 901

- in second to fifth year inclusive

23 630

38 337

45 522

56 238

less: future finance charges

(6 108)

(9 972)

Present value of minimum lease payments

39 414

46 266

- within one year

19 069

13 915

- in second to fifth year inclusive

20 345

32 351

39 414

46 266

Non-current liabilities

20 345

32 351

Current liabilities

19 069

13 915

39 414

46 266

13. Finance Lease Obligation		
Minimum lease payments due

Present value of minimum lease payments due

The amounts include Capital projects which were undertaken but could not be completed due to lack of funding, it also includes
multi-year projects which are delayed due to budget constraints and projects which are in the final stages of completion.

3 Years and Above Expenditure:
The amount is mainly made up of design fees with no funds to start construction. The amount also includes multi-year projects
which are delayed due to budget constraints and projects which are in final stages of completion.

Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2019
Cost

Accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

19 543

-

19 543

1 Year

2 - 3 Years

3 Years and
above

Total

10 781

8 762

-

19 543

Computer software

It is entity policy to lease certain motor vehicles and equipment under finance leases. The finance lease obligation relates to motor
vehicles leased from City of Johannesburg.
The average lease term was 6 years and the average effective borrowing rate was 10% (2019: 10%).
Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rent.

WIP Expenditure Ageing 2019

Computer software
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14. Trade and Other Payables from Exchange Transactions

Reconciliation of Provisions – 2019				
2020

2019

447 088

732 838

6 165

6 166

Figures in Rand thousand
Trade payables
Accrual service bonus
Deposits received

-

27 174

Accrual for leave pay

95 644

62 811

Mogale City payable

224

94

Consumer debtors with credit balances

485 776

725 301

Kelvin payable

236 442

231 879

1 531 931

1 091 424

Lethabong payable

2 130

1 868

Accrued expenses

139 389

109 799

23 239

20 091

1 377 664

1 281 659

4 345 692

4 291 104

Eskom payable

Deferred prepaid electricity
Related party creditor

Significant Judgement: Debtors with Credit Balance:		
City of Johannesburg (COJ) invoices clients for the following revenue components; electricity on behalf of City Power, water
on behalf of Joburg Water, refuse on behalf of Pikitup and rates and taxes on behalf of COJ Core Administration. Revenue and
corresponding debtor is allocated to each municipal entity based on the actual consumption/billing.
With regards to credit balances in consumer debtors, CJMM allocates credit balances applicable to each entity by using three
year billing for customers with credit balances at account level. In the event that the customer has no current billing and a credit
balance exist, a three year annualised overall billed revenue will be used to determine the allocation rate. Management has
applied judgement in determine the allocation basis.

Related party payables

9 375

3 220

The related party payables relates to conditional grants received by the entity which need to be repaid to City of Johannesburg
due to the fact that not all conditions were fully met.

CITY POWER

Utilised during
the year

Opening
Balance

Additions

Utilised during
the year

Total

66 247

70 696

(59 204)

77 739

111 422

8 154

-

119 576

24 814

21 378

-

46 192

202 483

100 228

(59 204)

243 507

220

Total

75 195

40 501

(49 449)

66 247

101 884

9 538

-

111 422

13 169

11 645

-

24 814

190 248

61 684

(49 449)

202 483

The bonus provision relates to the performance bonus that the entity expects to pay to qualifying employees. The amount is based
on the performance of the financial year under review which is still to be determined. The provision is management’s best estimate
of the entity’s liability at reporting date.
Ash disposal has been provided for in respect of Kelvin Power Station. These amounts are invoiced by Kelvin but are not paid due
to that there is a dispute declared between City Power and Kelvin. Therefore, the provision caters for the eventuality given that
the contract expires in December 2021.
The software licence provision relates to Microsoft software utilised by the entity for which no invoices has been received from the
supplier. The amount is for the period 1 April 2017 - 30 June 2020. The amount is based on the latest annual invoice received from
the supplier for the period 1 April 2016 - 31 March 2017, adjusted for potential increase in price.

17. Value Added Tax Payable
All VAT returns were submitted timeously during the current financial year in terms of the Value Added Tax Act.

Value added tax

2020

2019

-

(37 757)

(4 873)

(4 302)

(635)

(1 483)

(5 508)

(5 785)

Defined Benefit Plan		
Carrying value
Present value of the defined benefit obligation-Medical aid
Balance at end of year

Reconciliation of Provisions – 2020				

Software licence provision

Software licence provision

Additions

Present value of the defined benefit obligation-Retirement Gratuity

16. Provisions				

Kelvin ash disposal

Bonus provision
Kelvin ash disposal

Opening
Balance

18. Employee Benefit Obligations		

15. Trade and Other Payables: Non-Exchange Transactions		

Bonus provision

Figures in Rand thousand

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

The entity has obligations to subsidise medical aid contributions in respect of certain qualifying staff and pensioners and their
surviving spouses. Only pensioners and employees who were aged 50 or older and were members of LA Health and Munimed
are included.
The above liability is unfunded. However, the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality has undertaken to cover such
portion of the liability for the staff of the entity who are entitled to benefit that relates to their service with the City of Johannesburg
Metropolitan Municipality since the entity was established.
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2020

Figures in Rand thousand

2019

Movement for the year

2020

2019

Interest cost

(86)

(139)

Actuarial (gains) losses

767

113

Benefits paid

167

643

848

617

-1% in medical/
salary inflation

Valuation
assumptions

+1% in
medical/salary
inflation

7 402

4 873

4 478

634

635

636

8 036

5 508

5 114

-20% Mortality
rate

Valuation
assumptions

+20% Mortality
rate

5 369

4 873

4 478

635

635

635

6 004

5 508

5 113

27 842

33 194

Figures in Rand thousand
Net expenses recognised in the statement of financial performance

Opening balance

(4 302)

(4 821)

Interest costs

(353)

(408)

Gains (Losses)

(711)

438

Benefits paid

493

489

(4 873)

(4 302)

Interest cost

(353)

(408)

Actuarial (gains) losses

(711)

438

493

489

(571)

519

Balance at end of the year
Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance

Benefits paid

Sensitivity Analysis
In order to illustrate the sensitivity of the valuation results the following assumptions have been used:
1% increase/decrease per annum in the medical and salary inflation rate assumptions used.
- 20% increase/decrease per annum in mortality rate assumptions used.
The effect of these assumptions are as follows:

Key Assumptions Used		

Medical and Salary Inflation

Assumptions used at the reporting date:
Discount rates used

5,32 %

8,70 %

Consumer inflation

2,75 %

5,53 %

Normal Salary inflation

3,75 %

6,53 %

Medical aid contribution inflation

3,75 %

6,53 %

Post-retirement medical aid

Net effective discount rate (PRMA)

1,51 %

2,04 %

Retirement gratuities

Net effective discount rate (PEH and Gratuity)

1,51 %

2,04 %

Post-Retirement Gratuity Plan

Mortality Rates

The entity provides gratuities on retirement or on death to certain qualifying employees who have service with the City of
Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality or the municipal entity when they were not members of one of the retirement funds and
who meet certain service requirements in terms of the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality’s conditions of employment.
The gratuity amount is based on one month’s salary per year of non-retirement funding service.
The above liability is unfunded. However, the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality has undertaken to cover such
portion of the liability for the staff of the entity who are entitled to benefits that relate to their service with the City of Johannesburg
Metropolitan Municipality since the entity was established.
The plan is a post-retirement gratuity benefit plan.

Post-retirement medical aid
Retirement gratuities

19. Deferred Income		
Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises:		

Movement for the year
Opening balance

Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts

(1 483)

(2 100)

Interest costs

(86)

(139)

Benefits paid

767

643

Infrastructure skills and development grant

Actuarial gains (Losses)

167

113

Public contributions: Service connections

(635)

(1 483)
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Integrated National Electrification (DoE)
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750

750

46 370

63 610

74 962

97 554

Deferred Income Reconciliation

Energy Efficiency Demand Management Grant		

Figures in Rand thousand
Opening balance
Additions
Transfer to income

2020

2019

97 554

63 426

270 007

263 993

(287 247)

(224 165)

(5 352)

(5 700)

74 962

97 554

Repayments

Public Contributions: Service Connections

2020

2019

-

-

Opening balance
Additions
Transfer to income

8 215

-

(8 215)

-

-

-

-

-

205

Repayments

City of Johannesburg Projects			

Opening balance
Additions
Transfer to income

63 610

29 265

Opening balance

-

Additions

-

-

Transfer to income

-

(205)

-

-

-

-

5 709

34 345

(22 949)

-

46 370

63 610

Public Contributions: Engineering Contributions
Opening balance

-

Additions
Transfer to income

-

57 323

62 517

(57 323)

(62 517)

-

-

-

-

Repayments

33 194
-

29 748

Transfer to income

-

(24 396)

(5 352)

(2 900)

27 842

33 194

Repayments

Infrastructure Skills and Development Grants
Opening balance
Additions
Transfer to income
Repayments

750

3 214

6 200

7 200

(6 200)

(6 864)

-

(2 800)

750

750

Urban Settlements Development Grant (USDG)

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability)
(1 722 221)

(1 779 262)

97 132

57 041

(1 625 089)

(1 722 221)

(3 303 038)

(3 203 188)

Provision for bonus

22 105

18 549

Provision leave pay

26 780

17 587

Deferred Tax Analysis		
Fixed Assets

Post-retirement liability

1 542

1 620

Post-retirement assets

(32 927)

(31 440)

-

(3 568)

6 507

5 625

Prepayments
Prepaid electricity
Finance leased assets
Assessed loss

641

-

1 653 301

1 472 594

(1 625 089)

(1 722 221)

The allocation of deferred tax categories will change should the entity loose its court challenges with SARS.

Opening balance

-

-

192 560

130 183

(192 560)

(130 183)

-

-

-

-

Repayment

224

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liability relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows net settlement.
Therefore, they have been offset in the statement of financial position as follows:

30 742

Additions

Transfer to income

20. Deferred Tax			

Taxable temporary differences

Opening balance

Additions

Repayment

At beginning of year

Integrated National Electrification Grant (DoE)

CITY POWER

Figures in Rand thousand
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21. Consumer deposits

24. Financial Liabilities by Category				
2020

2019

654 316

625 064

Figures in Rand thousand
Consumer Deposits

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Current Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost			
2020

2019

4 373 341

3 278 469

168 706

153 820

Figures in Rand thousand

22. Share capital / contributed capital

Loans from shareholders

Authorised		

Current tax payable

10 000 Ordinary shares of R1 each

10

10

Finance lease obligation
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

14 551

13 915

4 345 692

4 291 103

19 069

3 220

Trade and other payables from non-exchange

Reconciliation of Number of Shares Issued:

Vat payable

Reported as at July 1, 2019

10

Issue of shares – ordinary shares
Reported as at end of year

-

-

10

10

Issued
Share premium

112 466

-

37 757

8 921 359

7 778 284

Loans from shareholders

2 275 177

2 477 555

Finance lease obligation

20 345

32 351

10

112 466

Non-Current Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs

Consumer deposit

654 316

625 064

2 949 838

3 134 970

14 534 870

13 135 595

1 355 543

1 125 881

121 980

100 409

16 012 393

14 361 885

Issued share capital consists of 1 issued share of R1 nominal value.				

25. Service Charges				

23. Financial Assets by Category				

Sale of electricity

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Sales of prepaid electricity
New service connections

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost				
Consumer receivables

2 180 808

1 440 155

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions

660 827

1 177 028

Trade and other receivables from non-exchange transactions

330 377

237 815

18 661

-

265 237

18 966

3 455 910

2 873 964

VAT Receivable
Cash and cash equivalents

26. Other Income		
Canteen revenue
Tender administration fees
Street pole advertising
Disposal of obsolete materials

2 371

-

2 053

1 278

1 531

-

8 284

4 985

13 838

354 580

368 604

362 557

396 681

29 409

63 532

Cut off fees
Demand side management levy

1 714

27. Interest Income
Interest Revenue		
Interest earned – Outstanding receivables
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Interest earned – Post-retirement benefit asset

6 569

6 941

Interest earned – Bank

5 961

4 324

41 939

74 797
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28. Government Grants and Subsidies		

30. Administrative Expenditure		

Operating Grants		

Figures in Rand thousand

Figures in Rand thousand

2020

2019

Administration and management fees – related party

Skills and development grants

6 200

6 863

Agent-Principal Arrangement:		

Capital Grants
Government grants

258 098

217 302

264 298

224 165

192 560

130 183

-

24 396

57 323

62 518

-

205

Conditional and Unconditional		
Included in above are the following grants and subsidies received:		
Urban settlement development grant
Department of Energy
Engineering fees contributions
COJ Housing and Capital projects
Skills development grant

6 200

6 863

Energy Efficiency Demand Management

8 215

-

264 298

224 165

29. Employee-Related Costs		

31. Depreciation and Amortisation
Property, plant and equipment

40 501

Bank

Medical aid contributions

75 722

72 085

Interest on late payment

2 974

3 001

Finance lease interest
Interest on post-retirement obligation

6 256

Pension fund contributions

102 208

95 949

Cellphone allowance

6 927

6 877

Group Life Assurance

22 288

21 432

Overtime payments

128 785

135 583

Long-service awards

10 624

6 800

13th Cheques

9 511

9 288

Acting allowances

7 912

5 155

29 762

29 903

565

229

Car allowance
Membership fees
Bursary grants
Shift allowances
Uniforms and protective clothing
Gratuities
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380

522

54 212

51 555

6 651

8 262

767

557

1 265 014

1 121 564

INTEGRATED REPORT 2019/2020

63 120

589 517

567 741

327 657

325 442

14 886

21 984

226 145

191 370

Interest on taxation

70 696

6 780

504 621

52 984

32. Interest Paid		

Bonus

7 255

536 533

Intangible assets

620 829

35 062

98 687

No resources of the entity are under custodianship of the agent.

692 713

WCA

104 017

The entity would require additional modules of the SAP software, IT equipment and employees to manage the outsourced function
currently performed by the agent if the existing arrangement is terminated. It is expected that the operating costs to manage the
function would be equivalent or similar to the administration fee that is currently being incurred in addition to capital assets that
will be required.

Basic

Leave pay provision charge

2019

The entity has an existing arrangement with City of Johannesburg acting as an agent to collect and manage the electricity
consumer debtors on behalf of the entity (principal). A fixed monthly administration fee of R8 668 083 (2019: R8 223 917) was paid
to City of Johannesburg in terms of the arrangement.

Group companies

UIF

2020

600

209

4 751

2 167

439

547

574 478

541 719

453 655

625 474

11 512 422

10 718 639

33. Debt Impairment		
Increase in allowance for doubtful debt

34. Bulk Purchases		
Electricity
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36. Taxation

Electricity Losses		
2020

Figures in Rand thousand

2019

Major Components of the Tax Income
2020

2019

-

-

(7 654)

38 181

(89 477)

(95 222)

(97 131)

(57 041)

Figures in Rand thousand

Comprising of:
Technical losses

1 088 851

1 029 319

Non-technical losses

2 349 708

1 864 313

Current

Total

3 438 559

2 893 632

Local income tax
Deferred

Percentage Loss:
Technical losses
Non-technical losses
Total

9%

9%

19%

16%

28%

Taxation for the year
Under/(over) provision prior year

25%

Reconciliation of the Tax Expense		

35. General Expenses		
Advertising

826

2 553

14 403

12 348

Auditors fees

6 472

6 281

Bank charges

1 202

1 830

79

80

Commission paid

46 321

39 281

Consulting and professional fees

32 884

74 350

Assessment rates & municipal charges

Cleaning

Entertainment
Insurance
Conferences and seminars

374

1 318

66 898

69 735

581

1 342

978 385

847 673

8 768

9 821

53

68

27 047

42 035

-

2

3 634

3 867

Security expenses

87 721

89 085

Software expenses

67 912

39 924

7 771

6 939

449

521

Repairs and maintenance
Levies
Magazines, books and periodicals
Motor vehicle expenses
Postage and courier
Printing and stationery

Staff welfare
Subscription fees

47 643

42 178

Training courses

Telephone and fax

6 900

3 667

Travel – local

2 626

2 512

47

25

Tree pruning

50 641

47 919

Meter readings and audits

25 073

5 167

Loss on disposal of assets

2

426

Cut off fees

30 292

21 762

Material issues

36 926

7 538

Sundry expenses

3 327

678

Eskom free electricity costs

1 885

3 064

1 557 142

1 383 989

Travel – overseas
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Reconciliation between applicable tax rate and average effective tax rate.		
Charge to statement of financial performance
Prior year

355,30%

(13,00)%

(327,30)%

41,00%

28,00%

28,00%

6 472

6 281

69 794

(501 085)

37. Auditors’ Remuneration		
Fees

38. Cash Generated from Operations		
Surplus (deficit)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation

589 517

567 741

Finance costs

574 478

541 719

Interest Income

(41 939)

(74 797)

2

426

(277)

(1 136)

Disposal loss
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities
Movements in provisions

41 024

12 235

Movement in current tax payable

14 886

(128 783)

(97 131)

(57 041)

Annual Charge for deferred tax
Changes in working capital:
Inventories

(37 827)

2 064

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions

297 475

(596 708)

(740 653)

159 556

(92 562)

43 082

Consumer debtors
Trade and other receivables from non-exchange transactions
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
VAT Payable

48 809

334 866

(56 418)

(99 825)

6 155

(4 280)

Trade and other payables from non exchange transactions
Deferred Income

CITY POWER
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(22 592)

34 128

552 741

232 162
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39. Commitments		

Dalitso Business Equipment		

Authorised Capital Expenditure		
2020

Figures in Rand thousand

2019

The entity leases printing machines from Dalitso Business Equipment. These machines are leased through an agreement which
was concluded by City Power Johannesburg with Dalitso Business Equipment. In terms of the agreement the rentals as per the
price list on the contract and are fixed for the duration of the lease contract. The lease is effective from 11 December 2019 until
30 November 2022.
2020

2019

within one year

1 000

-

in second to fifth year inclusive

1 252

-

2 252

-

Figures in Rand thousand

Authorised and contracted for
Property, plant and equipment

2 153 404

3 942 712

Total capital commitments
Authorised and contracted for

2 153 404

3 942 712

Authorised Operational Expenditure		

Minimum leases payments

Afrirent

The amount disclosed for commitments is the value of all outstanding capital contracts entered into by the entity for the foreseeable
future. The expenditure however will be limited to the approved capital budget.

Operating Leases – As Lessee

City of Johannesburg entered into a lease agreement with Afrirent on the 10 October 2018 on behalf of City of Johannesburg and
the municipal entities under its control. The lease is for non-specialised vehicles for a period of 30 months which commenced on
the 1 November 2018 and shall continue until 30 April 2021.
Minimum leases payments
within one year

Avis Fleet Services

The entity currently have a lease extension with Avis Fleet Services for non specialised vehicles. These vehicles are leased
through an agreement which was concluded by The City of Johannesburg with Avis Fleet Services on 13 November 2012. In terms
of the agreement, all rentals due on vehicles leased are payable monthly in arrears and are linked to the prime overdraft rate.
Furthermore the agreement places restrictions on maximum number of kilometres which can be travelled over the lease term and
specifies the rate at which excess kilometres will be billed.
Minimum lease payments due
within one year

187

4 295

in second to fifth year inclusive

-

-

Above five years

-

-

187

4 295

Kelvin Power		

The lease relates to electricity capacity charge payable monthly. The amount is payable for the availability of capacity as a fixed
charge linked to contracted volumes regardless of whether City Power consumes electricity from Kelvin Power. The Kelvin Power
contract expires on 31 December 2021.
Minimum lease payments due
within one year

609 868

603 715

in second to fifth year inclusive

308 011

616 020

917 879

1 219 735

in second to fifth year inclusive

63 189

5 275

-

4 395

63 189

9 670

Jasco Trading (Pty) Ltd T/A Webb Industries		

City Power Johannesburg has entered into lease agreement with Jasco Trading (Pty) Ltd. The lease was for site rentals and
expired at reporting date.
Minimum leases payments
within one year

-

270

in second to fifth year inclusive

-

-

-

270

40. Contingent Liabilities (Amounts in Rands)
City Power has submitted tax returns to SARS for 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 financial years claiming 100% bad debt
allowance. However the South African Revenue Services has approved a deduction of 25% in terms of bad debt allowances. City
Power is currently continuing to claim a 100% allowance as it is appealing the decision of the Receiver. Should the appeal be
unsuccessful the tax liability for the above periods would increase.
The Receiver has withheld VAT refunds (R464 670 285) due to the entity to offset against the income tax owing to the Receiver. In
the event that the entity is successful in its endeavour to achieve tax exemption status or the 100% bad debt allowance the entity
will receive a full refund of the amount withheld.
SARS has disallowed wear and tear allowances claimed under section 12C and 13D for the tax years 2014, 2015 and 2016. The
entity has been claiming these allowances based on written approval received from SARS in 2003. SARS indicated in its letter
of disallowance that the entity is entitled to section 11E wear and tear allowances. However in the revised assessments for these
years issued by SARS no deduction was afforded to the entity. This resulted in an overstatement in the amounts due to SARS
(2014: R231 800 638), (2015: R267 920 073), (2016: R358 099 737) and consequent interest costs of R380 062 996. The entity
is challenging SARS in the Income tax court after failing in its endeavours to resolve the impasse as prescribed by the Income
Tax Administration Act.
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Divinity Trading a supplier has lodged legal proceedings against the entity. The claim arises from a supply chain process. The bid
from a supplier was passed over due to non functioning equipment during site visits by the Bid Evaluation Committee. The supplier
is appealing the judgement which was granted in favour of the entity with costs. The potential liability is R90 000 000 should the
supplier’s appeal be successful.
Divinity Trading a supplier is claiming R5 333 409 in terms of non-payment for services rendered to the entity.The matter is being
defended by the entity.
Summons were issued against the entity in favour of a customer Dlamini for delictual damages amounting to R267 400. The
plaintiff is claiming damages for an injury sustained when falling into a trench. The matter is being defended by the entity.
Koumantarakis Group has initiated legal proceedings against the The City of Johannesburg, City Power and Johannesburg Roads
Agency for an alleged violation of a patent for manhole covers. The matter is being defended and an expert was appointed by the
entity to assist with the matter. The potential liability for the entity is yet to be determined.
J & B Consulting a supplier is claiming R5 000 715 in terms of non-payment for services rendered to the entity. The matter is being
defended by the entity.
ABB South Africa a supplier is claiming R5 532 973 in terms of non-payment for services rendered to the entity. Arbitration has
been held and the entity is awaiting award.
Pulsmed has lodged legal action against the entity for the cancellation of contract. The potential liability is the remaining contract
value at the time of cancellation.
TIS a supplier is claiming R8 700 000 in terms of non-payment for services rendered to the entity.The matter is being defended
by the entity.
Ernest & Young Advisory Services a supplier is claiming R2 365 953 in terms of non-payment for services rendered to the entity
and City of Johannesburg.The matter is being defended by the entity.
Shabalala and Moagi two employees are challenging the appointment process of a Group Executive (GE) position after the
employees were not appointed after contesting for the position. The potential liability is the payback of GE’s salary to both
employees should they succeed. The matter is being defended by the entity.
Joe Seanego an employee is challenging his dismissal for gross negligence in dealing with contracts between Sergei and City
Power. The employee is claiming the unpaid salary from the date of dismissal. The matter is being defended by the entity.
Godfrey Mulauzi an employee is challenging his dismissal for gross negligence in dealing with contracts between Setheo and City
Power. The employee is claiming the unpaid salary from the date of dismissal. The matter is being defended by the entity.
Patrick Nkosi an employee is challenging his job grade. The employee is claiming the salary difference between the two grades.
The matter is being defended by the entity.
Joyce Mokoena an employee is challenging the job grading system. The employee is claiming the salary difference between the
two grades. The matter is being defended by the entity.
Setheo Investment has lodged legal proceedings in respect of the termination of the contracts for the upgrading of the Eldorado
Park and Hopefield substation. The potential liability is R69 667 600.
JHB Housing Company withdrew legal action against the entity on 10 March 2020. The dispute relates to the entity’s inability to
provide additional electricity capacity available for a new electricity connection.
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Contingent Liabilities Prior Year
City Power has submitted tax returns to SARS for 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 financial years claiming 100% bad debt allowance.
However the South African Revenue Services has approved a deduction of 25% in terms of bad debt allowances. City Power is
currently continuing to claim a 100% allowance as it is appealing the decision of the Receiver. Should the appeal be unsuccessful
the tax liability for 2015, 2016 and 2017 would increase.
The Receiver has withheld VAT refunds (R464 670 285) due to the entity to offset against the income tax owing to the Receiver. In
the event that the entity is successful in its endeavour to achieve tax exemption status or the 100% bad debt allowance the entity
will receive a full refund of the amount withheld.
Divinity Trading a supplier has lodged legal proceedings against the entity. The claim arises from a supply chain process. The bid
from a supplier was passed over due to non functioning equipment during site visits by the Bid Evaluation
Committee. The supplier is appealing the judgement which was granted in favour of the entity with costs. The potential liability is
R90 000 000 should the supplier’s appeal be successful.
JHB Housing Company has lodged legal proceedings against the entity. The dispute relates to the entity’s inability to provide
additional electricity capacity available for a new electricity connection. The potential liability R2 142 384 plus interest.
Setheo Investment has lodged legal proceedings in respect of the termination of the contracts for the upgrading of the Eldorado
Park and Hopefield substation. The potential liability is R69 667 600.
Summons were issued against the entity in favour of a customer Dlamini for delictual damages amounting to R267 400. The
plaintiff is claiming damages for an injury sustained when falling into a trench. The matter is being defended by the entity.
Koumantarakis Group has initiated legal proceedings against the The City of Johannesburg, City Power and Johannesburg Roads
Agency for an alleged violation of a patent for manhole covers. The matter is being defended and an expert was appointed by the
entity to assist with the matter. The potential liability for the entity is yet to be determined.
J & B Consulting a supplier is claiming R3 203 730 in terms of non-payment for services rendered to the entity. The matter is being
defended by the entity.
ABB South Africa a supplier is claiming R5 532 973 in terms of non-payment for services rendered to the entity. The matter refers
to adjudication in terms of NEC contract.

41. Related Parties
Relationships
Controlling entity

The City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality

Member of Group

Johannesburg Social Housing Company (SOC) Ltd

Member of Group

City of Johannesburg Property Company (SOC) Ltd

Member of Group

Johannesburg Fresh Produce Market (Pty) Ltd

Member of Group

Johannesburg City Parks NPC

Member of Group

Johannesburg Development Agency (SOC) Ltd

Member of Group

Johannesburg Metropolitan Bus Services (SOC) Ltd

Member of Group

Johannesburg Road Agency (SOC) Ltd

Member of Group

Pikitup Johannesburg (SOC) Ltd

Member of Group

Johannesburg Civic Theatre (SOC) Ltd

Member of Group

Johannesburg Water (SOC) Ltd

Member of Group

Johannesburg Metro Trading Company (SOC) Ltd
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All related party transactions are at normal trade terms. Refer to Note 41 for information regarding senior management and
remuneration.

Figures in Rand thousand

Related Party Balances

Purchases from related parties
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality
2020

Figures in Rand thousand

2019

2020

2019

727 072

681 170

Johannesburg Water (SOC) Ltd

7 450

5 444

Johannesburg City Parks NPC

53 161

49 962

Trade and other receivables regarding related parties

Johannesburg Civic Theatre

168

177

City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality

Pikitup Johannesburg (SOC) Ltd

767

762

912 723

1 321 051

41 083

41 083

Johannesburg Water (SOC) Ltd
Johannesburg Metro Trading Company (SOC) Ltd

1 379

-

955 185

1 362 134

1 361 052

1 266 390

Trade and other payables regarding related parties
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality
City of Johannesburg Property Company (SOC) Ltd

52

73

25 517

18 566

350

350

68

116

1 387 039

1 285 495

Johannesburg City Parks NPC
Johannesburg Road Agency (SOC) Ltd
Johannesburg Water (SOC) Ltd

City of Johannesburg Property Company (SOC) Ltd

6 648 517

42. Directors’ Emoluments				
Executive				
2020				

Mr. L Setshedi – CEO
39 414

46 266

Related Party Transactions		
Revenue from related parties
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality

125 885

100 997

Johannesburg Social Housing Company (SOC) Ltd

14 799

11 957

Johannesburg Metropolitan Bus Services (SOC) Ltd

3 574

3 103

164 900

116 837

8 603

8 186

Johannesburg City Parks NPC

5 075

4 735

Johannesburg Development Agency (SOC) Ltd

1 003

1 482

Johannesburg Water (SOC) Ltd
Johannesburg Civic Theatre (SOC) Ltd

Johannesburg Road Agency (SOC) Ltd

7 976

14 206

38 375

41 067

4 420

6 172

374 610

308 742

Johannesburg Fresh Produce Market (Pty) Ltd
Pikitup Johannesburg (SOC) Ltd
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Emoluments

Other benefits*

Travel
allowance

Total

2 524

185

111

2 820

5 756 025

Finance lease liability
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality

62
737 577

Mr A Mochela a City Power employee was seconded to Metro Trading Company (MTC) as acting Managing Director. The total
remuneration of R2 339 715 paid to the employee is to be recovered from MTC. An amount of 1 379 000 was still outstanding at
30 June 2020. This amount is not considered and disclosed as a related party transaction as per Group policy.

Loans from related party
City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality

118
788 736

Ms. M Xolo – GE Finance

1 881

141

174

2 196

Ms. MT Maluleke – GE: Metering Services

1 927

100

128

2 155

Ms. T Mashava – GE: Human Resource and
Transformation

2 040

86

-

2 126

Mr. SI Ramedi – GE: Engineering Operations

1 905

86

149

2 140

Mr. MJ Smith – Company Secretary

1 605

30

93

1 728

Mr. SA Ntlatleng – GE: Engineering Services

1 881

36

174

2 091

Mr. IM Ramagaga – Acting CEO

2 011

220

-

2 231

Mr. LR Mahumapelo – Acting GE: Business
Sustainability

1 845

164

-

2 009

17 619

1 048

829

19 496
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Non-Executive		

2019				
Figures in Rand thousand

Emoluments

Other benefits*

Travel
Allowance

Performance
bonus

Total

2020		
Directors’ fees

Figures in Rand thousand

Mr. L Setshedi – CEO

2 524

185

111

-

2 820

Dr. H Chewane

Mr. QB Green – CFO

1 169

14

40

-

1 223

Mr. D Gibson

Total

96

96

226

226

784

55

72

-

911

Mr. D Hunt

84

84

Ms. MT Maluleke – GE:
Metering Services

1 927

141

128

-

2 196

Mr. L Nage

200

200

Mr. M Seopela

156

156

Ms. T Mashava – GE: Human
Resource and Transformation

2 042

Mr. N Kganakga

102

102

Ms. B Mathebula

66

66

Mr. T Mofokeng

90

90

Mr. T Tjia

96

96

Mr. W Mathamela

58

58

Mr. N Kgope

56

56

Ms. K Lehloenya

12

12

Mr. M Mello

24

24

Ms. K Mthembu

70

70

Mr. B Ramokhele

56

56

Mr. K Setzin

42

42

Ms. P Thobejane

18

18

Mr. B Twala

30

30

Ms. M Xolo – GE: Finance

105

-

-

2 147

Mr. TM Nzimande – GE:
Engineering Services

449

31

-

-

480

Mr. SI Ramedi – GE:
Engineering Operations

1 927

118

128

-

2 173

Ms. PJ Shabalala – GE:
Business Sustainability

1 957

Mr. MJ Smith – Company
Secretary

1 605

116

93

-

1 814

314

6

29

-

349

Mr. SA Ntlatleng – GE:
Engineering Services

110

204

-

1 674

Mr. MP Mphahlele- Acting GE:
Engineering Services

1 767

Mr. JL Tefu – Acting GE:
Enterprise support

1 353

194

-

135

1 682

Mr. IM Ramagaga – Acting GE:
Enterprise Support

1 888

97

-

119

2 104

Mr. LR Mahumapelo – Acting
GE: Business Sustainability

1 733

90

-

110

1 933

23 113

1 609

798

481

26 001

84

-

2 067

Mr. LD Matsheketsheke – Acting
GE: Finance

143

113

-

117

1 991
2 111

Mr. C Lithole

6

6

Mr. V Mokwena

24

24

Mr. R Moodley

6

6

Mr. H Moolla

42

42

1 560

1 560

Directors’ fees

Total

2019		

Ms. L Bethlehem

87

87

Dr. H Chewane

103

103

Mr. D Gibson

180

180

Mr. D Hunt

139

139

Ms. N Kahlana-Mcubuse

135

135

Mr. M Mello

24

24

Mr. L Nage

198

198

Mr. M Seopela

131

131

Mr. N Kganakga

42

42

Ms. B Mathebula

42

42

Mr. T Mofokeng

42

42

Mr. T Tjia

42

42

Ms. S Yanguya

49

49

Mr. V Mokwena

-

-

Mr. M Padiaychee
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54

54

Mr. R Moodley

6

6

Mr. H Moolla

6

6

1 280

1 280
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43. Risk Management

Credit Risk

Financial Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the entity if a customer fails to meet its contractual obligations. This arises primarily from
the entity’s consumer receivables.

The entity has an integrated risk management framework. The entity’s approach to risk management is based on risk governance
structures, risk management policies, risk identification, measurement and reporting. Three types of risks are reported as part
of the risk profile, namely operational, strategic and business continuity risks. Operational risks are events, hazards, variances
or opportunities which could influence the achievement of the entity’s compliance and operational objectives. For the entity a
strategic risk is a significant unexpected or unpredictable change or outcome beyond what was factored into the organisation’s
strategy and business model which could have an impact on the group’s performance. Business continuity risks are those events,
hazards, variances and opportunities which could influence the continuity of the entity.
One of the risks for the entity identified both under the operational and strategic risk categories, is the financial sustainability
of the entity. To address this, risk management has looked into future initiatives that City Power could embark on. There is a
Sustainability Committee of the Board to monitor management progress. The financial risks and the management thereof, form
part of this key risk area. The types of financial risks which are considered to form the major part of the risk profile of the entity are
liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk.
The Board of Directors have delegated the management of enterprise-wide risk to the audit committee which operates through
various sub-committees. One of the committee’s objectives is to ensure that City Power is not unduly exposed to financial and
market risks. The entity’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the entity’s financial performance. Treasury Risk management is carried out by a central
treasury department under policies managed by the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality. Treasury Risk management
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the municipal entity’s operating units.

Consumer receivables comprise a widespread customer base. The entity’s exposure to credit risk is influenced by the individual
characteristics of each customer. In monitoring credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including
whether they are large or small power users, geographic location, ageing profile, security (deposits and guarantees) held and
payment history.
Management evaluates credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings
are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account
its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the Board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled
in cash or using major credit cards. Collateral security is obtained from all customers either in the form of cash or demand
guarantees.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposures to credit risk at the
reporting date are as follows:
2020

2019

660 827

1 177 028

Figures in Rand thousand
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Trade and other receivables from non-exchange transactions

Interest Rate Risk

Consumer receivables

The entity’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings.There are no borrowings at variable rates of
interest except for the sweeping account with CoJ. Borrowings issued at fixed rates are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

Price Risk

330 377

237 815

2 180 808

1 440 155

The entity analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking into consideration
refinancing, renewal of existing positions, alternative financing and hedging. Based on these scenarios, the entity calculates the
impact on surplus/deficit of a defined interest rate shift.

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash-flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments for its users, by factors affecting all
similar financial instruments in the market. The entity’s financial instruments are affected by the wholesale price of electricity from
Eskom and Kelvin. Kelvin’s costs include coal, diesel and oil pass-through costs.

Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk

Distribution Losses

Figures in Rand thousand

The electricity energy losses can be classified into technical losses and non-technical losses, during 2019/2020 financial year.

Financial instrument

Current
interest rate

Due in less
than a year

Year 2

Year 3 and
above

Consumer receivables

5,32%

2 180 808

-

-

Trade and other receivables from exchange
transactions

5,32%

660 827

-

-

Trade and other receivables from non-exchange
transactions

5,32%

330 377

-

-

Trade and other payables from exchange
transactions

5,32%

(4 345 692)

-

-

Deferred grants payables

5,32%

(28 592)

-

-

Trade and other payables from non-exchange
transactions

5,32%

(9 375)

-

-

Loan from shareholder

11,29%

(4 373 341)

(355 496)

(1 919 681)

Finance leases

10,00%

(19 069)

-

-

Current tax payables

10,20%

(168 706)

-

-
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The entity’s technical losses for the year are measured at 9%, amounting to R1 088 851 178 (2019: R 1 029 310 000). Technical
losses relates to energy that is lost in the transportation of electricity from the point of supply to point of distribution through
dissipation as useless heat.
The entity’s non-technical losses increased from 16.3% (2019: R1 864 313 000) to 19.42% (2020: R2 349 707 845). The nontechnical losses are attributable mainly to the following:
• Theft and bypass of meters
• Illegal decalibration of meters
• Damaged meters and faulty voltage and current transformers
• Billing errors
• Customers without meters
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As part of the entity’s strategy to continuously reduce the impact of non-technical losses, the following interventions have been
implemented and are being reviewed and improved on an annual basis:
•	
Installation of automatic meter management systems, for both large and small power users i.e. automated metering
technologies
•	Continuous replacement of faulty conventional and pre-paid meters
•	Automation of process to acquire new customers and change of meters (through the implementation of automated workflow
and escalation system)
• Utilisation of anonymous “hot line” to report theft, vandalism and tampering
• Random and targeted audits are performed, followed by removal of illegal connections and normalisation supply
• Stand by stand audit which will constitute (100%) verification against the valuation role of the City of Johannesburg
• Reconciliation of customer population with the number of stands on the General valuation roll of the City of Johannesburg.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that City Power will not have sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations when they fall due, or
will have to do so at an excessive cost. This risk can arise from mismatches in the timing of cash flows from revenue and capital
and operational outflows. Funding risk arises when the necessary liquidity to fund illiquid asset positions, such as building new
electricity capacity, cannot be obtained at the expected terms and when required. The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds
available to cover future commitments.
The entity manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. Cash flow forecasts are
prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored. The entity’s funding is managed by the City of Johannesburg
Metropolitan Municipality. The City borrows money in the open market through the issue of bonds as and when required.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, entity treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

45. Irregular Expenditure		
2020

2019

976 009

584 878

-

-

Figures in Rand thousand
Opening balance
Prior year adjustment
Opening balance as restated
Less: Amounts written-off

976 009

584 878

(236 025)

(187 000)

Current year expenditure

1 400 846

578 131

Closing balance

2 140 830

976 009

18 076

-

Irregular expenditure not disclosed (2180GS)

2 181

-

Appointment of a supplier who did not meet mandatory requirements

2 162

-

Extension of current contract

1 955

-

Extension of current contract

645

-

Extension of current contract

5 236

-

Details of Irregular Expenditure – Current Year
Appointment of a supplier who did not meet mandatory requirements

False declaration

1 411

-

15 152

-

Supply and repair of ICT Hardware & Accessories

3 371

-

Removal of illegal meters and audits

7 117

-

Work without contracts

Maintenance of DC Systems

44. Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

Supply and installation of fibre
Extension of contract periods done after expiry date
2020

2019

215 638

164 992

Correction of prior period error

-

-

Opening balance as restated

215 638

164 992

15 486

50 646

231 124

215 638

Figures in Rand thousand

Turnkey solutions for Electrification Projects
Third Party vending

Opening balance as previously reported

Add: Expenditure identified – current
Closing balance

Labour contracts declared null and void by court

Security contracts

Eldorado park substation

-

28 427

Waterval Key project

Salary payment to incorrect banking account

-

26

600

209

15 486

50 646

Interest on late payments
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-

96 492

-

193

-

84

-

60 639

-

2 527

-

233 052

-

34 697

-

681

-

1 400 846

-

Security contract extension
Over expenditure on budget

-

-

Strategic partner used to finalise disciplinary case

21 984

2 583
55 890

-

Subcontractor used to finalise disciplinary case

14 886

-

8 515

Fleet contract extended by CoJ

Interest payable to SARS

-

845 162

Covid -19 emergency procurement
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – current year

526
2 499
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46. Prior-Year Adjustments

Details of Irregular Expenditure – Prior Year
Figures in Rand thousand
Payment of outstanding invoices for Licensing, Support and Maintenance of Software

2020

2019

-

69

Payment for SCADA system licensing, support and maintenance

-

1 639

Payment for maintenance of GIS breakers at Prospect substation

-

1 464

Payment for City Power Jozi@Work Capability Service Agent

-

477

Payment for security services

-

515

Payment of a strategic partner

-

805

Printing Solution – contract extended

-

442

GSM Services – contract extended

-

18 977

GSM Services – contract extended

-

9 285

Security Services for National Key Point – contract extended

-

1 885

Public Relations and Agency Services – Contract irregularly awarded

-

888

Maintenance of network, street lights and service connections

-

138 311

Purchase goods for canteen

-

139

Provision of medical & employee wellness support services

-

2 435

Maintenance of HV & MV Switchgear

-

4 235

Fleet contract

-

69 045

False declaration

-

1 021

Third Party Vending (2282S)

-

17 031

Supply and repairs of ICT Hardware and Accessories

-

563

Meter reading check and final

-

5 373

Third party Vending

-

12 724

Removal of illegal connections and meter audit

-

29 199

Maintenance of DC Systems

-

3 619

Supply, installation and commissioning of optic fibre for telecommunications

-

2 594

between substations and depots
Substations contract

-

179 288

Turnkey Solutions for Electrification Projects

-

11 628

Panel of strategic partners

-

54 812

Quotations

-

479

Third Party Vending

-

9 155

Non tax compliant supplier awarded – Quotation

-

34

-

578 131

The entity has appointed Tic and Mend Consulting and Fever Tree Consulting who together with GFIS to investigating irregular
expenditure.
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Errors
Management, only processes the correction of the error if it is considered material with respect to the Annual Financial Statements
as required by the standard of GRAP. Historical errors, mainly pertain to correction of billing based on the queries raised by
customers. In this regard, management is introducing better controls around revenue management to enable revenue forecasting
and improve revenue predictability, accuracy and completeness.

Service Charges
The electricity revenue accrual was misstated in the 2018 and 2019 financial periods. The revenue for the affected periods has
been adjusted and comparative amounts restated.
The effect of the error on the individual items are as follows:

Statement of Financial Performance
FY 2018

FY 2019

Total

(155 429)

(116 785)

(272 214)

FY 2018

FY 2019

Total

Consumer debtors

(155 429)

(116 785)

(272 214)

Accumulated profit

155 429

116 785

272 214

-

-

-

Figures in Rand thousand
Decrease in service charges

Statement of Financial Position

The correction of the above amounts has resulted in prior year amounts been restated. Presented below are those items contained
in the statement of financial performance and statement of financial position.

Statement of Financial Position
FY 2018

Previously
reported

Correction
of error

Restated

Consumer debtors

1 755 140

(155 429)

1 599 711

Accumulated profit

(5 880 152)

155 429

(5 724 723)

(4 125 012)

-

(4 125 012)

Previously
reported

Correction
of error

Restated

Consumer debtors

1 712 369

(272 214)

1 440 155

Accumulated profit

(5 495 855)

272 214

(5 223 641)

(3 783 486)

-

(3 783 486)

FY 2019
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Statement of Financial Performance
FY 2018

Previously
reported

Correction
of error

Restated

Service charges

13 870 785

(155 429)

13 715 356

FY 2019

Previously
reported

Correction
of error

Restated

Service charges

14 478 670

(116 785)

14 361 885

47. Change in Estimates
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property plant and equipment original useful lives have been reassessed as per table below in the beginning of the current
financial period to reflect the actual pattern of service potential derived from the assets.The depreciation is to be calculated on a
straight line bases for the remaining useful lives of the asset.

Asset class

Useful lives
extensions

Computer equipment

1-2 years

Plant and machinery

1-3 years

Furniture and fittings

1-2 years

The change in the useful lives of the assets had the following impact on depreciation:

Asset class

Current year
(Decrease)

Future
(Increase)

Computer equipment

(1 717)

1 717

Furniture and fittings

(891)

891

Plant and machinery

(2 496)

2 496

(5 104)

5 104
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48.	Reportable Supply Chain Deviations in Terms of Section 36 and Section 32
(Amounts in Rands)
Deviation and ratification from the normal procurement processes in terms of regulation 36 (1)
(a)(v) and (b) of the municipal supply chain management regulations:
•	HV Test – Repairs and Calibration Contract
– R107 058
•	Silicon Engineering – Repairs and Calibration Contract
– R624 786
•	Enviro Tech SA – Removal of Medical Waste
– R676 000
•	Linda Security – National Key Point Security
– R2 131 000
•	Mafoko Security/Nduma Security/GNG Security/Linda
Security – Physical Security Services
– R39 000 000
•	Six Sense Consulting – External witnesses
– R222 180
•	SNG Grant Thornton – External witnesses
– R96 686
•	Yibaa Holdings – Hiring chairs and tables for testing of
electricians – labour contract (not utilised)
– R116 000
•	Mafoko Security Patrols – Physical Security Services
– R4 412 015
•	Nduma Security Consultants – Physical Security Services
– R6 979 179
•	GNG Risk Management & Security – Physical
Security Services
– R2 604 971
•	Linda Security CC – Physical Security Services
– R5 236 265
•	Linda Security NKP – Physical Security Services
– R550 854
•	Tank Industries – Supply and Delivery of LV & MV
Cable Accessories contract
– 7 299 999
•	PH Marketing – Supply and Delivery of LV & MV Cable
Accessories contract
– R4 500 000
•	Various OEMs – Procurement of Miniature Substations
and Ring Main Units (Critical Materials)
– R145 405 000
•	Dynamic Recovery services – Cyberattack
– R16 065 754
•	Altech Card Solutions – Cyberattack
– R19 219 220
•	Dalitso Business Equipment – Cyberattack
– R177 260
•	Ontec Systems – Cyberattack
– R5 314 631
•	Jolenhla Consulting – Cyberattack
– R7 200 000

CITY POWER

•	Dynamic Recovery Services – Implementation of services,
security technologies and solutions to resolve a
cyberattack
– R18 595 637
•	Chimera Holdings – Implementation of services, security
technologies and solutions to resolve a cyber-attack
– R9 461 703
•	Various – Emergency procurement of all Covid-19
consumables in line with the declaration of a national
disaster and subsequent guidelines
– R3 973 300
•	Machite Engineering – Replacement of 11kV
FeederBoard at Waterfall Switching Station: Variation
orders, CPA and Contingencies
– R10 879 000
•	D and S Construction and Projects – disconnection/
reconnection of non-paying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
•	KLZ & TTM JV – disconnection/reconnection of nonpaying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
•	Rivisi Electrical Contractors CC – disconnection/
reconnection of non-paying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
•	Lufuno Kone Electrical – disconnection/reconnection of
non-paying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
•	Sphandile Trading Enterprise CC – disconnection/
reconnection of non-paying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
•	Imbawula Technical Services – disconnection/
reconnection of non-paying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
•	Mongmabu Investments – disconnection/reconnection of
non-paying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
•	Yande Engineering and Projects – disconnection/
reconnection of non-paying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
•	Leoka Investments CC – disconnection/reconnection of
non-paying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
•	Bvelela Engineering CC – disconnection/reconnection of
non-paying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
•	Tshehlane Electrical – disconnection/reconnection of
non-paying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
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50. Subsequent Events

Procurements with less than three
quotations:

•	Mathoho Electrical & Projects – disconnection/
reconnection of non-paying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
•	Zabest Construction (Pty) Ltd – disconnection/
reconnection of non-paying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
•	Kubakhi Contractors CC – disconnection/reconnection
of non-paying customers and meter audits
– R1 000 000
•	Lefhumo Lwa Barema Trading Enterprise –
disconnection/reconnection of non-paying customers
and meter audits
– R1 000 000

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

At a Special General Meeting held on 10 February 2021 the Shareholder retired Kabelo Lehloenya, Magatho Mello as NonExecutive Directors and William Mathamela as a Non-Executive Director and as Chairperson of the Board.

Motlokwana Healthcare (Pty) Ltd – R1 098
Yibaa Holdings – R57 500
Dash Trading Enterprise – R20 100
Doble Engineering Africa – R126 004
Lundstar – R34 560
HV test repair and calibration – R24 664
HV test repair and calibration – R22 114
HV test repair and calibration – R4 557
Yibaa Holdings – R102 400
Dash Trading – R61 750
Anton Paar Southern Africa (PTY) Ltd – R8 357
McClain Capital (PTY) LTD – R41 050
Silver Spectrum Solutions – R171 000

The Shareholder appointed the following as Non-Executive Directors of the Entity: Adv. Lindiwe Maseko (Chairperson), Nomvuyiso
Batyi, Mandla Eugene Hector Seopela, Pumzile Kedama, Naledi Kgope, Errol Vincent Magerman, Patricia Noluthando Marah,
Lerato Mathabatha, Pulane Mogotsi, Khehla Mthembu, Bonolo Ramokhele, Kenny Setzin, Bheki Twala and Mfuni Xolo (Financial
Director and Executive Director). It was also noted that Nancy Maluleke is the current Acting Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director.
The entity’s application for exemption from income tax was heard in the Supreme Court on 6th November 2020. The court
delivered its judgement on 20 November 2020, which denied the entity’s exemption. An application is been submitted to the
Supreme Court to appeal its decision in the Constitutional Court.
The City of Johannesburg Council certified as irrecoverable and wrote off an amount of amount of R236 024 632 in irregular
expenditure by the entity for the 2017/8 and 2018/19 financial years on 27th October 2020.

49. Covid-19 Expenditure (Amounts in Rands)
An emergency procurement process was followed to procure covid-19 items as part of the safety measures put in place to ensure
the safety of City Power employees and stakeholders. National Treasury and City of Johannesburg issued directives and policies
for procurement of covid-19 related personal protective equipments (PPE). However due to emergency situations in certain
instances it became impractical and impossible to follow the set procurement process. As a result expenditure relating to covid-19
was included in irregular expenditure in note 45.
Expense description

Mineral Resources and Energy Minister Gwede Mantashe gazetted amendments to Electricity Regulations on New Generation
Capacity on 16 October 2020. Only municipalities that are in good financial standing will be allowed to buy or generate their own
electricity.

Amounts

Alkaline Batteries

420

Disposable Aprons/Gowns

583 128

Face Shields

54 000

Gloves

127 000

Masks

747 870

Sanitiser

978 000

Shoe covers

4 680

Thermometers

32 000
2 527 098
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